%ﬁ%ﬁ{mﬁ/{y cﬁwﬁé}ﬁ-
CREATE THE FUTURE

ANNUAL REPORT 2 U 24




%ﬁﬁﬁfmm//y f/ﬁiwﬁé/d
CREATE THE FUTURE

The year 2024 marked a significant rnilestone in the 45-year journey of TNG
Investrment and Trading Joint Stock Company. With the theme "Perpetually
develop, Create the future®, TNG affirms its strong determination on the road
of renovation, creation and sustainable development. following the prood

AR Anriuzl Report GMS Sha[?hn'ﬂgsl General achievements in the past 45 years.
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AGVY Altsirated Gilded Vahiclsa GRI Global Reparting Initiative Giventhe constant fluctuations of the glabal market along with the increasing dernand
2. on sustainable development, corporate social responsibility and environmental
BOD A HEi 2 T AR protection, TNG always takes initiative to adapt @nd pionger in-applying the most
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' advanced technological sclutions to production and business activities. In particular,
v with the orientation of becoming a leading enterprise in the green garment industry,
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to offices, aiming to minimize the impact on the environment, creating high-quality

BOS Board of Supervisors IT Information Technology products that are friendly to consumers and the community.
coc Code of Business Conduat UN United Matiane In 2024, TNG continued its strong commitment to investing in technology, improving
corporate governance, enhancing resource efficiency, and building and maintaining
ESG Erndranmental, Social, and a corporate culture of solidanty, responsibility, and sustainable development, We
Governance believe that, with extensive experience, the solidarity of all employees and the

highest sense of responsibility, TNG will overcome all challenges, reach far in the
international market;, and continue to create memorable marks on the new journey.
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Pioneering in brand positioning as a leading Top garment enterprises with effective
garment export brand in Vietnam business and sustainable growth
-« Top B Vietnam's textile and garment industry by export turnover « Healthy finance, great growih potential
« Ranked third in the lextile and garment industry if enly domestic « TNG shares play a leading role in the garmient industry with high

enterprises are considered. liguidity and attracting domestic and foreign shareholders and

investaors ; ;

« Top leading companies with the best corporate governance with .

large production scale and workforee. - Amaong the leading companies with stable and |ncrEasmg u:H .-u:iem:i T

rales aver the years. _ A Wl
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COMMITMENT TO

HONESTY AND
REASONABLENESS OF THE REPORT

COMMITTING TO A TRUE AND FAIR VIEW ON ANNUAL REPORT 2024
(JANUARY 1, 2024 - DECEMBER 31, 2024), INTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE OF
TNG INVESTMENT AND TRADING JOINT STOCK COMPANY IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR ENSURING THAT ALL MATERIAL RISKS ARE CONTROLLED, MINIMIZING
RISKS IN PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS, ENHANCING RISK MANAGEMENT,
IMPROVING GOVERMNANCE SYSTEM, THEREBY HELPING THE COMPANY
OPERATE MORE PRODUCTIVELY AHD EFFICIENTLY.

In the role and responsibilities of Internal Audit Committee, we are
cormmitted thal:

Annual Report 2024 (January 1, 2024 - December 31, 2024) is
prepared, meeting the regulations on information disclosure on the
stock market as prescribed in Circular No 96/2021/TT-BTC. We see
that the Company is striving towards good practices in the market as
well as higher international standards such as:

- Corporate  governance rules of Organization for Economic
Cooperation and Development (QECD)

« International standards for Global Sustainability Reparts (GRI)
- ASEAN Corporale Governance Scorecard

+ Integrated report according to intemational standards (International
Integrated Reporting Council - 1IRC)

The Company’s Leaders have built the Implementation process and
Internal Audit Committee has conducted supervision 1o ensure the
faith and the authenticity of the figures to be selected and presented in
annual report for the year 2024 (January 1, 2024 - December 317, 2024),

Internal Audit Committee finds that Annual Report 2024 (January 1, 2024
- Decernber 31, 2024} was presented in a true and fair view, reflecting
business position of the Company in the fiscal year towards the goal of
protecting interests of Shareholders, Investors and Stakeholders.

Head of Internal Audit

DAD DUC THANH
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~ L VISION - MISSION - COMMITMENT OF TNG

VISION

e e o

A Public Company in top mest transparent, best
management and most sustainable businesses.

A manufacturing and retailing company in both

domestic and international markets with the revenue
ranked in the TOP billion-dollar businesses.

MISSION

Take all responsibility for all products
supplied to consumers.

Bring happiness to employees, customers
and residential communities.

COMMITMENT OF TNG

CUSTOMERS

- Provide qualified products to customers

+ Have good quality, competitive price and on-time delivery.

- Protect customers' nghts on product and traderark.

- Ensure prestige and respect to customers.

- Commit to production time and capacity with customers.

- Commit to delivery tirne.

« Comrnit to anti-corruption, anti-bribery in production and business.

SHAREHOLDERS

- Have pubic; transparent and fair information related to business activities.

« Maxirnize values and benefits for shiareholders.

- Ensure sustainable development, effective business and reputation in the market.
- Appreciate the spirit of cooperation for development.

COMMUNITY
- Hanmonize business interests with social benefits.

- Participate in community activities, social security.

- Production goes hand-in-hand with environmental protection.
- Show responsibility to the community.

. Mnhmlatg against nghts of TNG's-.emplayees according to the laws.
- Guarantee all rights of employees working at TNG under the Labour Code.
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. MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN
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STEPPING INTO A NEW JOURNEY, WE BELIEVE THAT WITH THE
STRONGINTERMALSTRENGTH, THEDESIRETO REACH OUT AND THE
CONSENSUS OF ALL EMPLOYEES, TNG WILL CONTINUE TO WRITE

NEW PAGES OF HISTORY, SURPASSING ALL LIMITS AND REACHING
INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS.

TOTAL REVENUE 2024
VND 7’ 6 5 5 billion

'i} Up 7.9% compared to 2023
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Dear valued Shareholders, Partners, Customers and all Employees,

2024, vietnaems Texdile and gamentindustng recawared
after a larg period of difficuities and challenges and
recarded positive sigrals from the market and a steacy
increase n oexport Gien the global supply chain
gradually adapling, testile and garmenl enterprises
have flewibly transformed, optimized operations and
expandad intemational cooparation, creating a favorable
faurdaton for growth in both scale and quality

The year 2024 has closed with impressive growth far
TG Investment and Trading Joarl Slack Campany
when total revenue and profit after tax reached
Whib 7655 billicn and WNE 315 billion, up 7.9% and
471 6% campared (o 2023, respectively, These resulls
have proven the salid position and strang mininsic
value of the TNG brand. In particular, 2024 iz na
only a successful yvear bul alzso marks the 45 vear
histarical milestane of THNG. The 45-vear journey of
perseverance and innavation swith 8 desire 1o reach
far has made TNG proud 1o become the symbol of a
leading brand in terms of praduct quakity in Vieginam's
garrment industry,

Giver the global challenges and fluctuations, the
garment industry i facing a fierce campetitian with
increasingly high dermards on guakity standards and
strict requirements from customers, THNG continues
1o promole irvestment in techrakogy ransfommation
Improve corporale govemnance, increase rescurce
efficiency, and constantly strenginen the corporate
culture values of salidarity - responsibility - creatlivity
That- iz the foundation for us 1o Nlexibly adapl, strongly
grony ant widely increase our brand presence on the
Wil rmap.

Dear valued Shareholders, Partners and all
Employees!

Firmily pursuing the path of sustamable development
THG has gradually reatizad ESG criteria {Ermaronrméantal
- sacEl - Governanca) and considered these onileda
22 a gudelme in the Comparys kKng-tanm strategic
orentalion. We anderstand that, in codes 1o develop
stronghy and comprebensivel) enterpises nol arey

fecus on fAnancial efficiency with a  professional
rmanagerment system but alse commit to fulfilling The
respansibilities o the erronment, while spreading
poxsitive vatues o the commumnity, That has been clesrly
dermonstrated by THGS key goals in 2024

¢ Goyernance: THNG constanily mnavales managermenl
thinking, aming @ buikd a lean, transpzrent and
fiexitde bBusiness model. In 2024, TG promaled the
application of digital technolegy m aperation and
managerment, enhancing cannectivity and efficiency
in supply chain operation: AL the same time, we focus
an raining, developing leadership capacity, Bullding a
professional working ervircnment, creating condibions
for each individuzal o maximize ther capacily,
and accomparying an e journey of suslainable
clesvalaprmern

« Erwironment. In 20249, THG imphemented moofiop
salas power project at Viel Thal Branchand will cortinug
(o deploy al other branches of THG In 2025 This s a
sirategic step affirming TGS strong  cammifmernt
an the journey of oplimizing renewable enengy,
cantributing sigrificantly 1o reducing greenhouse gas
ermissions, while pining hands with the Government 14
candguier Mel Zers gaai by 2025,

v Sociely: In 2024, THG conlinued to actively respornd
and implernent  cammenity and  sackal  security
activities  through meaningful pragrams © such  as
giving Great Unity Houses to the families with difficult
cicumstarces, awardmg schalarships 1o stsdents,
sUppodling peocple It nalusal disasters, stoms-and
ficods: donating fire extinguishers; ela. The activities
Fawe  brodght profound  rmeanings, conthibulicg 1a
jaining hands for a betler life

Stapping inla a new jaufney, we beheve hatl with the
sleong inlarmal stregthy, tha desire Lo reach oul and tha
cansensus of all ermplayess, THNG will continue 1o wrile
rew pages of kstory, surpassing all lmits and reaching
imnternational standards. We would like to express aut
sincere thanks for wouwr trust, companionship - and
cledication 10 build a strong THG like taday

Weshing you haglth, peacs and happiress

Besl regands,

CHAIRMAN

NGUYEM VAN THOI
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fﬂ; GENERAL INFORMATION

TNG INVESTMENT AND TRADING JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Company name

English business name

Charter capital

Business registration

certificate

Head affice

20

TNG

CONG TY CO PHAN DAL TU WA THUONG MAI THNG

THG INVESTMENT AND TRADING JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

VND 1,226,012,060,000

4600305723 issued by Department of Planning and
Investment of Thar Nguyen Pravince for the first
time an January 02, 2003 and the 38th amendment
registration on July 30, 2024

Mo, 434/7 Bac Kan Street, Hoang Van Thu Ward,
Thai Nguyen City, Thai Nguyen Province

02083.858 508

InfafEtng. vn

https: A ng.vn

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

CHARTER CAPITAL

~1,226,012,060,000
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' Froam 1979 10 2003
+ Pesiod of Stabe-caned ememprise.

. o= Mavembes 229 1970 Bac Thai

Garmnenl Enterprise, established
under the Decision Ma. £88,00-LIB
by Bac Thai Peoples Comemitbes
with 2 production lines supparted by
thee Garman Demoaratic Republic.

[ ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT HISTORY

From 2008 io 2078
Investing in technology for brasd
of fematicn and developrment.

* This was the period of strang innovation
when THG invested in  audomation
technalogy 1o develop and affirm @5
brand. THG focused on deploying ERP
system in all production and bisminess
activilies and improwved all factories in
accordanoe with green factory model.

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

The Company siarted construcling THG
¥illage commescial buildng.

The Company acquired DG Garment Factory,
changed #s name inte THG Deng Hy Gament
Branch and mvested in increasing the Faclory

capacity o 35 produsclion lines.

The Campany successfully issued convertible
beatds of WD 200 billion to farelgn nvestars.

The progeci “Research and application of

monfhread  sewing technology on  shirt

prodiscts” was approved by the Thai Nguyen

Peoples Comméttes, and issued Copyright

* Nowember 47, 1997 The enierprise registration certificate Mo, 2773/ 2008/0TG

was reroemed a5 Tha  Mpuyen dated June 4%, 201 B by the Copyright Office of

Garmer Company under the Decision T ; : | Wietnaemn

Mo, 6760D-UR by Thai Mpuyen

Peaples Committes. » The Company changed s name ino THG

Joint  venture with Duc Giang |_I:I'.IE'!|TI'I'HrI arnd Trading Jeoart  Stock
Garmert Company of Vielnam bk o

Haticnal Textdie and Garmend = THE siocks were listed on Hanoi Sinck

Corparation 1o establish Yiet Thai Exchanges with stock code THG.
Joint Venbure Garment Company.

* The Company inawgurated and put
into cperatian THG Fashion Design
Cemer and head office of the
Company.

From 2003 to 2007: « The Company started constrscti +« THG officially expanded its business 1o
et S AN TR THE P Bink factory. z real m:::.rudﬁ by launching THG
Compary was preparing 1o Bsl on the Village apartment builfing project in
stock exchange October 2019, TNG Village was buill for
s The Company changed its name the purpose  of “happiness for

irio Thas Hguyen Garment Expar : employees”. The praject is a part of

Jaing Sock Company. utility progect seres that s developed by
THIS with the desine to improve the living

quality for emplayees.

|- The Cormpany siarted constructing
THG D= Tu Factary.

= The Company started constructng
THG Seng Cang Factory.

."':l-.lI
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‘¢ ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT HISTORY (cont.)

THG recorded the highest revenue and profit
in the Compamy's history with YND 8772
billian, becoming the 2 biggest garment and
textibe  enterprise I Vietnam  {among
domestic textile and germent entarprises).

TG Yo Mhai Faciory was deployed in
accondance with Green factony maodel.

THG Song Cong Factory obtained LOTUS
ZIVER - Certificated by Vietnam Green
Building CouncH for factores which are
dezigned and built accordimg to the
requirements of Lotus Green Building
System  Verslon 2.0  applied to
nonrestdential buildings. On February 1% 2022, TRE Technobogy
Solution Branch was established with the
project of smart governance and operation
sodution for garment mdustry.

For the first time, & branch reached revenue
mawe than WHD 1,000 billlon per year -
C:al Tu Branch reached YHD 1,177 bilkan.

Launched antibecterial cotton preduct -
Used i fece masks, garments, ete.

THG was honored to receive the In April 2077, Robot TNG Department wis

Certificate of Sustainable Enterprise in established with an elite team of engineers

2020 - Manufacturing. who heve lsunched 25 designz with 10
putomeatic machines already applied in manmy
branches.

InJune 2022 THG Land Joint Stock Company
was eslablished, operating in real estates,

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

MARKED THE MILESTONE
OF THE

A5EVANNIVERSany,

of TNG establishment

AUGUST 30, 2024

IPAB]Branch;

(TNG Testing Center)
Eirsvaranrranarraranar R ae e RGN X I T
TOTAL REVENUE PROFIT BEFORE TAX
WMD :i 0@55 billian '-.-'.-"wlL.J =4 : II.I:IIIIr..'-rl

i} Up 7.9% compared to 2043 ’i} Up 42 5% compared to 2023

THE was honored to obtain the Certificate ' * For the fourth consecutive year, TNG has
of Sustsinable Enterprise | 2021 i recorded positive revenue growth. The
Menufacturing; Top 10 Best Annual Report i revenue  generated In 2023 reached
2021. | WHD 7,095 billion, bresking the revenus
i record set In 2022, equivalent to & 4.74%
increase compared o the same period,
achieving 104% of the 2023 plan.

Leunched heatthcars products and samices.

Installed and upgraded factories uwsing

rooftop solar power aystemn [Cotton and i Im May 2023; Estsblished the TOT
Peckaging Branch). v Autornation Technobogy Branch

Built & green factory system meeting i I Suly 2023: Transferred the THG Wiet Thai

LOTUS standards. i factory to the Son Cam Industrial Cluster
i with a scale of 32 sewing lines.

Mede investment into real estate projects,

24

Relocated Viet Duc Garment Branch from
160 Minh Cau Street, Phan Dinh Phung Ward,
Thai Nguyen City to Son Cam Industrial Park

TOTAL INVESTMENT
OF VIET DUC FACTORY

VMDD I Bl e

A Repont 7034 25



CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

; -fff{;:EUEIN ESS ACTIVITIES AND LOCALITIES
T N ( N OPERATING IN THE FIELD OF PRODUCING
GARMENTS FOR EXPORT AND LOCAL DOMESTIC.

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
g
*  Kid wears and * Tent - &
Q » Textile and garment
~'u machinery and equipment
- e S o
» PE bags of all kinds ; ,1—_r: il * Cotton sheets E g{ﬂi,f’
! T * Cotton quilting ; e W
- Cotton jacket * Skirts
* Feather jackets * Felt clothes
* Seam clothes * Knitwear...

- Shorts of all kinds * Real estate.




CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

.'I%;iausmass ACTIVITIES AND LOCALITIES (cont.)

TOP 10 MARKETS IN 2024 BUSINESS LOCALITIES
CANADA NETHERLANDS
RUSSIA
UsA GERMAMNY
FRANCE
SPAIN ! —GThui Mguyen City
CHINA 5 Branches ond Ctficesof the Campany
'_0 Song Cong City
T Branches
. &) Phu Binh District
b & Bronches
!
) Vo Nhai District
2 Bronches
—@' Dang Hy District
| Bronich
& Dai Tu District
| Branch
.
* -
@ usA @ Canada Hoang Sa lslands
¢ France & Vietnam
@ Spain @ HNetherlands
~ Russia @ China
@ Germany @ Other countries
AR
Bl
P ={pf .:I'L =
e e EXPORT MORE THAN Truong Tfm ielands
COUNTRIES AND TERRITORIES

28 Al Repon 024 29



CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

1% SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES
AND ASSOCIATES

3 ASSOCIATES

THG LAND JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Company code EEY R Total shares 28,680,000 shares
indtial business registration = e
certif Juene 30, 2022 Capital contribution VRO 1400000, 0005 00
Dong Xe Hamlel, Son Cem )
Head office Commune, Thai Mguyen Rate of ownerehlp 48.B1%
City, Thai Mowyen Province Main businass
- Tradiry real estate
BAC THAI INVESTMEMNT CONSTRUCTION Charter capital WD HRE A00. 000,000 aperations
JOINT-5TOCK COMPANY THG YEM BINH GOLF COMPANY LIMITED Face valua per.shae VN 10,000
434/1 Bar Kan Strest, Thai Mowyen City, - it
HAddress Thel Niven Province Charter capétal WD 3060, 000,000,000
Capital G S Capltal F ,
contribution.  © 0 /71150000 contribution ¥HDA 42, 0000080 BASIC FINANCIAL INDICATORS OF TNG LAND JOINT STOCK COMPANY IN 2023 AND IN 2024
Rate of ARL003% Rate of &
ownership b ownership £ ML 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 CHAMNGE %
Main buginess Caonstructing works refatad Maln business Trading Golf course 1 ASSETS
et ati er network tion C v
e B _ i ) _ Current asests 237 162 832,795 JO0B79878558  2424%
Baal Buziness termination. TMG hes mads Busi THG &nd Its e3s0caies are making
. 100% peovision for the sweatment In m:EH plans for disscdetion of this company Man-curren! assels 3260372174349 103,431,033,597 116:62%
periommasce thiz subsidisry PN dependamg onits business stuatian Total aspets 563,190,050,234 294,310,812,155 140.86%
2 RESOURCES
Liabilities 269776402 438 19,009 684,706 131.11%
Equity 2939713647 795 275,301,227 4449
Total resources 563 190,050,234 294310912155  140.86%

2024 2023 CHAMNGE %

Revenue from services rendered 22,757,781,234 13,768,099,228 471%
Accounting profit before tax 3,609,448 463 5.411,778.211 -0.90%
Net profit after corporate income tax 2,612,420,347 3,754,063,613 -0.60%

drmunl Repor 2024 31




CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

4_BRANCHES UNDER TNG

AFTER 45 YEARS OF CONSTRUCTION AND
DEVELOPMENT, TNG HAS AFFIRMED ITS
POSITION AS A LEADING BRAND IN THE EXPORT
GARMENT INDUSTRY IN VIETNAM. WITH A
NMETWORK OF 20 BRANCHES SPREAD ACROSS
THAINGUYEN PROVINCE, TNG HAS CONSTANTLY
INVESTED INADVANCEDPRODUCTIONLINES AND
TECHNOLOGY. EACH BRANCH IS A SOLID LINK
TO CREATE OUTSTANDING PRODUCTS - BOTH
AFFIRMING QUALITY AND DEMONSTRATING THE
STATUREOFASTRONG ANDPRESTIGIOUSBRAND
NOT ONLY IN VIETNAM BUT ALSO REACHING OUT
TO THE INTERNATIONAL MARKET.

14. Vo Nhai 1 Garment Branch
15. Vo Nhai 2 Garment Branch
Cay Bong Industrial Complex,

La Hien Commume, Vo Mhai District,
Thai Mguyen Province

1. Dai Tu Garment Branch
Tien Hoi Commune, Dai Tu District, Thai Nguyen Province

2. Viet Duc Garmeant Branch
Son Cam 1 Industrial Cluster, Son Cam Commune,
Thai Nguyen City, Thai Nguyen Province

3. Viet Thai Garment Branch
Son Cam 1 Industrial Cluster, Son Carm Comimiune, _
Thai Nguyen City, Thai Nguyen Province \ i

‘

Mam Hoa Commune, Dong Hy District,
Thai Mguyen Province

DONG HY il '
o = 16. Dong Hy Garment Branch

4. TNG Fashion Branch

5. TRE Technology Solution Branch

6. TOT Automation Technology Branch
The Office of TNG Investment
and Trading Joint Stock Company

Mo 434,71, Bac Kan Street, Thai Mguyen City,
Thai Nguyen Province
7. Song Cong 1 Garment Branch
8. Song Cong 2 Garment Branch PHO YEN

9. Song Cong 3 Garment Branch

10. Song Cong 4 Garment Branch

11. Package Production Branch

12. Cotton Production Branch
13. LAB Branch (TNG Testing Center)
Son Cami Industrial Zone, Song Cong City, Thai Nguyen Province

"'i"f.'
- .-

17. Phu Binh 1 Garmant Branch
18. Phu Binh 2 Garment Branch
19. Phu Binh 3 Garment Branch

20, Phu Binh 4 Garment Branch
Kha Son Commune, Phu Binh District,
Thai Nguwyen Province
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L4 TYPICAL PRODUCTS

GARMENT PRODUCTS
Understanding the needs and desires of textile and garment enterprises

All kinds of dresses, kid wears, knitwear... Cotton, black cotton to save costs, be flexible in production, increase productivity and
improve work quality and efficiency, TOT was born with the role of

providing high-tech automation machinery in the garment industry.
Cotton jackets, featl seamless clothes, Gloves Tents TOT has a team of ElpFl‘iE‘l‘lCEd Engi.neers &rrl:ll experts in mﬂf‘:hine
shorts, Mountaineering apparel design Hnll:l manufacturing, along with creativity and enthusiasm,
always striving to create the best products for customers. TOT always
follows closely the requirements of customers, updates the latest
technical technology, thereby having changes and effective solutions
to meet the specific needs of each customer.

GARMENT MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

& Fims s

i T

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SOFTWARE FOR GARMENT INDUSTRY

TNG is a pioneering enterprise to make investment in research and
development of corporate governance software in garment industry.
This software not only helps TNG professionally manage and improve
production and business efficiency, cost saving, human resources and
time saving, but also is considered a special "PRODUCT" - a proprietary
technology solution that TNG can provide for other apparel businesses.

ES
FLEXIBLY

fApply famolus managamant mcdals
in ther world in the first

E-management platform in Vietnam
for busine=s operations
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THE YEAR 2024 WITNESSED THE STRONG DEVELOPMENT OF
TNG WITH OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENTS NOT ONLY IN MARKET
EXPANSION AND PRODUCTION OPTIMIZATION BUT ALSO IN RAISING
ITS POSITION IN THE INTERNATIONAL MARKET. THE 10 HIGHLIGHTS
BELOW ARE IMPORTANT STEPS THAT HELP THE COMPANY
CONTINUE TO DEVELOP SUSTAINABLY AND MAINTAIN ITS LEADING
POSITION IN VIETNAM'S TEXTILE AND GARMENT INDUSTRY.
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-10 HIGHLIGHTS IN 2024

MARKING THE 45™ ANNIVERSARY OF TNG

‘ INVESTMENT AND TRADING JOINT STOCK COMPANY

" *,,i (NOVEMBER 22, 1979 - NOVEMBER 22, 2024)

On Moverrber 27, 2024, THG Investment and Trading
Joint Steck  Company  solemnly organized  the
Ceremary of its 45" Anniversany (1979 - 2024) with
the therme "Perpetually develop - Create the fulure” at
THG Viel Thal - Son Cam Factory, After 45 vears of
constructian and develapment, THG i2 prowd 19 be an
Tep 10 textie and garrment enterprises with the largest
expor lurnoves inWVietnarm for many years, contributing
hundreds of bilkons of YRNG 1o the State budost and
creating stable jobs for more than 19,000 people

After marny vears of perastent investment n expanding
praductan scale, marking the 457 anriversary, THG has
20 branches, including 15 sewing branches, 2 suppedting
branches (Cotton - Fackaging), 2 technology branches
and 1 LAB branch Total producton. scale reaches 3356
sewirg lines and 15 awdliary lines {cotton, packaging,
printing, embroideny, washing, ele ) This s the stage of
micbilizing all resources to break through in the pericd
2025 - 2030 and achieve the revernie farget of one
Billian USDyvear

“PERPETUALLY DEVELOP,
: CREATE THE FUTURE"

o) III‘}
=
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Celebrating its 45™ anniversary of establishment, THG has expressed special gratitude (o the “fire bearer” -
br. Mauyen Yan Thoi - Party Secretary - Chairman of THG, who bas lighted wp the fire of enthusiazm, making
THG a symbol of solidarity and aspiration 1o rise stronaly. The Company has alse expressed gratitude for
the *Lifetime dedication” of individuals who have devoted their youth and their whale lives since they were
yourig untll retirerment 1o engage and contribute 1o THNG The Company has also expressed gratitude for
the “Inhentance and development” of individuals with outstanding achieverments, wha represent the young
generation of THG to continue ta inkerit, promote, and write the THNG future.

Conlinidng  that emotenal  fow
Chalrman Mawen Van Thol has
alzn expreaszed his deep gratilude
for the effers and compankanship
af the mamagement board, pariners,
custamers and all erplovees of THG
aver the past 45 years-and at the
sarme tirme sending Fes expectations
and ambitions to the next gereration.
A strang eollective s formed fram
outstanding  individuals: THG. has
achioved  proud achieverments
thanks 1o lhe wise and coumgeous
leadership of the Baard of Directors
and the Board of Managemenl a3
well s the salidatity and effarts of all
aemplayess throwgh the generatans.
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f’ "10 HIGHLIGHTS IN 2024 (cont.)

REACHING THE HIGHEST REVENUE AND PROFIT ]
IN THE PAST 45 YEARS e
&=2J .

Ir 2024, THG recorded revenue of WHE 7,655 billion,
an inorease af 7.9% compared 1o 2023, complating
97% of the vear plan. Profit afler tax reached WND
315 billion, an increase of 41,6% compared 19 the
same pericd, excesding the profit targpel by 2%,
marking the highest profil in the Company's hislory,
creatng stable jabs far 19,052 people with an average
sakary of VD 9.5 millicn/persen/month

These achievernents are resulted fram an effective
business Stratedy, phoduction optimization and market
expansion. This succeszz ot only affirme THNGS
susidinabie developrment but also creales the prarmise
o stronger steps farward in the future,

b

g P 5 ISO 17025-LAB

CAMG TY CO BHAN BAL TU VA THUONG MAI THEG

5 £ veirain E =

[';:-' T[!’ L MEIFHI]+TMETHH

In August 2024, THNGs Board of Directors decided

: o :
- . o establish LAB Branch (THG Testing Center’ in the
1 *' ﬂl.“" "/ Iﬂ-i‘l .‘G F‘ Decision Mo, 546/ND-HEQT dated August 26; 20024
- : LAE Branch (THG Testing Center) s respansible far
ﬁ performing 38 testing methods: for developrment
y samples and pre-production . approval  samples,
b effectively controlling potential risks and ensuring
: product  quality - from the early. stages This. not
i galy helps minimize ermors.in production but also
I oplimizing costs with the testing cost of 10% lawer
. than that conducted by external units:
f:‘r.ﬂ:;ﬂ'\l .................... S T e e e e e
= TOTAL REVENUE PROFIT AFTER TAX
WMD ; l 6 5 5 billion WD 3 1 5 Billicn
{r Up 7.9% compared to 2023 ‘I} Up 41.6% compared to 2023
410
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RESEARCHING, MANUFACTURING AND DEPLOYING
AUTOMATED GUIDED VEHICLE (AGV) INTO PRODUCTION

TOT Automation Branchof TNG, whichwas establizhed
in early 2023 from Robotics Department [TOT),
has rapidly developed and launched 25 innavative
product designs. Until naw, TOT has manufasiuned
and daliversd mare than 100 automated devices ta
cuslamers. In particular, Autormated Guided Vehicles
LAGY) have bean applied in 7 TG factaries: helping ta
aplimize the transpart process, feducing dependenca
AR Mmanpoesar, Impraving praduativiy and minirmiing
operating costs. In the future, TOT will Gentinue
1o research, design and manufactue highctech
autamation products, with the goal of becoming a
leading unit in providing solutions and designing AGV,

MEETING INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS

i particular, TGS LAB Branch has abtained (50
17025 certification,  an  Important  International
standard for testing and calibration laborataries. This
standard helps the Company enhance 1 reputation,
affirming the testing quality according to intermational
standards, ensuring accurasy in testing the quality of
raw materals and products, increasing the trust-of
intemational custamers and parttners, and oplimizing
quality cortrol process in the supply chain, Thiz is an
imporiant step forward, contributing to making TNG
a leading garment enterprise with an intémationally
standardized quality contral system,
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/.10 HIGHLIGHTS IN 2024 (cont.)

| =

; PR TNG GOT TALENT 2024

Tocreate ajoyiul and exciting atmosphere for employees owards celebrating the 45 anniversary of establishment,
THG has launched the competition “THG Got Talent 2024°. This is-a useful playvground to pramote the cultural and
artistic movernent, improving the spiritual life of employees. ILis also an apportunity Tor individuals and collectives
o demuansitate their artishic walerls, cantibuling 1 hononng TRG cultural values

The final round of TRNG Got Talent 2024 officially ook place on Novembsar 2, 2024 with the paricipation of 16
performances from 16 branches af the Company. There is nothing happier than ta be immersed in the busting
alrmosphere of the Gala rght. In additicn 1 constantly: stiving 1o complete excellent production and business
goals, the competition has promoted the spirt of colleagues thraughoul THG The judges and the audience hawve
enjayed a busilingnight withrthe spectacular and emational perfarmances, bringing a vibrant and peoud atmasphers
fewvards celebrating the 43" anmwersary of THG,

TIMKIEM.TAI'NANG
TNG GOT

LENT 2024

Tl Wguydn, Rgdy 02/ /2026

S H ”

e e I il aa SN
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WORKSHOP "GATHERING QUINTESSENCE -
- SPREADING VALUES"”

I the marning of June 30, 2024, at Mha Tol Ecotourism,
for the first time THG ormganized the Workshop
GATHERIMG QUINTESSEMNCE - SPREADING VALLES
with the participation of nearly 200 tearn lesders from
B units including Vst That, Song Cong 1, Song Cong 2,
Phu Binh 1, Phu Binh 2, Phu Bink 4, Vo Mhal 1, and Yo
Mhai 2, This iz the first program arganized on a large
stabe, exclusively for TMG tearm leaders

The Warkshop focuses on 3 mam lames.  [Ram
leaders motivate and retain employees, team leaders
boost praductivity, and leam leaders reach sales
targets, all of which are practical contents in. work
and recewed much attention-from team leaders. In a
Jenful, excited and proud almosphere, the team leaders

PG — - —- ﬁ
_HOITY TINH HOA

have enthusiastically discussed and shared useful
infarmation, having coportunities (oo exchange and
cannect with colleagues from the units of THG.

After the training program, team leaders are eguipped
with skills i hurman resource manacement, task
assignment, work progress  cantral,  production
planrng and effective productian tearm managament.
They also learmn how 10 apply advanced production
rmanagerment taals, thereby cplimizamg work process,
irpreying their ability (o train and Suppart warkess n
the tearn. This program not arly helps increase lahor
productivity bul alse apens up carear developrment
opportunities for team leaders in the Tutune

Arnudl Reoor 37020 43
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.u 10 HIGHLIGHTS IN 2024 (cont.)

ADMITTING 220 NEW PARTY MEMBERS, 115 MORE STRICTLY IMPLEMENTING

o THANIN 2023

I 2024, the Party Commities of THG implemented
many important resalutions @ pramote production
and business activiiies, focusing on developing new
Party members and improving palitical and idealogical
educatian far cadres, Party members and employess.

With itz continuous efferts, THNG's Parly Comimittee
has actueved remarkable results swEh as adimilling
220 reew Padty mermnbers, 175 pecple more than in 2023
{achieving 105% of the vear plan], officially eonverting
f6 probationary Parly members, and  organiZing
Parly awareness training classes for 253 oulstanding
people, These resulls were recognized and highly
appreciated al the Conference to sumymarize leadership

-
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22 0 new Party
ADMITTING members

o,
o

reaching 105% of the year plan
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and deployment ol political dulies in 2024, crganized
by the Party Commitlee of Thal Hguyen Province
&1 the Conference, THG% Parly Commiltee was
hanored 1o receie the Emulation Flag for "Excellently
completing duties in 5 conseculive years” (20192023
and the Certificate of Merit lor "Excellently completing
fypecal duties in 2024° fram the Party Camimities of
Thai Nguyen Cily,

Thiz achieverneril has marked & strong develdamernl in
Buitding Pasty-at the enterprise, demonstrating THES
altention to training and developing a human resource
with strang political idesdodgy, cantnbating ta building &
Strarg entlerpsise

e BANG CONGSKR VIET NAM GUANO VING MOON AN i
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OFFICIALLY CONVERTING

76 probaticnary Party members

TRAINING PARTY AWARENESS

2 5 3 outstand |r|-g| p-EDp]E

P WORKING HOURS UNTIL 5:30 PM

THG iz one af the pioneers in the garment ndustry
to irrglesment working howes until 530 pon. - every
day There is no awerlirme on special oocasions such
as public holidays, Tel holidays or anniversaries
Thiz policy helps employvess have mone time 1o rest,
re-produce  labor power and increase  productivity
thanks to reasonable working time, enswring a balance
between work and personal life, thereby promoting the
emplayees’ long-lerm camimitment 1o the Compary
Cptirmizing cost efficiency and improving productivity,
the Compamy's profil in 2024 excesded the plan and
created many positive impacts.

il et 2064
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££°10 HIGHLIGHTS IN 2024 (cont.)

PUTTING TNG DEVELOPMENT CENTER (TNG DC)
e INTO OPERATION

I 2024, THG Cevelopment Cenler (THG DO} was
afficially put into speration, helping the Campany
imprave ks product design and research capacity.
THE DG iz the first sample developrment center in the
glabal 1extike industry which is 1lechnically recognized
by Decathion, marking a breakthrough in impraving
research and desigh capacily, Thanks (oo strang

irvestrment and sustainable developrmenl rertation,
the Center has developed 56 new product codes,
contributing to strengthening the strateqic cooperalion
relatianship-between THG -and Decathion expanding
exporl  markels, imprewing  compelitiveness  and
confributing to affirming THGS: pasition in the giobal
Supply chalr

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

EXPANDING US MARKET, SIGNING CONTRACTS
WITH G-Il APPAREL GROUP AND CENTRICBRANDS

Besides sucressfully cooperating with leading fazhian
pariners such as Decathlan, Columbia, The Children's
Place, and Sportrmaster, in: 2024, THGE sajes eam
signed contracts with G-Il Appare] Group and Centric
Brands, Gl Apparel Group is a famous fashion
compary, owning - and distributing brands such as
Calvin Klein, Tammy Hilfiges, and DENY. Centric Brands

“ﬂ" .

specializes in designing, manufactising and trading
lashion products, ascessares and hame appliances
for famous brands, Cooperating with these parirers
has opened up greal apporiunities. for THEG to raise
revenise in the Morth Armerican market, affirming the
Comparny’s position inthe international marketl,

dnmuil Reponr 700 47



1% AWARDS AND TITLES IN 2024
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CERTIFICATE OF MERIT

“EXCELLENTLY COMPLETING TASKS"
' IN 2024

Awarded by the Party Committee of Thal Nguyen City,

O I O e i T T WA
e I ANT:

>

Cing Irt:l'}_ PHAN BAU TU VA THUITME MA! THE
DON Vi DAN DAU PHONG TRAG IH DUA

=AM X024

EMULATION FLAG
LEADING UNIT IN THE EMULATION MOVEMENT IN 2024

Awarded by the People’s Committee of Thai Nguyen Province.

e s 5

CERTIFICATE OF MERIT = CERTIFICATE OF MERIT

Outstanding achievements Emulation movement

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT “FIRE PREVENTION AND FIGHTING
IN THAI NGUYEN CITY IN 2024 FOR ALL PEOPLE" IN 2024

B e T e e o e o,

fwarded by the Peoples Committee of
Thai Nguyen City.

Awarded by the People’s Commitiee of
Thai Mguyen Province.
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(. AWARDS AND TITLES IN 2024 (cont.)
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COMMEMORATIVE MEDAL CERTIFICATE OF MERIT

"EXCELLENT COLLECTIVEIN Outstanding achievements

DEVELOPING CUSTOMS
- BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP” DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION
(2014-2024) IN 2024
| -'-.'-.EIFI:E'II.‘ ::ny -,_|:E- .;__EF,EE,”__ELE”“-,-,,_:,H i ew;'s;rféle-d- nyr"e De:lartr'n-sut-:}f -Ir'u-fr;nr-r*.;ailf:-n am;I
of Customs Communications of Thai Nguyen Province.
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CERTIFICATE

MOST WANTED IR ACTIVITIES BY INVESTORS
(Mid-cap listed companies)

.....................................................................

Awarded by Vietstock.

il
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CERTIFICATE

PIONEERING ENTERPRISES
COMMITTED TO IMPROVING

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN
VIETNAM - VNCG50

Py e Frr

Awarded by Vietnam Institute of Directors (VIOD)
n2024.

o e e e e e e i i e

CERTIFICATE

TOP 100

el (SUSTAINABLE ENTERPRISES IN
- VIETNAM IN 2024

e o

=

Awarded by Vietnam Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (VCCI)
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countries and territofies arawnd the world,

development Lo increase product profitability,

resources and gol canvenience in transportalion,

compretensive solutions Tar the garment sector.
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= THG = a large-scale garment company with a larg
developrment history of nearly a hall of century
Tagether with a team af high-skill workers, state-of-
the-art machinery arsd praguction lines m the fextile
and garrment Industry at present, theretyy meeting the
Mexible preduction needs of partners inmany different

« THG determines that it core business is manufacturning
garments for exportwhich is expected to bring stability
and profit to THG for many years 1o come With a
strictly controlled quality system 10 make products
meet the highest quality standards, THG'S customers
are reputable retailers such as Decathban, Colurmbia
Sportswear, The Childrens Place, Capital, [tochu,
Cahard, John New York, ete wha are comemitted 1o
leng-term and stable orders and atl the same time
ask THG o increase annual ouipul In addition,
THG alen actively increases supply of raw materials
and accessories and gradually fransfers (o sample

« Most of TMGs factories are [ocated in Thai Mguyen
Provinge, where the big umiversities are |ocated,
100 kilometers far from the center of Hanal Capital,
200 kilometers Tar frem Hai Phong Part. This iz an
apportunity for THE o access high-guality human

» TG boasts extensme experience in producing exparted
apparel, and particularly in recent yoars, it has affirmmed
its piomeering rode ininvasting i research, technolegical
advancerments, automation, and A% apphcations within
{he: textile and garrment mdustre. TRG has demonstrated
breaktlwough progress as iis High-Tech Division s
recognized Tar its remarkable strides in providicg

WEAKNE

e e o

= In recentl years, the expansion of

investiment in factories has led o THG:
capilal imbalance, which makes THGs
financial costs increase highly

« Matenzls and accessanes are mainky

imporied, therefare, 1 is impassible o
campdetely lake initiative in business and
produstion activities. It depsnds on the
source of materials and accessaries and
market prices.

« THG has a high annuzl infake of new

hires However, the skill level al new
wortkers  reguites  significant  training
fimwe fo stabilize, leading Lo uneven
professional skills and consequently low
productivity.

..................

+ Mietnam has signed numerous  signifscant

FTas, includirg the CPTPP EVFTA, RCER and
LW FTA, faciitating garmment exports (o rmajar
rmarkits like the EU, Japan, arnd South Konea,
acditonally, preferential tarifle enhance the
cornpetitivensss of Vielnamese garments in
the: infernational market.

¢ Theshiftin manufacturing fram China to other

countres due o rising labor costs presents an
pppartunity for the Vigtnamese textile industry
irvgeneal ard THG in particulan sdditionally,
THGS relatively compiete testile supply chain,
encampassing raw  maltedal  production,
dveirg and weaving, garrment manufacturing,
ardd  accessares,. is o another  advantage
Furthermore, THG has been and conlinues
o strive 1o enbance ids compelilivensss
by Ivesting in fexiile soffware techrology,
ireovatian, and product and service guality

irapravaement.

« Currently, THG amplovs 19052 workers,

misatly voung ard quick learers, residing
peirmarily in Thai Nguyven province. Utilizing
such a large workforce  facilitates  the
reduction of unermploviment rates and poverty
alleriation targels for commuones, districls,
arl the province, gamening  support and
faverable conditians from loeal autharities

« With better business mesulls 0 the past

wears, in addition to abundant capital froen
banks, the Campary has also atiracted mary
funding sources from foreign institutional
irvestors through bond issuarcs for business

EXpansion pUrposes.

¢ The profiferation of largescale manufacturing

—
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THREAT

« Global economic disrsptions, including the

COVID-19 pandermic, the Russia-Ukraine war,
the erergy crisis, and rising inflation, hawe
negabively impacted  consumer  dermand,
leading toa dechine inlextile orgers. Meanwhile,
input material prices such as cotton, Nbers,
and chemicals have surged due 10 riging ol
prices and transpartabion costs.

« A lifestyles become increasingly modern

and Iwing slandards nise the demands
placed on apparel producls are becoming
increasingly stringent, particulady for majoe
exparl markels such as the EU, the US, and
Japan. Among these, reguirements regarding
product argin and recyeling rates necessilate
that THG contineausly imeest in research and
developrment of technalogy, iInnavate designs,
and enbance guality, especially for prodicts
gligred  with consumers’  eco-Conscious
consumnption trends.

- Ag free frade agreements are opened up,

the demand for domestic raw malerials i
increasing, however, the system of garment
raw material factories is not yvel meeting the
demand in terme of both quantity and quality.
In additicn, flerce competiion from  other
garment exporting countries such as China,
Bangladesh, India_ . in ferms of quality, variety
and price.

erlerprises with multiple factores In Thai
Mguyen pravince poses significant challenges
for the company in terms of recrultment
and emploves retention. Conseguently, the
coanipary must continuoushy enhancs (1s work
emvironment and labor policies to atiract high-
guakity falerd for futuwe growth,
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SHARE AND SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT TNG SHARES IN 2024

(Fram danvary 7, 2024 - Ta Decermber 37, 2024)

MNumber of trading days 245 days

Highest closing price VD 2T 256 {On August 23, 2024)
Lowest closing price WHD 17251 {On Jaruary 15, 2024)
Total matched trading volume 591,510,212 shares matched

Average trading volume per day 2417769 shares

Highest trading volume 2,667,029 shares (On Auwgust 08, 2024)
Lowest trading volume 489962 shases {On January 24, 2024)
Number of outstanding shares 722,607,206 shares

Face value WD T OO0

Charter capital as of December 31, 2024 VHD 1,226012,060.000
Market capitalization value as of December 31, 2024 WHD 3085 550,391 200

CHARTER CAPITAL

SHARE STRUCTURE

From JSanuary 1, 2024 - To Decemnber 37, 2024

ypes of shares Humber of shares

BY TYPES OF SHARES

Ordinary shares 122601,206
Prefesred shares ]
Treasury shares 0
Total 122,601,206
BY TRANSACTION ABILITY

Frealy tradable shares 136, /38 5665
Restricted lrading shares 5862 541
Total 122,601,206
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

HUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER OF SHARES

Number of
shares

MO, SHAREHOLDER
Humber

Percentaga

Percentage

I BY OWNERSHIP RATE

T ks EIhEI-.'I ehalders A 0.03% A2 627133 39 66%

Z  ndinar sharehalders 19,228 04 97 % F3274.068 0. 34%
Total 15,232 100% 122,601,206 T00.005%

Il BY OWHERSHIF OBJECT

1 Stale shareholders 0% . 0%

7 Other sharehalders 15,232 100% 122 607 206 Ta0%
Total 15,232 100% 122,601,206 100%

il BY GEGGRAFPHY

1 Domestic 15,018 9B8.60% 102,938,690 B3.96%
Indniduals 14977 GH 33% Q95401178 21.08%
InEtitulons q1 027T% 3,537 512 2.8%%

2 Foreign 214 1.40% 19,662 516 16.04%
Indwiduals 173 1.14% 1,070,551 1.87%
Institutions q1 0.27% 18,557,565 T5.16%
Total 15232 100% 122,601,206 100%

v BY INSTITUTIONSS
INDIVIDUALS
Institutions B2 0.54% 22129077 18.05%
Darmesi: 41 0.27% 2537 512 £.89%

__________ Fareigr a1 0.27% 18,501 565 15.16%

Individuals 15,150 99.46% 100,472,129 B1.95%
Dormasie 14577 GB.33% G5 401,178 B1.08%
Foarewn 173 1.14% 1,070,951 0.87%
Total 15,232 100% 122,601,206 100%

According to the st of shareholders no, COVZ/2025- TNGAYSD-0K as of January T4, 2025 of Vielnam Secirites
Depository and Clearing Corpodation

STRUCTURE OF SHAREHOLDERS
BY GEDGRAFPHY

STRUCTURE OF SHAREHOLDERS
BY INSTITUTIONS/INDIVIDUALS

100%
0%
0%

100%

0522%
4.78%
100.00%

@ Institutions  © Individuals
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irv;;.ZEHAnE AND SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE (cont.)

LIST OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

4.1

4.7

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

47

48

4.5

SHAREHOLDER

Hguyen Van Thoi

Mguyen Duc Manh

Tran Cankh Thong

Related shareholders

FIDES (WIE TNAM] FUND
MANAGEMENT JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

FIDES ASSEMEBLE GLOBAL PRIVATE
INVESTMENT TRLIST 1

FIGES KTCU PRIVATE INVESTMENT
TRUST T

FICES MPLUE GLOBAL GENERAL
PRIVATE INVESTMENT TRUST T

FICES REHOBOTH KBLL FRIVATE
INVESTMENT TRLISET 15

FIDES WIETNAM GENERAL FRIVATE
tINVESTMENT CG TRUST 7

FIGES WIETHNAM GENERAL PRIVATE
INVESTMENT PMAA TRUST T

FICES WETNAM GENERAL PRIVATE
INVESTRMENT POGA TRLST )

FICES WiETHAM GENERAL PRIVATE
iNVESTMENT SEMA TRUST 1

TOTAL

FORM OF

DWHMERSHIP

Individual

Individual

Individual

Institution

Insirutian

dnskitution

nsiitution

Msiiutian

Institutian

stitution

inshitutian

nsiitutian

HATIONALITY

Vielnamsass

Vielnameasa

Viatnamese

Vielramess

K owaan

Kerean

Korean

Kerean

K oredan

K ewaan

Herean

Hiréan

NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDING

X2 73ar:

10,827 654

FB75634

741230

84,000

35,057

4093223

2033233

BEZOAT

162 576

534 380

Q42 320

5580

48,629,561

PERCENTAGE

18.53%

BEI%

6. 26%

.05%

0.04%

004 %

3.34%

7%

0.72%

013%

044%

D77%

C40%

45.71%

*] According fo the sl of shareholders No. 00122025 TNGAYED-DE as of Janwary 14, 2025 of Vielnam Securilies
Denositary and Clearing Corooration,

iy

BONDS

Irforrmatan on bands issued and outstanding in 2024

CONTEMNT

MName of bonds

Type of bonds

Bond face value

Quantity issued

Issue value

Issue date

Term

Due date

Interest rate

Interest payment period

Issuing consulktant

Issuing Agent

Property management agent

Depository agent

THG122007

Bands of TRG Investment and Trading
Joinl Stock Campany in 2021

Man-carvertible corporate bonds,
withoul warranl, unsecured by assets
and determining direct debl repayimnent
abligation of The issues

WMD 100,000

30000000 bonds

VRO 300,000.000,000

Ter0a/2022

04 years

Te/03/ 2026

Fized 1% vear

Ewvery 3 {three) rmanths fram esue dale

B Securities Jairl Slack Cormpany

B Securities Jainl Slack Comgpany

iatram Securnilies Depositony and
Clearing Corparation

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

THGT24027

Borids of TMGH2428001

Men-convertible carporate bands,
withoul warrant, partly securad by
assels and determining direct debt
repayment cbligation of the issuer

WHE 100,000
4,000,000 bonds

WHRE 00000 000000
28517 ,2024
04 years

2517172028

First four (04) interest calculation
periods: 9.5% vear

Subsaguent interest calculation
periods: referance interest rate plus a
margin of 3.5%/ year

Every 3 [three} months fram issue dale

ME Secutities doint Stock Carmipany

M3 Securites Joint Slock Cormpany

ME Securities Joint Slock Comipany

Vietnam Securities Depositary and
Clearnng Carporatian
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1" SHARE AND SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE (cont.)

TNG122017 BONDHOLDER STRUCTURE TNG124027 BONDHOLDER STRUCTURE
HUMBER OF BONDERS NUMBER OF BONDE HUMBER OF BOMDERS NUMBER OF BONDS
BONDHOLDER — — —_—— = — NO. BOMDHOLDER = —— —— =
Mumkber Percentage Number of bonds Percentage Humber Percentage Mumber of bonds Percentage
1 BY OWNERSHIF OBJECT 1 BY OWHERSHIF OBJECT
T  Eilale bondholders . . . . 1 State bondholders .
2 Oiher bondhokders f9 100.00% 3,000,000 1005% 2 Dther bondholdess 21 21 4,000,000 100%
Total 69 T00.00% 3,000,000 100% Total 21 100.00% 4,000,000 100%
Il BY GEOGRAPHY Il BY GEOGRAPHY
1 Damestic 30 43.48% 2,154 541 T1.82% 1 Domestic 11 52.38% 1,384 753 34.62%
Indmndusals 18 26.0%% 17,045 037 Indrsiduals 7 33.33% 2,359 I06%
Institutions 12 17.3%% 2743492 Ti45% Institutians 4 19:05% 1,382,394 34 56%
2 F-nrn-ign 39 56.52% B45 459 28.18% 2  Foreign 10 47.62% 2615247 65.38%
Individuals 29 A203% 173,023 5.7 Incnaduals 4 T9.05% 17,843 0 45%
Institutions 10 14 4%% 672436 22.41% Institutions ] ;EE-EI% 2,597,404 64 04%
Total 69 T00.00% 3,000,000 100% Total 21 100.00% 4,000,000 100%
Il BY INSTITUTIONS/TNDIVIDLUALS m  BY INSTITUTIONSINDIVIDUALS
1  Institutions 22 31.88% 2,815,928 93.86% 1  Institutions 10 47.62% 3,979 798 F9.49%
Dorrestic 12 17.3%% 2743492 Ti45% Darrestio 4 19:-05% 1,352,394 24.56%
Foreian 10 14.45% 672436 22.41% Fareign 4] ZBET% 2,997 404 4. 94%
2 Individuals 47 6B.12% 184,072 6.74% 2 Individuals 11 52.38% 20,202 0.51%
Dormastic 18 25,0%% 11,045 0.3T% Damestic ) 23.33% 2,359 0.06%
Foreian 29 42.03% 173023 5.7 7% Faremn 4 19.05% 17,843 0.45%
Total ik T00.00% 3,000,000 100% Total 21 100.00% 4,000,000 100%
Accarding bo the ligt of securilies owners receving bord inferest on Felvuary T2 2025 of Vietnam Secunities According fa the izt of securilies owners recenang bond interesl on February 15, 2028 of Vietnarm Securities
Depesitary and Clearing Corporation Depasitory ang Cleanng Carporation
THG122017 BOMDHOLDER STRUCTURE THG122017 BONDHOLDER STRUCTURE THG1Z24027 BONDHOLDER STRUCTURE THG124027 BONDHOLDER STRUCTURE
BY GEOGRAPHY BY INSTITUTIONS/INDIVIDUALS BY GEOGRAPHY BY INSTITUTIOMS/INDIVIDUALS

0.51%

® Domestic bondholders ® Domestic bondholders @ Institutions  © Individuals
@ Foreign bondholders @ Institutions © Individuals ¢ Foreign bondholders
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..SHARE AND SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE (cont.)

REPORT ON PAYMENT FOR PRINCIPAL - INTEREST OF BONDS
IN 2024

Uil WRD

CURRENT VALUE AS OF
DECEMBER 31, 2024
(FACE VALUE)

TERM OF
BONDS

WALLE OF |S5UANCE

WO, BOMND CODE {FACE VALUE)

ISSUE DATE CURREMCY

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

INTEREST PAYMEMNT IH 2024

1 TNG122017 dyears 16052022 VD 300,000,000,000 300,000,000,000
7 TNG124027 Avyears  25/11/2024 VND A00000,000,000 400,000,000,000
Total 700,000,000,000 700,000,000,000

DETAILS OF INTEREST PAYMENT

BOND CODE PAYMENT DATE PAYMENT TERM INTEREST HI;J;?DEER?:
TNG122017 16/08/2022 Period 1 7.561,650,001 10
TNG122017 16/11/2022 Period 2 7,561.650,001 78
TNG122017 16/02/2023 Period 3 7.561 650,001 28
TNG122017 16/05/2023 Period 4 7,31 5,080,000 |
TNG122017 16/08/ 2023 Perlod & 7.567 650,002 40
TNG122017 16/11/2023 Period & 7.561,650,003 47
TNG122017 16/02/2024 Period 7 7.561,650,003 39
TNG122017 16/05/2024 Perled B 7,397 250,040 238
TNG122017 16082024 Period 0 7.561,650,013 182
TNG122017 181172024 Ferlod 10 7.561,650,008 5
Total 75,205,530,072

i

INTEREST PAYMENT
PR PAYABLE ALREADY Paillk
A manths 30,082,200,064 30,082 200,064
A manths
30,082, 200,064 30,082, 200,064
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.{T‘z _DIVIDEND PAYMENT SITUATION

F:EGIST:!:.!I'TI{SH DATE ;::Flﬂlé.:la FORM RATE REASOM AND PURPOSE HEEFST:.?I'T;M DATE E;ﬂ::;éﬁh FORM RATE REASOM AND PURPOSE
14/01/2025 2024 Ir cash 4% 3" advance dividend payment in 2024 in cash 28/03/2012 7012 In cash 8% 2™ dividend payment i 2011 in cash
11/11/2024 2024 Ir cash 4% 2" advance dividend payment in 2024 incash 28/12/2011 2011 In cash 10% 1% advance dividend paymentin 2017 in cash
19/08/2024 2024 I cash 4% 1" advance dividend payment in 2024 in cash 25/04/2011 #0110 I cash 6% 2 dividersd payment in 2000 in cash
150772024 2023 Iri shares 2% Dwidend payment in 2023 in shares 07/01/2011 2010 In cash 10% Advance dividend payrrent i/ 2070 in cash
2240172024 2023 Ir eash 4% 2™ advance dividend payrnent in 2023 in cash 24/11/2010 009 In eash 6% 2 dividend payrment in 2009 in cash
10/10/2023 2023 I cash 4% 17 advance drvidend payment in 2023 in cash 27/01/2010 2003 In shares 10% 1% advance dividend payment in 2009 in shares
15/06,/2023 2022 Iri shares 8% Daadend payment in 2022 in shares 0&/03/2009 2008 I cash 16%  Dividend payrment in 2008 in cash
10/01/2023 2022 I cash A% 2™ advance dividend payment in 2022 in cash 20/03/2008 2007 In cash 16% Dividend payment in 2007 incash
12110/2022 202z Iri cash 4% 1# advance dvidend payment in 20220 cash
Sitare M e @K Der Asrntin JE s IN THE LAST 10 YEARS, TNG HAS MAINTAINED DIVIDEND PAYMENT RATES
FROM 16% TO 20% IN CASH OR IN FORM OF SHARE TO ITS SHAREHOLDERS.
03/06/2022 2027 Inshares 8%  Dividend payment in 2021 in shares THIS IS QUITE A HIGH AND STABLE PAYMENT RATE IN THE CONTEXT OF
14/01/2022 2021 Irn eash 4% 19 advance dividend payment in 2027 in cash ;I;E-I—Ethqgglahs?iﬂﬁ E;E?E:ngﬂg:m:‘ ;r{iliifi%ﬁ?ﬂhﬂglﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁaﬁﬂfﬁg
01/10/2021 2020 Inshares 8%  Dividend payment in 2020 in shares CONTINUOUSLY BRINGING ADDED VALUES TO SHAREHOLDERS, AND AT
THE SAME TIME, CREATING STRONG CONFIDENCE FOR SHAREHOLDERS
2170172021 2020 Iri cash 4% 2™ advance dividend payrment in 2020 cash AND INVESTORS WHEN PARTICIPATING WITH TNG.
27110/2020 2020 Iy cash A% 17 advance dividend payrment in 2020 incash
10072020 2014 I shares 2%  Dividend payment in 2019 in ehares S L LR L L
21/02/2020 2019 Ir cash 2% 14 advance deadend payment in 20190 cash
147062019 2018 Ir shares 200  Dnidend payment in 2018 m shares
26/06/20718 2007 I shares 200 Dhvidend payrment in 2077 in shares
30/06/2017 2076 Irishares 20% Dividend payment in 2076 in ghares
16/08/2016 2015 Ishares 10% 2 dividend payrmsent in 2015 in shares =.1D% 1 >2ﬂ'f-
11112015 2015 Iri shares 1Fe 19 advance dovidend payment in 2015 in shares
12022015 2014 I cash &% 2 dividend payment in 2004 in cash
%
18M12/2014 2014 Ir shares 106 1" dividend payment in 2004 in shares
04/06/2014 2013 Iri shares 1% Dwvidend payment in 2073 0 ghares 2md FILT) mze
05/04/2013 2012 I cash 1%  Advance dividend payment in 2012 in cash . I cash | Inshares * Advance payment as of January 14, 2025

Arymunl !-:-:_':l_:_:ll i'.l._'l'_F.1 63



- CAPITAL INCREASE SITUATION

CHARTER CAPITAL (VHD)

CAPITAL

AFTER CAPITAL

NUMBER OF SHARES

ISSUANCE AFTER ISSLIANCE

CONTENT

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

it

18/0372007

27012010

1041272070

04/06/2014

181272014

09/0272015

111172015

15/0172016

16/08/2016

30062077

26/06/2018

120372079

14/06/2019

131212019

10/0772020

03/097Z2020

10403,2021

01/10/,2021

1511720217

03/06/2022

1% lirme

2" tirmie

2 i

47 Lirme

a" e

& firme

T imea

8" lrme

2 firme

T Lirne

171 tirme

12" time

13" firre

141 time

18" fime

TET time

17 e

180 ime

TE fame

207 tirme

INCREASE

S, 200,000,000

32,575,500,000

47737 7a000a

13.460,500,000

14,805,3710,000

G, 546,230,000

27,239, T60.000

B4 B56,420,000

46, 478510,000

68, 523,130.000

82238 830,000

24.670,020.000

103,608,090,000

20434, 7800000

b2 157 840,000

25687 450,000

05409 460000

63.618,280,000

6 8,.000,000,000

74.133,720,000

INCREASE

54,200,000,000

26,57 5,500,000

134,61 3,250,000

148,07 4,150,040

162,879.460,000

219,425,690,000

247,364,850,000

296,221,270,000

342,649 780,000

A1T,172910,000

493,401,800,000

B18,071.850,000

627,679,980,000

652,174,760,000

FO42 72,600,000

F39.960,050,000

F95,2649,510,000

B5E.5RT, 790,000

926,987, 790,000

1.007,71 21,570,000

3,630,000

3,257,560

AFTATTE

1,344,040

1480531

5654 623

2153516

H485 547

4542 851

58532313

B.22. 59

2457,009

10,280,809

3,043 478

5,215,784

3568745

5,540,546

G,361,828

&800,C00

FA1337E

5,430,000

8,687,550

13461 325

14,807 415

16,287,546

21,942 559

24136485

29622127

24,264,978

41,717,291

49,340,130

51,807,189

62,167 998

65211476

FO0.427 260

F3,996,005

79,536,951

85,898,779

B2.698,7 70

100,712,151

Public affering

Share izsuance for sdvance dividend payrment in 200%
Share issuance o existing shareholders

Share issuance ta existing shareholders
Sharne issuance for dividend paymaant in 2013
Share issuance for dividend payment in 2014

Share ieuance under ESOP @ 201 65: 718813 shares
Share issuance toexisting shareholders: 4935819 shares

Share izsuance for 17 advance dividend payment in 2015
Fubhc affering in 2015

Share issuance for 29 dividend payment in 2015; 2967, 745 shares
Share issuance under ESOP in 2016 1,481,106 shares

Share I55uance 19 swap with TMG Fashion JSC. 200,000 shares
Share issuance for dividend paymentin 2016

Share issuance for dividend payment in 2017

Share issuance under ES0P in 2018

Share Issuance for dividend payrment in 2018

Share issuance to corvert bonds into shares (Phase 1)

Share lesuancs for dividend payrmsent in 2019

Share issuanos torcormert bonds into shares (Phase Z)

Share izzuances to corvert bonds into shares (Phase 3)

Share izsuance for dividerd payrrent in 2020

Share issuanos to corvert bonds into shares (Phasa 4)

Share tzsuance for dividersd payment in 2023

Ayl Reprort 20024
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_'I“a;i-r..ic:APlTAL INCREASE SITUATION (cont.)

CHARTER CAPITAL (WMD) NUMBER OF SHARES
CAPITAL AFTER CAPITAL RIERS
INCREASE INCREASE ISGBUANCE AFTER ISSUANCE
13/09 2022 21 tirme DOOS6 070000 1057177 580000 005607 1057117, 758 Share issuancs under ESOP n 2022
15/06/2023 2 time B4052 450000 1135230020000 B400 244 113,523,002 Share rssuance foo dividersd paymant i 2022
15/07F2024 23 time QOFEZ 40000 7.226.072. 760000 GO7H274 122601216 Share issuance for dividend payment in 2023
Number of shares b
o 113,523 052
120,400,000 i
nargns 10511775
I lesuancs B (M5 &0
TR TE T
7483372
. Before (ssuance U R TTY
&, B DeDe
OO0 D00
UERIET el
%354 HiE
5 540 94h I SE
IS T4E FANRRIHIR
ROO00000 SIS Tad 042760
1 W21 40
Masngnn 52167558
B A&7, Oir =1, E07, 169
#5,340,180
£0.000.000
(el 1]
41071
3 BASIFER
GREZEET o et
40 000060 Fa T A e
& AES fiD
1193218 241364385
6854827 198550
TABOSE] gy g g
30 000000 g77377s 1 IeEORO0 I4DOTES
i : 4357 550 [ES LT 1348, 225
AT o i i
o . I
, I
1" ma 2% e I time A" dime 5™ gl B lEme TV lme e " gl 0™ e T gime 12 1@me 13" me 147 Ume IS5 Hme 16" tUme 17T 0me 18" Ume 19 Gme 20M0me 219me 229 0me 23 Hime
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1472025 BUSINESS PLAN
GE &
TOTAL REVENUE PROFIT AFTER TAX

«8,100.. ..340..

TO MEET TNG'S DEVELOPMENT GOALS IN 2025

NEWLY HIRED EMPLOYEES

1,000

people

REACHING TOTAL EMPLOYEES TO
>20,000
People

AMMTEEIM

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

(<) {O)

M

Ensuring the minimum wage for
time ending at newly hired unskilled employees

9:30 pm 300,000

every day VND/person/day

Continuing to maintain working

CONTINUING TO INVEST IN ROOFTOP SOLAR POWER SYSTEM

« Song Cong 1 Total investment capacity
* Vo Nhai 1, Vo Nhai 2

* PhuBinh 2

*  Viet Duc ® MWE

« Head Office

Investing in mmﬂnu and upgﬂd[ng \net Duc Garment




12025 BUSINESS PLAN (cont.)

Fi

e

S | LITITTIT

TRE BRANCH

Researching, developing, and integrating Al, Big Data and ERP systems to
achieve level-3 digital transformation according to Decision 2158/QD-BTTTT
2023 dated November7, 2023 which wasissued by the Ministry of Information
and Communications on identifying indicators to assess the level of digital
transformation and supporting enterprises in digital transformation.

TOT BRANCH

Researching and developing AGV System - automatic operating robot in
pulling and lifting. Applying SLAM navigation technology, AGV automatic
map scan, automatic obstacle avoidance, AGV location trackingin real time,
import and export tracking on App, etc. Meeting the needs of transporting
goods at all stages in the Company. Moving towards implementing smart
warehouse project, reducing manpower and flexible management.

TNG

7 20

' BAO CAO |

HUONG NIEN 0

3T AT

202

CHAPTER | - THG OVERVIEW

Continuing to be ranked in the Top listed companies with good
Annual Reports and Sustainable Development Reports.

Building "Golden Heart TNG Fund”,
completing construction of Gratitude Houses

3 0 gratitude houses

for employees, contributing to eliminating
temporary and dilapidated houses

TOTAL BUDGET

100

million VND/
gratitude houses

dnmunl Repar] 21
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ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

Governance madel and arganlzatanal slrueture I
Oigandatians] charn
Board of Disactors =

Board of Managermeni|

Audilt Cammitiag bx i)
Z024 Human resources report 438

Powerful
CONNECTION

Third Prize in the TNG painting competition “45 Years of Strong Development”
TECHNICAL DEPARTMENT - Dept: TNGF



CHAPTER Il - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESCURCES

~ i GOVERNANCE MODEL
AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

GOVERNANCE MODEL ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

TNG IS ORGANIZED ACCORDING TO THE GOVERNANCE
MODEL AS PRESCRIBED AT POINT B, CLAUSE 1, ARTICLE 137
OF THE LAW ON ENTERPRISES IN 2020, INCLUDING GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS, BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
GENERAL DIRECTOR, IN WHICH MORE THAN 20% OF BOD
MEMBERS ARE INDEPENDENT MEMBERS AND THERE 1S AN
AUDIT COMMITTEE UNDER BOD.

IN ADDITION, THE COMPANY APFLIES BEST PRACTICES
ACCORDING TO THE G20/0ECD GOVERNAMNCE PRINCIPLES,
IN WHICH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAS SPECIALIZED
SUBCOMMITTEES TO ASSIST IT, INCLUDING: AUDIT
COMMITTEE; HUMAN RESOURCES - COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE; DEVELOPMENT POLICY SUBCOMMITTEE;
INVESTOR RELATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE; SUSTAINABILITY
SUBCOMMITTEE, RESPONSIBLE FOR ORIENTING AND
MONITORING THE OPERATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD,
MAKINGSURETHATTHECOMPANYNOTONLYHASDEVELOPED
ITS FINANCE BUT ALSO ENSURES THE HARMOMNIZATION
OF BENEFITS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THGE Board of Directors consists of 07 members, including 01
Chalrmain, 01 Deputy Chairwoman and 05 members. The Board
of Diractors: has specialized subcommittess, ncluding: Auwdit
Committee; Human resources - Remuneration - Compensation
Committee Development Policy Subcommittes; Sustainability
Subcommities; and Investor Relations Subcommittes.

And Directors and Deputy Directors who are responsible
for managing branches and factories under TNG.
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. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART /
| _/ GENERAL MEETING

. OF SHAREHOLDERS
r— [ :
={mn"nua#ﬁiﬁm s>

i

Wiet Duc Garment Branch

Vist Thaol Garmoant Branch

Orai Tu Gormisnt Branah

Dang Hy Garment Branch

o Mhai 1 Garment Branch

Wi Mol 2 Garmant Bramsh

Long Cong 1 Garmomnt Sronch

Eong Cong I Garmont Branich

Sang Catig 3 Dortnaivt Baanch

Eong Cong 4 Garmant Breach

Pockoging Bramnch

Phu Binh 1 Garmant Branch

Phuz Binh 2 Garmesit Branch

Fhu Eknh 3 Garment Brasch

Ry _\":L-.'_?_-

S e ey

N,




CHAPFTER §l - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

f’ 'BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Yeaar of birth: 1965
Mationality: Vietnamese
Tarm; 2021 - 2006

CQualifications
¢+ Bachelor of Accounting

Work experience

Mr. NGUYEN VAN THOI

« Chairman

Year of birth: 1958
Mationality: Vietnamese
Term: 2023 - 2028

Qualifications

¢ hdechanical and Electrical Engineenng, Bachelor of

Ecormmics, Bachelor of Palitios

» Hawving miore than 31 years of experience as General
Carectar and more than 22 years of experience as
BOD Chairrman

Work experience

« 1982 = 1992: Leader of Materials Team of Bac Thai
Eleciric Construction Cormparty

+ 1993: Deputy Diractor of Bac Thai Garment Faclory
+ 1993 = 2002Z: Direcior of Thai Noguyen Garmmenil Compary

« 2003 - present: Chairrman of THG lrmwestment ard
Trading Joant Steck Carmpany

Positions in other organizations

« Chanman of Thai Mguyen Prwince Business
Agsackation

« Deputy Chairman of Thai Nguyen City Business
Aggacation

i

Outstanding achievements

 Typical Entraprensur Avwarnd

« Third-Class Labor Medal in 2007

= Typdcal Thal Mauyen cilizen Ayward i 2023

« Corlificate of Mert Tor "Excellont achenements in

implamenting Thal Nguyen movement 1o pramota
digital transformation pragram in 20217 awarded
by Chairrman of Peaple’s Commilles of Thal Nguven
Prowince

« Certificate af Merit for autstanding achievements in

eludying and following Ho Chi Minh's mioral example
and lifestyie in the 2016-2020 penod

- Certificate of Merit to honar Tep 60 *Typical

Vielnamese Entrepranaurs” i 2022

Mrs. LUONG THI THUY HA

¢« Deputly Chamwaman

Mr. NGUYEN DUC MANH

« BOD mermder

+ 1992 = 201 2: Staffof TMG Investrmenit and Trading Jaint Stock Carmgany
« 2013 - D42016: Chigl Accountant of THEG Investment and Trading

Jeant Bteck Campany

« 04/2016 - 2007 BOD member cwm Chiel Accourtant of THG

Investmant and Trading Jaint Stack Cormgany

- 2078 - 08/2021: BOD member curm Depuly Gerwral Directar i

charge of hurman resouwrces of THNG Investmient and Trading Jaint
Slack Compary

+ DEF2027 - present: Daputy Chairworman curm Depuly General Direclor
in charge of human resources of THG Investrment and Trading Jaint
Rlack Coanpany

Year of birth: 1983
Mationality: Vietnamese
Term: 2023 - )28

Qualifications

< Master of Business Administralion (MBAY from the University of
Hanwizii gt Manaa

+ Bachelorof IT - USA

+ Bachelor's in Fareign Languages [Shanghai, China)

Work experience

« 2070 - 20171: Head of Sales Department of THG Investment and
Tradirg Jaint Stock Comparny

« 20171 = 2020: Deputy Chairman oum Depuly General Diector of THG
Investirsant and Trading Jaint Stock Compary

20 - 4FZ0023: Deputy Chadrman curm General Director of THNG
Inwectmeant and Trading Jainl Stock Company

- BI2023 - present: BOD member; Genesal Director of TRG Investrmen
and Trading Joint Steck Campsany

drnudl Report 2024 79



Mr. NGUYEN MANH LINH

+ Momexeculive BOD rmermber

Mr. NGUYEN HOANG GIANG
¢ Indepenciant BOO rmember

B0

'.BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)

Year of birth: 1987
MNationality: Vietnamese
Term: 2024 - 2029

Qualifications

+ Bachedor of Science - Faghion Institute of Technology, Mew Yok, MY

+ Bachelor of Science, Infernational Business - Pacific University, Forest
Groe, Oregon

Work experience

« 2010 - 2001: Assistant Production Manager - amerex Group LLC,
Mlew Yok, MY

= 20M1 - 2071 2: Assistant Productian BManadsr - Kenrelh Cole Prisduction,
Mew York, WY

= 2019 - H2023: BOD member cum Deputy General Direclor of THG
Investment and Trading Jaint Stock Company

« T/2023 - present: BOD member of THG Imvestment and Trading
Jaint Stock Cormpany

Year of birth: 1985
MNationality; Vietnarmese
Term: 2020 - 2025

Qualifications

¢ haster of Business Administration

+ Camputer Science Engineer - University of Mebraska - Lincoln
Work experience

+ 05/2008 - 10/2008: Stalil of Busziness Solution Department
VMDIRECT Securities Corparation

- 102008 - 06/20710: Head ol Busingss Soldtion and  Risk
harmagerment Cepartment - WYHDIRECT Securities Carporation

« OF/2010 - 10/2010: Director of Product Develepment and Business
Solutians - VIMDIRECT Securities Corpoaation

« 4f2012 - §/2020: BOD mwermbar - VHNEIRECT Securities Corparation
+ 1242012 - 4F201B: General Director ol YRDIRECT Securibes Carporation

« 52020 - present: BOD member - THEG Investment and Trading Joird
atock Cormparny

Mrs. DOAN THI THLU
< BOD mermier

Mrs. HA THI TUYET
¢ Incependent BODO s

CHAFTER il - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

Year of birth: 1972
Mationality: Vietnameze
Term: 2024 - 2029

CQualifications

+ Master of Business Administration

+ Engineering of Sswing

Work experience

+ 1994 - 1997: Former officer of Bao Thai Garment Enterprize

+ 1998 - 2002: Former officer of Thal Mguven Garment Comipany

+ 2003 - 2007 Offcer of Thai Mguyen Exporl Garment Joint Slock
Compary

= 2007 - 2001 1: Director of Viel Guc Garment Faclory

- 2011 = 2014:; Deputy General Direclor of THS Investment and Trading
Jodnt Block Campany

- 2015 - 2076: Director af Viel Due Garment Factory

= 20717 - present: Cepuly General Director of THRG Investment and
Trading Jairt 3tock Compary

Yeaar of birth: 1984
Mationality: Vietnarmese
Term: 2024 - 20249

Qualifications

+ Bachelor of Law

Work experience

- Q2007 - 32019 BOD Secratary, Depuly Head Head of Administration
Department, Manager of Legal Department, Head of Internal Caritral
Department, Head of Internal Audit Comsmittes, Member of BOS, and
hembsr af BOD

« 32019 - present: Cireclor ol 4.0 Legad Service and Law Co., Ltd

« 32019 - present: Head of Legal Department, Busmess Association
af Thai Mguyen Province
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Mr. NGUYEN DUC MANH

« General Direciar

Mrs. LUONG THI THUY HA
« Ceputy Gereral Directar

B2

.BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Year of birth: 1983
MNationality: Vielnamese
Appointment time: May 17, 2020

Qualifications

+ haster of Business Admmistration (MBA) fram thae University of
Hawail st Marca

+ Bachelor of IT- USA

+ Bachelsr's in Foreign Languages {Shanghai, China)

Work experience

« 20010 = 2017 Head of Sales Departroent of THNG Investment and
Trading Joant Stock Carmparny

« 20011 = 2020: Deputy Chairman curm Deputy General Director of THG
Investment and Trading Joint Stock Company

< 2021 - 4/2023: Depuly Chairman cum General Director of THG
Frvestment and Trading Jaint Stock Company

« 5f2023 - present: 200 member; General Director of THG Investrment
and Trading Aot Slock Cormpany

Year of birth: 1959
Nationality: Vielramese
Appointment time: January 08, 2018

Qualifications

« Bachelor of Accounting

Work experience

» 1992 = 2012 Staff of THNG Imvestment and Trading Jaint Stock Carmpany

< 2013 - D4/ 200 6: Chiel Accounian! of THG Investrment and Trading
Jaint Slteck Company

« D206 - 20017 BOD member cum Chief Accouniant of THNG
Investrmeant and Trading Joint Stock Company

- 20M8 - 05/2027: BOD member cumn Depuly General Diractor 1In
charge of hurman resources of TRG Imestment and Trading Joird
Slock Company

« e2021 - present: Depuly Chamsoman ourm Depuly General Direcho
irn charge of hurman resources of THG Investrment and Trading Joint
Slock Company

Mr. TRAN MINH HIEU
= Deputy General Directos

Mrs. DOAN THI THU
= Deputy Gerseral Dineston

CHAPFTER §l - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

Year of birth: 1579
Mationality: Vietnamese
Appointment time: Cecember 14, 2016

Qualifications

- WBA

¢+ Bachelor of Econarmics

« Management experience’ Mearly 22 years of management experience
in textile andg garmernit

Work experience

« 2009 - 201 1: Head of Material Flanning Departrment of Yiet Thal Garrment
Factory uwnder THG Imvestroent ard Trading Joant Stack Company

« 2011 = 2013: Direclor of Business Branchiunder THG Investiment and
Trading Jainl Stock Company

« 2017 - prasent Depuly General Directar in charge of business - THNG
Inyestirent and Trading Jaint Sack Comgany

Year of birth; 1972
Mationality: Vietnamesa
Appointment time: May 01, 2017

Qualifications

+ Master of Business Administration

+ Engineering of Sswing

Work experience

= 1994 = 1997 Former officer of Bas Thai Garment Enlerprise

< 1998 - 2002: Former officer of Thal Mguyen Garment Company

« 2003 - 2007; Officer of Thal Mouven Expert Garment Jaint Stock Campany
= 2007 = 200 1: Director of Viel Duc Garment Faciory

- 20711 = 20714: Depuly General Drector of THG Investment and Trading
Joint Steck Campany
2015 - 2076&: Direclor of Viet Duc Garmenl Faciory

2017 - present: Depuly General Director in charge of engineering,
lephnodogy, and gualty - THG Imvestiment and Tradcing Joant Stock
Coenpary

Arinul Regrt Fedd B3
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Mr. LUU DUC HUY
« Deputy Gereral Carectar

Mrs. NGUYEN THI PHUONG
+ Dwputy Gepwral Darectal

B

.BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Year of birth: 1270
MNationality; Vietnamese
Appointment time: Octaber 07, 2020

Qualifications

+ Bachelor of Business Administration

Work experience

+ 1987 = 1998: Deputy Marager of MEE Waorkshap - Thai Mouyen
Garrment Campany

- 1998 - 2003: Depuly Plannimg Manadger - Thal MNguyén Esport
Earment J5C

- 2007 - 2010; Director af Washing Factory - THG Invesiment and
Tradirg Jeinl Stock Company

« 20010 - 2074: Director of Viet Dus Garment Factary - THG Investrment
and Trading Mt Slock Company

« 2015 Direclos ol Viel Tha: Garment Factary - THNG

« 2016 - 2079: Direstor of Dai Tu Ganment Faclary - THG Ireestiment
and Trading Jont Stock Cormpany

« 2019 - present: Depuly General Deectar/Director of Dai Tu Garrmend
Factary - TNG Investment and Trading Jonl Stock Company

Year of birth: 1973
Natiomality: Vietramese
Appointment time: June 07,2027

Qualifications

Collece

Work experience

+ 2007 - 2008: Staff of THG Irvestrnent and Trading Jont Siock Company

« 01/2009 - 06/2009: Depuly Teshnical Director of TMG Investrment
and Trading Mt Slock Coimpany

« 072009 - 12/2009: Head of Quality Control Department of THG
Investmeant and Trading Joint Stock Company

« 01/2000 - 920711 Deputy Director of Garment Factory - THG
Investmeant and Trading Jaint Stack Comparny

+ TH2011 - 12/2012: Director of Gamment Factory - THE Investrment
and Trading Jomnt Slock Carmpany

« 012013 - 122015 Depuly Director of Garmentl Factory - THG
Irvestment and Trading Joint Stack Comparny

« 01/2016 - 05/20271: Divector of Garment Factory - THE Investrnent
and Trading Aot Stock Cormpny

« 062021 - presant: Deputy Genedal Directar ol THG Irmeestment and
Trading Joint Stock Carmpany

Mr. LE XUAMN VI
= Deputy General Directos

-
3

Mrs. TRAN THI THU HA

« Cheal Accoundtan

CHAPTER Hl - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESCURCES

Year of birth: 1927
Mationality: Vietnamese
Appointment time: February 20, 2023

Qualifications

- Bachelo's Degree in Information Technology

Work experience

+ 2007 - 2012 Information Techmalogy Staff al THNG Investment and
Trading Jaint Stack Comparny

« 20713 - 2021: Head of Infermation Technatogy Department at THG
Inyestirent and Trading Jaint Sack Comgany

= 2022 = 1/2023: Branch Cirectar ab TG Inesiment and Trading Jairt
Sack Compary

= 22023 - Present: Depuly General Carectar al THG Investment and
Tradirng Joint Stock Comparny

Year of birth: 1973
Mationality: Vietnamesa
Appointment time: Janeary 06, 2018

Qualifications
- Bachelor of Accounting

Work experience

- 2009 - 2016; Working al TMG as the postions of Deputy Head of
Accounting Departrment, Chief Accountant of Branch, Head of
Accounting Departrient, respecinely
2016 - 2017 Depuly Direcior of THGF Fashion Branch untder THG
Investirian] and Trading Joont Stock Campary

- 2018 - present: Chiel Acoountant of THE Investment and Trading
Joinl Sleck Campany
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_AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. NGUYEM HOAMG GIANG
o Chatrman of the Awdit Commities

Mr. NGUYEN MANH LINH
« hdpmber al the audit Commities

B

Year of birth: 1986
Natiomality, Vielnamese
Appointment time; April 23, 2023

Qualifications

< haster of Business Adminisiration

+ Camputer Science Engineer - Universily of Nebraska - Lincaln

Work experience

+ D5/2D08 - 10/2008: Staff of Business Solution Department - YWOIRECT
Secufities Corporation

< 102008 06/2010: Head aof Buosimess Solution and Risk
hanagernent Cepartment - WHDIRECT Securities Carparation

« OF 2070 - 10/2010: Directar of Product Development and Business
Salutlans - VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

< 4f2012 - &/2020; BOC membser - VHNDIRECT Secwrities Corparation

« 122012 - 47201 B: General Director ol VHDIRECT Securibes Corporation

+ 52020 - present: BOC member - THG Investment and Trading Jdoind
Stock Comparny

Year of birth: 1986
MNationality; Vietnamese
Appoirntment time: Apdil 23, 2023

Qualifications

+ Bachelor. of Science - Fashion Institute of Technalogy, Mew York, MY

+ Bachelorof Science International Business - Pacific University, Forest
Grdwe, dregon

Work experience

< 2000 = 2011 Assistant Production Manager - Amerex Group LLC,
M Yook, NY

= 20071 - 2071 2: Assistant Production Manager - kenreth Cole Production,
Pew York, NY

« 2019 - 4/2023: BOD member cum Deputy General Director of THG
fnvestment and Trading Joint Stock Company

« TrI023 - present: BOD member of THG Irvestment and Trading
Jenmit Slock Company

Mrs. HATHI TUYET
« Member af the fudit Cormmittes

CHAPTER Hl - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESCURCES

Year of birth: 1954
Mationality: Vietnamese
Appointment time: April 23, 2022

Qualifications
Bachelar of Law

Work experience

- Q2007 - 3/2019: BOD Secretary, Depuly Head/ Haad of Administration
Departrent, Manager of Legal Departmient, Head of Internal Cantral
Department, Head of Internal Audit Cormmittee, Member of BOS, and
Membser af BOD

+ 32019 - present: Director of 4.0 Legal Service and Law Ca., Lid

- 32019 - present: Head of Legal Depantment, Business Association
of Thai Mguyen Province

SUBORDINATES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

INTERNAL AUDIT

M. DAD DUC THANH
» Haad af Internal Audil

Ms. NGUYEN THUY NGAN

= Deputy Head of Intérmal Auwdin



~ 14,2024 HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT

2024 HUMAN RESOURCE STRUCTURE

AT TNG, WE ALWAYS CHERISH THE VALUES S
CREATED BY OUR EMPLOYEES AND THEIR TOTAL EMPLOYEES
CONTRIBUTIONS TO OUR COLLECTIVE SUCCESS. IN 2024
WEFIRMLYBELIEVE THAT OURHUMANRESOURCES
ARE OUR MOST VALUABLE ASSET, AND EACH
MEMBER IS AN IMPORTANT LINK IN THE CHAIN, 1 9 0 52 people
WORKING TOGETHER SEAMLESSLY TO ENSURE .~ 0 i
THE SMOOTH OPERATION OF THE TNG BUSINESS r e
MACHINE. THIS ENABLES US TO ACHIEVE
'BREAKTHROUGH GROWTH AND CONFIDENTLY o 4.83% compared o 2023
VENTURE INTO GLOBAL INTEGRATION.

[,
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HR STRUCTURE BY GENDER

@ rFEmaLE

13,876 ...

9,176 ...

Firi i ey
|

N beieely

—er————
=
L
ey g -

P e i
i

:
t
|
2

e

CHAFTER il - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

HR STRUCTURE BY EDUCATION

19,052

& pegple &S
228 —_—
LA, — &
i |
COMMON LABOR VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
3 678 pEﬂp{e 1 2 851 per:ple
{ﬁccc:untmg fDr 1'3'_31 % [An:u:cu ermng f-:-r Eu? 45‘3-“.:
of the total employees) of the total employees)
INTERMEDIATE COLLEGE
4 8 5 people 67 6 peaple
[ﬁ.n::ﬂcru ntlng ﬁ::r 2 55% [An:ﬂc-untmg ﬁ:ur 3 55‘3‘5
of the total employees) of the total employees)
2 ] "
== =1
UNIVERSITY POSTGRADUATE
8 8 3 people 47 pe-::u;::ule
(Accounting for 4. E:E% [Acq:cruntmg ﬁ::ur D 25‘35
of the total employees) of the total employees)
OTHER 43 2 people  (Accounting for 2.27% of the total employees)

N 'y
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~ 14,2024 HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT (cont.)

HR STRUCTURE BY AGE

@ 18-30

6.472...
8301,

@ 41-50

3,979 .

304...

HR STRUCTURE BY RESIDENCE

@ LoCAL EMPLOYEES

17,910....

1,142....

Q0

CHAPTER Il - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

LEADER STRUCTURE BY GENDER

@ FEMALE
468...

€ MALE

197 e

N 74.88%

TOTAL LEADERS
IN 2024

625...

e e e
e i e

ﬁ} up 0.97% compared to 2023
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42024 HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT (cont.)

POLICIES AND WELFARE FOR EMPLOYEES

TNG ALWAYS ADHERES TO THE REGULATIONS ON SIGNING, PERFORMING AND
TERMINATING CONTRACTS. 100% OF EMPLOYEES SIGN A WRITTEN CONTRACT
BEFORE ENTERING THE JOB. 100% OF EMPLOYEES ARE FULLY ENROLLED IN
SOCIAL, HEALTH, AND UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
CURRENT LAWS. TNG'S IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING PROCESS FOR
CONTRIBUTIONS AND FOLLOW-UPS FOLLOWS THE QTNS12-BHXH SOCIAL
INSURANCE PROCEDURE ISSUED FOR THE SECOND TIME ON NOVEMBER
20, 2021. IN ADDITION TO MANDATORY INSURANCE, TNG ALSO MAINTAINS
VOLUNTARY HEALTH INSURANCE FOR EMPLOYEES.

APPLY WORKING HOURS

Tl

7:30 a.rﬁ. = 5:"30 p.m

NO overtime working
NO working on Sunday

Saturday: 7:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

e aa

92

e e e e e L

Subject to job ttle, salary iz calculated aceording to the coefficient multiplied by the
rrvirdirr salaey. (The minirmum salary applied to employess in THG increases by 13%
compared o the regulation of the State). Product-based salares: Caleulated by unit
price multipled by the quantity of product. Wage ower tme under the regime: Pay Tor
haolidays, leaves, study, paid private leave leave due (o labour sccidents, periadical
health check and labour regime far women.

+ Salary increase policy: THG follaws the Company's Labar Requlation and Regulation
on Compensation and Benefits in 2024 - Depision no18ES/2024/0B-THNG dated
February 08, 2024, in which there are two types of salary raise, including salary raisea
in special cases and accardirg to the annual regionzl minimem wage increase.

« Promotion policy: THG (ollows the Company's Labor Regulalions and Policy
for Campensation and Benelits in 2024, Every Jaruary, based on the production
perfarmance of the Compary, THG will cansider upgrading for employees. Subjects
and conditions Tor upgrading are clearly speciled in the Salary Regulatiaons 2024
and widely communicated o employess.

e e e e e e e i o

Based on the Compary's requlations an emulatan and reward Manthly rewards,
emulation achievemsents, incentive bonus, 13%monih salary, bonue on public holidays and
divigian of annual rermainder of salary. Working al TNG, employess will have promobon
oppanunities and be appainted 1o maragerial positions according o personal capacity
The Company also encourages and offers the grants for ermployees o keam and imprave
prafessional skills in 1he darmestic and Moeeign ervitament,

CHAFTER il - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES
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of age
¢« Fusl allowanos

BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES

» Full participationin socialinsurance, health insurance,

free bady nsurance.

« Suppont for jobapphication at THG; YHD 250,000/

parsan

« Hawing 100% body insurance per year.
* Hawing the dormestic and foreign travels.
« Support for vocabonal traimng, free meals, free

shuttle buses. Petraleurn support for workers.

« Giving the scholarships o the students who want

1o work al THG after graduation, famibies in difficult
circEmslances.

« Supporting the construction of gratitude houses for

emplovess with spesial difficulfies.

¢ Pari-time alowance

+ Attendance allowanoe

- Meal alfowance

« Manthly hygiere and safely allowance

o Allowance for captains and vice-caplains of fre preverntion and fighting

¢ Allowance for fermale employees in pregnaney or nursing child under & yvears

< Seniority allowance upon retirement

v Equapping with vehicles (with free parking ots) and

kindergartens within the collective buildings far the
ermplovees’ chilkdren,

¢ Giving VHND 300,000/ bkth ta fermale ermployees.
¢ Having the materniy regime for fathers: Ifemployees

are make, bul Both hesband and wile are THGS
ermnplovees, when the wile gives birth, the husband is
given paid leave to lake care of his wife and children
The duraticn k2 5 davs for spontaneoiss delivery, 07
dayz for caezarean bifth and k2 paid T00% of the
Salary

v Canstructing and developing the green areas within

the Company campus o oreate a green and clean
BrIroIment.

¢« Employees recerve paid time off on the company’s

anniversary and Chrisimas.

Ir addition, 1o create more bepefils and coniribute 1o stabilizing the lives of emplovees, THG has meaningial
rraverments and programs for emplayess” chikdren such as awarding schotarships, sponsoring 100% of tuitian fees,
organizing Mid-sutumn Festrale, etc in 2024, an the oocasion of its 457 annmeersany, THG organized 3 pamting
competition with the theme “THG PAINTING - 45 YEARS OF STRONG DEVELOPMENT®. The competilion received
enihusizstic particpation Trom THG employees’ childrene After moare than a month of launching, e Organizing
Cammittes has selected 16 craative paintmgs winning the awards. Throuah this meaningliul activity, TRIG once again
left an impressionan the chidren abaut the love and connection where their parents ae warkireg.

Al Repor 2024 a3



CHAFTER il - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

[$.2024 HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT (cont.)

POLICIES AND WELFARE FOR EMPLOYEES (cont.)

REWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

TRAINING

THG firmly believes that education and training are
the most solid paths to success. A strong economy
is one with strong businesses. A strong business
is one with a strong workforce, To achieve a strong
workforce, education and training are the key and the
guiding principle for businesses to follow.

FORMS OF TRAINING

Periodic
training

Orientation
training

70

REWARD PROJECTS

Total amount of

«2,005,000,000

We consider "Education and training” fo be the key
to developing people and businesses thereby since
education and training are the only way Lo meet the
changes and advancement of technology, especially
in the 4.0 technology era, as well as in the context of
increasing customer's demands. The Company aims
o be closer o international standards.

218

REWARD DECISIONS

fotal amount of

Vocational Development Workforce Specialized 0OSH
training training training training training

566

AWARDED INDIVIDUALS

To axpand, deepen, and enhance
training programs for department
heads and employees, in 2024,
THG implemented numerous
practical training programs that
were highly regarded for their
emphasis on employee {raining.
The fotal number of employees
wha participated in  training,
coaching and propagandizing in
2024 was 3,899 peaple.

Arimunl Renor 3024 95



CHAFTER il - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

f .2024 HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT (cont.)

POLICIES AND WELFARE FOR EMPLOYEES (cont.)

REWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS (cont.)

TRAINING PROGRAMS IN THE FIRE PREVENTION AND RESCUE TOTAL EMPLOYEES JOINING TRAINING

ENTIRE COMPANY IN 2024 TRAINING
AND COACHING IN 2024 WERE
2 5 0 0 3 programs 73 0 pecple 3 8 9 9 PR
an increase of 416 programs 2 sessions: ’ b
compared to 2023 January 2024 and October 2024
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.2024 HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT (cont.)

POLICIES AND WELFARE FOR EMPLOYEES (cont.)

REWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS (cont.)

SOME TYPICAL TRAINING ACTIVITIES IN 2024 AT TNG

1 ASSESSMENT STANDARD TRAINING ON ELECTRICAL SAFETY,
FIRE PREVENTION AND FACTORY STRUCTURE (LABS)

Iry crder To improve knoededae and skills of ococupatanal
eafely and ensure thal the workshops are operated safely
and stably. Al the beainming of 2024, THNG'E Docupatanal
Zafely and Health Azzessment Departiment organized a
tramirg course an assessmant standards for ekectrical
eafely, fwe prevention and workshop structure (LABS)
fow A7 trameesd wha are the Campany's leaders, Branch
Diractors and Depuaty Heads/Heads of Department ab
thie Carmpany

Through the lraming programs amees sl improwve
their knowledge of electrical salely, fire prevention, and
factory structure, and being updated with assessment
standards froem customérs o meel the requirements
al cuslomers thal THG s cooperating with, theraby
irrgraving the practices of human and [abor safety in
THEG factories, The training sessian has taken place in
exciting atrmosphere with active discussion of 5 groups
around the izsues of identifying hazards, outstanding
prablems and solutions to the problems. In particular, to
be able 1o quickly identify mimimize and remaedy risks, the
Compary 5 Occupational Satety and Health Assessmant
Department has bult & Safely Managernent System
[SME) s that THG depariments can imimediatery
notify the Cormpanys Labor Proteclion & Assessment
Departiment bo fecgme suppart and feedback,

o8

CHAFTER §l - ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

2 TRAINING SOFT SKILLS FOR PRODUCTION TEAM LEADERS

I the factory, sewing lines have direct effects w
productivity - product quality. - labor safely -ability o
et order schedule. Therefore, fraining "Soft skills. for
production team leaders” is veny imparant

Ir March 2024, TMG organized 3 fraining courses on " Sofl
skills for production tearm leaders” for 65 leam leaders
al Phu Binh 2 We Mhad 1 and Vel Thal bramches The
direct irainar 15 s, Moaguyen Phuong Thuy - Head of THNEGS
Ceneral Administration Departrment. The Liamirg conten
includies  human  resource  managsment, | oparation

mothatian, determining worker skl malnixg, assgning
and vantraling assgnments el Mat anly istening to the
traingr, e tearm leaders have apenly and enthusiastically
discussed and sasmed many questions about the issoes
refated 1o actual stoations n e work

Thraugh the raaing oourses, the feam leaders Hia
equipped  with moee knowladge and  skills, helping
impndve parlanmance, thefety lesding their production
ledumt betled, and at the sarme Lme, ey can Wain and
cuide ather leam members, developing Lher carest palh

nunl Repart 2024 99
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/.2024 HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT (cont.)

| St

POLICIES AND WELFARE FOR EMPLOYEES (cont.)

REWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS (cont.)

[ 3  WAREHOUSE KEEPER - AN IMPORTANT LINK
b — IN TNG'S SUPPLY CHAIN

=
Sy

I THGS operation systermn, warehause keeper 15 nol only @ parsan who manages
goods bul also plays animpariant rale m enguning the supply ehain 1 nan smoathly,
accurately and efficiently. Being responsible for controlling ras materdals, smoothly
coardinaling with prodaction wils, ensunng progress and product guality, the
warshouse keeper is considered the perzon keeping "blood vessels” circulating in
each area of the factory, Given thal awareness, THG has omganized an intensive
traming course for warehouse tearm with the tope "THG Warehouse Keepers -
Connecting, sharing and developing Wbgether” to improve professional capacity,
gafl skills and the spirit of cosperaticn throughout The system. The program has
been altended by the Company's Board of Directors and 50 warehouse keepers
from THE branches

Through group sctivities, krsawledge sharing, wors processes ard skill tests, the
warehouse keepers have updated a kot of helpful knowledge, effective working
methods associated with actual situations, from which they have more (deas
and plans to imprave work efficiency and enhance their skills in warehouse
managernenl.

-~ TRAINING PROGRAM “TAX POLICY
4 | CONSULTATION - INVOICES AND DOCUMENTS"

"

%

In order 1o improve professional knowledge and update the latest
regulatians m the field of finance and accounting, THNG has organized a
traiing program with the tapic "Tax poboy consullabon - Invoices and
dacurments” with the participation af 65 trainees wha are Heads, Deputy
Headz and staffs af Accounting Gepartrment, Internal Audil Comimillee,
departments and individuals who have works refated to tax and financial
invaices. The training prograrm was conducted by prestigious experts of
Vietnam Tax Consultants Association (NTCA)

¥
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The training content . includes knowledge and noles on regulations
o rmdices ard documents, handing of invoices and  docurments,
replacement, deletion, adjusiment, regulations on corparate ncame 1ax,
VAT mefund, investrment praject tax refund, ansen cases, nsk wamings,
parsanal moome tax, and experientce in tax declarations and refunds, ele

I
|2

Theaugh the training program, the accounting staff.of the entire Cormpany
have improved their professional knowledge, grazped rew tax policies
aritl eormplisd with 1he aw, hebping teavod errars and fsks in the process
of tax declaration and settlernent. This is a practical activity to enhance
legal compliances, improving the efficiency of financial management and
operatian al THG.
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CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IN THE YEAR

I

[ OVERVIEW OF THE TEXTILE AND GARMENT INDUSTRY L‘“;

IN 2024

ITISESTIMATED THATIN2024, GLOBALDEMANDFORTEXTILESAND GARMENTS
WILL REACH APPROXIMATELY USD 794 BILLION, AN INCREASE OF NEARLY
3% COMPARED TO 2023, BUT STILL 8% LOWER THAN IN 2022. WITH EXPORT
TURNOVER OF AROUND USD 43.5 BILLION AND GROWTH OF 11% COMPARED
TO THE PREVIOUS YEAR, VIETNAM HAS RISEN TO THE SECOND POSITION IN
THE WORLD, JUST AFTER CHINA, IN TERMS OF TOTAL TEXTILE AND GARMENT
EXPORT TURNOVER.

1110

OVERVIEW OF THE GLOBAL TEXTILE AND GARMENT
MARKET IN 2024

Ir 2024, the global siuation cartinues 1o be volatile are causing signiiicant difliculties for businesses in
and unpredictable with escalating canflicts In many ordanizng production. The global textile and garment
regions, fluctuating Tuel and transportation costs; slow miarket has begun 1o show signs of recovery fram
recavery in trade and commerce, compounded by mid-year as major central banks such as the FED and
nalural disasiers, chimate change, andeomplex enegy ECE implemented rate culs, feading o impsovemanis
spourily issues. Labor shortages and competitian in in employment and household ncame.

major manufacturing cemters and Industrial zares

It is estirmated that in 2024, glabal dermand for textiles
and garments will reach approximately UsSD 794
billion, an increaze of nearly 3% compared o 2023
but 51l B% lower than in 2022, Several factors play
an impartant ralke in shaping the global textile and
garrment landscaps in 2024

Economic recession .

The global econcmic dewntum significantly impacts
consurme spending, reducing demand for apparet and
textiles, sspecially in large markets such as the US. and
Eurape.

.................................................................

inflabionary presswes and nzng raw material costs,
especially cotton, reduce prafit marging for textile and
garrment manufaciurers.

Ongoing  geopalitizal tensions and rade  disputes,
particularly those invohing Ching, disrupt supply chains
and creale rmarket instability,

= o e e i

30% Growing consumer awareness of environmental and
+0. 7% social ssues has pushed suslainability to the forefront
58 / af the texdite and garment irduwstry
20% : Sutormatan, & -and 3D prnting continue 1o ransform
TEL‘hﬂﬂ'h'glCE' advancements fextie manufacturng processes, increasing efficiency
15% +1.3% and creating new possibilities.
0% +0.1% The glabat lexlile and garment industry in 2024 is preferences, lechnological advancements, and a
1 e g lestament to resilience and adaplability Despite growing focus an sustanability. By embsacing these
+0.3% facing  econamic  challenges and  geopalitical changes and seizing upcoming oppartunities, the
5o +0.1% complexities, the industry continues toinnovate and fextile and garment industry can ensure conlinued
i develop. Looking ahead, this sector s poised far growth and suceess in the years Lo came.
. I further transfodmation, driven by shifting consumer
0% - - -
" i 1 ¥ - - - - - = e o ==
China Vietnam India Bangladesh Mexico - —— R
' N . . —f _-.l l-_'h-.__'.
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IN 2024 (cont.)

~"_OVERVIEW OF THE TEXTILE AND GARMENT INDUSTRY

OVERVIEW OF VIETNAM'S TEXTILE AND GARMENT

INDUSTRY IN 2024

Amid the complicated and unpredictable  global
gitiation, with escalating conflicts, fluctuating fuel and
ranspartation costs, slow trade recowery, dechining
glabal investment, natural disasters, climate change
and complex energy security issues, Vielnam's texdile
and garment Industry 2Ll maintained salid growth.

According to b Yo Duc Giang, Chairman of the
Vietnam Textide and Apparel Association VITAS]
these positive results in 2024 were achieved due 1o
VITAS's successful policy advocacy efforls, which
helped alleviate difficulties for businesses. Additiarally,
in-depth dormestic and inmermatianal trade promation
activitles contributed to expanding export markets and
diversifying customer segrments and product ranges.

EXPORT TURNOVER

y COMParec

&

TRADE SURPLUS

{F' up B

106

In 2024, Vietnam's textile and garment industry 2lso
benefited froen significant advantages, as 17 oul of
19 next-generation Free Trade Agreerments (FTAs)
had come inta elfecl offerng global market access
and tremendous advantages Tor Vietnams textike
and agarment indusiny. The ndustry has quickly
adopted  strategies for markel  diversification,
customer  diversilcation, and high value-added
product  diversification. 11 has  alse embraced
autormation  lechnodogy,  digital  management,
and adapted well 1o sustainsble green standards
requred By many espor] markets.

a

IMPORT TURNOVER

million USD

o )00
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Vietnam's Textile and Garment Export Turnawver

The texile and garment éxpori furnoves in 2024 |5
estimated al USD 44 billion, reaching the projected
target and up 171.26% compared 1o 2023, import burmaver
I5 estimated at USD 25 billion, up 74.79%, with a trade
surplus af USD 79 billicn, up 6,%3% cormpared o 2023

Major Export Markets of Vietnam's Textile and Garment
Industry in 2024 (USD Billion

& USA:I 1671 @ China: 355
¢ Japan:4.57 # ASEAM: 290
& EL:430 & Others: 794

{Source: Geneved Deparfment of Cusiome (207 0-2023F Vietmam
Taxdhie and Appare! Assooistion)

Vietmarm's textie and garment expodts 1a the LS,
continue o rank first, with urnover exceeding S0
16.15 billiar, accounting far 43.6% of the counliry's
fatal textibe and garment exports, up 11.7%
compared 1a 2023,

{} up 11.7% compared to 2023
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CHAPTER Il - REFORT OMN PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

’” _OVERVIEW OF THE TEXTILE AND GARMENT INDUSTRY
IN 2024 (cont.)

OVERVIEW OF VIETNAM'S TEXTILE AND GARMENT
INDUSTRY IN 2024 (cont.)

Exports oo Japan rank second, reaching 5D 433
billion, accourting for 17.7%, up &.8%. Thie EU market
Molows with over USD 424 bilbon, accounting far
T1:5%, up T2.7%:

The South HKarean markel reached USD 315 ballian
accauntng for B.5%, wp 3.5% and exparts o Ching
reached USD 1.33 billion, accounting for 3.6%, up
18.5% comparad to 2023

Exports to Southeast Asia accounted for 5.7%, reaching

riearly US0 27 Bdlion, up 18.5% comparned o 2023

However, The industry i faceg several challenges
limited access 1o large arders, stagnant prcing, and
dependency an irmparted raw malerials, etc

arvwards, whidle Yietnar still Beavily relles on irmpart s,
particulzdly froen China,

Green growih challenges: While green  growth
presents an opportunity for Vietnam's textile and
garment industry 10 strengthan s brand posdion
export markels, it also poses significant challenges,
including the need for financial investrment in green
ransfoemation and  obtaining green certifications
[requiring evaluations and consultancy  to meet
ctandards).

To achieve the target of USD 47-48 billion inexparts
in 2025 and sustainable develapiment, VITAS [eaders
emphasize a long-term strategy: aclively diversifying
praduct lines to meel the demands of different

i " Uncertainty of orders: Businesses face pressure due custormer segments and expanding export markets.
18, B0 37 ity '|‘|IE. instability of orders, as brands guickly change 005 & SaEn 3t & few er Tor Vinater — an ara of
16000 ?Elﬂs e F'f'" |.||513||-:‘.:@, {":i"E'“ '[[ ':""I"E'.rg rlgl""" bef"".' tising alang with ”.]E ratian. To fulfill this impartant
’ 3.8 Inalized, | L':‘n""uml'tl"‘m slows 1ar just 1-2 wesks, mission, Yinatex aims for sustainable developrment
ktan brands are ready 10 pause orders. across four pillars Envirenment, Society, Governance,
3.50 Stagnant prices: VITAS data shaws that the average B Einsnoe et ladia aoal 1 o Secyen 3 Sing
12.000 expart price of fibsrs and yams from Vietnam in poEitian in glr:d:'lal fextile supply chains, build urigLe
2.40 2024 refnaine lower than the already low levels af COmpetii Siengiha hibaghySane  Spaiiation
8,000 2023, Motably In February, the average price was af new lechnologies and Spﬁu'al pnﬂ.ducls. and
_ appraximately LISD 2 433/ton, down 22% year-on-year, cultivate a r:“.'-‘LH'[.'ICIri:l1'i:‘ .{;ullure that selectively Blends
&, 0010 the hamanistic taditions of past geneations with
370 Shortages in raw material supphyt The new-generation modern science, focusing on workers
1,000 FTaAs require angin iraceability from fher and fabric

2023

Fil 2020 2021 L 20124 hitps:fdangeongsan widkinh-le-va-hokniapmgant-ded-mar-wel-nam-vad -t vi-brn-thu-2-the-qiod-68 74 24 _htrml
hitpsFvneconomy sndde-map-lang-irueng-kha-ae-da-vool-thach-thuchirm
L Espart vabue (in LSO billien) l]' Export valume (in millions of pieces| Average unit price (LS piece) hitps:www fashionatingworld com/new 1-2/glabal-textifes-wrap-un-2024-outlook-202 5-yesr-of-resifience-and-

fransfonmation

Vietnam's Textile and Garment Export Turnover to the U.5. hitps e anminhibudo. wa/viet-nam - suat-khau-hon- Téy-usd-hang-delmay-sang-my-pos 602666
fSource- General Department of Cusloms SSIRegearch)
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' 'I%:--:REPGRT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT

SHARE OWNERSHIP RATE OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

AS OF JANUARY 14, 2025

NUMBER OF SHARE

MO, MAME POSITION OWNED DOWHNERSHIP RATE
1 Mguyen Duc Manh Ganeral Direclon 10,825,261 BHIO%
Z  Tran Minh Hieu Deputy General Director 107,367 0.0ER%
3 Luong Thi Thuy Ha Ceapuly General Cirecior 08,79 0.a60%
4 Doan Thi Thu Ceapuly General Director 321,832 0.263%
B Luu Due Huy Ceputy General Cirectar HE,382 0.070%

Pham Thanh Tuan
6 (Dismissed on Jun 12, Cepuly General Direclar 79,253 0.065%
2024)
7 Mguyen Thi Phuang Ceputy General Cirector 151,246 0123%
g Le Xuan Vi Ceapuly Seneral Cirector 30,521 0.025%
% Tran Thi Thu Ha Chief Accauntant 151,513 0,724%
Total 12,562 266 10.25%

CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

PERFORMANCE OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS TARGETS

NO. [TEMS UNIT 2023 2024 LﬂMFAHﬂQ#E
1 Total export [ nover USC million 244 3533 123%
2 Taotal mport turnaver LISC mAillisn 144 45 T64.23 13.76%
3 Tatal revenus WHIO Billior 098010 765576 fBG6%
4 Prafil before tax WD Billioe 27400 20044 4251 %
b Prafit alter tax WHO Billicn 232 36 37482 47:58%
b Profit after tax/ Total revenue % A.13% A471% 3 By
7 Obligations to State budget YHO Billiar 0572 124 86 20 45%
8 Average number of empkoyees Peaple 18174 19052 483%
9 Mumber of sewing lines Liree 322 336 4.35%
10 Mwmber of printing lines Lirna 124 126 151%
11 Mumber of cotion lines Lirsa 3 d 2.00%

Accovding o the ¥s! of shareholders Mo, CD12/2025-TWGAEDT - DK closed on January 74,2025 by Vietnam
Securities Depositary and Cleanng Corporation.

PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

SUMMARY OF SOME INDICATORS OF TNG'S BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN THE LAST 03 YEARS

REVENUE STRUCTURE

REVENUE STRUCTURE BY OPERATION

REVENUE STRUCTURE BY SECTION

ITEMS 2022 2023 2024
Total assels 5,297,843,239,200 5,147 382.079,724 58146,875,229.408
Ml rEvanue 6, 772345206, 70E J098. 0100025 347 FASE 7R2 758 635
Met aperating profit 372,/33970,045 262.017.179,261 400,866,133.017
Other profils - 13838058561 - 18,020 A48, 508 - 10,386808,530
Total accaunting peofit before tax 358,795971,484 273,996 534,753 390479324487
Profit after tax : 292,996,621,233 242 362 313,754 374 824,208,164
Dividend payoul ratio 16% T6% Expected 20%

110

3.61% 0.12% 0.20%

(]

@ Domestic: WD 276,256,497 223
@ Export: WD 7,379,496 262412

@ Amencaz @ MAustralasia
@ Ewope @ Affica
& Az
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/.REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT (cont.)

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE
COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE PLAN
AND BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024

IN 2024, IN GENERAL, VIETNAM'S TEXTILE AND GARMENT INDUSTRY
WITNESSED POSITIVE SIGNALS AS THE GLOBAL MARKET GRADUALLY
RECOVERED AFTER A LONG PERIOD AFFECTED BY ECONOMIC DECLINE AND
DECREASE IN CONSUMER DEMAND. IN PARTICULAR, TNG INVESTMENT AND
TRADING JOINT STOCK COMPANY HAS HAD A YEAR OF STRONG GROWTH,
EXPLORED NEW OPPORTUNITIES AND EXCELLENTLY COMPLETED THE
TASKS SET FORTH BY THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS WITH
OUTSTANDING REVENUE AND PROFIT RESULTS AS FOLLOWS:

TOTAL REVENUE

.7,655...

Up 7.9% compared to 2023 and
reached 97% of the target

PROFIT AFTER TAX

.315...

Up 41.6% compared to 2023

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

.390...

Up 42.5% compared to 2023

152
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The above-mentioned success s resulted from the endless effarts of all leagers and emplayess af THRG. In which,
tha rmajor factors directly affecting the busimess and production and belpng THNG achieve the good business
perfarmance in 2024 are

.

//:-;:ed with the development trend of garment industry increasingly focusing on green
production and green conswmptlion, in addition to building a clear and transparent
system of processes and regulations along with synchronous operation, TNG has made i

1 a strong shift towards Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) practices to ensure |
production and business activities to align with sustainable development. Thanks to that, /
THG iz highly appreciated by customers for its product guality and is a priofity choice
when exporting to major markets. o

=

/;m its operation, with the strength of maintaining a stable warkforce, TNG always .
meets all order schedules from customers. The Company also maintains a good policy on -~
compensation and benefit policy, provides the employess with the best working environment i

2 In particular, unlike traditional garment enterprises, THG commits to the policy of ending |
work at 17:30 every day without overtime working, but still ensuring a stable income for /
employees. Thanks to that, TNG has received the trust and long-term engagement fromthe

/J_ “n
W,

Enhancing investment into modern technologies and machines toimprove productivity and \
product quality, TNG always strives to create more values to customers, exceeding their i
3 expectations with a lot of practical activities such as researching and developing products |
and materals, closely controlling guality, orders and delivery schedule, etc. Thanks to that, /
despite the fluctuation and decline, THG receives orders from loyal customers.

e
e,
-
/J_ Ty
.

THG continued 1o maintain contracts and orders from the big foreign customers thanks s
the brand prestige and the product quality, while focusing on exploiting new product lines of \
4 the axisting customers, Particularly in 2024, TNG continued to increase axport o its major |
markets such as USA, accounting for 47.13%, up 1.05% compared to 2023, and France, i
accounting for 14.60%, TNG is also looking for opportunifies to develop new customers in

Qﬂa, Korea, Asia, etc. ;”'
¥
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CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

Some software programs applied at the Company are:

MO. SOFTWARE APFLIED IN

1  Bravo Admimistration, accounting, and sales management

{5 REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT (cont.)

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE
COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE (cont.) 2  ERPTNG

Madaris (2D}, Diamino {Marker
miaking), Flex {iCloud-based marker Product design ard marker making soflwzre
miaking)

4 Gerber

Managing the Cormpany's productan and business processes
ziieh ag Materiale, human resources and compensation,
business, warehausing, and import-export...

DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF KEY TASKS IN 2024

a

PRODUCTION MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION
Product design sefivare, especially in fabric cutling, pattean

design and praduction procass aplirnization
o In 2024, all THG factories and branches operated continuouwsly and stably, ersuring jabs for 19052 warkers. To g F P

dehieve the above results, THG has continuously upgraded and invested in zoftware technology, facilities, and £ B
micdern machinery and equipment for production. Especially in 2024, the Product Tracing Project has been

upraded and widsly applied in most factarkes at THG, helping Lo strictly manage the entire production process

fram input materials 1o finished products. & Ecus Thai Son

Providirg powerful toods 10 help create and test designs quickly
and acourately without physical profotyping needed

Managing and carmying out procedures related toimpart and

exporl of goods, serving the declaration and work with State
EriCies

+ Dplimization ks always a top pricrity. playing an important roke inenbancing capacily, increasing outpul, oplirmizing e

material efficiency, and improving product guality. THG has implemented many optimization projects 1o save raw 7 MD - Modepro - VSR2 Paltern, design, size management
matesialts, optimize equiprmertt and machinery capacity, and increase operating productivity 5 DM - Markpack - VSR2 Marker making
9 Accumark; Flex Fattern, design, markes making mianagemseni
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT - 2 bt
v Trwing pattern pieces an a wirtual mannequn, making colar
combination and virtual fashion show
RESEARCHING TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE FOR THE TEXTILE AND GARMENT 10 Clo 3D software . Adiusting size, material-and oolor of garments accarding 1o the

INDUSTRY needs af customers

11 Digital Office Software (VPS) MManaging documenils, vouchers ard office activibes

Piorearing 0 researching  softwares 1o serve the

Just after 2 years of establishement, in 2024, TRE

garmenit induslry, TRG in general and TRE Branch in Branch sigred contracls with 5 new  customers Smart Accessary Warehouse ;
particutar has increasingly invested and developed  (including custormers outside the textiie and garment 2 oftware i Managing geod receipt and dspateh
smarl management solutans o aplimize resources seciorn, mcreasmg the tatal number of customers that = 3
towards automation in garment industry, for examples,  TRE provides software salutions to 15 partners and 17 Software of Connecting data to Managing warehouse dispateh, mvernitary, ard product information
autormatic task assignment, aulomalic ordering, mark  custamers with cutstanding products such as Smart customers exported 10 cuslomens
checking App, new HR PM project, asset management  warehouse manaoement, Assel management software, 14 PMS Maraging project estimate and sottierment
project, efe. &l automatic task assignment, Digital office, ete. Notably,
ir 2024, THNG continued Lo résearch, develop and apply 15 Gerber, Browzwear 30 wirtuad moded design
technodogy mare widely inall activities of the Campany, 6 ECUS P R e

QA LEADER APP

Autormatically nabify  relevant
departrmenis when gqualily errors
occur and autamatically suggest
solutions o hix the errors,

f’ .
A W
oy \

174

ziax

\\

A\

b b specific:

DATA CONNECTION
WITH SUPPLIERS

Cannect data and auvlomatically
create packing list and ol list,
helping 1o reduce production tme.

i't‘l.

"I ;; "/\
\ \ %

0

IMPORT-EXPORT TAX
REFUND MODULE

Autormatically  track materiale  and
caloulate taxes, mantor and surmmarize
importexport tas refund.

HR MANAGEMENT
MODULE

Aulcmate managament process;
centrally manage human resource
information and suppart strategic
hurman resowee planning.

W
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MANAGEMENT (cont.)

. REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE
COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE (cont.)

DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF KEY TASKS IN 2024 (cont.)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (cont.)

RESEARCHING AND MANUFACTURING MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT USED IN

GARMENT INDUSTRY

I 2024, THG continued to affiem s pioneering position
in the field of autamation technalogy application by
upgrading and expandng AGV - Robol aysterm ingar mant
productian. The year 2024 rmarked a naw beoimnning whert
AGY - Robot manufzstured came indo operabion at the
[actories, Particulardy, A5Y - Robot has been significanily
impraved by adding the functisnality of self-operating
up and down i elevaton, enabling o synchronously
coordinate many AGY - Rabelz at the same tme. In
addition, THG researched and manufactured more AGY
- Rohots with pulling functionality, more fexibly meating
the internal transportation need at the factories. These
impraverments not andy Relp aptimize the production
process but also improve labor praductivity, ensuning
stability amd safety during systern aparation.

oS

The Compary has continued (e promote research and
technalogicalinnovation by successfullymanufaciuring
a fabric ifing maching with high peactical efficiency
i production. The Compary bas: alzo successlully
upgraded equipment such a2 stamping machine and
labeling machine, contibuling 1o significantly reducing
production costs, theseby lowering cost of goods and
erihancing compelitive advantages. These successes
once agdinaffinm TMGS strong commitment to apphying
dautorration lechnckogy, oplimidng productialy and
gradually moving lawards green and  susiainable
production develapment

TAGGING MACHINE

116

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT IN 2024

e .
| =

2T woives
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT OF GARMENT MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS

Research and developrment of raw materlals in the
garment industry play an mmportant rele n prameting
sustainable  production and  minimizing  regative
Impacts an the ervironmsent, Inrecent years, when the
trecdd of sustainable development has become a big
challenge for enterprises, especially those who have
factonies, TMG Has been and is continuing to emplement
strategies o ensure sustainsble development i all
activities of the Company, in which research znd
development of recyched malerials s given special
atferition by THG. This nolanky helps THG o create new
miaterials that ate more environmentally friendly, reduce
dependence on nabwal resources and limit waste, bul
alsn helps oplimize production costs enhance brand
value and meel increasingly strict requirernents froom
consumers for green and sustainable produsts and
social responsibility,

Iri 20024, rmarking the peansaring jourrey i the search far
eco-Triendly supserion materials, Micrahiber 060 Fiber Fill
was infraduced and considered a breakthrough salutian

and perfect replacement for traditional Feathers, With
s super-srmall Mber structure, Micrafiber 060 provdes
excellent filling ability, creating & natural, soft, Auffy
effect without cauzing heaviness or stuffiness. Al the
same trme, this is an effectve environmental protection
salution, minimizing the sse of feathers, contributing 1o
anirmal canservation. The superior quality of Micrafiber
Fiber Fill has been proven when TMG Cotton successfully
gl the purahasing order of bilkans ol Vietnamese dangs
from Haddad, one of the ward's leading presfigious
customers. With Haddad's strict chemical standards,
Microfiber 0.60 has affirmed the guality and safety of
products o consurmers.

With autstanding advantages in guality, features and
sustairability, Micrafiber Fiber Fill is increasinghy populas
and widely uzed in the garment industry, THG Catton
s praud o bea pioneer in providing ogtirmal solutions
far costormers, contnbutmg to budiding a green - and
sustairabbe fashion industng

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION IN 2024

0 machine
manufacturing

projects

machines were
2 manufactured and put
into use at the factories
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_REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF

MANAGEMENT (cont.)

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE
COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE (cont.)

DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF KEY TASKS IN 2024 (cont.)

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

HUMAN RESOURCES PLAY A KEY ROLE IN DETERMINING THE PRODUCTIVITY,
QUALITY AND SUSTAINABILITY OF ENTERPRISES. THEREFORE, BESIDES
FOCUSING ON TRAINING, CONTINUOUSLY IMPROVING PROFESSIONAL SKILLS
AND CREATING AFAVORABLE WORKING ENVIRONMENT NOT ONLY HELP TNG
MAINTAIN COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE BUT ALSO PROMOTE CREATIVITY AND
INNOVATION, CONTRIBUTING TO BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE FOUNDATION
FOR THE LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT OF THE ENTERPRISE.

IMPROVING EFFECTIVENESS OF RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING FOR NEW HIRES

Ir 2024, in order to improve recruitment effectiveness, the
Compary has issued palicies of recrsliment competition
foe the units, & typical exarnple is the policy of fewarding
VNO 1,000,000 per one techrdeal staff new hised in the
manth, which s effective when that stafl signs labor
contract. Recruitment alsa focuses on mproving guality
by building specific recrultment criteria, developing job
descriptions, selecting candidates by scoring entrance
exams 149 ensure 19 chooss b most suilable candidates

In 2024 THNG continuoed recruliment to stabilize
praducticriand buskness activities and continuausly
expand branches In particular, 2024 s alse a
vear of Innovation in orecrditing new  workers:
Probationary amd Iraiing workers  participated
i orientalion fraining programs and visited THG
lactories, thereby aiving therm a clear crientation
abaul thair work and encourage them 1o stay With
the Company for a long limes.

118

CONDUCT PERIODICAL EVALUATION
CAREER DEVELOPMENT

Al present, THG 35 using a compelency assessment
system, applied 1o professional stalf of the entire
Campary and above 19 assess their ability to meet
the jab requirernents. In 2024, 100% af the Company's
divisions, departments and branches implemented
compelency assessment for over 1,000 peaple up
o professional stalf level General Administration
Department has cosrdinated with TRE to digitize and
pat the campetency assessmeant module inte human
resaurce managernent soflware, 1115 expected thal
the performance assessment will become more
and more professional and effective In the coming
vears 50 1hat the stafls capacity will be increasingly
Irmpiroyed

With a management eam of nearly 300 peaple,
i order 1o perfect and standardize the staff leam,
meeting the job reguirements, the Company has
lssued standards for managers, production tesm
leaders and professional staff. This has helped
recrdtment and appointment of stalfl be conducted
with  high  gquantification, selecting  gualifed and
talerted staff to take on impotant positions In
additian, the existing management stafl can also
determing which standards they da not satisfy and
whal ig the roadmap o supplement and complete to
el the job requirements

Genaral  Administration  Departrment has  adviced
o issue Training Regulations, espacislly  updated
annually to sl the developrment anertation of the
Campary, The management divisions and units have
all deweloped plans and implermented Yraining and

A

T e e et T e e el L e e

II'-I 2024

100%

of the Company’s divisions, departments
and branches implemented compelency
assessment for over

peaple up o
1 00 0 professional
a[aﬂ Ie*-.-'el

S L N e i
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OF EMPLOYEE'S PERFORMANCE AND

monitaning on the software. Considerably in 2024,
Genefal  Administration  Department  successfully
implermented intemal fraining programs, helping 1o
mmotivate, train gkills, and orient employees.

-y In 2024, Gereral Adrminestration Dapastment
F=7 advised the Company’s leaders to issue and
“ fraplerment persenal deselopment process,

" establishing the Compary's long-termbuman
reseurces plan from 2024 - 2027, lowards
2030 with annual implerrentation process.

)
g | Making a planning list.
o ===m

Mueeting btwice a year to grasp the
GI\_. candidates’ thoughts and aspirations,
"~ thereby sdfjisting thee develogmant
roadmap accordangly,

i

During the vear, General adrministration Departmient
has organized meeting, orentating, and sharing with
pearly 100 emplopess in the planning of the Compary,
preparing high-guality hisman resources to zerve the
reed of expanding production and business.
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1% REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT (cont.)

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE

« Continuing to build the brand of TNG, which s
respancible for society, prolects the envircnment
and deserves for s honors

«in 2024, thanks to the brand reputation along

cCOoOM PAH?‘S PERFORMANCE {Cﬂnt.] with focusing on markeling comrmumncation and CENTRIC
bmproving exploitation efficiency In many aspects, 9 T BRAND =
- " THG successfully approached and developed new
DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF KEY TASKS IN 2024 (cont.) cibtorers sich, B8 Bl Deniic: ate: developed \
mmore Seftshell product lines for Stedio; and signed 1

-1
W

off-zeason FOB arders with Victary Time.

BUSINESS - MARKETING COMMUNICATION

TNG ALWAYS FOCUSES ON COMMUNICATION, AND COMMUNICATION
ASSESSMENT IS ONE OF THE MOST PRACTICAL SOLUTIONS FOR TNG
TO GET CLOSER TO CUSTOMERS, SHAREHOLDERS AND STAKEHOLDERS.
THROUGH COMMUNMICATION, TNG QUICKLY CAPTURES FEEDBACK FROM
THE MARKET AND STAKEHOLDERS TO PROMPTLY HAVE APPROPRIATE
AND POSITIVE STRATEGIES AND ACTION PLANS.

c\ G-Il Apparel Group

lII

*in 2024, THG produced 1768 radic  programs, 2024 coromganized by Vielstock, Vielnam Associalion E
207 articles on fanpage, 79 articles. an website, of Financial Executives (VAFE) and Fili Magazine LLLLLLLL
43 lelevision articles, 43 media wideas and 45
programs  cocrdinated with the Company's events * Maintaining  pernodic  report  and | ransparent M
o cammuricate the Company's production and infarmation  disclosure 1o meet the  standards BASIC CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT EEE mEE® '
business activites to all employees and stakeholdars af the upgrading roadmap In Vielnam secufities ; Ty n “

guickhy and prarmptly

» Transparency s one of THGES firstanilenia 1o engage
ard creata trust with sharenodders and cuestomers.
THG always ensures information disclosure n a full,
accurateandtruthful mannes according toregulations
on different means and websites. On Apeil 29, 2024,
THG was voled "The mid-cap listed enterprise with
IR acibvities most wanbed by investors” at IR Awards

market, for examples, Transparency Repart, Anrual
Reparl, Corparate Gavermance Report, Sustainabie
Development Repart, Financial Statements, Garment
Imdustry Carrelaticn Report are posted on the
afficial website (o inform the Company's operation
and strategy. In particofar, in 2024, THG met the
critera for implementing 100% Vielnamese-English
infarmation disclosure, beller meeling Information
disclosure accarding 1o intermatianal starndaras

120

in 2024, TMG relocated Viet Due Garment Branch fram 160 Minh Cau Street, Phan Dmb Phung

Yard, Thal Mauyen City ta the San Carm industnal Cluster, San Cam Cormmune, Phu Luong
Cistrict, Thai Nguyers Cily, Thai Mguyen Provinge, Tatal investrment value of Viet Cuc Factory
5 rmvzre thar VD 400 biticn

Campleting constrocton of clean water plant; campleting phase 2 of San Cam dndustnal Park
wastewater treatment plant, imvesting in biormass bollers and salar power system

In order 1o meel environmental erteria on the journey of sustainable developrment, in 2024,
THG upgraded Son Carm Indusirial Park wastewater Treatment plant 1o expand the scope
of standards lor receiving inpul wastewaler (o save costs, oplimize aperation, ensure good
carmpliance with the law and avoid legal risks related to the erwirenment In 2024, THG
imvested in installing aulomatic environmenial manitoring system at all faciones.

In 2024 aneestrment activites toegpand production systam weaere alse canlinued Lo accelerale
o best et the demand of goods for export markets.

TOTAL SEWING LINES IN 2024

336...

{? mnireass by 14 sewing lines companed o 2023, 322 séwirg lines
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MANAGEMENT (cont.)

. REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE
COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE (cont.)

DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF KEY TASKS IN 2024 (cont.)

CORPORATE CULTURE

BUILDINGATEAM OF EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE GOOD QUALIFICATIONS AND
PERSOMNALITY; TAKING GOOD CARE OF SPIRITUAL AND CULTURAL LIFE
OF WORKERS; SHARING WITH THE COMMUNITY THROUGH PRACTICAL
AND MEANINGFUL ACTIVITIES ARE CULTURAL FEATURES ACCUMULATED
OVER THE PAST YEARS OF TNG, CONTRIBUTING TO THE COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ENTERPRISE.

BUILDING A SPIRITUAL AND CULTURAL LIFE FOR EMPLOYEES

Al TMG, Trade Unicn and other arganizatians @ he
Compary 1ake good care ol employees, reqgulardy
arganizing ouldoor. acthities, entedanment,  an
perfoimances, sports campetitians, visis 1o relatives
and friends, ele. Throwgh these collective actrities,
all employess unlte with sach olber and gel maore
attached 1o the Company

Every wear on the oocaskion of Tel holidays and
wEloaming & new year, THMG employess are always
cared lor and supported by Trade Union at all levels,

Thigs & an annual Sullural beauty al THNG thraugh
mary mearunglul activities such ag givng Tet gifts ta
ermiplovess supporting buses 1o take workers home Fos
Tel, ete. These are noble actions, demansirating the
degp gratitude of the THNE'Ss Trade Undon o workers.
Wilh the programs “Tel reunion - Spring shanng
and "Spding buses”, THG has energized the pesple in
difficult circumstances 1o work hander, overooaming
their difficulties, stabilizing thair income, al the samse
tirme, contributing 19 the developrment of 1he Cormpany
i particular and the cauntry's scoromy in geraral,

80 TP EC Pl ML 1W ik V0w bl Tl

HE AN AT VR )
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MANAGEMENT (cont.)

A :- _REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE
COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE (cont.)

DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF KEY TASKS IN 2024 (cont.)

CORPORATE CULTURE (cont.)

- o o o g © & © o

5 ".-. [ i
- TTYrES

fi‘\

:

,

g
= T

"l

¥
:
¥
5

r._ﬂl

KNOWLEDGE TRAINING PROGRAM "ALO 108 - VOICE OF WORKERS"

The pragrams ALD 108 - YVoice of THNG workers was
inspired by the aim o resclve the concems, worries,
and desires of TMG warkers o contribute o the
davelopment of the Campany as well as their wishes o
carmphele Gaily work in the bast wiay in ordes Lo have a
Detter ncedme

The guestions and situaticns presented in the program
revalve araund daily storses, incidents arising in the
production and business process, problems of workers
due e many factars keading to lew praductivity
Auestions an togics such as @Ehar law, Trads Union,
ealary, intermal regulations anti-sexual harassment,
collective bargaining agreermsent, ete. With the desire
thatl, through the Trade Union, the HRE departmenits of

124

wnits ardd companes and the labor eare depastrments
will always accempany, facililate and support the
warkers o be confident and progressiva

The program aksao helps improve the knowledge of Trade
Linion leaders, Trade Unian members and workess af the
Campany, ncrease canfidence of Trade Union leaders
to be proactive i work, grasp the situation, handie
circumstances anging in production and business,
and associate the units. This iz also an oppartunity for
warkers Lo express their thoughts and wishes 10 the
Trade Union, from which the voice of warkers canreach
to management levels, thereby Umely giving supparts
the workers to cormplels their works in & good manner

CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

TNG SOMG CONG FACTORY TOURS 45TH ANNIVERSARY RUNNING RACE

THE Song Cong Factery Tours 2024 is a lange-scake
funning race celebrating THIG'E 45th  anniversary
The race attracted 1.200 athletes wha are partners,
custarmers and emplovess of THG and froen the runring

clubs in the province. The race includes 3 distances ie TOTAL AWARDING VALUE

17 Kilcemeters, 22 kilometers and 45 kilarmeder s, In which, TNG FACTORY TOURS 45
the 4540m distance is new o celebrate the memorabhe

millestans of THG's 45th annversarny ANNIVERSARY RUNNING RACE
and B Consolation Prizes 1o outstanding the participants VD 2 3 0 imyillicn

al each distance with the total awarding value of more

than YMD 230 milllon. The race was successiul, leaving T T e e I R T e M R M AT [
a good impression on the participants, being a wesful

and healthy playground to help employess of the units

Imiprove thedr health as well a5 enhance the exchange
and connection betweean THNG and ather units.

Althe endof the competition, the Drganizing Cammitiees
hasawarded 4 First Pilzes, 4 Second Prizes, 4 Third Prizes
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f:: _REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT (cont.)

GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF MANAGEMENT TEAM ON THE
COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE (cont.)

DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF KEY TASKS IN 2024 (cont.)

TNG'S MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATION INNOVATION IN 2023

TMG is currently implementing Decision No. 1150/QD/HBOT dated May
4, 2022 on decentralizing govemnance, building a governance framework
that integrates Esﬁmmmmmmm tegy,
and updating more provisions to help the mmpmm-gm’
standardized and effective.

Integrating waming system and risk management system with the .|I
available ERP system. Strengthening m:lthrhﬂuﬂ.ludl‘tﬂmmﬂ:lu |
to detect risks in production to improve governance. |

Upgrading and connecting modules of mpm-wumm
accounting software, sales tracking software, debt tracking M
between TNG and mnmhr eross-checking data at any H
timely identify errors, minimizing risks. e

Documenting all working processes, evaluating and building processes
and procedures to ensure risk control at the highest possible level
according to the COS0 ERM Framework.

Improving application of loT technology, Al and automation systems in N
cutting - sewing — finishing to help optimize productivity, reduce mistakes .
and increase the ability to meet urgent orders. Connecting KPI system to |
each production team and support department to evaluate work efficiency y
mmmuwﬂnm“ﬂmmhm y

entire system. _,w/

Innovating and upgrading the product tracing project, widely applied in

most factories at TNG, helping strictly manage the entire production
pmmnfmmhpummuhhmmuudpmﬁﬂl Hmhﬁﬂnlgt_' -
requirements of demanding markets such as EU and US through QR/code
system of fabrics, mwmmﬁﬂmimandamw_' 55 to
enhance reputation and export capacity.




MANAGEMENT (cont.)
COST EFFICIENCY

.. REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF

MEASURES TO REDUCE ENERGY CONSUMPTION

« Promatling  propaganda  on using  elkectricity
peonomically tooofficers and emplovees via the radia
system of the Company, panels and posters for

propagation,

¢ In 2024, THG ehminated all coal-lired boilers. Gradually
plirminatirg,  replacing  ard  renovating  eectric
equipment and components with low efficiency and
prefgy waste (or example, pump motors and Erge
capacity machines with direct start, comeerting
T-phase elecins bollers to 3-phase ones.

1 Ooﬂ/ﬂI BOILERS

converting 1-phase electric boilers
to 3-phase ones

R R R S

e e P T L e

+ Researching and applying automatic control system

for turnroeviurreal® of the air conditioners/dosers in
the drying area.

- Toosave energy, the factory uses evaporative coolers
for production area, energy-efficient split systern air
conditioners in office and artificial lghting 1o achieve
high efficiency.

SAVING POWER IN PRODUCTION AND LIGHTING

Total power consumption In 2024 was 203 million
kWi, a decrease of 0.7 millicn KWh compared to 2023
1371 millicn Kwh). In 2024, THG implernented rooftop
sodar power project at Viel Thal Branch, significantly
reducing  powsl  consumption  This branch also
imyplermented srmarl power system project, controlling
arcoff. tme, power carsumplion, capacity, data
stocage, elo

Especially in recent years, newly built factories all use
-'n.rer'rulaﬂnn and natueal light systems: accarding 1o

In 2024, THG replaced 32B0 high-presswe lights
from gricdhelectricity to lights using solar power at all
factories Implermenting 958% af the plan 1o replace
solar lights has helped save more than YND 50 rmidlian
of power charge per month,

In addition, TNG also spansored 90 sels of Solar
power lights far villages and schools near the faclony.

T e T T

In particulas, in 2024, TNG organized "TNG Pawer
System Safety Operation Management Compelition
2029 with 34 parlicipants from 17 leams,
representing 17 branches and units in the Company,
imcluding 2 exams of theary and practice. The
compelition was organized 1o promote the sense of
respansibility and improve professional qualifications
of the staff in charge of operating ekcirical system
of the Electromechanical teams at THNGS branches,
pspecially in checking and cantralling elestrical salety
irpraduction, thereby, 1 proactively and timely handle
situations and incidents that may occurn reducing
damaages and repair downtime in production.

REPLACING

3 8 0 high-pressure lights

using grid electricity into
solar-powered lights

= C

=
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RENEWABLE ENERGY

17,114..

CERTIFIED BY MONSOON CARBON
IN 2024

SAVING

- VND 5 0 enillion of power

charge/month

¥
|
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MANAGEMENT (cont.)

COST EFFICIENCY (cont.)
SAVING POWER IN COOLING AND VENTILATION

D ta the charactenstics of the nerthern climate, there are two distinet hat and cald seasons in the sumimer, the
outdao: ternperature is often high (35 - 28oC), 50 the Company has focused on designing the factory in the sivie
af natural ventilation with a system of skylighis and roof doors. The use of these skylights has kept the factory
cool, leading 1o saving electricity for cooling workers in the summer. Use frequency comnwerter or speed controlles
for suitable speed adjustment to reduce pawer loss of ventilatian fan, domestic water pump, and water pump of
coalirg swstem.

MEASURES TO SAVE WATER
TOTAL WATER CONSUMPTION IN 2024

3 1 6 ™ 1 thousand cubic meters

down 5.7% compared to 2023
(372.2 thousand cubic meters)

EQUIVALENT SAVINGS

VND 0 ® 8 billion

Saving wealer in produstion plays anextremely imporant robe, nal enly helping THG reduce aperating costs butalso
contributing to environmeanial protection and ensunng sustanable development, espacially in the face of climate
change and moréasing water scarcity. In 2024, TNG saved a signdficant amaount of water thanks 1o the following
TEASAnE:

A waler-saving awarensss campaign bas been lzunched in the Company
« Reusing treated waslewater for watering planis and cleaning factories
¢ Lzing rairwater oo watering plants in the factory.

« Regularky inspecting plumbing systerms and appliances o present water leakage

« Establishing a system to effectively monitor and evaluate water usage to provide limely saving salutions.

CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

MEASURES TO SAVE ENERGY USED FOR BOILERS

» Contral termperature of exbaust gas smoke v Cantrol autormatic blowdawn

+ Preheal foed waler used in hedl axshangar © Heduds kasses dus 1o sedament and sool
« Prabeat air used for boilers + Reduce pressure of baikers

¢+ Blepless speed contred device for fansg, radiator fans
and purmps

» The combustion process is nol comalete

« Contral residual gas

- ) ¢ Controd lads of bailers
+ Reduce heal losses due o radialicn and conwvection

MEASURES TO SAVE CHARCOAL

TOTAL CHARCOAL CONSUMPTION IN 2024

1 ™ 5 thousand tons

down 22% compared to 2023
(1.8 thousand tons)

EQUIVALENT SAVINGS

VND 2 ™ 9 billion

THE Packaging branch has changed into Biormass ballers buming waod pellets, THis k= 2 new slepin the Company's
clean energy conversion, completing the commitment roadmap for majar customers, especially facusing on the
factor of minimizing emissions alfecting the environment

Az the recycling trend is inoreasingly
appreciated and paid attention 1o by many
countries, the fact that manufaciuring
enterprizes such as textile and garment
enterprises focus on taking advantage.of
surplus materials lo creals new products
5 an achon 16 conlibate o saving
resounces and protectng the enviranmsen!
THG has boen continuing to ressarch
and utlize waste products (wasle paper,
cattan scraps, fabric waste, nylan, surplus
threads, surplus fabrc, ele) torecyele into
raw matefials for other products:
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MANAGEMENT (cont.)

FINANCIAL SITUATION
PROPERTY STRUCTURE

[. CURRENT ASSETS

1. Cash and cash equivalents

2. Shart-terrn investments

3. Bhart-termn receivables

4. Imeentares

5. Other short-term assels

I HNOM-CURRENT ASSETS

1. Lang-tarm recenables

2, Fimed assels

3. Investmenl praperty

4. Lang-term assels in prograss
b, Long-term financial investmenis
. Othesr lang-tesm assels

Total assets

[. LIABILITIES

1. Current liabiities

2. Lang-term liabilities

[l. OWNER'S EQLATY

1. Dwriers” conlnbuled capital
2. Share premiums

3. Other awners” capital

4, Investment and developrmerit fund
b. Dther reserves

6. Retaired sarmmngs

Total resource

132

~ 1% REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF

AS DF DECEMBER 31, 2023 PERCENTAGE
2,073,005,756,173 40.27%
283,312,907 758 5. 50%
15,000,000,000 0.25%%
745,294,950,417 14:48%
888,214,031.211 17.26%
141,183,857,787 2.74%
3,074,376,262,951 59.73%
10,680,826,157 0.21%
2.1%2,500.509,548 42.60%
374,008,138,157 631%
270,586,914,274 5. 26%
140,000,000,000 2.77%
134,710,784,815 262%
5,147,382,019,124 100.00%
3,421,071,503,391 66.46%
2.541,230,047,107 49.37%
870,841 456,200 17.0%%
1,726,210,515,733 33.54%
1,135,230,020,000 22.05%
40,388, 785,123 0.80%
55,419,591 0,00%
270,776,332.224 5. 26%
102 265,079,441 1.99%
176,594.879,354 3.44%
5,147,382,019,124 100.00%

AS OF DECEMBER 37, 2024

2,620,830,837,714
444.562,511,913
260,000,000,000
723.373,371,165
1,068,102,379,351
124,792,575.285
3,196,044,391,694
10,680,826,157
2,117,164,741,730
300,198,596,460
475,538,767.274
140,000,000,000
152,461,1 60,064
5,816,875,229 408
3,924,453,768 402
2, 750,074,126,747
1,173,479,641 655
1,892,421,461,006
1,226,012,060,000
40,988, 785,123
55,419,597
290,776,332,224
112,265,079,441
727,323 784,627

5,816,875,229,408
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PERCENTAGE

45.00%

7.E4%

1.47%

12.44%

18.36%

275%

54.94%

0 18%

S6.40%

5. 16%

H.18%

24T%

2E62%

100.00%

67.47%

47 29%

2077%

32.53%

21.08%

07 0%

0.00%

5.00%

193%

3.82%

113.07%

INCREASES

DECREASE (VND) bl
547,825,081,541 26.43%
161,24%,604,155 56.92%
245, 000,000,000 1633.33%
21,921,588,252 -2.94%
170,888,348,140 20.25%
16,391 282,502 11.61%
121,668,128,743 3.96%
0.00%

- 756,834 857 209 -3 46%

- 24,709,241 697 7.63%
204 551 853,000 75.48%
0.00%

17,750,375,249 12.18%
669,493,210,284 13.01%
503,382,265011 14.71%
200,744/079,646 B.25%
293,638,185,365 33.37%
166,110,945,273 9.62%
590,782 040,000 B00%
0.00%

0.00%

o0,000,000,000 7.99%
10,000,000,000 9.78%
45,328.905,273 26.61%
669,493,210,284 13.01%
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- -;‘%;:REPGRT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT (cont.)

FINANCIAL SITUATION (cont.)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE LAST 3 YEARS

ITEMS 2022 2023 2024
Met cash generated by aperating sctivities 84416937034 748,345,795 08% 46243170425
Gross revenue from goods sold and - . . = . T .
e ] i JB35, 702,750,635 FOSBDIOOZS347  BAYV.J42734288  786% Met cash used in investing activities -B07.244472628 - 716573146207 - 494231263205
P — 5 Met cash gererated by linancing activities SEXI2T7 342309 - 102265511, 796 -90,994 670,707
: 7 Met (decreaselfincrease in cash 335 490 866,715 - G349 BEZ 914 161,077 176429
Mal revenue friom goods sold and £ 5 = .
services rendered (10=01-02) JBEGTSZTRO63E TO9H010025347 567 T4Z734,288 7.86%
Cost of sales and services rendered GATIETO249271 6173800854450  360,069,394,821 5.8%% FINANCIAL INDICATOR COMPARISON BETWEEN TNG AND ITS PEERS IN 2024
L.1r-::lsﬂ. p_ruﬁl from 'QF'{"EE gald and 1.181.882.51 0,264 984200170897 197673330467 7 0%, Stock Code UNIT THMG MSH TCM GMC VGT
services renderad (20=10-11)
VALUATION INDICATORS
Bk value £h; WPE WMD 2566 4933 27402 22304 15436
Finanalal expenses 971105657878 325602062046 45412695832  13494% Vallie pr Ahare (BVES)
Price-earnings ratio (F/E) Tirme 615 5,60 G346 1694 .35
1 [ s T84.436,0587.216 102 350 757 705 - 935,676 580 -4 T2% Price-te-boak satia {P/B) Tirmi 187 R 1.5 215 1,63
Price-to-sales ratio (P/S) Tirme .34 0,20 074 1.28 .40
Zelling expenses 110,513,197 605 T107,716,7449,234 B,796,448,371 B.a5%
Dividend yield Y 0o 309 ooy 008
General and administration expenses 4724 454,644,889 358408344368  66,046,300,521 18.43% PROFITABILITY INDICATORS
Gross Prafit Margin (GPM) % 1161 1027 1671 1818 15449
Operating profit {30=20+(21-22H 25+ 26)) 400,866,133,017 292017179261 108,848,953 756 3727 Nt prafit margin 5 = B4 377 538 730 411
Qther income 1,530,765,496 012560413 -1481 803917  -49.15% Return an Average Equity (ROAE] A ATHT e &M BN 104
Return on Capital Employved [ROCE) % 3573 2038 X458 1674 1999
Oibwer expenses 11,977.574,026 21,033,213,927 115,639,895 ~43.34% Return on Average Assets (ROAA) % 1035 682 1024 790 570
. . GROWTH INDICATORS
Lesses from other activilies (40=31-32) -10,386,808,530 18,020,644, 508 FEIZHIEGTE  ~42.36%
Met sales growth % 857 1333 16836 1487 .90
Aceounting prafit before tax {50=20+40) 390,479,324,487 273996534753 T16482,789,734 42.51% Grozs profit grawth % 304 28671 4708 2366 2067
Profit bafore tax grawth % 6539 8583 Y738 BREO 4405
Current corpooate inoome lax expense FB.403,827,071 52,280,B86,000 24,022,840, 981 45.86% frat Yor i
E:_-,ﬂrf::_;.;;:r fax grawth ol snarehicddess in Parent % G334 8287 EREI 10929 4466
Deferred corporate lax incame ~TA8,710,748 -FA6,6ES,091 -2,045,657 0.27%
: Total assel grawih % 16,53 665 3099 1879 112
E’Enl:;;rgﬁﬂer O0F Orate MCOTe b 314824208, 164 22232313754 G2 461,894 470 41.58% Moen-current liabilities growth kY 927 -3h}  GFI0 10713 41,32
Liabilities growth % 1959 a23d 5006 270 1626
Basic earnings par shara 24868 1,732 236,000 A8.27% Equity growth % 1042 874 1358 1207 302
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[ _REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT (cont.)

FINANCIAL SITUATION (cont.)
FINANCIAL INDICATOR COMPARISON BETWEEN TNG AND ITS PEERS IN 2024

(Continued)

Stock Code LINIT THG MSH TCM GMC VGT Stock Code LENIT THG MSH TCM GMC YGET
LIQUIDITY CASH FLOW RATIOS
Cash rata Time 026 0,25 048 037 {16 Operating cash Now/Mel sales % .64 421 3,10 14,28 075
Cruic rati Tirre C73 .84 140 1.1 057 Dperating cash fMow 1o short tesrm dabi % 21,77 1334 2,80 2574 i |
Current ratio (sharl-term} Tirrse 1.7 133 175 .37 0,26 Mel cash flow to shart term debt % 14,29 633 2316 842 585
Intenssl coversade ralmn Time RS 171469  11.7% 15,08 312 Operating cash flow/ Total aszets % 13,23 16 262 10,05 12,83
ACTIVITY RATIOS Operating cash Now/Owrer's equily % 42717 1885 796 17 24 2943
Recanabls turmowver Turnoer gaG 5,24 6,75 523 17,04 Dperating cash flow/Met operating prafit % 11649 G717 2923 115,38 186,16
Average collection Period Cays 3697 5EAB.  B408 44,37 33,08 Operating cash flow 1o debt ratio % 19,50 13,15 6,63 2412 19,02
Inventary Lurncoer Turnchner 5817 6,57 .73 315 6,14 COSTS
Averace inventary pesiod Days 6287 58,56 4723 116,04 59,57 Castof sales/Met salkes % 28,39 8535 B4,29 83,82 84,50
Payatiles turnoer Turneners 1780 483 Z2BIS 859 10,33 Selling expenses/MNet sales % 215 470 2,59 405 1.44
Averaos payrmient perad Cray's 2051 fa52 12495 42,57 35,23 Gansral and administralion expenses/Mel sales % 4,56 2493 4,78 343 3,54
Fized assel [ufrdwer Turnches F24 1543 FA7 3,84 3,56 Loan inlerest expenses/MNet sales % .78 Cra4 1.01 Q.65 241
Agged fumayver Turneer 188 1,54 132 1.06 1,39 CURRENT ASSET STRUCTURE
Eqyuely burmaver Turneer 580 4 67 273 1,78 41349 Carrenl assels Talal assels % 71,649 #7006 71.84 69,05 45,34
LEVERAGE RATIOS . Cash/Current sssals T 2230 1595 27,28 20,94 16,85
Sharl-term debt ratia ] 89 58 GBB4 7538 03,50 oo Short-term financial investmenU Current assets g 1213 2956 20,10 1982 0,24
Loar-ta-assel ratio Y 38,80 024 3140 19,80 46,47 Shart-term recenables/Current assels T 2536 8,81 30,52 20065 28,06
Debi-to-asset ralio .Iﬁ: 6838 5883  BAGE 41,68 &7 A7 Inventanes/Current assels T 761 JE66 1986 37,28 40,73
Equity-la-assel ratio % 162 41,17 4544 o832 3253 Oither curem assels/Curent assels % 2,60 4462 Zi5 131 4,449
Shart-lerm debl-to-equity ratio Y 193,34 141,22 Q045 G583 14537 MON-CURRENT ASSET STRUCTURE

Lear-to-eguily ratis % 12271 a9 6509 3305 142567 Mon-current asselsTolal assets g 2831 2294 28,16 3085 54,660
Debt-ta-aquity rat % 20627 142HE 12005 148 207 38 Fixed asseis/ Total assels % 2544 11,29 1547 2631 36,40
Tangible fixed assels/Fixed assets % a7 9588 98,70 B2,50 02,62
intzangible fixed assels/Fixed azsets % 0,21 012 1,21 17,80 738
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. REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT (cont.)

ASSESSMENT OF BOM ON CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
TOWARD LOCAL COMMUNITY

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
HAS BECOME ONE OF THE ESSENTIAL
REQUIREMENTSFOREVERYENTERPRISE.
IN THE CONTEXT OF GLOBALIZATION
AND INTERNATIONAL INTEGRATION,
THEENTERPRISENOT COMPLYINGWITH
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY WILL NOT BE
ABLE TO ACCESS THE WORLD MARKET.
MANY ENTERPRISES HAVE ACHIEVED
PRACTICALEFFICIENCY INPRODUCTION
AND BUSINESS WHEN IMPLEMENTING
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. IN ADDITION
TO ECONOMIC EFFICIENCY, THE
ENTERPRISES CAN STRENGTHEN THEIR
REPUTATION WITH CUSTOMERS AND

BUILD TRUST WITH EMPLOYEES.

Recognizing the mportance and benefits of implermenting corporate sackal respansibility in the context of
globalization and intermatianal integration, apart fram Tullilling its-obligations o the State budget, THG strives to
fulfill itz secial responsibilities theough cammitment s and policies forempbayes; enviraremeant and local cormmunity,
airming at the sustainability goal. Diring its 45-year journey of brand bulding, THG has always determirned that
the business strategy mest ensure harmony among econamic - social - erwironmental benafils. These thres
elements complerment each ather and well implementing respansibiliies o people, ermaronment and society will
help the buzmess develop mare and more. The econamy can only devalop strongly in a civilized sockety and good
ervirarrment. Thas i clearly shown through rmany aclivities of THG, 1o be specific:

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

By clearly understanding that the first and most
impartant peed of hurman beings 15 good  Living
environment. On the spiil of voluntariness  and
responsibility, we have been building cur factoraes in
accardance with green standards. THG has oriented
that allfactones bullt by the Company since 2018 have
Lo rmeel green factory standards. In 2020, Song Gang
factory and Yo Nhai factory achieved Vietram areen
factory certification. This.is the first progect in Thai
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Meguyen Province 19 receive green bulding cerilicaton
from WGBC, This is also a remarkable effort of THG
in impraving the warking environment. Tor workers
and contributing to the strategy of sustanable
development  and  environmental  protection.  In
particubar, sperating in the garment industry, THG is
always committed to the goal of using raw materials
and praducing emvirenmentally friendly products for
the benefit of the cammunity

CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

Typical environmental certificates in 2024

Higg Index Certificate - Environmental impact assessment in
the textile and garment industry

Higg Index is a tool that enables brands, retailers and facilities
of all sizes — af every stage in their sustainability journey — 1o
accurately measure and score a company or garment and
footwesr product's sustainabiity performance. The Higg Index
delivers a comprehensive overviesw, enabling enterprizes 1o
make meaningful improvements that protect the environment,
well-being of factory workers and comsmunities

A5 o larope texlile enterprise with 19 brarnches in Thai Mauyen Cily,
THG always strives 10 ensure stable and effective production
and business, minimizing the impact on the envireoment
With thie acleal measuremant index and scoring resulls of the
Companys susizirable performance, in Seplember 2023, THNG
fecened Higg Index Certification frorm SAC which recognized
the Company's effons on the journey towards green proguction
and envirarimenial proteclion

GRS Certificate - Global Recycled Standard

Lizing products made from recycled matenals s curmenily a rend
that recerves much attentian from socety, nol anly because
of its: reasonable price bul also contnbution to enviranmental
pratection. Gne of the recychng standards that cannot be
ignored is GRS,

The GRS iz an international, voluntary, full product standard
thal sets reguirerments for third-party certification of recyeled
pontent, chain of cusiody, social and enviranmental practices
and chemmical restrictions.

Pramieling research on recycled products In the Compary,
THG has launched typical regyeled products such as Clarkson
Cotton, Downlike Cotton, Black Cotton, ele, In May 2023, THG
was granted GRS Certificate by Contred Unian Co., Lid,

RDS - Responsible Down Standard

RS [Responstle Down Standard)is aninternational certification
pragrarm with velurary standards for responsible down and
feathes production, was first issued by Textile Exchange in 2014
and has been managed by them ever since

RDS requires all sites in the supply chain to be certified, starting
al the farm and slaughterhouse, the processing of down of
feathers, the assembly of the final preducts, all the way 10
the seller in the final business-to-business Transachan The
certification iz applied to ensures the welfare of feathered
animials, guaraniasing thal down and feather uged In textile and
garment productian come fram animals - raised . according 1o
animal welfare principles.

Indexe

Higg index Certificate

Environmental impact assessment in the
textile and garment industry

Issued by Sustainable Apparel Coalition - SAC

o

-

/" Global Recycled
w_ Standard

GRS Certificate - Global Recycled Standard
Issued by Control Union Vietnam Co., Lid.

¥
r

RDS - Responsible Down Standard
Certified by Control Union

Al Repor 2024 139



CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

-ll'"":-l
-

/.REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF

= ot el &

THG'S SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY CERTIFICATES IN 2024

MANAGEMENT (cont.)

ASSESSMENT OF BOM ON CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
TOWARD LOCAL COMMUNITY (cont.)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (cont.)

FSC Certificate — Sustainable Forest Management

F3C Forest Management  Cerbification by Forest
Slewardship Council - a non-gowermmental and  man-
prafiit internaticnal organization to make standargs for
forest management, both on érwvimnmertal and social
factors. With this certificate, we can a2l rest assured that
these are products with clear ongins. THNG always aims
o achieve economic efficiency while guiding consurmers
o make the right choices for the products manufzciured
by the Company. In August 2023, THNG was granted FSC
Certificate by DNY [Det Narske Veritas).

FEC cartilication nat onky baings ervaronmerital benafits but
also ensures a balance of both economic-and comrmunily
berefits. Enlerprizes using F3C certificalion services
providged by Vinacontrol TE can both gaineconomic berelits
and enhanca thair own reputatan, and at the same time,
avanding risks framillegally exploited producisand meeting
stiel enviranmental regulabons by the Governmert.

F5C Certificate
Chain of Custody Certification
Issued by DNV (Det Norske Veritas)

CONTRIBUTION TO THE SOCIAL COMMUNITY

Each Irdividual lives and acts in a socety. Tharelfore, we
alvays join offorts n irmgroving social life where we: are
deang business by promoting investment and carmmunity
developrrent, bringing 1he best things to lecal cormemunity

Ensuring safety and benefits for consumers nowadays,
carporate social responsibility presents commitment to
produst quality, =safety for consurmers. THG commidls to
beirgy abschutely responsible for all produsts. THG will
be respansible for every product and o every individual
AT

Employee policy Chairman of BOD hazs made his
carnmitrments  al the employee conference that "all

emplovees of THG will be fully provdded legitimate nights
and benefits” This has been proven by fully implementing
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employes policies withoul amy complamt, Bwsuit
pecumed

Witheffarts for a sustainable ecanomic development,
g civilized sociely and a happy community, THG has
been hanored with many neble prizes from The
State; prestigious certifications from domestic and
infernational associations. THE is proud of alweays
being the first choice of big lirms and organizations
in the workd and a companion of customers and
partnars. Being consistent with it mission in a
world of rew apportunities of the techiology era,
being ready for innavation, perfection oward a green
future, we trdly believe thal TMG will always be a
relizble brand of big corporations in the region and
araund the warld,

.'L'ullf- HEg
f 0 _%"?.m

L
3 2/
Tro

WRAP certificate — Certification of social
compliance in garment industry
Issued by WRAP — Worldwide Responsible
Accredited Production (USA)

amfori () sscl

BSCI Certificate - Certification of corporate
social responsibility
Issued by Amfori — under Foreign Trade
Association (FTA)

SOCIAL & LABOR
CALLLAROR S888E

SLCP Certificate

Standards for corporate social
responsibility of customers

Issued by Sustainable Apparel Coalition

.
EetterWurl‘-:'

BetterWorks/SLCP Certificate — Certification of
social compliance in garment industry
Issued by Better Work Vietnam — under
International Labor Organization (ILO)

& svETA”

SMETA Certificate

Standards for business ethics and
corporate social responsibility
Issued by Sedex/SMETA

..F"-' -

™
(SCAN)

e g

SCAM Certificate
Supplier Compliance Audit Metwork
Granted by Scan Association

frvmunl Beoet 3024 140



14 ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOD ASSESSMENT ON ALL ASPECTS OF THE COMPANY'S

ACTIVITIES

IMPLEMENTING GMS RESOLUTIONS IN 2024

The Beard of Directors successiully held the 2024 Annueal General Meeting of Shareholders on April 23, 2024, with
the participation of all members of the Board of ireclors, Board of Managerment and Subcammitlees under the
Board of Direclors. Al the meeling, the questions raised by shareholders are reasonably answered. Vating results
af each issuwe are recorded in the Minutes, and the Resalutions of the Anncal General Meeting of Sharehalders are

fully ard tirmely refeased thereby.

RESOLUTION NO. 190/2024/QD-DHDCD
{1

Approving Business Performance Report, Audit
Committea Report, 2023 Profit Distribution Plan, 2023
Dividend Payment, 2023 BOD Remuneration Payment

2

Approving 2024 Business Plan
¢+ Rewenipe WYRND 7,900 billion
« Prafil after tax YHND 370 bilban

o

Approving 2024 dividend payment plan
Expecied 2024 dividend paymeant at least 16%.

O

Approving 2024 remuneration plan
Expected 2024 BOD remuneration payment al 2.4% of
profit after tax-in 2024 in cash

s

Selecting independent auditor for the financial
statements of the Company in 2024 which is DELOITTE
VIETNAM CO., LTD. (DELOITTE).

Approving the plan to issue shares for 2023 dividend

payment:

¢ Wumiber of shares to beissued: 3081 240 shares

+ Facevalue: WND 10 shane

o Implementation raticc 1008 {shareholder owring 07
share has 01 fght 700 rights are carresponding 1o 08
new shaes)

142

Done.

Reahzed rowanue reached YHND 76585 billoo,
inereasing by 7.9% from 2023 and reaching 97%
af the 2024 plan

Already patd in advance for dividends in cazh at
the rate of 12% of charter capital

Done; Please refer to 1term 37 in Mates of finanoial
statesments for the fiscal vear ended December
A7, 2024 which were audited.

Dare.  Please refer o Motes of financial
slatemients for the fiscal vear ended December
37,2024 which were audited

Cane. O July 5, 2024, the Company has isseed
078,204 ta pay 2023 at the rate af B%.

L7

Approving cancelling the plan to issue shares to
existing shareholders approved by the 2023 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders and approving the
plan to issue shares to existing shareholders in 2024:
= Total numiber of shares offered: 12,260 484 shares

= Face vakoe: YRD 1000 shane

= Implermentation ratio: 107 (shareholder ownz 01 share
equivalent to 01 right, 10 righds are 0o buy 01 new share)

]

Approving the plan to adjust the number of members

and structure of BOD.

Adjusting the number of 800 mermbsers from 06 10 07

rremibers with the structure as fallows:
= 071 Chairrman of the BOOD
= 07 Wiee Charman of the BOD

= 05 BOD rmembers [(including 02 Independent 20D

rmermbers and 03 non-executive BOD rmembers)

9

Appraving the list of additionally elected BOD members

for the term 2024 - 2029

®

Approving modification of Companys business

operations and amending the Company's Charter

iy

Continuing to implement the plan to issue bonds to the

public and approving Bond PO

= Continuing to implernent the band issuance plan
approved by GMS 0 Resolution Mo, 50572023 THG

DHECH dated April 23; 2023

= Authorizing BOD to organize and decideé on nécessary
matters for Bond IPO during the periad from the 2024
Annual GMSE to the 2025 Annual GMS in accordance

withy current redgulations.

CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

Mot vt smplermented the plary 1o ssue shares 1o
existing shareholders,

Done, Please relar i BOD members and strutiue
as set oul mpage 156,

The ligt of additionally elected 8O0 members for
the tesrry 2024 — 2029

1. M Mguwer Barh Linh

2 Mz Ha Thi Tuyet

d. hArs. Daan Thi Thu

Madifying business operations

< Leasing machinery, equipment, langible assets
withoul operators,

Details. Leasing machinery equipment wsed in
textibe &nd ganment industry

< Leasing non-financial infangible assets
Madifying business operations in detail

< Information  technology activilies and ofher
servces related o computers.

Details

Troubleshooting computer problerns and instaliing
snflwars,

- Carmplitier cornsulting sotivites,

- Sofiware implermentation services;

Software indusiry activities [design, production
ard supply of software products and services),
Amending and supplermenting  the following
pravisians of the Cormpany Charles

Succassfully rsued bonds (o the public:
Mot yet listed bonds ssued m 2024
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(cont.)

H . ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ASSESSMENT ON 2024 THE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

ITEMS 2023

Gross revenue from goods 7 098,070,025 347

sold and services rendered

Accounting profit before tax 273596 534,753
Met profit after corporate L

i a bk 232.362°313,754
Basic earnings per share 1,732

2024 CHAMGE GROWTH

(%)

FB53, 752709635 557742, 734280 /.86
390479324487 116482, THG. T34 4251
4824208164 92 467,894,470 41.58
2,568 Ba6 4827

TOTAL REVENUE IN 2024

.7,655..

{i’ up 7.9% compared to 2023

CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

THG's net revenue in 2024 reached VND 7,655 billion, up 7.9% compared to 2023. The reasons for the net

revenue growth are as follows:

U N\

Feweriue from  the Company's. main
busiress aclivities has moreasad sharply
thanks to the general focus on exploiting
difficult and complex product bnes as
wigll as expanding axporl markels. Expodd
crders (o new markets have contribuled
significantly 19 revenue growth

Impraved Ebor productivity thanks Lo
irvestiments in lechrodagy and human
resaurce tradnmg labor productivity has
been enhanced, reducing wasle and
increasing production efficiendy

PROFIT BEFORE TAX IN 2024
VND 3 9 0 billian

ﬁ} up 42.5% compared to 2023

Jechnalogy ele rebols in opedating pludui'llur'f. 2

In 2024, THG has laken marmy messures
o amprove production and - managearmend
processes, helping 10 oplimize raw maternil
casts and production costs, therely increasing
Busiress efficiercy such as:increasing the use
of automatic machinery and eguipment, AVG §

Mot cnby effectively control of all production and
business processes, THG has also effectvely

implermented the reasonable financial pobcy
Strict fimancial management and effective use
of capital have hefped e Company minirmize
coaEts, thereby impeaving profis

PROFIT AFTER TAX IN 2024
WYHD 3 1 5 billion

{} up 41.6% compared to 2023
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T, -
~i. ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(cont.)
EGU ASSEESMENT D‘M SDEIAL AND‘ ENHIRDNMENTAL In particudar, on bay 37, 2024, THG oganized a training i = —_— — - —
pragram 1o share knowledge abaul ermdronmental il - M
RESPDHSIBILiTIES profection faws for 50 pasticipanis who are the 1_ f
. =k Company's Leaders, Branch Directars, and Depuly ¥ ——— e —
ENVIRONMENT Heads of Deparimeants in the Company. Through group i Hﬂﬂ" 5;_“
TNG - ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY IS A COMMITMENT TO oy s e R e g sl iy
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ':lnlj lmked praclical edpenence '-'-'Ilgh.':‘ll_'[l_l':ﬂ p.r;'_'lIJI:I::[IUI' - - .
activities to give many sabkutions and prepsals [o el
FOR TNG, THE RESPONSIBILITY TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION IS NOT work mare effectively.
ONLY THE COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW BUT ALSO A GUIDELINE IN ALL OUR T TAp————
PRODUCTION AND BUSINESSACTIVITIES. TNGREALIZESTHAT,INTHEFACEOF T bling atate SR sz Tl i aEcuaes
CLIMATE CHANGE AND GLOBAL PRESSURE ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT, lreatment process, conlibutes lo creating an
FOR ORGANIZATIONS AND ENTERPRISES, ESPECIALLY THOSE WITH LARGE- stk Siebrl S it dlipniss it
SCALE PRODUCTION FACTORIES, RESPONSIBILITY TO ENVIRONMENTAL major global r'_;“{'”,ﬁ bt il 5 W_Z:w [,J,LITNE"1,'J affiirm
PROTECTION IS EXTREMELY NECESSARY. THEREFORE, TNG ALWAYS TAKES its piorweenng role in the wextile and garment industry
THE INITIATIVE TO RAISE AWARENESS AMONG OUR EMPLOYEES ABOUT THE ARt e et Ao Hich sraiermAntal Al
35 development journey always goes hand in hand
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LAWS AS WELL AS THE STRICT STANDARDS with grean values. for & sustainabis future Tor the
FROM INTERNATIONAL CUSTOMERS OF THE COMPANY. cormmunity and fulure generations.

...
W 71 iy o ¥
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f ';AEEESSM ENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(cont.)

BOD ASSESSMENT ON SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITIES (cont.)

T
i

SOCIE

SHARING RESPONSIBILITY WITH THE COMMUNITY - SUSTAINABLE
VALUES FROM TNG'S PASSION

ENTERING 2024 WHEN THE TEXTILE AND GARMENT INDUSTRY RECOVERED
GRADUALLY AFTER A CHALLENGING YEAR OF 2023, TNG NOT ONLY
MAINTAINED ITS IMPRESSIVE REVENUE GROWTH BUT ALSO CONTINUED
TO AFFIRM ITS PIONEERING ROLE IN BUILDING AN ENTERPRISE WITH DEEP
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. MORE THAN 19000 EMPLOYEES AT TNG ARE
NOT ONLY GUARANTEED STABLE JOB UT ALSO ENJOYED FULL BENEFITS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH LEGAL PROVISIONS AND OUTSTANDING WELFARE BY
THE COMPANY. A BRIGHT SPOT THAT HAS CREATED TNG'S UNIQUE IDENTITY
IS THE STRONG COMMITMENT TO CARING FOR THE LIFE OF EMPLOYEES,
AIMING FORHARMONIOUS DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN BUSINESS AND PEOPLE.
THAT HAS HELPED TNG BE HONORED AS "ENTERPRISE FOR LABORERS IN
2023" AND RECOGNIZED BY THE COMMUNITY AS AHUMANE BRAND FOR THE
COMMUNITY.

Mot stopaing at nteinal practice, THG also actively Sprasdls  ———ermme i

values o the community thraugh a serles of practical social TOTAL BUDGET TO SOCIAL

programs  such as awarding  schotarships o students,
supporiing the program "Lighting up the dream” to buikd SECURITY IN 2023 3

Greal Unily houses, supporting the people affected by natural H

disasters, storms and floods, ete. Those actions are not only __ i .H"n..‘\ ﬁ
the responsibility bul also the passion of an enterprizes WIND P hillian # | —_— | f

associated with susizinable development. THG is gradually
prending that economic growth and hiemane shanng always L 1 ,
gohand in hand ko dreate suslainable values for sociaty. e T : o }
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1" ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(cont.)

BOD ASSESSMENT ON BOM PERFORMANCE
BOD ASSESSMENT ON BEOM PERFORMANCE IN 2024

Durirg the year, the BOM and ather managers have excellently completed the tasks and business targets assigned
oy the General Meating of Shareholders. The BOG highly appreciates the 3085 effort, determination and prampt
galutions to firmly avercarme all difficulties and challenges in the conlext af severe decline of the global lextile
and garment industry, Al thie same time the BOM las strictly complied with the requlations on operations and
managerment decentralization accarding 1o the Company's Charter, managernent regulations, intermal regulations
and the BOD's decisions.

BOD SUPERVISION TO BOM

1 STRATEGIC MONITORING AND CONTROL

+ Making decisions an strategy and medium-term developmaent plan, annual business plan,
« Making decisions on pdans and irvestment projects in compalence
¢ Making decisicns on soluticns 1o expand markets; marketing, and echnology,

« Implementing the appairtment, dismissal, signing ard termination: of contracts with the
General Disector and key managers of the Company

¢ Supervising and directing the General Director and other managers.

« Making decizions on organizational structure of the Company

« Establishing committées under the Board of Directars.

+ Appointing ar dismissing the Company Secrelary

« Appraving documents aninternal managerment (and the Corporate Governancs Codea)

," MONITORING, DISCLOSING INFORMATION AND ENSURING
“7 TRANSPARENCY

« Subrmitting annual reped, linancial staterments 1o the General Meeting of Shareholders.

¢ Making and subrmitting proposals through inancial staterments, managerment reports, audit
reports (and corporate governance reports) iothe General Meeating of Sharshalders

v Developing internal contral and risk management mechanisms.

(3 INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

« Advsing the General Meeting of Shareholders on dividerd pavrment, deadlines and procedures
for dividend payment.

- Resolving conflicts in the Cormpany
o Drganizing the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

« Drcanizing the collection of sharehalders” apinians for the Ganeral Meeting of Shareholders’
appraval
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|4 ' CHARTER CAPITAL AND ASSETS
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« Proposing classes of shares and tolal number of each class te be offered for sale

+ Maxing decksions an the issuance of new shares within the limit number of each-class that

can be affered far sale

= Making decisions on raising additional capital in other foams.

= Mamingdecisions on the offering prnce of the Carmpany's shares and bonds

EVALUATING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE RESOLUTIONS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024 AND THE PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS

PLAN IN 2024

« Thie Baard of Directars directs the Baand of Directors

1o impbement the Resolubions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directars,
specifically such az reviewing and implementing
the business plan in 2024, prepare a business plan
for 2025 o submit 1o the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders in 2025 continue o update and
upgrade the compary’s governance syslem o
imnprove laber productivity, control product quality
and increase profits, review production conditions
such Bz factories, warehouszes, fire protechion
gyslems,  waslewaler (reatmsen! systems el
ensufe that they are rencvated and repaired to meel
current regulations; pay cash dividerds in 2024 to
shareholders, direct the implernentation.of the plan

lo offer bonds to the public in 2024, strengthen
the bord of inlerest betwesn emplovess ard the
Company, usinig capital mobidized from the issuance
of bonds to the public In the vear in accordance
with regulaticns, propise a plan (o raize capital 1©
increaze caplial sowrces for the Company's business
activities and other tasks for business deseloprment
associaled with operational safety.

+ The Company has successfully implemented the

plan ta issue bonds to the public according to the
Cestificate of Registration for Public Offering -of
Bonds Mo, T62/GCN-AUBCK isswed by the S50 on
Cotober 29, 2024, The amaunt mobilized fram bands
ig 400000000000 VRO

ASSESSMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE ACCORDING TO
THE LAWS

Regulations

The Comparny has General
Diréctor who s -a family
member of the enterprise
manager, not comiplying with
Itern b Account & Article 162
of the Law on Enterprizes
20200

Reason for not complying
with tha law

The Campary has  nol
vel found s person with
ercugh  capabilities and
gualifications 1o undertake
the positen of General
Crirector.

Solutions

THG has submitted an official letter to the
Departrment of Planning and Investment of
Thai Mguyen Province to-ask for suspending
i taking corrective action far the violation as
deseribed in Decision Mo, YS/00-XPVYPHC
dated Decernber 26, 2024 until the end of the
term of Mr. Mguven Duc Manh, on May 17,
20258, 1o be suitable 1o the actual situation at
the Cormpary.
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_ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(cont.)

BOD'S 2025 ORIENTATION

2025 BUSINESS GOALS LONG-TERM SALES

BY 2026

Total revenue

usD

5@@ uso L Bflliem

© million

v 2031

Total revenue

100%

COMPLETING OBLIGATIONS
TO THE STATE BUDGET

PROFIT AFTER TAX 2025 MINIMUM DIVIDEND RATE
VND

billion

TO ACHIEVE THE ABOVE GOAL, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAS PROPOSED
SPECIFIC GOVERNANCE SOLUTIONS AS FOLLOWS

" _ . . . )
The Board of Directors regularly supervises The Audit Committee and Sustainable 3 The Development Policy and Human 4 The in-charge EIJl:IIE-ﬂI'I'I.I'I'Il[lE'E' and mE, Board
the Board of Management to ensure the Develapment Subcommittee strengthened HEE'}WE:EE ...ul:lc-:::nmlttees- E“EU_IE_ ,1,hp' F'{ Management conlinue encouraging _a'"
implementation of those goals, plans - audit meetings and programs to monitor . |:-1:|m|:|ll=..u|:|n .c-l' 2024 TE'-SFIZIIIEIbl.lﬁ.IEE ln'lema}land Externelll_-l:llep.arlments a.nd umifs
and resolilions decided by the Ganeeal and repart o the Board of Diractars on the and orientation of each -5u_|:|c-.'.lmm|ttl=_e. Elﬂ-E'I'IIETSEEI'I-'I:||:|:||1:IllI'III:I.EI:I".’E'E‘t{lC'.'..II'I-.tII'HJDIJEl]'
Meeting of Sharsholders. |mplarnentation of annual goals and plins. F.tec-mmendau-:m an-ddete:!u:rns..hu-u[dhe develop and improve the .F'..ﬂ-ll:!IEI'IE]' of
5 timely reported to the Board of Dlreutc-ri._f, governance and labor productity.




. REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pleage refer to the information in Subocommitiess
under BOD as set aut in page 166

MEETINGS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Please refer to the infarmation in Subeommitiees
unger BOD a5 52l oul in pags 166,

AUDIT COMMITTEE'S SUPERVISION TO BOD, BOM AND SHAREHOLDERS

+ Receiving and reviewing the independent Auditor's
Repart at least annually,

¢ Discussing the quarterdy and annual linancial
statements with BOM and independent auditars

¢« Discussing the press release of the Company's
profits and financial information and guiding the
understanding of profit figures for the analysis and
raling agencias.

¢ Using legal, accaunting or other external consulting
services if necessary

¢« Discussing policies o risk  assessment  and
management

< Weekly, maonthly, and quarterly meetings with BOM,
Irternal Auditors amd Independent Auditors

« Conducting  self-assessment of  the annual
perfarmance of the Audit Cormmittee

« Conducting sell-assessment  of  information
dizclosure  results  according  te Circular Mo
06/2020/TT-BTC daled Navember 16 2020 of
the Ministry of Finance on guidance on disclosing
inferrmation in the securities rmarket.

= Audil Cammifles direcis Intarmal Audit Degartment
Lo conduct audit For 2 projects.

COOPERATIONBETWEENAUDITCOMMITTEEANDEOD,BOMANDSHAREHOLDERS

I 2024, sudit Cormmitles received close caardination
and favorable conditions to perfarm 1S supervisary
tasks from the Board of Directors, the Gereral
Directar and the Company's leaders by belng provided
with camplete and accurate information, reparts

goverrance, business activities and inancial situation.
Chiefl Internal Auditer has unlimited access and direct
communicaticn with the Audit Committes, inclueding
private meetings with the Audit Committee without
the presence of BOM or General Directar.

CHAPTER Il - REFORT OM PERFORMANCE IM THE YEAR

ASSESSMENT RESULTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

¢ Interral awdit and risk management have assessed the Assesting employes record management and
implermentatian af comprehensive processes aoross filireg process,

all aspects of the Compary's operations. . Assessing shultle bus expense  management

process and fuel allwances

+ Ir 2024, Interral Audit Deparirment conducted 12 audits
at departments and lzelonias in e areas of machinery
and equipment managermant, requialions oo managirg
emploves records and filing, managing shuttle bus
pxpanse and fuel allewances, managing Ninishad
product irvenibory, settlermenl proocess ard VAT refund
for Imported goods, ela

o addition, in 2024, Audit Commitlee audited 2
investment projects Le. Viel Thal Factory construction
iestment project (Son Carn) and THNG Phu Bind

Faciiony expansion projest

RESULTS OF ASSESSMENT ON BOD, GENERAL DIRECTOR (DIRECTOR) AND
OTHER EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY

. Agsessing the procedure 1o build business and
production plan fer the whole Compary in 2024

 Aszeszing the performance of the Council of
capital and assel meenlary anually;

» Aszessing the procedure of organiong the 20024
GRAS i lire waith the Cormpany's Charler and the
Law on Enterprse 2000,

s Bssessing the Company's fixed sssel purchase
irvestrment pracess in 2024

»  Aszessing rmachireny and equipment managernent
and ratation process within the Comparty,

« BOD, GD and other executves have run the Company’s
operalions in accardance with the abjectves set by the
General Meeling of Shareholders. Tha Audit Commitiee
has nal recorded any wialations against the regulations
an the responsbilities and obligations of business ex-

¢+ BOD and GO have pmpkemented a number of contents

recerded in the Resolutions of GMS and BOD. The e
plernientation results of the contents approved in the
resolutians of GMS are fully reparted by BOG

+ BOM has monitared daily production and business ac-

i Livities throwgh ERP system

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The supsrvision and inspection result of the Audit Commuttee shows that BOD and BOM have implemented and
eiforced the spirt of the Resolutions of the 2024 GME, the Company’s govermance reguiations, and the Company's
Charter, based on the interests of the Company ard Sharehalders,

To cantinuously promate and-successfully comsplete the 2025 1argel s, as well a2 mereasmg publiciy and ransparency,
lirmitireg errars ard risks in operating the Compary's productian and business: activities, the Audit Committes

and documents refated o the Campany’s corporate

REPORT ON TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY, ITS SUBSIDIARIES,
ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY THE PUBLIC COMPANY (HOLDING 50% OR MORE
OF CHARTER CAPITAL) AND BOD MEMBERS, GENERAL DIRECTOR (DIRECTOR),
OTHER EXECUTIVES AND THEIR RELATED PERSONS; TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN
THE COMPANY AND COMPAMNIES IN WHICH BOD MEMBERS, GENERAL DIRECTOR
(DIRECTOR), OR OTHER EXECUTIVES ARE FOUNDERS OR BUSINESS MANAGERS

WITHIN THE LAST 03 YEARS PRIOR TO THE TRANSACTION.

The Campany has announced these transactions in
e 2024 Corporate Governance Report dated January
24, 2025 and the audited 2024 Financial Staterments.
Main contents of the transactions are related (o
provision of services, sales, and capital reduction.

154

The transactians hayve been announced and appraved
in accordance with the provisions of law and the
Company's Charter, For more delails, please rafer

o the 2024 Corporate Gavernance Reporl and the

sudited 2024 Financial Statements of the Company.

recormrmends BOG ard B0 the following contents

» Slrengthening the supervision of compliance with
legal regudetions and the Campany’s Charter as well
as the implemeantation af Resolutions of GMS and
8o,

+ Comtinuing (o mpkerment and. cantral the Compa
ry's operations and business management.

+ Blaintaming the reveew and appraisal of the Compa-
riy’s linanckal statements, the coordination beleeen
BO0, BOM and BOS of the Comparny.

« Continuing 1o foster human resource raining and
development, bullding an appropriate labes policy

and human rescurce ratatian which 15 sultable 1a
the current situation and the gevelopment needs of
the Campany,

« Maintaining the operation of Intemal Audit Commit-
teean the principles of fisk managemsant
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEMBERS AND STRUCTURE

I 2024, THG pazsaed & plan to increase the number af members of the BOOD from 5 to 7, with the BOD strustiure
ponsisting of; 07 Chairman of the BOD, 07 Depuly Chairwoeman af the BOD, arnd 06 800 members, including 02

independent BOD members. Getaided information of B00 members for 2024 15 as follows:

NUMBER OF

POSITION SHARES OWNED

Before 2024 Annual General meeting of shareholders (April 21, 2024)

1

Nguyen Van Thoi

Luong Thi Thuy Ha

Mguyen Duc Manh

Mguyen Banh Linh

Nguyen Hoang Giang

Total

Chairman of BOD 22713927
Depuly Chainwaman of BOD BB, 747
BOO membier 10825267
BCD rremiber Fa07G
BOD rmsamber

35,067 050

After 2024 Annual General meeting of shareholders (April 21, 2024)

T

3

b

Mouyen Yan Thaoi

Luong Thi Thuy Ha

Mguyen Duc Manh

Mguyen Manh Linh

Nguyen Hoang Giang

Doan Thi Thu

Ha Thi Tuyet

Total

BOD member authorized for information disclosura

1

Aceording 1o the st of shareholders No. CO1 272025 TNGAVEDC-DE slosed on January 14, 2025 by Vielnam Secunbies

Dao Duc Thanh

Chairman of BOG 22713922
Deputy Chainwarman of BDD B8, 77
BOD rmember 1008252617
BOD member 19,076
BOD member
BOD member 327,832
BOD member

35,388 882

Depasifon and Cleanng Carporaiion

158

RATE (%)

T8.53%

0.66%

B.B3%

0.59%

28.60%

18.53%

0.66%

B.H3%

0.59%

0.26%

28.87%

DA%

Morresenutive
BOD rwermbe

Mor-execulive
BODO rrwerrbe

Indapendent
BOD rrwrrsbes

Mon-execulive
BODO mermber

Mor-executive
BOD mermiber

Independent
BOD mermbes

Independent
BOD mermber

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

POSITIONS AT OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

Mguyen Van Thoi

Luong Thi Thuy Ha

Hguyen Duc Manh

Mguyen Manh Linh

Hguyen Hoang Giang

Doan Thi Thu

Ha Thi Tuyet

POSITION

Chainrman af BOD

Depuly
Chalrwesrian of
BOD

BOD mermber

BOD rmember

B0 mernbar

BOD membe

BOD mermber

7

POSITIONS
AT OTHER

ORGANIZATHONS

Chairman af BOD

BOD member

General Director

Chairman af BOD
Deputy Chairman
af BOO

BOD member

Direcior

= Q
!

OTHER
ORGANIZATIONS

THG Lard Joinl

THG Larnd Joint

Stock Cempany Agsotiale

THG Lard Joint : :
Stk Compay AssociEla
DMEE Secutilies
Jomnt Stock
Carmpany (INSE)
YeanT Group
Carporation (YEG)
Soulhem Gas
Trading Joint Stock
Carmpany [PES)

4.0 Legal Service
and Law Co., Lid

(R

Anmunl Repon 2024 159



CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

& & _BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)

MANAGEMENT POSITIONS APPOINTED BY BOD IN 2024 BOD'S ACTIVITIES IN 2024

Mr. DAO DUC THANH Mrs. LUONG THI THUY HA IN 2024, BOD CONDUCTED 7 MEETINGS WITH 38 RESOLUTIONS
B —— AND DECISIONS TO RESOLVE ISSUES WITHIN ITS FUNCTIONS

 oedons e Persn 1 charge of copote e s epity Charwern of 800 AND AUTHORITY. THE BOD MEETINGS ALWAYS REACHED HIGH
« Current title: Authorized Person for Information + Current title: Deputy Chalrwoman of BOD CONSENSUS IN THE DISCUSSED CONTENTS.

Disclosure/Person in charge of coporale * Pursuant to: The Resolution Ma. BE/NQ-HDOT

GUVErnance dated March 11, 2024
« Pursuant to: The Resalulion Ma. BE/MO-HDOT - Effective date: March 17, 2024

I-I.H.IL.“.J Mar{:r" 1].2']2"1 ™™™ ™™™ ™S S Sm ™ mSmSm™ ™ mmi™ e ™™ e eme™ s e Sem i m
+ Effective date: March 17, 2024 T T T T T T

NUMBER OF

\H
Mrs. HA THI TUYET . POSITION ATTENDED  /TTEMDANCE o crncE REASON
................................. MEETINGS RATE
- Previous title: Mone -
Mrs. DOAN THI THU « Curmrent title: Independent BOD member 1 Mguyen Van Thoi ::;:;rmm of T 100%
rs. « Pursuant to: The Rezalution Moo 190,20244 Deputy
: o - oot NO-DHOCD dated Agril 21, 2024 ep
Previous title: Depuly General Director - : i, 2 Luong Thi Thuy Ha Chairwoman. of 2629 100%
« Gurrent title: BOD member! Depuly General Effective date: Anril 27, BOD
- Pursuant to: The Resolution Mo, 190/2024/MN0- 3 Nguyen Duc Man BOD member 23449 100%
DHDCD dated April 21, 2024 Mr. PHAM THANH TUAN
© Effective date: April 27, 2024 - Previous tithe: Deputy General Direatar 4 Nguyen Manh Linh BOD member 2949 100%
« Cument title: Eranch Direstar
- Pursuant to: The Resolution Mo 326/MN0- 5 Nguyen Hoang Giang BOD member = 100
HOGT dated June 12, 2024 .
i Appointed an Aol 27,
i EHEGH‘H'-H ﬂﬂ': June 12, 2024 ] Doan TI'II T'ILI BOD I'I'IEmIJI!'F 43."..-;3 1005 2024
P I S e s e e e B ¢ HaThiT : BOD member 5919 1005 leilﬁll]i?l!l’:;ﬂu;rljl Apdl 21,
O WO OIS CO0 EeONG THU 0N SIEM MAR 757

DIRECTORS IN 2024

1 11/NQ-HDOT DA/0120z4  Pestltion on approing the 2nd payrmient in sdvance of 5/5
2023 dividerd in cash

7 14/NQ-HBQT DE/01/2024 Resolution on the dssciution of THIG Yert Binh Golf 515

' Compearny Limited

] &0/NQ-HDOT o1/onensg  Resolution on sgning contracts and rangactions with £/5
ralaled paries

4 68/NQ-HBQT 20/02/2024  Resclution on the erganization of the 2024 Annual Gereral E(5
Meeting of Sharehalders

2024 Annual General Mealing of Sharhalder

160 sl Regort 3024 161



1%-_BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)

RESOLUTIONS AND DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS IN 2024 (cont.)

B

fi

7

9

14

12

13

T4

16

16

17

18

19

162

BE/NQ-HEQT

04.03/NQ-HBOT

1004.01/NQ-HEOT

100402/ NQ-HBQT

195/NO-HBOT

199/NQ-HBOT

263/NQ-HBOT

1106.01/NG-HBOT

1106.03 NQ-HBQT

J26/NO-HBOT

J54/NO-HBOT

356/NQ-HDQT

455/NQ-HBOQT

458/NG-HBOQT

459/NQ-HBQT

11032024

E/04r2024

100442024

1002024

230472024

240472024

23052024

110672024

11/06F2024

T2/ 2024

19/06 2024

T/ 06 2024

20/07/2024

3070772034

0072024

CONTENT

Resalulion an changing the authonzed persan o discoss
inforrmation

Resoluticn on raminating and spproving candidates far
addiional election of BOD members (in the term 2024-
203

Resalulion anamending arnd supplementing Resoluton
Mo, 26712/ NFHEGT dated Decermber 26, 2023

Resodution on approving the apphication for bond pubhc
affering

Resmlution an e estsblishrment of committass and subr
carmmilless uncer BOC

Resodution anthe implementation of the plan on share
issuanee for dividend payroent

Resofution an the temporary suspension of the
application for bord public offering

Resolution onapproving (e full fext of bord public
affering plan

Resolution on approving the application for bond pubhe
affering

Resolution anthe dismissal of Deputy General Cirecios

Resalution on sellingransferring shares 1o reduce
awrership ratic st Bac Thai Constructan Trading
Ireestrment JSC

Resadution on selecting an auditing unit o review the
financial staterments for the G-rronth penod ending June
30, 20224

Resolution an incréasing charter capital and the 37
amended Charter af the Cormgpany

Resalution an approving the sigring of credit lirmt contract
al BICA - Thai Mguyen Srareh

Resolution anapproving kans and opening letters af
credil al Wielinbank - Thar Maguyen Branch

VOTING
RATE

e

B/h

T

)

L

A

o

EEEd

7

L

FLEd

tiE

717

20

21

22

23

25

26

27

28

24

30

31

32

=d

2

a5

il

a7

=8

A70/NO-HEQT

482/NQ-HBQT

1908.01/NQ-HEQT

1908.02/NQ-HBQT

S46/NQ-HEBOT

S5Z/NQ-HDOT

607/ NQ-HBOT

632/ NQ-HEOT

654/ NQ-HBOT

6568/NQ-HBOQT

TO/NQ-HBOT

T20A/NQ-HBOT

TZ0B/NQ-HBQT

730/NQ-HEQT

740A/NQ-HBQT

T40B/NQ-HEBOQT

TBI/NQ-HDOT

B23A/NO-HBOT

B25B/NO-HDBOT

V0202

D5/ CE 2024

19/08,/2024

19/ 0872029

26/08/20:29

ZF0Ey 2024

2670972029

30709720249

111042024

F20107 2024

D1 172024

15/171/2024

18/ 172024

261 1/20249

271242024

02412423024

171202024

30712002

0127029

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

CONTENT

Resalution on sxning cartracts and transactions with
related parties

Resalution on appravirsg the 19 paymment in advance of
20024 dividersd in cashy

Resalution on arrerding and supplemanting Resaluticn
Mo, 1106.07/MNO-HEOT dated Juna 11, 2024

Resolution on approviry application for bond public
pffering, TMGHZ2422007 Band

Resolution o the establishrment of LAE Branch (THG
Testing Center) - THG Irvestrrent and Trading JE5C

Resolition on skning cortracts and transactions with
related parties

Resalution on approving e sion credit agreement amd

agreerment of property morlgage, agresment of property
and aszet nght mortgage at BIDVY — Thai Mguyer Branch

Resolution on terminating agresment in principhe for
transferring the entire THG Yillage Project

Resaluticn on signing creditaan agreement with
Yielinbark - Thai Mguyen Branch

Resalution on approvarg the 20 payrment in advance of
2024 dividerd in cash

Resaluticn on approving loans at Vietnarm - Russa Jonl
“Weriture Bank (VEB]

Resalution on building developrment plan ard strategy
urdil 2030 for the Compary

Resalution on apprawing loans far project implermentatian
and aszet mortgage at Vietinbank - Thai Nguyen Branch

Resalution on the result of public affenng of
THGH2428007 Bord

Resalution on appraving Lransactions between The
Compary and related parties

Resoludion en finalizing e list of Bond Owrers 1o registe
seourities al VSDC ard register for listing at HRX

Resalution on eontributing capital w an affiliate within
the scope of capital contribution coremitiment as
establizhment 1o dissolve THG Yen Bink Golf Company
Lirnited

Resalution on approvirg the 27 payrment mcadvance of
2024 dividerd in cash

Resalution on changing the address of viet Duc Garrmeant
Branch

Ayl Reprort 20024
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. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)

ROLES AND PERFORMANCE OF BOD MEMBERS IN 2024

Mr. NGUYEMN DUC MANH
1 BOD Mermber curm
General Careclar

Mrs. LUDNG THI THUY HA
. Deputy Chairworman of BOD
Dapaity Gerersl Direolor

Krs. DOAN THI THU
3 BOC Member
Deputy General Director

164

RESPOMSIBILITIES

= Perforrming the duties as a BOD member as stipulated in the Charter

andd internal requiations on corperate governance,

Perferming the duties as Gereral Direclor as stipulated in the
Company's Charter, the Law on Enterprises, the relevant legal
regulations and internal regulations on corporale govermance,

¢« Drectly executing business and productian activities of the Cormpany

iry lire with the goals and plans as approved by GMS and organizing
the implementation of resolutions and decisions ol he GME,

In charge of business and producticn plan, lechnaical issues, ensunng
praduction qually, taking responsibility to the law, GMES and 200D
aboiut the rights and cbligations o be assigred;

¢ Other nghts and duties as prescribed by law, the Company’s Chartes

and the BOD's degisions

Parforrming the duties as a BOD member ag stipulated in the Charter
and internal regulations on corporate governanos,

Assisting the BCD in rmanitonng, supervising and summarzing the
impementation of the acthities refated to human resources, salary,
accountng and finanos;

+ Dther rights and duties as prescribed by faw, the Company’s Charter

and the BOD's decisians

+ Performing the duties as a BOD member as stipulated in the Charter

ardd internal regulations on corporate gosermance,

Assisting the BOD in monitonng, supervising and summarzing the
impfermentation of the zotivities related o engineering, product guakity,

« Other rights and duties as prescribed by law, the Company’s Charter

and the BOD's decisians

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

ROLES AND ACTIVITIES OF NON-EXECUTIVE BOD MEMBERS
AND INDEPENDENT BOD MEMBERS IN 2023

Mr. NGUYEN WAN THOI

1 Marraxaculive Chairman af tha

BOD

Mr. NGUYEMN MANH LINH
Marreseculive BOD member

Mrs. HA THI TUYET
Independent member of BOD

Mr. NGUYEM HOAMG GIAMG
Independent member of BOD

RESPOMSIBILITIES

« Taking the general responsibilities; directing the implementation of

rights and abligations of BOD as stipulated in the Law on Enterprises,
the Campany's Charter and the relevant legal regulations;

Making operation plans of BOD, appraving and supervising the
implernentatian of BOD'S rescdutions and decisians,

Directing resaarch long-term development strategies and projscts;
Being the Carmpany’s legal representative;

¢ Dther rights and duties as presonbed by law, the Camgany's Charter

and the BOD's decisians.

¢ Performang the duties asa BOD member ag stipdlated in the Chaner

and intermal regulations on carporate gavermanoe,

= Assisting the BOD in monibaring, sdperasing and summarizing the

implerrentation of the activities related to property, investrment and
innovation for the whole Campary,

¢ Other nghils and duties as prescribed by law, the Carmpany’s Charter

ard the BOD's decisians.,

¢ Performing the duties as a BOD membssr as stipulated in the Charter

ard imternal regulations on carporake gQovernanoe,

¢ Agsisting the BOD 0 monitanng, supervising and summarizing the

imphementation of the actilies related ko,

¢ her nghts and duties as prescribed by [aw, the Company’s Charter

arel the BOD's decisions,

+ Performing the dutles a3 a BOD membser as stipulated in the Charter

and intermnal regulations on carporate governance;

o Aszisting the BOD in monitorng, supervising and summarizing the

implementation of the activities related 1o risk management and
internal auwdit

« Diher rights and duties as prescribed by law, the Company’s Charter

ard the BOD's desisians:

Arnunl Report 2024 165



/. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)

ASSESSMENT OF INDEPENDENT BOD MEMBERS ON BOD
MEMBERS

BOD coordinates with Internal
Audit Committee and performance
management agency in the whole
process of risk govermance and
control.

Members fully understand
their jobs and proactively
implerment their jobs,

Comply with regulations of the
Laws, the Companys charter,
regulations on operation of BOD.

Build clear, specific and
transparent strategy.

cONG TY CO PHAN DAU TU VA THUONG MAI TNG

PAI HOI DONG CO DONG THUGNG NIEN NAM 2024

2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Tivai pégrerydivi, ngidy 21 thing 4 ndm 2024

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

GENERAL ASSESSMENT

IN 2024, BOM AND MANAGERS EXCELLENTLY COMPLETED THE TASKS
AND EXCEEDED THE TARGETS ASSIGNED BY GMS, CONTINUING TO KEEP
THE BELIEF IN STRONG DEVELOPMENT WITH ALL STAKEHOLDERS.

BOD HIGHLY APPRECIATES THE EFFORTS AND DETERMINATION OF THE
BOM IN ENSURING CONTINUOUS AND STABLE PRODUCTION, ENSURING
HEALTH AND SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES AND RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS.

AT THE SAME TIME, THE BOD HIGHLY APFPRECIATES THE COMPLIANCE
WITH THE REGULATIONS AND STIPULATIONS IN GOVERNAMNCE AND
DECENTRALIZATION ACCORDING TO THE THE COMPANY'S CHARTER,
GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS AND INTERMNAL REGULATIONS AS WELL
AS THE BOD'S RESOLUTIONS. THERE ARE NO VIOLATIONS AGAINST THE
PROVISIONS OF THE LAW ON LABOR SAFETY AND HUMAN RIGHTS, NO
CHILD LABORAND FORCELABOR,NOVIOLATIONS AGAINST REGULATIONS
AND FINES FOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES.

LIST OF BOD MEMBERS HOLDING CERTIFICATES IN
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Most BOD members, BOM, person in charge of corporate governance, secretary,
and authorized person for information disclosure have completed training courses
on corporate governance and will continue to fully attend training courses on
corporateé governance in line with the legal requlations of the authorities.

In September 2024, JMD Vikn U bl
+ Wir=. Doan Thi Thu

+ hirs. Ha Thi Tuyet

Person in charge of corparate govermance
+ Wi Dao Duc Thanh

conpleted the 28th Director Certification Program
(DCP2B) organized by the Vietnam Institute of
Directors (WitD)




~{{_ SUBCOMMITTEES UNDER BOD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Standards of membership: Mon-executive independent BCD mermbers make up the majonity in Sodit. Cormmittees.
Ore af thern iz appdinted as Chairman of Audit Committee. AU least 07 rmember of Aodit Committes is an expert in
financial accounting and does not weck for the accounting/finance department of the Compary:

PERSONNEL STRUCTURE

Before April 21, 2024

¥ ; E s R R e

;
5’
#

-

« MEMBER FOSITHOM !

tir. Mguyen Hoang Giang Chairrmary :

{

kir. Mguyen Manh Linh Rerribed :
BEENERERER

8

e A

g
b

e e o

|

o ™ e

Making a proposal or drafting a proposat 1o
submit to BOD regarding the appoiniment,
re-appontment or dismissal of Internal Audit
members

+ Giving comment an candigates for the position

of Independent Auditers.

+ Giving cormament on the drafl cantract 1o be

signed with the independent audit member

Manitoring: the application of  accounting
standards . in e preparation  of financeal
staterments,

%..

i e

i S R R e

+ Assessing the accuracy and completeness of

After April 21, 2024

T e T

financial information prier 1o disclosure.

+ Assessing theindependence af the Indeperident

Sicitor

- Supervising Intermal Audit and Independent

Sudit furnctions.

+ Reviewing the conditions thal may lead 1o

the dismissal of the Independent Auditar, and
pIopasing opirkens in such cases,

« Parforming other tasks refated to the aodit

function in the Company as assigned by the
Board of Direclars.

e T M A S e e B i O

MEMBER POSITION "ﬁl

kAr Mguyen Hoang Giang Chairman |

111 Nguyen Manh Linh harmbes |

|

KArs Ha Thi Tuyet hdembers j
HBEAREEEN

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

MEETINGS ORGANIZED IN 2024

MEETIMNG
s TIME
1 11/03/2024
4 DB/OA/2024

3 19/06/2024

4 21/10/2024

MEETING CONTENTS

Feviewing the financtal staterments for the 4" guarter of 2023 and the consclidated finan-
cial statermenis for the fiscal vear ended 2023

= Reviewing and assessing the business plan for 2024 submitted by the BOR.

Buiiding inmemal awdit plan and independent acdit plan for the Niscal year ending 2024

Feviewing the firancial statements Tor the first quarler of 2024, Analvemg and assessing
financial indicators and business performance as described in the audited 2023 Ninancial
staternents.

= Reviewing persannel plan and preparing materials for the 2024 Annual General Meeting af

Sharenodder s,
Preparing report of Budit Teamin the 2024 Anrual General Meeting of Shareholders,

Reviewing business results of the first quarter of 2024 and pragress momplementing the
production and business targels as of May 2024

Reviewing the Compary's imformation disclosure for the first 5 months of 2024,
Preparing the contents inintenm corporate govemanases report 2024

Proposing the auditar o review the 2024 interim financial statements and audit the 2024
financial slatements.

Feviewing the financial statements Tor the 3rd quarter of 2024

Checking outstanding debts and low irventory tumcver o make financial provision for
2024

Reviewing the business performance in @ months as planned by the 2024 Annusl General
Meeting of Sharsholders. Reviewing business plan for 2025




CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

1% SUBCOMMITTEES UNDER BOD (cont.)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (cont.)

ND. TRAINING PROGRAMS PARTICIPATED BY THNG AUDIT
" COMMITTEE IN 2024

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024 Aftending “Training program on  enhencernent of good

cofporate governance according to international practices © M. Dao Due Thanh - Head of Internal Audit
1 on sustemable developement” whach was organized an

PARTICIPANTS

. hiarch 22-23, 2024 by Vietnam Chamber of Commerce and « pArs. Nguyen Le Thuy — Mermber of Intermal Sudi
Industry - WCOI
.| T D Aatending “Training program to prevent legal risks in labar
; redations of enterpnses” which was ongamzed on e 13, . W ) .

: Ouring the year, the Audit Committee has proposed to sign contract of avdil services for , 2 annd by Vietnam Chamber of Commerce and Industry - Mrs. Nguyen Le Thuy - Mernber of Internal Audit
b= financial staterments and project investrment capital with the independent auditors such as ) L |

Delaitte Mietnam for auditing irterim financial statements/final financial staterments, A58 _

for auditing capital settherment repart of THG Pha Binh Plant expansion proyeet, and THG Sen Attending the program 'Z'Fﬁ Letor U:'dﬁ in Garment Industry

Cam 1 Plant project. , | whach was organized on Seplember 12, 2024 by BetterWaork « Mrs. Nguyen Le Thuy — Mermber of intermal Audit

. Vietnam

Audit Camimities has inspected the implementation af information dischasure obligations
for public campanies and évaluated the implementation of production and business plans
sccording ta the goals 2et at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharehalders

Attending training program of “Improyving processes, policies
4 Bcontrol systems inthe enterprizes” which wes organized = &r. Dao Due Thanh - Head of Intemal Audit
an Mevember 06, 2024 by Deloitte Viatnam

Audit Committee has conducted intermal audits on a thematic basis, evaluated the ' fatending  the Workshop on “IFRE 15 Ravenue from
implemeniation of processes in depariments within the Company, made recarmmendations , L Contracts with Customess and IFRS 16; Leases” which was * Wr. Dao Due Thanh - Head of Interral Audit
for appropriale process mmproverment and enbianced ocperational efficiency. ! organized on Octobar 16, 2024 by Deloitte Vietnam

e e Invitation tc dstend Online Warkshop: Minimizing fsks upon

preparing Custorns  settlement reports theough effective
imventory management methods which was orgenisd on
hdrch 14, 2024 by Daloitte Viatnam

}r. Dao Duc Thanh - Head of Internal Audit

» W5 Mguyen Thuy Ngan - Deputy Head of

artending the trairemg program of Motes oo implementin
g nd LT P A 9 nternal Audit

¥ e policies-and mensmezing risks which was arganized on

hiay 21, 2024 by Wiet Tex Consultanis’ As t
o R Ra R I e e « Krs. Nguyen Le Thuy — Member of intermal Audit

Trasnang prograrn an Infermation Disclosure and Corporate
a Governance on the stock market which was organized on « &r. Dao Doe Thanh - Head of Intermal Audit
June 21, 2024 by Hanol Stock Exchangs

Trasang program on Labor Code! Waeges and Social
insurance in 2024 whach wes presented on Ooiober 29, 2024
by Or. Do Mgan Binh - Deputy Mansger of Law Conswdtant
Center - Hanoi Law Lintveraity

« Mrs. Nguyen Le Thuy — Member of Internal Ausdit

Aftending the 28" Director Certification Pragram
10 (DCP2E) which was organized on Septermbser 19-21, + W Dao Due Thanh - Head of intermal Audit
2024 by the Vietnarm Institute of Dwectars (VIQD)

ORIENTATIONS FOR 2025

@ Salent independent audit units for 2025 financial statemeanis.

Continie to suparviss financial statements and Intermal audit contral and gk management systems,
internal awdil

Participate if constructing the Company's - devalopment strategy in 2023 — 2028 period, especially
completing internal controd and aodit systems and risk governancs:

@ Suparvise cormplance with provisions of the laws and intermal regulations.
(4)

Arinudl Beoort 3024 107




CHAPTER IV = CORPORATE GOVERMAMCE
~ 1 SUBCOMMITTEES UNDER BOD (cont.)

HUMAN RESOURCES - REMUNERATION -
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Standards of membership: Incependant BOD members make up the majonly in Human Resources - Compensation
Cormmitles: One of them i appoinied as Chairman of HE Carmmittas. Members of Human Resources Cammitios
are familiar with the basic principles of business ethics, management, Law on Enterpnses, Labar Code and olher

applicable regulalions

PERSONNEL STRUCTURE

MEETINGS ORGANIZED IN 2024

HO, MEETIMG TIME MEETING CONTEMTS
% Before April 21, 2024 % After April 21, 2024
| O . i 22 O L e e o S S R S e _
POS MEMEER POSITION | - Reporting human resource perfarmance in 2023 and plan in 2024, Developing
E' _ i b . ; : ! izl the procedures for normination of BOD members.
! Ms Luong ThiThuy Ha  Chaimworman | = Wirs. Ha Thi Tuyet Chairwaman |
[ ! § I 2 19/04/2024 * Propagsing the remuneration for 800, members of Sub-Commitlee, BOD's
:. hr. Mguyen Duc Manh Merriber { | 5. Luong Thi Thuy Ha Mesmber i secretary and members sgsisting the 80D in 2024,
! ;
¢ hr. Mguyen Van Duc Nermbier { Wi Nguyen Hoang Giang  Mernber 4 shitieraiizg + Making quarterly repart on human resource perfarmance; Developing annual
B e b e A R o T e e e e e e e trairung plan and Sueceessian prodram.
AERNENAEN BEREEEAEN
s 4 27/09/2024 ¢ Cansidering consolidation of personnel for the vacant positons.
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024
. RESPONSIBILITIES
e e R e e e S S e e = e

) - Advizing proposals an the appoiniment of
BOD members and BOM members.

¢ Selting aul qualification and capability criteria
for BOD members and BOM meambers.

i

: + Drafting or reviesing drafl procedures for
. appairtrment of BOD members and BOM
; mermbers

i Pernpdically (at beast twice a yvear) evaluating
. scale and companent of BOD and BOM

and  appaintment  conditions making
recommendations  regarding necessary
changes to be submitted to GMS in the next
general meefing.

« Directing the preparation of the Tompany's

labar regulatiars,

= Perfarming  other duties refated 1o the

Coenpary's  haman  fesource  palicy. as
assigned by the Board of Directors.

+ Develap recruitment strategy to attract laborers !
+ Consult to develop highly-skilked human resources.

autornatic evaluation syslem based on software of each individual,

+ Build ermployes rmotivation maechanisms and policies through Bonds mechanism or rewands
for inrayation, ale

e T N s

i
! |
.?: © Bupervise implementation of evaluating emplovee skills and compelencies and pulting in '

-,
o S

ORIENTATIONS FOR 2025

Build training progrars in 2025,

Propose, advise BOD on salary, bonus and remuneration palicies.

@ Complete developrment of human resource and Sanior managers.

Particlpate in construation of the Company's development strategies in 2023-2028 penod, especizlly
| development strategy of human resource and senior managers i the mid and long-term period under
autharly of BOD,

Adwviss BOD on annual and mid-term dividenids:

Aqmunl Fepon 024 173
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i
g, ¥

~“£ . SUBCOMMITTEES UNDER BOD (cont.)

DEVELOPMENT POLICY SUBCOMMITTEE

Standards of membership: Having experience in the Company’s operating Nelds,

MEETINGS ORGANIZED IN 2024
PERSONNEL STRUCTURE

. NO, MEETIMG TIME MEETIMG CONTENTS
% Befare April 21, 2024 % fer-os o ff"“' AP"“ 21 1‘_‘%"_ e 1 07/03/2024 + Rewviewing and reporting the implementation of the 2023,
B o s i o il 4 Uit oy ~
b MEMBER POSITION | c MEMEER POSITION - Revtewing and reparting the implemantation of the strateqy for the first
poe L : | 2 18/04/2024 guarter of 2024, Advising the BOD-on the 2023 dividend payment rale and
T L K | -
b M. Mguyen Duc Manh Ghalrian ¢ PSSR Man T Chairman | the 2024 dividend paynent plan.
! bAE on Van Thoi Mormbe ’ b #r. Nguyen Duc Manh Bt b { ¢+ Reviewing the proposal of BOM on machinery and equiprrsent irvestment
{ My RORRLS : i which is submitted to the BOD.
i g k 5 |
; tr. Tran Minh Hieu Member | I, Mr Tran Minh Hieu Membes | 3 20/06/2024 « Reviewing the implementation of business targets in the second guarter
e —————— s e Rt oy Sl e Tt ) T8 T e . of 2024, Considering solutions for production ard business in the last &
AERNENAEN BEREEEAEN months of 2024.
. ¢+ Reviewing the implernentation of business targets in the third guarter of
4 26/09/2024 2024, Forecasting business results in the fourth quarter of 2024 and the
é whole yoar of 2024; Developing predisction and business plan in 2025
. RESPONSIBILITIES BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024
s e EE = Enoigisizai il soos S e R g T TS ——, .
+ ldentity development sirategies, largels and - Build organizational pobicies far the entire | e e e A A P ———— P e ]
! plans as-well as basio perfarmances 1angets CATIparty. : » Bupemvise activites of Board of Mamagerment o ensure business and production targets }
'. of the Compary. - Evahaate long-term praductivity | :-? Eﬂéd a.'js:gl?etl by General hoesting of Sharehalders and in ling with the Caompany's E
|« Identify the Company’s pricritized activities | . SvapranL Sirag. !
!'-. / I « Update wformation on market changes o ensure the Company'’s development strategy §
e e i s il ] keeps pace with market shifts. .
NENNERED : - Flexibly coordinate and farmulate strategic policies appropriate to the domaestic and |
i internatianal textile and garment industry context facing many difficulties and challenges |
ORIENTATIONS FOR 2025

Implerment 2025 business plan assigned by General Meeting of Sharehcdders.
Build develapment strategy. goals and busmess plans in 2023-2028 period,
Adwse, cansult on short-tecm, mid-lerm and long-lerm investrment projects under authority of BOD.

§ Adwse BOD on annual and mid-erm dividends.

00009,

ﬂrmllﬁﬁ:mﬁlﬁd '1'5'5
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SUBCOMMITTEES UNDER BOD (cont.)

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT SUBCOMMITTEE

Standards of membership: & member of Sustainable Development Comimittee s knowledgeable about GRI
slandards and siandards rélating to Econarmy, Envircoment and Sooiety a5 well as the main business of the
enerprise.

PERSONNEL STRUCTURE

’% Befora April 21, 2024 After April 21, 2024
. ool e (o
! MEMBER POSITION | c MEMBER POSITION "ﬁl
I . kir. Mguyen Manh Linh Chairrman ' " = kAr Nguyen Duc Manh Chairman |
M= Lueng Thi Thuy Ha Mernber H %irs. Doan Thi Thu Méermbes E
hr. Pham Trueng Xuan Mermber é\ % Nguyen Manh Linh hember .JI

i e L e S e SRR E el

“TT111110 1111111

8

oot o A

b+ Bulding the Campany's long-lerm development - Superviging and assessing the preparalion
¢ planin accordance with sustainable developrmant of sustainable development report in |
{  ovierlation. gecardance with GRI slandards |
+ Inspecting and  supervising all busmess and -+ Supervising and assessing the enterprise
¢ production actwvitles including finance, human evaluation in line with the Corporate |
{0 resource,  environment, ete 1o ensure  the Sustainability Index (C51) of VCOL {
r Company's sustanability In its business and ,
f production, finarnce, human resoursce and warking :
L EmwiToamenl, J

JITITTT

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

MEETINGS ORGANIZED IN 2024

N, MEETING TIME MEETING CONTENTS
o Agseesing and reviewing sustainsble development fssues in 2023 already
1 28/03/2024 impdermentied a1 TNG, especially reviewing issves related 10 aw matesials,
pvwner, whaler, caal, et
« Analyzing the painls achieved, not achieved and reed 1o imarove on the
2 26,/04/2024 implementatian of sustainable development at TNG, ensuring the balance
and hasmenization of the interests for all stakehalders.
- Revlewing key ssues al THG i the mterrefalionship amang 3 areas:
4 M RN Ecoromy - Erwiranrment - Sociely.
4 25/10/2024 < Developing a plan to implerment sustainable development strategy atl THG

for 2025 and the perigd of 2023 - 2028

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

1 m
.I
.I
.
|
.I
k]
1
]
1]
]
i
]
¢
1
[\
]
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h]
]
1]
I|
]
|
i
1
.
1
|
.I
d
4
|
|
§
|
.I
"]
|
i
|
|
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]
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« Create sustainable development strategy planning as specified.

+ Bupervise implementalion of employee policies, inoréase energy efficiency, make
positive cantriibutions to envirenmental protection,

-,
e i

ORIENTATIONS FOR 2025

@ Mainiain the Top sustainable companies in 2025,

paliey and sacial policy, compliance with pravisions of the Law, standards of fuel and energy efficiency of

Supervise campliance with sustainable develapment policies of THNG including persennel policy, employes
@ custamers, application of technology inta preduction and cost management

Al Repoe 224 '1'3‘.'5"
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SUBCOMMITTEES UNDER BOD (cont.)

INVESTOR RELATION SUB-COMMITTEE

PERSONNEL STRUCTURE

A.ﬂ-l!l .ﬁpn'l- 27, 2024

Before April 21, 2024
MEMBER  POSITION | % MEMBER rosiTion
i Mguyen Van Thoi Chairrman E < Ar. Nguyen Van Thoi Chairmary l
kAr. Mguyen Manh Linh Mernber . : Wirs. Luong Thi Thuy Ha hbarmber |
iIr. Dao Due Thanh Mermbe 1. Dao Duc Thanh Mermnber |!

I P R P e e

|L| ENERNEN

RESPONSIBILITIES

EARRNE LUH

o e e o

« Developing shareholder strategies, disclosing

infoermation clearly, promptly and transparendly

¢ Acling as a bridge between the Compary and

Investors while promoting the image of the
COAmArTY.

Congulting on drafting arnual IR plans,

« Analyzing and evaluating the nfarmation flow,

financial situation, and general operations of

the Company, thereby providing sclullans and

Mmessages 10 cormvey. ;

¢ Preparing  documents for the press and
sharehalders al press conferences, seminars,

ard General Meetings aof Sharehalders. i

« Drganizeng  meeelings and  Saminars,

contacting and exchanging with investors, |

especially institutianal investars.

S A A A e A A e _---\_-.-"'r

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

MEETINGS ORGANIZED IN 2024

MO, MEETING TIME MEETING CONTENTS

= Making schedule for evenls in 2024 Lo meel the Company’s shareholders
1 22/02/2024 and potential investors and crganizing regular meetings with analysts,
securities companies, financial instilutions at horme and abroad, ete.

o Preparing the 2024 Anrual General Meeting of Shareholders, including
preparation Tor prinfing docwments. and invitalion  letters, Conlacting
sharehalders to send invitations, confirrming attendees &t the mesting,
sanding invitations o guests, plarming to welcome zhareholders, guests
and press agencies, and so on, at the 2024 Annual Gereral Meeting of
Shareholders,

Z 24/04/2024

= Azsigning and planning for nmformation disclosure about the Comgany'’s
aclivities for the last 6 months of 2024, inclueding sporl, social securily,
carmmunily contribution, production and business activities to promate e
THG images and people (o shareholders, imvestors and the media.

3 18/07/2024

= Bummanzing IR activities in 2024, developing plans and goals of IR aclivities

A 12/12/2024 for the first & months of 2025

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

_ = Irvestor Relation Subcommillee organized 72 meetings (including online and affline} §
i with mose han 20 Investars, securites companies and ather onganizalions 1o enable
" Shareholders, nvestors and ather financial institutions 10 have a mare specific view of the

facilities and operations al THNG.

] « O August 16, 2024, THG organcsed Investar Conference - Update an THGS business resulls
] ard prospects for 2024 with more than 40 irvestmient funds and secwities companies.
] Throuwgh the program, THG™S leaders announced the business results, expected profil results
in 2024 and TNG's prospects in 2025.
}
]

T S A

< Al important infarmation related to THGS production and business activities has been
promptly natified to sharehalders and investors ina transparent and accurate way,

i,

I L R e

ORIENTATIONS FOR 2025

ard timely manner. Respanding to Sharebalders questians and complaints effectively and professianally,

@ Prenading infarmation about the business and production activities to Shareholders ina-sufficient, accurale
Protecting the kegitimate rights of Sharebolders

Enhancing connection with Shareholders, regularly conveving positive Infarmation about business
performance to Sharehalders effectively,

EIJI::I::EEEFLﬂl:,' arganizing the 2025 Annual GeneraH-.-'leetlng of Si"nrehnldua Promating activites 1o attrac
investment capital and increase the Company’s strengths. '

. .E.‘ergﬂﬂg-nlng bard 1o create a mﬂl Ir'fmge and rv!pﬂtaﬂﬂﬁnfth! ﬂnnﬁpaﬂy I maﬂnﬁ:m _
“and the investment community.



TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF

BOD, BOM, AND INTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE

]

Mr. Hguyen Van Thaoi

Mir. Nguyen Duc Manh

Mir. Tran Minh Hieu

brs. Doan Thi Thu

Mrs. Mguyen Thi Phuong

Mrs. Luong Thi Thuy Ha

Mir. Luu Duc Huy

Mr. Pham Thanh Tuan

Mir. Le Xuan Vi

Mirs. Tran Thi Thu Ha

Mr. Nguyen Manh Linh

kir. Hguyen Hoang Giang

Mrs. Ha Thi Tuyet

Mir. Hguyen Van Duc

Mirs. Do Thi Ha

Mr. Le Quang Vinh

Mr. Tran Canh Thong

Total

Charman of 300

Chief Executive Officer curm
rermibar of Board of Direclors

Ceputy Chief Executive Offices

Ceputy Chiel Exsculme Offices
cume rmember of Board of
Crrectars

Ceputy Chief Executive Offices

Deputy  Chairweman  cum
Ceputy Chief Executive Offices

Depuly Chief Executive Offices

Creputy Chiel Exacutive Offices

iresigned on 12 Jure 2074)

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Chiel Aecountant

harmbes af Board ol Directors
lanpointed an 27 Aprl 2024

Indepsncent rwrnbssy af
Board ab Directors

Indepencient membes af
Board of Disaclars [appainted
on 21 aprd 2024)

hdermbesr of Board of Direclors
presigaed an 23 April Z0ET)

hdember al Board of Direcloes
A5 i

(resigned on 23 April 20235

harmbes ol Board of Directors
iresigned an 23 Agril 2023
hdermber ol Board ol Direclors
(resigned on 23 April 2023}

3,035, 179,800

3,632 486,200

2127007,100

2,004,573,700

2,532.230,100

1,849,380 600

1,7330617,200

FB2535,420

1,.267,274,000

1,476,836,200

180,000,000

120,000,000
Mo langer a mermbe
of Board ol Direclors

Mo langer a membes
of Board of Direslors

Ma langeér a member
of Board of Directors

Mo kanger a roenmibes
aof Board of Directors

20,900,567,320

CAcoordieg o em 37 Mates o the consatidated fnanaial staterments, page 200

2,522030,300

2.:42:20:59,900

2,129,848, 500

2,080.257,000

1,9934517,000

1,579, 737,000

-

1,029 B64d, 600

15271752800

=

1,399,370,900

THO,000,000

180,000,000

Mot vel a member of
Board of Directors

60,000,000

60,004,000

20,133,331,600

FH#-.PTEFI IV = CORPORATE GOVERNAMNCE




CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

T’,ﬁ:-:TRAHSACTIOHS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS, MAJOR

SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PEOPLE

NUMBER OF SHARES TRANSACTIDN TIME

FULL NAME

T Mguyen Manh Linh
Z  Hguyen Thi Mien

3 Mguyen Manh Linh
4 Nguyen Thi Mhuan
5 Mguyen Thi Mien

& Mguyen Thi Phuong
7 Mguyen Thi Mhuan
2 Le Xuan Vi

% Mguyen Duc Manh

According o the repart on radng results of stocksfund certificatesysecured warants of inaiders and relaled
persans of nsiders recelved by TG, &l Infarmation (s posted on the Company’s Website' htlps. ¥ ing wrgizo-dich-

co-phieu =196

POSITION

BOD mrermder

Refated persan of an insider
BOD rrwermbier

Related persan of an insider
Retated persan ol an nsider
Depuly General Directon
Related persan of an insider
Deputy Genaral Direciar
BOD rrwermiber

Total

BEFORE TRANSACTION
HUMBER RATE
1967112 T1.73%
25213 0.22%
1.517.812 1.34%
236,930 119%
229 BAT 0.19%
130,345 01T%
296,930 G244
19,521 DO2%
9,825261 207 %

REPORT ON TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE PARENT COMPANY

AND RELATED PARTIES

Sales

THG Land Jaint S1ack Cormpany
Mrs. Mguwyen Thi Mibwuzn
Purchases

Mrs. Mawyen Thi Mawuan

THG Land Joirt Stock Company
Capital contribution

Bac Thai investment and Constructiaon Jaint
Stock Carmgany

Cash dividend declared
kdr. Mguyen Yan Thal
K, Mguyen Due BManh

Dher related parties
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VND
1,412,294,145
1,301,183.025
111,111,120
26,954,376,128
14,904,088,682
12,050,287 446

44,893,338 400
26,583,701 600
11.499,194,800

£.810,442.000

VND
797,853,332
757,853,332

13,248,972,122

13248872122
417,757,824
417,757 824
28,512,749,200
16.201,875.200
£.871,380,800

5 4309,393,200

REGISTERED
TRANSACTIONS

PURCHASE

G0L000
A0A00
50,000
20,000
50,000

1,000,008

1,220,000

e e e o e -

SALE PURCHASE

1,630,000
£2,000
1,180,000

60,000

32,000

21,000

4,100

11,000

1,000,000

2,862,000 1,128,100

ACTUAL
TRANSACTIONS

SALE
44530

25,300

B5Z00]

1,340,600

m - ! ] o

AFTER TRANSACTION
HUMBER RATE

1517812 1.34%
21283 1L19%
GE5812 0. 59%
296,930 0:24%
261,857 0:21%
157,346 1Z2%
307,030 1.25%
30,52 D0Z%
T0E25,261 B.H3%

BEGINNING

070772024
260272024
1270352024
26,07 F2024
310 2024
07 /0872024
26/0F¢2034
211072024

02202024

EHDIMG

28272024

26,/03,2024

1070472024

25/08/202

J1/08/2024

O0&6/0Ay 2024

25/08/2024

19071772024

ZIT A 2024

]
]

3
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CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

L2 RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT PROVIDES A COMPREHENSIVE AND
CONSISTENT VIEW OF RISK. THIS IS AN IMPORTANT TOOL IN

EFFICIENT MANAGEMENT AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT RISK MANAGEMENT MODEL
MANAGEMENT AND IS A TYPICAL MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY
THAT IS ALWAYS PAID A HIGH ATTENTION BY THE COMPANY. THG applies the 3-line model recommended by the Institute

of Internal Auditors (llA) to test, evaluate and emhance the
effectiveness of risk management and control at THG.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

THNG= risk management framework includes 05 key
components:

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY BOARD OF DIRECTORS / AUDIT COMMITTEE
Risk managemeant strategy |s budlt in line with business targets, ACCOUNTABLE TO STAKEHOLDERS IN MONTORING THE ORGANIZATION
construction crlentation of ather components of risk
managerment framewark.

RISKE. MAMAGEMENT STRUCTURE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
MAPLEMERTATICN INCLUIDES AISK MANAGEMENT MMDEPEMDENT REVIEW

Risk managament structure |5 2 foundation for risk
TOACHIEVE DRAGANIZATION AL DRECTIVES

managerment activities.

POLICY, PROCEDURE, REPORT

Polbcy, procedure, report indude documeantad
policles and procedures and raporting channels
in business.

Liany LNIdNIdIaN|

h u
TECHNOLOGY g_;r

MNote:

RISK MAMAGEMENT TOOL

Risk managarment tools abm to datect,
generate; evaluate and reduce risks.

INFORMATION TECHMCOLOGY
Daeleqaton, direction, Commiunicatn, cooperation,

Information technology system T Accountability and reporting respurces, oyersight € and collaboration
alms to suppart and automate
T To— | risk-management activities.
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CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

“¢_RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR RISKS
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

MAJOR
RISKS

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PARTS/FUNCTIONS OF
OPERATION

INTERNAL AUDIT
COMMITTEE

COMPLIANCE CHECK

RISK IN $...-f-""
ECONOMY AND |“|

EXCHANGE RATE
@
A
RISK IN
HUMAN RESOURCES

& OTHER

RISKS

T RISK IN
FIRE SAFETY

RISK IN LEGALITY

et
il

The year 2024 has been marked by significant
challenges as the global economy rernains valatile
armidst the prolonged impact of overlapping negative
shocks, including the aftermath of the Covid-1%
pandermic, the Russia-Ukraine conflict; the tightening
msnelaty policies of developed sconomies o cwb
inflaticn and achieve sustairable public finances, and
the decline in export erders. These factors have had a
substantial impact on the textile and garmment industry
a5 a whale and THG in particular,

Cne of the major economic challenges for the textile
and garment industry in the context of 2024 is the
continuad increase in production costs while cansunmar
demand continues o decline and prioniies shiff iowards
assentizl items The lestile and garment supply chain
has been disrupted, with disrdptions in ransporatian
and shonages of raw materials affecting the industne's
praducticn and business activites, making i1 difficult
for enterprises 10 ensure the progress of export ordars

The textibe and garment industry s ore of the leadng
expart sectors, playmg a erdcial mle n Vietnams
peonamic grawth with contnbutions ranging  from
10% o 15% of the GDF annually, THG 18 a compary
cperaling in the tedtibe arsd ganment seclor, primarily
targeting [he exporl markel, thos the company sl
be exposed 10 the risk of exchange rate luctuations
beteeen YVietnarm and equivalent foreign currencies

>¥ RISKIN ECONOMY AND EXCHAMNGE RATE

Risk prevention measures

With thegeneraldifficulties faced by the textile and garrment
indusiry in 2024, THG is forecasting stralegie scenasios
1o cope with ecanomia risks, focusing an shifting exports
1o polential markels, enhancing campelive capabdlites,
and reducing cests through the application of technology
i production

In terms ol exchange rales THG proactively looks lod
effective solulions Lo prevent and cortral exchange rate
risks manthby and quarterly. At the sarme tene, THG always
plans to closaly monitor exchange rate Auctisations in the
rmarket to make lexible and approprate decisions, theraby
avoiding shocks as the market has negative fluciuations.




L RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

‘I‘."l.

27 RISKIN HUMAN RESOURCES

Textite ard] garment industey accounts Tar a retatively high proportion aof labar amcng the industries, To improwve
campelitivenass, the enterprises have 1o ncrease productivity and product guality, therefore, a labor force with ligh
gkills is an extremely impotant factor in the production chain, espacially i the et industy. 10 onrder to attract
and train skilled human resources who are ready ta accompany the Campainy [ora long ime, THG always hasa lot
of supporting policies to atiract laboer and get theis atiachrment o the Company. On the other hand, the Company
always faces high labor cos1s in addition o the purpose of prafit optimization; thus, to ensure productivity, the
Company has toincrease managerment efficiency ta develop prafit

Risk prevention measures

Buikding a fair working erwironment with a salary policy thal is always higher than the market akarg with many
preferential palicies 1o altract labor. Strengthening raining and supporting employvees to imprave their skills and
promobion opporiumilies.

B
23 RISK IN LEGALITY

As one of the enferprises operating in Vietram, listed
an the Metnamess stock markel, THG is affected by
many busiress refated laws such as Law on Enterprise,
Law on Securities, Law an Accounting, Labor Code
Law on Insurance, ete. I additicn, the Company iz also
govierned by Circulars, Decrees and doouments related  Risk prevention measures

1o mpert and export activities, lax pohoies, customs

regulations, and so on, Moreover, Trade Agreements  ywith the laws and polickes constantly being amended to
between Vieinam and the BEuropean Union (EVFTA)  make them suitable 1o the economy, TNG always has
was signed, creating favorable conditions fof Vietnam's g regqulasly menitor and update 1o pramptly apply new
Leuctile and garment exports; EVETA requires quality and — ragyfations, ensuring commipliance with the baw to prevent
standard input rules for exporting to the EU. legal risks and help the Compary to operate stably

188
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o
&_=z4  RISKIN FIRE SAFETY

The textile and garment industry, with its specific characteristics, uldizes mary highly fammabde materials sweh
as fabrics, Nbers, and collon, Machunery operates continuously, generating zigraficant heat and friction. Witk Bigh
worker density and cramped warking spaces, fire safety becomes a critleal concern that must be priontized

As & large garment enterprise with 19 branches operaling within the province of Thal Mguyver, THG nol only
inwests in eguipping all branches with full fire protection and prevention systems as required by regulations but
alza emphasizes Nire safely awareness throughout the entire company through propaganda aclivities, arganizing
training courses, drills, and annual fire safety exercises.

Risk prevention measures

Continuously erhance fire safety knowledge and skills for specialized employees and workers. Reqularly inspect
and review the fire protection and prevention systems and provide clear and specific reports oo a moenthly, quarterly,
ard armual basis

Inwest i automatic fire protection systems at all Tactones where THG conducts ds preduction and business
cperalions.

-

{

OTHER RISKS

Ilj.;l;I : ’::.-'I.;

In addition o the abave-mantianed risks, THG also always faces other unprediclabie risks such as pandermic, natural
disasters, inflatian, Russia-Ukraineg war, elo, In 2023, the Covid-19 pandemic was stll developed complicatediy,
reducing the product demand leading @ the fact that many factonies and enterprises had 1o terminate their
pperation. These are cammon dificulties thal manufactunng enlerprises all have to face. Therelore, 10 prevent
possible force majeurne risks, THG always takes tmely prevention and response measdres to reduce damage 1o he
praduction and business situatear,
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L. ASEAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD

ASEARN CORPORATE GOVERINANGE

SCORECARD

FOR CONSECUTIVE YEARS, TNG HAS NOT ONLY REACHED A HIGH
SCORE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLESAPPLICABLETOPUBLICCOMPANIESINVIETNAMBUT
ALSO SATISFIED ASEAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD.

ASSESSMENT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 2024 ASEAN
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD

Based on the ASEAN Corporate Governance standards, TNG has well performed 140/149
criteria in the Corporate Governance Scorecard, reaching 94.0%. In which:

Mo. CORPORATE GOVERMAMCE SCORECARD CRITERIA CRITERION NO. PERCENTAGE (%)
1 Criters fully imphermented 140 04.0%
2 Criteria not yel fully implemented . 2 1.3%
3 Critersa not yet satishied 4 27%
4 Critera riel applicable a 20%

190

D,

A

A

AT

A2

AZT

AZE

A3

AG

A32

QUESTIONS

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Basic shareholders rights

Does the Company pay (intenm and final/
anrual) dividends in an equitable and thmely
manrir, that i, all shareholdess are trezted
enually and paid within 30 days alter being
{i) declared for interim dividends and {ii}
approved by shaseholders at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders Tor final
dividends? In case the Campany has offered
Ezip dividend, did the Company pay the
dividend within 60 days?

Goad

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOAVERNAMNCE

RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

The dividend payment for the year 2023 has
been made:

Divideryd: payrment to shareholders for 2023 was
16% of charter capital OF which, 8% was paid in
cach and 8% in stock.

Dividend Payrment for 2024 to date:

The 2024 Annual General Meeling of
Shareholders approved a proposed dividend
rate of 16%.

+ Bguest 05, 2024 THG approved an interim
dividend for the frst tranche of 2024 at a ratle
of 4% in cash with a paymenit date of August
30, 2024,

+ Oclobar 22, 2024, THG appraoved an interim
didersd for the secand tranche of 2024 at
g rate of 4% in cash with a payment date of
Cecarmibar 22, 2024

+ December 20, 20024 THNG approved an interim
tfvidersd for the third tranche of 2024 at a rate
of 9% i cash with a payrment date of Janugry
22,2025

Right to participate in decisions concerning fundamental corporate changes

Shareholders with attending right

Amendments 1 ke Campany’s Chafler?
The autharization of additianal shares? The
transfer of all o substantially all assets,
which in effect results in the sale of the
Compary?

Good

Refer to Artiche 6, Articke 12, Article 15 af the
Coenpany s Charter

Right to participate effectively in and vote in the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and
should be informed of the rules, including voting procedures, that govern the General Meetings of

Shareholders

Do shareholders have the  oppartunily,
evidenced by an agenda item, to approve
remuneration ar any  Increases  n
rermureration far the non-executive meamber
of BOD?

Does the Company provide ror-cantrollng
shareholders a right to nominate candidates
for the Baard of Direclors?

Goad

Good

Refer o Articke 28 of the Cormparny's Charfer. The
docurments for the 2024 Anrual Geresal Meeting
af Shareholders also sefiect this cantent

Refer to Article 25 of the Company’s Charter.
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-fﬁ,:-':ASEAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD
(cont.)

M.

A3

A

A5

A3h

A7

AdB

A3

AE0

AT

AETR

A303
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QUESTIONS

Dees the Company allow shareholders 1o
etect member of BOD indivicually?

Dees the Company disclose the voling
procedures before the start of meeting?

O the minotes af the most recent Anaeal
General Meeting of Shareholders record that
the sharsholders were given the oppartunity
lo-ask questions or give same camments?

Oo the minutes af the mosl recent Annosal
General Meeting of Shareholders recosd that
he shareholders were given the oppartunity
to-ask questions of give same carmments?

Dees the Campany disclose the voling
resulls mcluding approvirg, dissenting, and
abistaining votes for each agenda iterm for the
most recent General Meeting of Sharehalders?

Deesthe Company disclossthe list of membsers
af BOD who attenided the most recent Annual
General Meeting of Sharehalders?

Does the Company allow voting in absentia?

Did the Company vole by poll (as opposed
[ by show of hands) for all resolutions at
the rmast recent Arnual General Meeting af
EShareholders?

Does the Company disclose fhal it has
appoinied an independent parly {sorulineers/
inspectors) o count and’ or validate the
voles al the Annual Genersl Meeting of
ESharshalders?

Do the Company make pubhicly svallable by
ther next working day the result of the votes
[aker: during the most recenl Annual Ganeral
heeting of Sharehalders forall resolulions?

Dees the Company provide at keast 27 day
notice for all Annual/Extracedinasy General
Meeting of Sharehalders?

RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Gaod

Gaad

Gaod

Gaod

Gaod

Gaed

Fail

Gaod

zaod

Gaod

Gaod

Refer to Article 25 of the Campany's Charter.

Voling procedusss  are  published in the
docuwments  Annual  General  Meeting  of
Sharehalders on March 29, 2024, 21 days
before the slart af rmeeting on April 27, 2024,

Refer to the minutes af the Annudl General
Meeting of Shareholders.

The Caoampary= internal Regulations on
Corporate Gowernancs specifies wating i
absentia but the necessary conditicns have
not beer met al TNG. The Comparny will
consider far implementation at the following
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Company performed voling by “woding
card” {agree, disagrée, abstain) on each
reporting issues al the Annual Gereral Meeting
of Sharehokders,

Members af the counting commities always
irclude one from the Audit Comanittee and
orie independent sharehoider

Minutes and Resolutions of the General
Mealing of Sharsholders are published within
24 hours on the THNG website and annownced
Iz the management agenckes accordmg 1o
reguiations.

THG ensures this deadhne for the 2024
Annual General Meeling of Shareholders:

» Date of anncuncement: February 20, 2024
« Date of organization: &pril 21, 2024
Aocardingly, THNG has ensured 1o camply with
this standard

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

HO. QUESTIOMS RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

P34

AZTE

Ad

A

AS

A5

B.A

B

Does the Company provide the rationale
ard explanation Tar each agenda ilem which
reguire shareholders™ approval in the notice of
the Arnual General Meeting of Sharenolders,
General heeting of Shareholders docurments,
circulars and/ ar the accompanying staterment?

Does the Campany give the cppoartunity for |

shareholder to place itermis) on the agerda of
the Arinual Genesal Meeting of Sharehalders?

Gaod

befales)

Docurments of the Annual General Meeling of
Shareholders provided sufficient infarmation
and basis an the issues submitted to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval,

Belore the Annual General Meeting  of
Shareholders, shareholders - can  submil
proposals on issues to be included in the
agernda of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders imust be in wiiting and rmeet the
deadline ag ratifiedin the meeting documents,

Al the mesting, the Carmpany always spends
time for shareholders 1o make questions
far the Board of Drectors regarding thase
ssues on the agenda, including anes related
1o independent audil.. Discussion questions
are recarded in the minutes af the General
Beeting of Shareholders.

Markets for corporate control should be allowed to function in an efficient and transparent manner

In cases of mengers, scouisitions and! ar
takeowvers requinng sharehoklers” approval, does

the Company's BOD appoint an independent party
ta evaluate the laimess of the transaction price?

Goesd

In 2024, these cases didn't happen in TNG.

The exercise of ownership rights by all shareholders, including institutional investors, should be

facilitated

Does the Company disclose its practices (o
encourage sharehobders 1o engage with the
Company beyond the Germeral Mesting of
Sharetalders?

EQUITABLE TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS

Shares and voting rights

Does the Company's ordinary or common
shares have ore vale for one share?

Where the Compary has more than one class

EJ1Z2 of shares does the Compary publicize the

vating rights allached to each class of shares?

Good

Geaod

Gaod

THG always updates s business perfarmance
in cuarterly meetings ol  sharehodders - and
irvestors Investar Relation Departrrent is willing
fo answer questions as well as gel feedback
frorm sharehalders and imesions

Thevating rules at the Annual General Meaeting
of Shareholders clearly shows this content

THG hasz only ane type of stock — common
stack.
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(cont.)

NO. OUESTIONS RESIAT ASSESSMENT BASIS

B.Z Motice of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders .

821

= )

B.23

B2

B.LE

B.3

B3

—

B33

B.4

B4

B.4.?

194

Ooes each resolulisn n the mosl recedl
Arenual General Meeting of Shaseholders deal
with onbky one item, Le, there is na bundlng of
saverad ilerms into [he same resalutian?

Are ke Compary's nobce of the most recent
General Meeting of Shareholders; circulars fully
trarslated into English and published on the
same date as the local language version?

Are the profiles of members of BOD in seeking
glection) re-election included?

Are  the auditors  seeking  appointment/
reappontment clearly identified?

Were [he prosy documents made easily
avatatle?

Geaod

Good

Gaod

Gaod

Gaod

The Reszolution of the Arvual General Mesting of
Shareholders Fas well implerrented this principle

Motice and documents of the General Mesling
of Sharehohders ave been fully rarmskated into
English ard publisked on the same day as the
doGurment

THG publishes the candidale resumes in the
General Meeting of Shareholders' documents.
Disclosure information include namss, age,
dqualifications,; expertize, working history and
current pasiticns al atber companies, 1o,

Mailed 1o shareholders and uploaded on THEG
website:

Insider trading and abusive self-dealing should be prohibited

Dot the Company heve policies andy ar rukes
pratbibding rmermbers of BOD and emplovess 1o
berelil from knowledge which is not generally
available o the market?

Are membsers of BOD required 1o report thair
dealings in the Companys shares within 3

wiarking dayes?

Related party transactions by BOD and key executives

Does the Company have a policy requinng
members of BOD 1o disslose their injerest
in transactions and any other conflicts of
inlerse?

Daes the Company bawe a pobcy requinng
g subcommities of mdependent members
of BOD 1o review material related party
ransactions o determine whether they are
in the best mlerests of the Company and
sharehobders?

Gaod

Gaod

Gy

Gaod

Refer to Article 43 of the Cormpany’s Charle

THG has well fullilled this critérion in line with
the Circular Mo, 962020/ TT-BTC and the
Compary's Charter

Refer to the Company's Charter and Interral
Regulations on Corporale Governance

The Audit Cammittee caordinates  with
the Internal Coartral Commities (o develop
and izsue the Regulations an enlering inlo
ransactons with related parties and related
members.

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

MNO. | OQUESTIONS RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Coes the Campany have a policy requinng
rrembers of BOD ta abstain fram participating
In the BOG s discussian on a particular agenda
when they are confliclea?

B.4.3

Coes the Company have policies on loans
to members of BOD either forbidding this

B4d practice or ensunng that they are being
conducted at arm's length basis and atmarket
rales?

B.5 Protecting minority shareholders from abusive actions

L the Company disclase that related party
B.51 bransactions are conducted in such a way to
ensure that they are fair and at arm's length?

In cases where shareholder approval s
required for related party fransactions, the
approval vole must be done by disinterested
sharsholders.

B.5.2

C. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

Good

Good

G

Good

BOD members may atlend the meeting but
are nol allowed 10 wole on the contents when
there are activities and transactions in whick
that mermber has a conffict of interest,

Specified in the Company's Charter,

Presented in the Annual Repart.

The rights of stakeholders that are established by law or through mutual agreements are to be respected.

As presented in Chapter 5 of the Sustamability
Report, Also presented in the 2024 Corporate
Sustainability Repart.

Presentadin the Annual Report and Corpoats

=l Does the Company disclose a policy and practices that address:
11 The exstence and scope of the Company's Gaad
0 elforts to address custarmaers' welfare?
C.1.2  Suppliers cantractor selection procedures? Good

The Company's efforts to ensure that itz

. Walue  chain 15 environmentally friendly o

13 s consistent with promoling sustsinable o000

el cormernt?
14 The Company's efforts o mteract with the aed

carrirmunities in which they aperate?

Sustamability Report and Envircomerntal and
Cammunity Respansibility Report.
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(cont.)

NO. OUESTIONS RESIALT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Gl

CI.6

Cr

c.2

c2n

C.3

C.30

G

C.3.3

A1

196

The Campany's anti-cormuption programs and
pracedures?

How creditors’ rights are safequarded?

Daes the Company have a separate reporty
section  that discusses its  efforls  on
erwvironmenty econormy and social issues?

Gaod

Fail

Goed

Presented in the Annual Repart and Corporale
Sustainability Report

THG will consider adding policies 19 protect the
interests of creditars

Presented in the Annual Repart and Corporate
Sustainability Report

Where stakeholder interests are protected by law, stakeholders should have the opportunity to obtain

effective redress for violation of their rights.

Does the Company provide contact details
vid the Company's website ar Annual Repod]
which stakehalders (2. customsars, supplers,
general public, elc) can use o voice their
concerns and’ or complaints for possible
vicdatian of their rignts?

Good

THG has publisted contact mformaticn an
the Company's website, Anneal Report, and
Corparale Sustainability Repor

Mechanisms for employee participation should be permitted to develop.

Does the Company  explicitly disclose  the
policies and practices on health, safety and
wedfare for its employees?

Chsees e Cormpany explicitly disclase the policies
and practices on aining and  develaprment
programs for its emplovees?

Does  the Company  hawve a  rewasds
compensation  policy  that  accounts  for
the performance of the Comparny beyond
shartterm firnancial measures?

Gaod

Gaod

Gaod

Fully eowered in the Armual Report and Corporale
Sustainabilily Repart. Refer 0 the Collective
Labor Agreernend, Labor Rules, arnd Salary
Regulatons ard benefits for ermplovees

Stakeholders including individual employee and their representative bodies, should be able o freely
communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical practices to the BOD and their rights should not

be compromised for doing this.

Doesthe Campany have awhistle Blawing palicy
which inchudes procedures Tor complaints by
employees and other stakeholders concerning
alleged iHegal and dnethical behavior and
provide contact details wva the Company's
website ar Annual Report?

Good

It is epecified in the regulations on implementing
democracy. and the regulations on dialogue a1
ihe Cormparny. The Cormpany 8 cormmitted o
keeping the infoermation of the complainant and
whiztietsionwer confidantial

NO:.  QUESTIONS

Coes the Company have a paloy or procedures
o profect an emploves) person who reveals

(alleged  Hegal! unethical behavior  from
retaliation?

Ca2

D DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPAREMCY

D.1 Transparent ownership structure

Daes the infermation on shareholdings reveal
0.7 | the identity of beneficial cwners, holding 5%
shareholding or more?

Coes the Campany disclose the direct and
0.1.2 | indirect {deermed) sharehaldings of major andy
or substantial shareholders?

Coes the Company discloze the direct and
0.3 | incirect (deemed) shareholdings of members of
BODO?

Coes the Coampany  disciose (he direct and
0.4 | indirect {deermed) sharehokdings of the Board of
hdanagament?

Does the Company disclose details of the
parent!. holding  Company,  subsidiaries,
gssaciales, joint ventures and special purpose
eriterprisess vehicles (SPEs)Y (SPYs)?

015

0.2 Annual Report quality

Carporate objpeclives
- Financial performance indicatons.
031 | - Merfinancial performance indicators.
- |+ Dividerd policy
+ Biographical details of all members of BOD.

« Attepdance details of members of BOD inall
BOD's meetings hald duning the year

« Total rermuneration of esch member of BOD.

Dy

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

RESULT ASSESSMEMNT BASIS

Good

Gend

Good

Gond

G

Eond

Good

It is specified i the regulations on impkermenting
democracy and the regulations on dialogue a1
ke Camgpany, The Campany s commilied o
keeping the infornation of the complaimant and
whistieblower confidential,

Epecifically presented in the Annual Report and
the annual corparate govermanoe report

Refer ta the Financizl Staterments and Arnual
Repart, a5 well as reparts an subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

Refer ta the Financial Statements and Annual
Report
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CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

-f’lﬂ:--:ASEAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD

(cont.)
NO. QUESTIONS RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS HO. QUESTIONS RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS
) The Company regularly publishes articles
Daes the Anfual Report contain 2 slatement CE4  Media brelings! press conferences Good  to updale the business siluation and

confirrming  the Company's Tull compliance

D28 with the code of corparate gowernance and  Goaod
where there is noncompliance, dentify and
explain reasons for each such issue?

pramote its Enage in the media
Refer 1o the Arnual Report.

0.7  Timely filing/ release of Annual Reports/ Financial Statements

The audited annual Financial Stalements
Good  are published within 10 days after the
auditors sign an the Financial Statements

Ara the audited arnual Financial Staterments

K7 released within 120 days fram the fiscal vear end?

0.3  Disclosure of related party transactions

Ooes the Company disclose its policy cavering
0371 the review and approval of material related par-  Good 0772
Ly ransactions? o

The Comparny's Annual Beport s published
Good | within 20 days from the pubbicatian of the
audited annual Financial Statements.

iz the Annual Report releazed within 120 days

from the fiscal vear end?
Refer ta Annual Repart, Financial

Daes the Company disclose the name, rela- Slaterments.
032 | tionship, nature and value for each materal | Good Iz the true and fairmess ef the anmual Finaneiad The audited Financial Statements include
refated party fransaction? 0.7.3  Staterments affirrmed by the membsers of B0D or | Good | the Report of the Board of Management

the relevanl management af the Campany? reflecting this content.

D4  Members of BOD's dealings in the Company's shares
DB Company website
Befare the stock trading date, insiders
Good  dizcloze information 5 (live) rading days in
ackances,

Does the Campany dizcloze trading in the

DA Corrpary's shares by insiders?

Does the Company have a website disclosing up-to-date information on the following:
Financial Statements (latest guarterly)

+ Matenals pravided in brefings 1o analysts and
media.

0.5  External auditor and Auditor Report

The Cempany sends infarmatian wa emall ko

+ Downloadabde snnual Repaorl.

D51 Arethe auditand non-audil fees disclosed? Gaod B L T ikt D81 A e A, Refer to the Compamys website by
- General Meeting of Shareholders and/ or | TOL frdlewing the fink: hitp: fwww.tng.vn
086 Extraordinary General Meeating of Sharehalders. Sharehalder relations sactian
The Compary has hired Big Four firms o « bwtes  of  Annual  Gereral  Meeting of
achasa an building the internal audit system Sharehalders arddy or Extraondinary General
s 4 3 b §
D52 Does the nar-audit fee exceed the audil fees: Gaod The cansulting fees are ahways lower thar Meeting of Sharehoiders
the audit fees in the year. + Dawnloadable Compary's Charer.
D.6  Medium of communications D9 Investor relations
Doea the Company use.the following modes of cammunication? Does the Company disciose the contact details THG publishes contact information on its
_ 097 | feg telephone, fax and email) of the officer | Good | Anrual Report, Corporate Sustainabibity
The Company publishas an the websile and department responsible for investar relations? Repart and the Campany’s website
D61 Cuarterly reporting Gaod  the mass media according 1o the time lmit
OFCACARERE E.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOD
The Campany has presented its websile in b RODG nd &
) . both Vietnamese and English, and mast of E1  Mem BOD's duties and responsibilities
M| SRy ROt i the published informaticn is translated mto
English Clearly defined BOD's responsibilities and Corporate Governance
Evary quarterly, the Campany holds a rmeeting The Company's website publishes the
1 o o = - c ik - 3 :
D63 Analyst's briefing Gaod  of shareholders and invesions o update the E11 Dees the Company discloze 5 Corparate Good  Internal Corporate Govemance in both

Company's business performance. Governance and BOD's charter?

Vietnarmese and English
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-fﬁ,:-':ASEAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD
(cont.)

N,

B

£

E1.4

E1.A

E 1.6

E.2

EZ1

B

EZxd

E.Z4

200

QUESTIONS

are the types of decisions requiring
members of BOD's approval disclosed?

Are the moles and responsibilities af
rmembess of BOD clearly stated?

Corporate Vision,/ Mission

Coes the Comparny have an updated
wisian and mission stalement?

Coes the member of BOD play a leading
rale in the process of developing and
reviewing the Company’s strateqy at least
arinially?

Caes the mamber of BOD have a process
fo review, monitor and overses  he
implermentation of the corporate strategy?

BOD's structure

Code of Ethics or Conduct

Are the detads of the Code of Ethics or
Candwat discloged?

fre  all members af 300 samar
managerment and employees required to
comiphy with the code?

Coes the Company have a process to
impdement and moniter compliance with
the Code af Ethics or Conduct?

BOD's structure and composition

Cavindependent member of BOD make up
al least 50% of the Board of Directors?

RESULT

Gond

Gond

GLond

G

Good

Good

Good

Good

Incomplete

ASSESSMENT BASIS

Resalutions/Decisions  of the Boargd of
Girectars are disclosed In accordances
with Circular MNa. 155201%TT-BTC and
presenited 0 the Carporate Goverpanos
Report and Anncal Repart.

The Companys Charter and  Internal
Carparate Governance clearly show the roles
ard responsibilities of the member of 300G

Refer to the Company's websile, snnual
Repart, Suslamable Development Repart.

Annually, the Board of Direclors reviews
and develops the Company's siralegy,
which is presented in the Annual Report
and documents of the General Meeting of
Shareholders,

The Stralegy Subcommities repofls on
the strategy implementation o the Board
of Directors on a qguarterly basis and
recarmimends adjustiments suitable 1o the
Campany's situation aceordingly.

The Compary's websile present s delails with
clear explanation far 7 core values m terms
of canduct and ethics with stakeholders and
suppliers.

Al members of BDO BOM,  Senics

managerrent and employees were informed
the compliarice with the code

This content is presented in the Annual
Report and Corporate Sustainabidity Repart.

There are OF BOD members, mcleding: 02
independaent and 02 norrexeculive members,
accaurting for over 50% of the BOD However,
the Chairman of BOD is nat an independent
rmernber,

E.Z1E

E2L.6

E27

E2 8

E.2H

EZ210

E2:17

E2T2

E2113

E.Z214

EZ15

| S

QUESTIONS

Does the Cormpany have a term lirnil of mine
yoaars ar less or 2 terms af fve years sach for
it independent marmbers of BODY

Has the Compary sef a hmal of Tive for
a member of BOD thal an  individual
imdependent/ norr-executive membsar of BOD
rmay hoid simultareousy?

Daies the Cormpany have any executhve rmerriber
of BOD whad seove on mone than two Boards of
Directors of lisled companies oulside of the

group?
Human Resource Subcommittes

Coes the Cormpany have a Hurman Resouros
Subcamimities?

15 the Human Resource Soboomimilles
comprised of a majorily of independent
raembsars af BOO7?

= the chaiman af the Human Resounce
Subcammattes an independent member af
BOC

Cpes the Company disclose the terms af
reference/governance  structuwre/charter  of
the Hurman Resource Subcommitleg?

ls the rmeeling allendance of the Human
Rescurce Subcommitiee disclosed and if so,
i the Hurnan Resource Subsarmmities meet
al least twice during the year?

RESULT

Eood

oo

Eood

G

Eea]i

Gaod

Gaod

Gaod

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

ASSESSMENT BASIS

The Campany Charter specifies that the term
of office for a member of the BOD shall not
peoed ve years. Additionally, the stardard s
and conditions Tar an Independent BOD
rraimiber include "nat having served a2 a BOD
rember of a member of the Supervisory
Board for at least the previous fve (08)
conEecullve vears and nol serving mone than
twa tarms”

The Company Charter stipulates that "a
frearmiber of the BOD may concurrently serve
a5 & BOD mermnber of another company, but
frary rot hakd such a position i mare than
five (05) ather companies.”

BXD rmembers runring the Company ondy
hald positions al THG.

The Company has 8 Homan Resource
Subeommittes wrcker e Board of Directors

The Human Resource Subcommillies
consisls of 3 BOO members,

The Chalrperson of the Human Resources
Subcommiltee s an independent member
of the Baard of Cirectars

The Charter and Internal Regulations on
Corparate Governance stipulate thes content.

The Subcormmiliee meets on guaierdly basis
and reports 1o the Board of Direclors. This
5 reflected In the Corporzle Governance

Report.

Remuneration’ Compensation and Benefit Subcommittes

Does the Company have a Remunetation
Subcomimities?

I% the Remuneration Subcommitles comprised
of a majarity of independent members of BOO?

Iz the chairman of the Remunesation
Subcarmmittes an independert member af
BOE?

Coes the Campany disclase the terms of
reference/ govermanoe structure’ charter af
the Remurweraticn Subcammitles?

Gaod

Gaod

Eaod

Eaod

The cormpany has Human Resowce -
Cormpensation Subcommitisae

SameaskEly

Same asE210

The Charter and Internal Regulabions an
Comparate Governance stipulats this content,
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(cont.)

EZ217

E218

EX19

EZ20

E221

E2322

E.223

E.2324

E3T

E3d

202

QUESTIOHNS

| Bsthe meeting attendanceaf the Rermuneration

Subcommitles disclosed and, i 5o did the
Remunesation Subeommiltes meed at least

twice duririg the year?

Audit Subcommittes

Does  the Compary  have  an Audit
Subcommittes?

I% the Audit Subcomimittes cormprised entirely
of non-executive members of BOD with a
rrajorty of ndependant members of BGD?

I the chairman of the Sudit Subeommittes an
independent member of BOC?

Does the Company disclose the terms of
reference’ governance struciure’ charter of
the Audit Subcommiltee?

Does at least one af the independent mermbers
of the Subcommities have accaunting expestise
[accourting guakfication ar expernenca)?

Iz the meeting attendance of the Audit
Subcermmitiee disclosed and, F 5o, did the
Audil Subcammitiee meet at least faur limes
during the year?

Does the Audit Subcamimities have primary
responsibility o recommendation on the
appoirtrment, and removal of the external
auditer?

BOD's processes

BOD's meetings and attendance

Are the Board of Directors’ meeting schedubed
befove the start of fiscal vesr?

Caes the Board of Difectors rmeel at st s
tirmes during the year?

RESLILT

oo

oo

Good

Good

G

Good

Goad

o

G

o

ASSESSMENT BASIS

| The Subcomemitiee meels anquarterfy bass

and reports o the Board of Directors. This
i reflected in the Corporate Governanos

Repor

The Campany has an Audit Committee.

The audil Commiltes includes 03 members.

I whiehy, 00 mon-executive BOD member a0
02 independent BOD members,

Chairman of the Sudd Commitles i an
incleperdent BOD marmber

THG fully discloses infermation on the
Campany's webisite.

The head of Audit Committee has bath
experence and expertise in inance

Quarierly, thie Commillee meals and reports
o the Board of Directars, The number
of meetings s shown in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Refer to the Companys Charler, Internal
Redulations on Comporate Governance.

The Secretary of BOD plans for BOD meelings
iri the vear and submits 1o 80D

In 2024, THG held 328 BOD meelings
(reflected in the Compary's 2024 Corporate

Governance Report)

B33

E3.4

E 3.5

E3dh

E 3.7

E 38

E3d

Ez10

EZ211

QUESTIONS

Has eackh member of BOD atended at least
78% of all the BOD's meelings held dusing tha

Wwaar?

Dpes the Compary redquire a8 manimum
quarum of at least 273 for BOD: decision?

Did the norexeculive members of B00
meet separately at least once during the year
without any execulives present?

Access to information

Are BOD's papers for BOD's meetings provided
al least five working days in advance?

Does the Compary’s. secretary play a
significant rale in supporting the BOD in
discharging its respansibilites?

Is the Company's secretary trained in legal,
accountancy ar secretarial practices and has
kept abreast onrelevant developments?

Member of BOD's appointments and reelection

Does the Company disclose the critena used
in gelecting e meambers of BO0D?

Did the Company desorbe the process
lallawed in appainting new members of BoD?

Arg all members of BOD subsect 1o neelastiaon
every 3 years: ar 5§ years for listed companies
i courtnes whose legisiation prescrbes a
terrm ol 5 years each?

RESLELT

Gexad

Gead

Goad

Gewad

G

Gexad

e

Goad

Goad

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

ASSESSMENT BASIS

BOB members have fully altended 100% of
rmeetings duing the year.

Reler to Articla 19 af the Comparny's Charter
i1 accordanse with the provisions of the 2020
Enterprise Law an the minimum number of
delegates.

THG meels this criterion well

Motices . and  meeling  documents  are
provided 1o members of BOD at least five (5)
working days befare tha meeling,

Refer to the Charter and Internal Regulations
on Corporate Gavernance.

THG closely fallows this iterm

THG closely folkows this iterm

The term for & BOD member al THNG 15 &
years,
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(cont.)

MO

E.3.12

E313

E.3.74

E315

E316

E37

E318

E.319

204

QUESTIONS

Remuneration matters

Does the Company disclase its remueneration
practices for its executive members of BOD
and the General Direcior?

5 there disclosure of the pemoneratlian
struciure for nam-erssilive members of BOD?

| D the sharsholders ar the Board of Directars
approve the remureration for the executive
members  of BOD and/ or iha  senior
rmanagement?

Does  the Company  have  measurable
standards to align the perfoermance-based
rermuneration af the executive members of
BOD and senior managerment with longterm
interesis of the Campany, suck: as claw back
prowisiaon and deferred bonuses?

Internal audit

Daes thw Company have a separale indemal
audil function?

I% the head of internal audit wdentifsed o if
outsourced. is the name of the external firm
disclosad?

Daes the appaintment and removal of the
intermal auditor require the approval of the
Audit Subcomimittee?

Risk oversight

| Does the Cormgary establish a sound ntermal .

control  proceduresy sk management
framework  angd  perdodically.  revdew the
| effeciiveness of that framework?

Good

Goad

Good

Fail

Good

Good

Good

G

RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Refar @ Arnual Reporl, Bemunaration,
compensabion, and benefils of BOD and
BOR

The remuneration Tar the Baard of Directars
is approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders annually,

The Company will consider adding this
indicator in the corming years.

The Company has an Audit Commities
and  Imlernal  Audit Carmmittes  that
regqularly manages  intermal  contrel  and
riek management. Reler o the Compary’s
organizational  strecture. The  Audit
Cammmitiee reports directly to the Board of

Cireciars

The dismissal of internal asditors i 2024 at
THG i appraved by the Board of Direclars
and announced an the Campary’s websile;
Arindal Repodt

On a monthly basis, the Internal  Sudit
Correriiies gvalugles the intermal contrel! risk

rranagernent system

MO,

E220

EZ22

E.3.22

EA4

E 41

Ed.2

E4.3

E 4.4

E4.5

Ed.6

QUESTIONS

Does the Annual Report  disclose  that
membars of BOD has conducled a review
af the Company's materal contrels and sk
rmanagerment framewark?

Does the Company disclose the key nisks?

Does  the Anmoal  Repart  contain &
staternenit from members of B0D or Auwdit
Subcarmimiliesa cammenting o the adequasy
of ke Companys intermal controls) sk
rmanagerment systerms?

PEOPLE OF THE BOD

Chairman of BOD

Do different persons assume the roles of
Chalrrman and Gersetal Cirectar?

15 the Chairman an independent membes of
BOOY

Iz ary of meamber of BOD a former General
Directors Chief Execulive Officer in the past 2
years?

Are the roles and responsibilities of the
Chairman dischoged?

Head independent members of BOD

if the Chairman is ol independent, has the
BOD appointed a lead! senior independent
member of BOD and has hisd her role been
clefinad?

Skills and competencies

Does al least one nom-execulive memsher
of BOD have prior warking experiencs in the
miajor sector that the Campany s operating
i

oo

Eood

Good

Good

Fail

Good

Goad

Goad

Good

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Refer 1o Annuzl Report,

AL TG, the Chairman of BOD and Genaral
Directar are separaled.

The: Chairrman iz ol an indepandent member
of BOD.

Mo THMG mests this criteran well,

The Charter and Interal Carporate
Gavernance specifically express this content.

There are 2 independent BOD members with
cleasly defined rale.

There is 01 non-execulve BOD mamber who
has extensive experience in the industry
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MO,

ES

E.B1

E5Z

E53

E.54

E.b.a

EGG

2016

QUESTIONS

BOD'S performance

Development of BOD members

Diees the Company have orientation programs
for new mermbers of BOD?

Doeas the Company have a policy that
encourages members of BOD to anend
argoing of continuaus professional sducation
pragrams?

RESULT

Good

o

ASSESSMENT BASIS

The rew BODO rmembers are all oronied with
clearky defired role. In 2024 THG has a new
BOD rrerrher

The Campany akbways has B policy to
encowage and support training funding
when a gultabla trairing course is propased.

General Director/ Board of Management appointments and performance

Does the Company disclose the process
art how the Board of Directors plans for
the succession af the Chairman/ General
Directior and key management?

Do members of BOD conduct an annusl
performance assesasment of the Chairmany
General Direclor?

BOD's appraisal

Did the Compary conduct an  annus!
performance  assessment for BOD and
dischse the criteria and process Toblowed for
the assessment?

Member of BOD's appraisal

Did e Compary  conduct an  annusl
performance assessment for subcammittess
under BOD ard disclose the critevia and
process followed for the asseasment?

Subcommittes's appraisal

Did the Comparny  conduct an anrozl
performance assessment for suboommilless
under BOD ard disclose the oriteria and
process followed Tor the assessment?

Incarmpleta

Good

Goad

Good

oo

THG has & plan to buld 8 suceassor tearm,
but has not et announced i1 publicly

THG haz agsessed through HPl on &
manthly, guartesly and yearly basis.

Presented in the Annual Report, BODS
assessment.

The company conducls an ewaluation
af the Board of Directors’ pedformance
in the Board of Directors’ Report at the
Sharehaolders’ Meeting

Fresented in the Annual Report, BODE
assessment, suboammillees under BOD,

BONUS ITEMS

N,
(8) A

{(B) A1

LB
AT

(8)8

(B} B.1

(B
B.1.1

(B)C

(B} C.1

LB
C.1.0

(8)

(B)D.1

(B)
0.1

(E)
012

QUESTIONS

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Basic shareholders’ rights

Does the Company practice secure electronico
voling inabsentiz at the Annual Gereral
Feeting of Sharsholders?

EQUITABLE TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS

Hotice of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Does the Company release ils notice of the
Annuzl General Meeting of Shareholders
twith detalled agendas and  explanalary
circulars), as anncunced 1o the Exchange, al
least 28 days before the date of the meeting?

ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

Eall

Goad

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Electrmnic woling in absentia has not been
implermented at the Gemeral Meelings
of Shareholders: because the necessary
candilions have not been mel. The Company
will congider for implementation i The
fallowiteg General BMestings of Sharehalders

The Campany released notice of the Annual
Gereral Mesting of Shareholders 41 days in
advance.

The rights of stakeholders that are established by law or through mutual agreements are to be

respected

Does the Company adapt an internationally
recognized  reparting  framewosrk  for
sustainability {i.e. GRI, Integrated Reporting,
SASE)?

DISCLOSURE AND TRAMSPAREMCY
Quality of Annual Report
Are the gudiled annual Finaneial Statements

refeased within 60 days from the fiscal year
eryd?

Does the Company  disclose delails of
resrriurerathar far Genesal Directar?

Gexad

Fail

Gexac

The THMG Sustainabiity Repart is prepared
gecording to GRI and ESG standards.

Audited annual Financial Staterments ane
published within 10 days from the date of
signirg By Ihe awditor ard within 90 days
frarm the fiscal year end

Presentad i the Annual Beporl
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(cont.)
BONUS ITEMS (cont.)

MO, QUESTIONS

(B] E RESPOMSIBILITIES OF BOD

{B}E.1 BODs competencies and diversity

(B) Coes the Cormpany have at least one fermale
E17 | independent member of BOC?

. E-:'A':IEEIH-'II':" Eumpi:'.ng,'_hau'e i |‘.'ICI|-IE'5" and diEE.I;:lSe .

(B8} | measurable objectives for implermenting ks
E1.2 | BOD's diversity and reporl on peogress in
achieving its chjecthes?

{BJE.2 BODs structure
lzg the Hweman Resowrce Subcoemmilles

cormprising entirely of independent mermbers
of BOD7

=}
EZ1

Coes the Hurman Resource Subcodnitullees
8} | undertake the process of identifying the
E22 | guakity of members of BOD aligred with the
Company's strategic directions?

{BJE.3 BOD's appointments and re-election

Caes the Company use pralessional search
firms or other external sources of candidates
(such as databases sel up by members of
BOD or shareholder bodees) when saarching
for candidates for members of BOD?

(8)
E3l

(B} E.4 BOD's structure & composition

(& Ca mdependent non-executive members af
41 BOD make up more than 50% of BOD for a
' Carmpany with mdependent Chalrman?

(B} E.5 Risk management

Caes BOD destrbe (15 Qovernanse process
arauwnd IT issues including disruption, cyber
securly, disaster recovery, to ensure that all
key risks are identifed, managed and reported
o BOG?

(8)
E&1

[(B}E.6& BOD's performance

(BY Doss the Comgary have a separale Risk
Eal  Suboarmmitles?

208

RESULT

Gaod

Fasil

Fail

G

Food

Ineamphela

Gaod

Gaod

ASSESSMENT BASIS

THNG has weall met this criterion,

THG has not well met this eriteran:

The Human Resources Suboormmitiog

does nol  inclode  all  Indeperdent
members of the Beard of Directons.

THE has well fulfilled this eribenon.

THG has wall fulfied this critesion

THE has not well meat this eriteran.

Specified In the Company’s intermal
procedures

Irternal Audil Committes under Audit
Committee undertakes this function

CHAPTER IV - CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

PENALTY ITEMS

(P} A

(P} A1

tF)
AT

Flaz

F)
A2

(F) A.3

(F)
A

tF)
AZZ

(F) A4

\F)
AT

g
A2

iF)
443

(F} A5

RESLLT ASSESSMENT BASIS

QUESTIONS

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Basic rights of shareholders

The Charter and Intemal Corporate
Did the Company fail or nealest to offer Governance  clearly  stpulate  the  fair
equal treatment for share repurchases 1o all  Good  treatment of share repurchases for all
shareholders? sharsholders. Curmg the yvear, this case did
ot arise

Shareholders, including institutional shareholders, should be allowed to consult with each other on
issues concerning their basic shareholder rights as defined in the Internal Corporate Governance,
subject to exceptions to prevent abuse.

i5 there evidence of bamwers that peevent
shareholders.  from  communicating or | Good | THG does not record any barriers,
consulting with other shareholders?

Right to participate effectively in and vote in the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and should
be informed of the rules, including voting procedures, that govern in the Annual General Mesting of

Shareholders.

 The Camparny always informs shareholdars
in advance of additenal agenda itern in the
Annualy Extraardinary  General Meeting of

Did the Company include any additional and
unannounted agenda iterm inte the notice of

1he Annwal/ Extraardinary General Meeting of Grad Sharenolders. During the vear, the Carmpany

Sharehakders? has not held any Extraardinary General
Beeting of Sharehalders.

Did the Chairman of BOD, Sudit Subeomimilboe THG bas weall fulfilled this criterien. Membars

Chairmman and  General Directosd  Direclar Goad al BOD, Sabearmmifless under BOD  and

altersd the most recent Annual Gepsaral
BAeeting of Sharsholders?

1he Board of Managernent all attendad the
Gereral Maetings of Sharsholders.

Capital structures and arrangements that enable certain shareholders to obtain a degree of control
disproporticnate to their equity ownership should be disclosed.

G the Company fail to disclose the exislence s A .

of shareholdars anraement? Goad  Thisisnol the Company's case.
The Compary specilically stipulates in the

Good  agenda - voling rules at the snnual General
RMeeting of Shareholders

Cid the Company fall io disclose the exisience
of vating cap?

Cid the Company lail to disclose the existence
of multiple voting rights?

The Company does riet have shares with

Goad miuitiple vating rights.

Capital structures and arrangements that enable certain shareholders to obtain a degree of control
disproporticnate io their equity ownership should be disclosed.
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f’%g':ASEAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD
(cont.)

PENALTY ITEMS (cont.)

MO. QUESTIONS RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Thie Coampany does nol apply a pyramid
Good  ownership structure andior cress . halding
slructure,

[P 2 a pyramid owrership strocture and/ or
A5 eross holding structure appdarent?

(P)B EQUITABLE TREATMEMT OF SHAREHOLDERS

(P} B.1 Insider trading and abusive self-dealing should be prohibited.

Py Has there been any canviction afinsider trading
811 imvalving members of BOD, management and | Good | The Company does nal recard any violations.
emplovees in the past three vears?

(P} B.2 Protecting minority shareholders from abusive action.

Haz there been any cases of noncomphance

(B withthe laws, rules and regulations pertaining

B21  to material related parly transactions in the
past thres years?

Gaod

The Comipany does nol record any viclations.
Were there any related parly transactions
that can be classified as financial assistance
E[E}E e ot conduwcted on a markel basis) o Good
A entities other than whalh-owned zubsidiary
companies?

{(P)C ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

(P C.1 The rights of stakeholders that are established by law or through mutual agreements are to be
" respected.

Have there been ary viclationg of any laws

(=) pertaining o laborfermplovmenty consurmer/

10 inscheencyfotmimerciald campelition or

ervrcnmental igsues?

Good  The Company does nal record any violatians,

(P C.2 Where stakeholders participate in the corporate govemance process, they should have access to
relevant, sufficient and reliable information on a timely and regular basis.

Has the Company faced any sanctians by
(2] regulators for failure to make announéements
C21  within the requisile tirme penad for material
ewpnis?

Goaod  THNG has well fulfilked this eritericn.

(P} DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPAREMCY

{F1 0.1 Samctions from regulator on Financial Statements
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NO. CQUESTIONS RESULT ASSESSMENT BASIS

Pl Cid the Cormpany receive a "qualified cpinden”

011 ir its external addit report? aon

| The opinien of the external auditars on the
Good | annual Financial Statements iz “ungualifed

oplron

P Cud the Company recéhe an "adverse opirion
012 | inils external audit report?

(P | Did the Company recewe  a “disclaimer

0.1.3 | opinion®inits external audit repot? oK

Has the Compary in-the past year revised its
Financial Statements for reasons other than  Good Mo
cHamnges in acoaunling palicies?

tF)
014

(F]E RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOD

(P E.1 Compliance with listing rubes, regulations and applicable laws

I5 there arny evidence that the Compary
1P has not complied with any lksting rufes and
E11  regulations over the past year apart from

digclosure rules?

Gaoad The: Carmpany daes ndl record amy violatlions.

Is there any evidence thal member af BOD
] has not complied with any listing rubes and
E12 regulations aver the past year aparl Trom
disclosure rules?

Gaod  THG does not record any cases,

(PYE2 BOD's structure

Does the Company have any independent
P members of BOD who have served for more
E2T1  thannine yvearsor bwo lermsof five vears each

(whichever is higher) in the same capacity?

Gaod Mo TMG closely follaws this ariterion.

THG has clearly defined znd commilted
Gaod  to fully fulfil the erilerion on pasiton hat
reguires an independont BOD member.

(P Dad the Company fail 1o idennfy wha are the
EZ22 indeperdent members of BOD?

Coes the Comparny have any independent
Pl member of BOD who Serve on a total of more
E23 than five Boards of Directors of publich-listed
cormganies?

Gaod Mo TMGclosely follaws this aniterion.

{PIE.3 External audit

(P Iz ary mamber of BOD of serdos managemseni
gy @ farmer ermployee or partner of the curent . Good Mo THG closely follaws this criterlan
externzl auditor [in the past 2 years)?

(F)E4 BOD's structure and composition

P Has the Chairman been the Company's
E41 | Gereral Directos in the last three vears?

The: Chairman is nctcanaurrently the Gensral

e Oirectar af the Company.

| Ca independent non-executive members of
BOD receive oplians, performance shares or  Gaod  THG closely follows this criterion.
boruses?

iF)
Ed2

Al Report 2024 211



=
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Creerview of 2024 sustainable developrment 214
Sustainable develapment framework of THNG 216
Engagement wiath sta kelluldé.ls 224
heater|gl 1ssues 230 r ' I

Y

3,
S(sYa 1R

Coxmumunily resporssbality ard social secunty

_ o
activibes iy 2024 238




CHAPTER V' = SUSTAINABLE DEVELCPMENT REFPORT

.h EDVERUIEW OF 2024 SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

THE OVERVIEW REPORT ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES OF

TNG INVESTMENT AND TRADING JOINT STOCK COMPANY 1S PREPARED TO EN"IHDN MENT suclE“
REVIEW AND ASSESS THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES AT THE
PARENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES. THE CONTENTS OF THE REPORT
HAVE PRESENTED TNG'S APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MATTERS, FOCUSING ON STRATEGIC MAJOR ISSUES, CLEARLY SHOWING
THE COMPANY'S MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT GOALS.
THE INFORMATION TO BE DESCRIBED IN THE REPORT INCLUDES THE
IMPLEMENTATION OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES IN
2024, DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES IN THE COMING YEARS AND TNG'S
COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS. IN ITS ANNUAL REPORT, TNG HAS
PROVIDED A BRIEF OVERVIEW OF BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES IN 2024
BASED ON 3 MAIN PILLARS OF GOVERNANCE - SOCIETY - ENVIRONMENT.
FOR MORE DETAILED INFORMATION ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
ACTIVITIES, PLEASE REFER TO TNG SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT
2024 (REPORTED AND PUBLISHED AS A SEPARATE BOOK).

I -
]
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CHAPTER V - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

f _SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK OF TNG
OVERVIEW

THNG has determined its sustainable development strategic orientation based on following factors:

Analyzing the impact of activities throughout the

Vision, mission, and 10 core values of the Company il chialn et ihe Comaiay

The Companys medium-term and long-term

business strategy Analyzing stakeholders’ expectations and concerns

Analyzing the context of sustainable development on
local and global scale as well as in the garment industry

Analyzing the provisions of Vietnamese law

THGs sustainable development orientation ensures alignment with the vision and commion goals of creating
real values for stakeholders and taking into account development trends of garment industry and around the
world but not limited to issues such as climate change, energy, circular economy, waste treatment, employes
rights and benefits, etc.

FIRMLY PURSUING THE GOAL OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT, SINCE
2023, TNG HAS ESTABLISHED A SUSTAINABILITY SUBCOMMITTEE TO
ENSURE THE GOOD IMPLEMENTATION OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS RELATED TO 3 MAIN ISSUES OF ECONOMY - ENVIRONMENT -
SOCIETY. TO APPROACH INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS IN THE INCREASING
. DEVELOPMENT TREND OF THE SOCIETY, TNG IS MOVING TOWARDS

; ! = ENVIRONMENTAL - SOCIAL - GOVERNANCE (ESG) STANDARDS IN ORDER
""" : ) 7 - 8¢ TO BUILD A STRATEGIC ORIENTATION FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
AND MONITOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

AT TNG BETTER AND MORE EFFECTIVELY.




f: _SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK OF TNG

(cont.)

STRATEGIC ORIENTATION

DEVELOPMENT
AND
OPERATIONAL

STRATEGY OF
TNG

SUSTAINABLE _
DEVELOPMENT PILLARS

N
\L&
ENVIRONMENT
'
e

At THG, sustainable developmeni strabegic
ortentation is practiced according to ESG standards
- Governance, Sdciety, Environment. " Particularly,
TNG applies these criteria in a reverse process:
starting from G — Governance, followed by 5 - Society
and E — Environment, finally. The criteria are built
to ensure consistenty amd suitability with THGs=

general operating strategy. The onentation groups
are-presented in the form of major topics-to shape
strategies and activities &n sustaindble develapment
content to ensure the integration of sustainable
development content in the implementation of
general strategies and in TNG's operations.

-~
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STRATEGIC ORIENTATION FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
ON GOVERNANCE

THG iz committed 1o practicing carporate gavermance al the highest level passible including but not
lirmited to good carporate governances practioes in Vietnam and ASEAN. Same major ESG issues include:

Business ethics

Business ethics i the core faundation for all declsions and actions in corporate governance, including
carnpliance with ethical principles and standards in all business activities, sech as human resource
management, customer and partner relations, and the treatment o environment and cammurity

THG has issued a Suppler Code of Conduct {referred to as COC) 10 clearly autline the mimrmum
slandards that THG requires its suppliers o adhere to when conducting business with THG, in addition
ta complying with all applcabde laws and requlations gavaming thei oparatians. This COC isan integral
part af every contract between THG and 1ts suppliers,

Sustainable supply chain

THG aims (o budd a sustaimable supply chain where the inputl matenals are azsessed in enviroarmental
and social aspects, In addition, supplers involved in the supply, production, packaging, repackaging,
{esting, storage and distribution of raw matenals oroducts on Bshalfof TNG have 1o ensure compliance
with applicable quality reaulaticng and the requirements of Good Manufacturing Praclices, Good
Distributior Practices and Good Laboratory Practices foor the markets in which the products are
manufaciured, registered and distriuted

Compliance with regulations

THG & committed o maintaining systems o ensure complance with the laws far the smerprizes and
qoad practices o which we an sammitled

Operating performance of BOD

Thiz iz a decisive factor for the seceess of an organization. The BOD isrespansible for stirateqic direction,
supervising the implementation and ensuring that the Company complies with gosd practices and
pramotes sustainable development corparate governance

Risk management

To effectively deal with chatlenges and risks in business enviranment, the Company needs to build-a
comprehensive risk management system 1a identify, evaluate and handle the risks that may affect the
Comparny's objactives and operations, neluding financial-and legal nskes as well as ervironmental and
social risks.
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~[:_SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK OF TNG

(cont.)
STRATEGIC ORIENTATION [cnnt.]

s> STRATEGIC ORIENTATION FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

ON SOCIETY

Developing human resources
People are the key element 10 create sustainable develeprment of an enterprize. We focus on ereating

a working environmment where the employees are guaranteed health, salety and welfare commensurate
with their contribubions and have a chance o develop and enhance their professional sklls,

Customer welfare

Praviding guality products at reasonable prices for cansumers in all territaries and countries where
THG Is present. Commitling to clear argin and alming for green production and green consumplion,
carmmitling fo meet the strict standards of the countries thal THG has exparted 10, maintaining the
ahsolute trust of customers for THG.

Product safety

In the crganizaticnal structure and produtction pracess, there s always & department in charme of checking
ard approving produsts belore campletion,

+ Thrawgh guality control leam, THG bulds and operates a-Lab, Quality control department operates
continuoushy o evaluate product!service quality To ensure the safely and health of cansurmers, espe-
ciadly children;

+ Thrawgh third-party testing. All TNG goods and products reflect the typrcal standards of the TNG brand
Iy addition Lo using the brand henestly and clearly, TNG maintains a barcode systemn for users (o trace
the origin of products in the mest convenient way

—— ‘
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Sustainable economy

Finmly pursding the geal of sustainable development, THG aims teensure harmonious and constantly
Intreasing economic benefits far all stakehalders. At the sarme lime, TNG guides 1o build a green finance
framewark o ensure ervironrmental and secial efficiency for projects.

THG continues to-suppaort the comirmunily with the propects that have a great impact on corporate social
respansibility inthe lcealities where THG has opa@tons, continwing o spread the spirt of sharing for the
camiman benelits and for a better and more hiumane sockety.

Diversity, equity and inclusion

THG encourages and creates an envircnment where employvess frorm different cullures, gendeds, ages,
religions, palitical views, abilitbes-and other ypes of diversity are respected and bawve a voice in the
Campany's decisians and operalions.

4
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" SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK OF TNG
(cont.)

STRATEGIC ORIENTATION (cont.)

~ ., STRATEGIC ORIENTATION FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ON

ENVIRONMENT

Green production

Cantinuously researching and devaloping ervironmentally friendly matenials: aiming 1o better meet
gustomers’ green consurmplion critera. Pramoting reseasch and application of modem technalogy inte
praduction and busmess, aiming o reduce emissions and wastes, minimizing anvironmental irmgact,

Cordinuirg o concentrate on enhancing energy efficiency, seeking renewable energy sources to partiakly
replace fossil erergy, Investing in reofiop solar power system, ele. aiming to reduce energy use intensity
and emissions:

Climate change

THG 15 wsing all available resourses to reduce greenhobuse gas ermicsions and intensily, commifted
o strictly implementing regulations an collecting and freating plastic waste, minimizing mpacts on
ernaronment and climate change.

Water, air and waste

TNG aims to manage and use water resources responsibly, strictly manage waste inproduchon process
o save resources and protect the ermaronment. THNG has-beenandis continuing to imvest in researching
and utilizing waste and scrap (waste paper scrap cotion, excess fabric, myvion, unfinished theead,
unfinished fabric products, ete,) 1o process and recyole as raw materials for other products.

-/
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fﬁ'-:EHGAGEMEHT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

IN 2024, TNG CONTINUES BUILDING AND DEVELOPING SUSTAINABLE
RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS. TNG UNDERSTANDS THAT
THE PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS IS A KEY FACTOR HELPING
THE COMPANY CLARIFY CORRECT AND FULL EXPECTATIONS OF
STAKEHOLDERS. THUS, TNG CAN IDENTIFY AND MAKE APPROPRIATE
POLICIES AND ACTIONS TO MEET THOSE EXPECTATIONS AS BEST AS

POSSIBLE.

e e R T ONER S T e

- Through weekly/monthly meetings.
+ Through customers’ assessment on TGS
Services,

- Quality of products and services, technigues

and technaology:

- Consumers health related safety level and

iImpacts.

- Reasonable pricing policy
- Customer satisfaction.
+ Brand reputation.

ACTIONS OF TNG VALUES

- Cornmitting to providing quality products as a top
pricrity.

- Continuously improving modem technology and
production fines:

« Strengthening product RED:

- BuUpporting customers 1o resolve arising problems.

224

- Providing millions of garment products to the
world markets

- Product quality is always satished with the

standards of the most chalflenging markets.

- Ensuring seervice quality, delivery schedule and

competitive unit price.

- Copperation for development.
« Total revenue in 2024 reached WND 7,655 billion,

up 7-9% compared 1o 2023

CHAPTER V - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

- Arranging face-to-face meetings at suppliers’

facilities through supplier assessment.

« Organizing direct exchanges with suppliers on

basic construction; organizing online meetings
with suppliers to collect their opinions.

ACTIONS OF TNG

- Making field visits, faceto-face meetings with
suppliers to discuss and get agreement on
procedures of contract implementation and

cooperatian.

SUPPLIERS

+ Ensuring stable supply.
- Prestige, on-time payment, long-term cooperation

VALUES

- Building a long-term, prestigious and goodwill

partnership with over 400 suppliers.

« During the year, TNG has presented medals for

more than B0 suppliers wha have cooperated
with the Company for 10 years or more.

Sl report 3034 125
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. ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS (cont.)

== SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS ———————

- Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Periodic information disclosure on website,
« Receiving information via email

- Meeting and engaging with investors.

- Inforrnation transparency.
« Business and production performance, financial

ratios.

- Corporate governance system
- Managing conflicts of interest.

- Organizing 2024 Annual General Meeting of
shareholders.

- Prowiding all information in English and
Vietnamese versions in a timely and transparent
Manner

- Organizing, attending meetings with investors,
seeking markets and partrners.

226

« Realized revenue in 2024 valued at WND 7 655

bilfion, up 7.9% compared to 2023,

« Profit after tax reached WND 315 hillion, up 41.6%

compared to 2023

- Conducting information disclosure in a tirmely

and fransparent manner

+ Bringing attractive dividends o investors, paying

dividends to shareholders in the form of shares
with the ratio of 8% and 8% in cash

- Perfecting govemance systern,  building

strong and effective audit committee to meet
international practices and standards.

- Organizing competitive bidding, providing public

and transparent information through auction app
built and developed by THG.
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EMPLOYEES “orommomowmmseensees

APPROACHES CONCERNS

- Organizing regular meetings.
+ Organizing annual employee meatings.
« Organizing trade union meetings.

+ Building safe and friendly working environment.
+ Ensuning salary and remuneration policies.
+ Building staff training and developrment policy:

« |zsuing income, welfare, social security policies.

+ Complying with regulaticns, ensuring rights of
laborers.

+ Continuously improving working environmaent,
creating: promotion  and  commitment
opportunities for laborers

« Maintaining and organizing periodic, annual
dialogues with laborers.

+ Creating jobs for over 19,052 laborers.

+ Maintaining safe working environment, reducing
and controlling rates of occupational diseases and
accidents. Employees with occupational diseases 0.

+ Buikding appropriate income distribution reechanism.

- Improving qualtity of social welfare policies.

+ The average income of workers is 9,500,000 VND
per month, consistently higher than the regional
minEmum wage in Thai Mguyen.

+ The organization provides training for 100% of new
workers with no prior experience.

+ Occupational health and safety training in 2024
21,525 pecple.

« The total numiber of workers participating in training,
workshops, and coaching in 2024 was 3299 people,

- Organizing periodic health check-ups once a year

(professional leved): 782 people.

Organizing pericdic health check-ups (occupational

diseases) 14.273 pecple.

« Mo complaint related fo employee treatment
ocourred.
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+ Making periodic report + Complying with legal poficies and documents.
« Organizing pericdic inspection and check. « Coordinating and supporting for mutual
+ Drganizing meetings. developrment.

+ Dbligations to State budget.

ACTIONS OF TNG VALUES

- Complying with legal documents and requlations  + Fully complying with provisions of the Law,
of the Law. - Typical enterprise with significant contributions
« Contributing opinions, picneering in to the State Budget,
implementing legal policies. « Total budget payrnent of WND 124.86 billion in
2024,

e
(2.9.8)

——==—== TEXTILE AND GARMENT ASSOCIATIONS —————

- Making positive contributions, sharing information
and supparting members of Association.

ACTIONS OF TNG VALUES

- Actively participating in Associations, related - Being an active member of Thai Nguyen
departments and agencies. Provincial Business Association, Vietnam
Textile and Apparel Association and other
associations.

- Organizing meetings, seminars, et

228
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COMMUNITIES e 2

« Organizing meetings via local organizations,

+ Sharing and contributing to community building

activities such as! Building solidarity houses,
participating in the "Tet Peak Week for the
FPoor” program; “Lighting up Dreams™ program,
Granting scholarships to students; Organizing a
running race far the cormmunity.

ACTIONS OF TNG VALUES

« Actively participating in community activities.

« Typical enterprise with significant contributions

to the State Budget.

« Organizing community activities, joining handsin

aupporting families with difficult circumstances.

- Creating jobs for over 19,052 laborers.
+ In2024, TNG's total budget has supported local

community activities and social securty with
more than VKD 2,521,000,000.




~ L MATERIAL ISSUES

PROCESS OF IDENTIFYING MATERIAL ISSUES

« [Daing research, review al market and
sectoral infarmation

«Analyzing press information

< Condusting custamer satisfaction
evaluation and survey

Updating infermation fram Asscciations

Crganizing internal discussions with
laborers, meetings with local leaders,

N, A

Selecting important fields prioritized to
implemeant

Validating key fields from senior leaders

Selecting key fields of TNG

|dentifying priontized felds

Analyzing i related parti i
yzing impacts on edparties

~
« Hdentifving primany berelioary of related
pearties
¢ Bvaluating impacts on related parties
- Cakuating average weaghted seores and
impacts on related parties
S

Building a set of critical issues related /
to sustainable development in 2024

Classifying kay Tekds in 03 groups:
+ Gawernance

+  Shdciely

« Enwironerent

Analyzing possible impacts to THG

¢ Analvzing and rating impacts on sales,

cost, requlatans, business reputatian

MATERIAL ISSUES

GOVERNAMNCE EMVIRONMENTAL
# ECconoimic performance
& Digital transfarmation

® Inpul matarials

wastewalar
e Climate change

& Energy managerment
& ‘Wasle managerment

& Waler consumption and
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Evaluating and reviewing internal operation

SOCIAL

® Occupatponal health and safety
& Training and development

# Talent attractian and retentian
& Sustainable supply chain

& Labor rights

& Customer benefis

® Local community
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% MATERIAL ISSUES (cont.)

IMPORTANCE OF MATERIAL AREAS

REFERENCES 17 UN SUSTAINABLE
MATERIAL AREAS DEVELOPMENT GOALS IMPORTANCE

Ahways achieving high efficiency i production and business
golhvities i oneaf the lop priorities at TMG. This B not anly
a prefequisite for the Compary to strengthen its competitive
positon in the markel b alsa helps oplimize benefits for
stakehoiders. Maintaining stable and sustainable economic
efficiency, THG continucushy grows and progctively responds 1o
. rarkel Muctuations, thereby ensuring to achieve long-term and
sustainable development goals,

Econormic performance

AL THE, digital fransformation is nol anly an irevilable trend
but also a key strategy 10 promote the Company's rapid and
sustainable development. By applying modern digital techinalogy
solutions, THG has been improving ils corporate governance
capacity, comprehensvely optmiding  producticn progass,
mereasing labor productivity, and significantly enhancing the
quality of zervices provided te custormers. Digital management
syslem alzo allows the Company 1o manage human resolwrces,
salaries, import and export of goods, analvze markel data and
respord o customers moee guickly, thereby making flexible
adjustments, promplly responding o the increasingly diverse
and dermanding needs of the alobal market.

Digital transfarmation




CHAPTER V - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

-

L MATERIAL ISSUES (cont.)
IMPORTANCE OF MATERIAL AREAS (cont.)

REFERENCES 17 UN SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT GOALS

MATERIAL AREAS

IMPORTANCE

Input matenals, especially fabrics and garment accessones,
. play an impoeriant role i THG's production. The Company is

PR cammitted (o using emvironmenially friendly raw materials,
pricyitizing recycled, renewable and clearly sowced materials
1 minimize emaronmental impactes and build a sustainable
supply chain.

Input materials

THG 5 deepdy aware thal wales 15 a precious and limited resousce,
s Strictly managing water consurmplion, increasing reuse and

treatment of wasiewaler o meel standards before discharging
nte the emvironment are integral parts of the Company’s
sustainable developrment strategy, helping reduce enviranmendal
risks and ensure comphiance with legal standards

Water consurnption
and wastewater

Climate change may have a signdficant impact on the supply
chaln of raw materals, labor productivity and production
of the garment industey. THG is commitied o adapting and
proactively responding 1o the challenges of climate change
by applying green lechnologees, produet innowation and
produclion process o minimize greenhouse gas emissens
and be ready (o respond and improve busingss resilience 19
adverse weather conditions.

Climate change

Effective energy managerment not cnly helps THG optimize
operating costs byl also contribules o enviecnmerntzl
protectian by minimizing COZ2 emizsions. THG regularly
impraves 118 enardy managemenl system, invests in energy-
saving solutions and gradually switches to using renswable
BREfy SoUrces

Energy management

Effective managerment of production waste is an important
factor halping THEG reduce envirenmental pollution and protect
public health. The Company applies measues o clagsify, treat
and recyele waste from the initial production stage, mindimizing
the negative impact on environment and contributing to building
a greener, cleansr and rmore beautiful living erwvirenment

Waste mana germent

fi¥h sy JTERIgy
sy s
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-MATERIAL ISSUES (cont.)
IMPORTANCE OF MATERIAL AREAS (cont.)

REFERENCES 17 UN SUSTAINABLE

MATERIAL AREAS DEVELOPMENT GOALS

IMPORTANCE

THG always altaches impartance 1o the safely and health of
ermployess, striclly implementing regulations on labor safety and
cocupational health. Every vear, THG conducts training programs ta
raise emplovess’ awareness ol safety, thereby minimizing the risk of
accylents and opcupational dizeases.

el e T
-

Occupational health
and safety

THG identifies that human resources are the most imporiant
regource determining the sustainable success of the enterprize.
Therefore, the Company always prissitizes comprehensive
investrment i training and developing a high-guality human
resoufce. With specialized training  programs,  diversifying
courses according lo each level and expertize, THG creates
the best conditions for employees o improve their capacity,
update new knowledge and perfect professional skills. This
iz a solid foundation for each employee to bulld a long-lemm
career, maximize personal capacily and deeply engage with
THE's sustainable development jowney, thereby promoting
current success and being ready 1o face challenges and seize
oppoartunities in the future

Training and development

THG develops an effective talent attraction and retention policy
thanks to a dyiamse working environment, atiractive remuneration
and clear caresr development opportunities in order 19 maintam
a high-guality workforee, meeling the needs of growth and
develooment

Talent attraction and retention

& By THG ks commmitled o developing a sustainable supply chain by

: warking closely with supphiers, ensuring business ethics, mirdmizing
regative mpacls an he enviranment, aplimizing operabting osts
and ensuring the rights of employees theoughout the supply chain.

Sustainable supply chain

THG always enswes-1he legitimate dghts of employess, buikds a
fair and fransparent working enviraremeant and respects human
righits. This cantibutes 1o promoting social justice and enaoauraing
responginle husiness bebaviors in Vielnam,

Labaor rights

THG 15 cormmitied (o providing high quality products and services,

 JH o best meeting the needs and expectations of custormers as well
Customer benefits ey as enplementing appropriale programs, services and palicies,
Ttk proanptly mesting the needs of custamers, thereby building karg-

Ferm, suslainable and trustearthy relationskips

Cammunily conrection programs will build trust and strenglhen
the refationship betwezan THG and the communily,. THNG activaly
partichpales m o cammunity  Sciivities, contibuting . o soco-
ecanarmic development of the looalities, rmproving the life quality
for the comimunily where the Company operates

. _
DL I B
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Local community
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/.COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY AND SOCIAL SECURITY
ACTIVITIES IN 2024
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.2,521,000,000 |

TNG's total value contributed to charity and

social activities in 2024

-
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CHAPTER V' - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

AS A PIONEERING AND LEADING REPUTABLE ENTERPRISE
IN THE GARMENT INDUSTRY, TNG ALWAYS UNDERSTANDS
THAT RESPONSIBILITY TO THE COMMUNITY IS NOT ONLY AN
OBLIGATION BUT ALSO A CORE HUMAN VALUE THAT CREATES
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FOR THE ENTERPRISE. IN 2024,
TNG CONTINUED TO SPREAD THE SPIRIT OF SHARING AND
ACCOMPANYING SOCIAL SECURITY ACTIVITIES BY DEPLOYING
MEANINGFUL VOLUNTEER PROGRAMS, PROVIDING PRACTICAL
SUPPORT TO THE COMMUNITY FOR THE COMMON BENEFIT. THE
CONTRIBUTION TO CHARITY AND SOCIAL SECURITY ACTIVITIES
OF TNG IN 2024 TOTALLY WAS VALUED AT VND 2,521,000,000,
AN IMPRESSIVE FIGURE, BRINGING POSITIVE AND SUSTAINABLE
CHANGES TO THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE ACROSS THE COUNTRY.

Arreaal report Al24
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J:‘; COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY AND SOCIAL SECURITY
ACTIVITIES IN 2024 (cont.)
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Presented by TNG to Trade Union of Industry and Trade sector, Labor Federation of
Phu Binh District, Youth Union of Thai Nguyen City and Son Cam Pagoda

Total value of vnD 4 3 5 million

T-SHIRT DONATION PROGRAM FOR CHARITY PURPOSE

Continuing the journey of spreading love and meaningful social responsibility, since the early 2024, TNG has
implemented a T-shirl donation program applied to many organizabions and localities n Thai MNguyen Frovince.
Wone than 1,000 T-shirts were presented by THG 1o Trade Union of industry and Trade sectorn, Labor Federation of
Phu Binh District, ¥outh Unian of Thal Nguyen City and Son Cam Pagoda, with 2 total value up oo WBD 435 million
This is a spacial annual activity of TNG, cleally demonstrating the spisit of miutual love, sharing diffculties, bringing
happiness and warmith in the cold winter, contributing tobringing a full and warm Tet haliday far the famibes in
diffecult circumstances. Through this pragram, TNG not only gives mataral gifts but alss sends ds humanity and
gincare cane, affrming the Company’s rmission for the community of & pioneerng and compassionale enterprize

240
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Responding to the program
“Peak Week of Tet for the poor 20247,
THNG has donated

VND 1 . 5 billion

te Thal Nguyen Province and
neighboring localities.

to the Company's employees with | -.i:
circumstances.

SUPPORTING “PEAK WEEK OF TET FOR THE POOR 2024"

Responding 1o the program "Peak Week of Tet for the pooe 20247 launched by the Fatherland Front of Thai
Maguyen Province, THG has donated a total of WHD 1.5 hillion ta Thai Nguyen Provinees and Iecalities to suppart the
ponstruction of Great Solidarity House: Specifically, the donation amount is divided into two parts: VKD 500 rmilion
through Steering Cominittes af Thai Nguyen Province and YD 7 billian te B lecalities i the province, including
Thad Mauyen City. Song Cong City, and Phu Binky, Dong Hy, Dinh Hea; Yo Mbai, Phu Luong, Gai Tu districts: This isa
mieanirgiul activity, belping families in difficult circumstances have a warm and happy Tel and spreading the spirit
of solidarity and kindness in the community,

o this accasion, the Compary also presented mare than 700 gift sels worth aver WYANDA0D millhion 1 the Company's
emiplavess in difficult cireumstances. Each gift set is worth Trom YND 500 thousand to WD 2 rmitlion.

Sl report 2024 2487



.COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY AND SOCIAL SECURITY

ACTIVITIES IN 2024 (cont.)

CONTINUING TO ACCOMPANY THE PROGRAM "LIGHTING UP
DREAMS”, SUPPORTING TO BUILD "GREAT SOLIDARITY HOUSES”

With ihe goal of helping people in
difficull clreumstances with poverty
resdience  ard divirg  stabilization,
for several vears, THG has become
a  benefactor accomparwing  the
pragram Lighting up dreams oo
prganized by Tha Maguyen Broadcas!
and Fatherland Front of Thal Mguyen
Provancea. in 2024, THG cantinued 1o
accampany the prograsn 1a réallze 1he
drearmofhaving anew spacious house
for paaple in difficult circumstances
and less fortunate fates in society

CHAPTER V' - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

GIVING SCHOLARSHIPS TO STUDENTS OF TEXTILE,
GARMENT, FOOTWEAR AND FASHION FACULTY

TNG

CONGETY C1DALTU YA THLENG MAL TG

TRAO TANG

161.000.000 VND

HOC BONG CHO SINH VIEN KHOA DET MAY - DA GILY VA THOY TRANG

NG MAM HOC 2023

Oy hAay 4, 2024, al the School of Materwals, Hanal University of Sclence and Technology arganized a
business exchange and scholarship awarding ceremony for students of the Facully of Texlilz, Garment,
Foabwear and Fashion, THG participated and gave scholarships with total value of YMND T6T,000000 to
the students Spansaring scholarships to students is & meamnaliul annual activity of THNG with the desire
1o nurture takents, encawraging students in their studying and trainmg to achieve higher achevermenis

in particulas in 2024, THG continued
19 implemenl the scholarship  program,
sponsoding 100% of tution fee for children
of the Company's emplovees, from the
beginning o the end of the training course:
For the families with spegial difficulties and
the families with revalutionary contribution,
the Company sponsored additienal ving
expenses  worlh VWD Z.000,0000manth
After  comgleling  the training  course,
Sludents are ghvan poicrity by TG o aranga
sLiltable jobe

Arrual report 2024 243
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.COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY AND SOCIAL SECURITY

ACTIVITIES IN 2024 (cont.)

SUPPORTING FLOOD VICTIMS

I 2024, with the spait of responsibility and shanng difficulties of the victims of natural disasters, THG timely jomed
hands o contribute o relief activities, especially the severe impact of Steerm Mo, 3 Yagl

Donated 475 life jackets

Understanding the urgency of protecting human life,
THG guickly donated 475 life jackets 1o the Standing
Office of the Stearing Committes for Matural Disasters
Preventian & Contral and Search E Rescue of Thal
Mguyen Frowvince. The life- jackets were drgently
deliverad Lo the most severely damaged localities,
inGluding Sondg Cong City and Phu Luong. and Phu
Binh districts, effectively contributing to rescue work,
minirmizing damage and ensurng safety far people

244
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CHUONG FIRINY
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Donated VND 100 million to the
Fatherland Front of Phu Binh District

In additicn to practical material suppodt, THG donated
VMO 100 milbon bo the Fatherdand Front: Comimitiee
of Phu Binh District 1o supporl people i areas mast
severaly affected by Storm Mo 3 Yagi, helping families
and communities guickly overcame difficulties and
gracually stabilize their ives

LTTERS
B ASH MR i, i

451 Bl

Donated VND 100 million to the
atherland Front of Thal Nguyen City

it addition o tmely practical activities, THG donated
VWND 100 mdlion to the Fatherland Frant Commitles
af Thai Mguyen City o contribute o overcaming he
cansequences of storms and flaods, quickly stabilizing
peoples lives and restaring daily activities at the
affected localities.

Thanks to these timely and effectivereliel activities, THG has once again affinnedits commilment 1o accompanying
and sharing sooal respansibility, contrbuting o spreading the spidt of humanity and desp solidarity with the
cormrmuanity in the most difficult and challenging times

aprual repoet 2024 245



/.COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY AND SOCIAL SECURITY
ACTIVITIES IN 2024 (cont.)

SUPPORTING VOLUNTEER PROGRAM AT BINH SON Il
PRIMARY SCHOOL

Ony Coteber 4, at 8inh Sondll Primary Schood (Linh Son
1 Hamilet - Binh San Commune - Song Cong - Thai
Moauyen)], THGE and Decathlon jointly. organized the
charity program named “FOUNDATION DAY Magical
Sportes - Spreading Passion” This 5 a8 meaningful
activity for pupils of the schaal inthe maountaimous area
af Seng Cong City with a lot of econarmic difficulties

With: the desire Lo bring spodds closer 19 childreen,
the program bas nol arly broughl an opporiunity 1o
experience diverse sports but also given practical gifts
guch as backpacks, T-shirts, winter coats, nolebooks,
rmilk ard cakes 1o mare than 200 pupils. i particulas,

246

10 water dispensers were alsa given to the schoal,
cantributing to improving the quality of drinking water
far the childrer

The vibrant and joviul atmosphers of the sporls
feslival has spread positive ensgy Lo the paricipants,
Tha pragram has nal ondy broughl happaness 1o the
children but also spread the spint of solidarity, sharing
and kave in the cammunity. The memofable moments
of the festival will rernain ir the hearts of the children,
wodunteers, and all those who jned hands o creale a
day full ef smites and emotions

CHAPTER V - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

OTHER SOCIAL SECURITY ACTIVITIES

In addition to the above-mentioned typecal soolal secwrity programs, in 2024, THG participated and cantributed
o many other social activities to supporl the community, Sarme other typical activities included: Donating YN
50 milfion on the cocaskon of Mid-Autumn Festival in Pha Leong District, bringing joy 10 chdldren during the Bid
Aulurmi Festival, Donating YME 50 million to the Commities for Religious Affairs under the Department of Home
Affairs of Thal Mguyen Prowvince, Denaling YRD 50 milllon 1o the Youth Union of Thal Nguyen Province, Danating
VD 30 million 1o the Mass Running Event organdzed by the Department of Culture of That Nguyen Provinee
Donating Mire extinguishers; and 5o on

THG's social securily activities in 2024 nol only demonstrated the Company's strong commatment (o the
carmmunity bul alss contributed ta the couniry’s sustamable developmant. In the Tuture, THG will continue 1o
maintain and expand thoze meaninglulactivities, contributing to building a stronger, mare humane and more
prOSEErous communily
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CHAPTER W1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Board of Executive Officers of THNG Investment and Trading Jont Slock Comipany (the "Company”) presents
thiz report together with the Compary's inancial statements for the vear ended 371 Decamber 2024,

THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AUDIT COMMITTEE
AND CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

The members of the Boards of Directars, Executive Officers, Audit Comemitiees and Chief Accauntant of the
Company during the vear and Lo the date of this repart are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Nguyen Van Thoi Chairrman

Mrs. Luong Thi Thuy Ha Diepuly Chairwoman

Mr. Mguyen Duc Manh hlarnbssr

Mr. Nguyen Manh Linh Man-snecuinve membes (Eppointad on 20 Apl 2024)
Mr. Mguyen Hoang Giang Indepandert mermbe

Mrs. Ha Thi Tuyet Independent member (appointed on 21 Aprl 2024)
Mrs. Doan Thi Thu Mermbar {gppalnted oo 27 Apnl 2024]

BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Mr. Nguyen Duc Manh Chiel Executive Officer

M. Tran Minh Hieu Depuly Chiefl Execulive Dificer

Mrs. Luong Thi Thuy Ha Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Doan Thi Thu Deputy Chief Executive Officer

M. Luu Due Huy Deputy Chiel Executive Dfficer

Mr. Pham Thanh Tuan Deputy Chief Executive Dfficer (resigeed on 12 June 2024)
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Phuong Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Le Xuan Vi Deputy Chiel Executive Oficer

Mr. Mguyen Hoang Giang Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Manh Linh Mermber

Mrs. Ha Thi Tuyet Member (appointed on 27 Apnl 2024)

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
Mrs. Tran Thi Thu Ha Cheal Accountant

THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS' STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Executive Officers of the Cormpany is responsible for preparing the firancial statermenis, which give a
true and Tair view of the financial pesition of the Comparny as at 37 December 2024, and ils financial performance
and s cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vielnamess Accounting Standards, accounting
regirme for enterprises and begal regulations relating to financal reparting. In preparing thess financial siaterments,
the Board of Executive Officers is required to

Anrual report 2024 257
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~~~-STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

(Continued)

- Belect zuitable accounting pobicies and then apply therm consistently,
¢ hake judgrments and estimates thal are reasonable ard pradent,

¢ State whether applicable accounting principles have been fallawed, subiect to any matertal departures disclozsed
and explained in tha linznckal statements;

¢ Prapare the linancal statements on the going concern bases unless i1 is nappropoalte o preswme that the Cam-
pary will cantinue in business, and

« Designand implement an effective internal control system Mo the purpose af praperly preparing and presanting
the financial slatements 5o a3 to minimize errors and frawds.

The Board of Executive Oificers s responsible for ensunng that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any Lime, the financial position of the Company and that the linancial staterments
comply with Vietnamese accounting standands, aceaunting reqime for enterpises and legal regulations ralating to
Tinancial reporting. The Board of Executive Officers is alsa responsible Tor safeguarding the assets af the Cormpany
and hience Tar taking reasonable steps Tar the prevention and detection of frauds and other imagularities.

The Board of Executive Officers confinms that the Company has complied with the above reguirermsenls in preparing
these inancial staterments.

For and o behall of the Board of Executive Officers,

W

Luong Thi Thuy Ha
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

fUrider the Power of Atlceney No. 01 11 22:60U0-TNG dated 01 Novernber 2022)
Thal Nauyen, 24 March 2025

The Board af Dreclors approved the accampanying financial slatements, which present fzdry, in all materizl
respects, the financial position of the Comgpany as at 31 Decernber 2024, and its financial performance and its
cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with Vielnamess Accounting Standards, accounting regime for
enterprises and legal regulations retating to linancial reporting.

For and an beball of the Board of Directors,

VA TRUOS( AT
27

ngrm_v_an Thoi
Chairman
Thai Nouyen, 24 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

T The Shareholders
The Board of Directors and Board of Executive Officers
THNG Invesiment and Trading Joint Stock Company

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of THG Investment and Trading Joint Stock Company
(the "Compary”), prepared on 24 March 2025 as sel out from page 255 1o page 307, which comprize the balance
sheel az af 37 December 2024, the meome statement and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
surnmany of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

The Board of Executive Officers’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board of Executive Officers is respansible Tor the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
staterments in accordance with Yietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises
and legal regulations relating to financial reporting and for such internal control as the Board of Executive
Cficers determines is necessary Lo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
mizslatement, whether due to fraed or errar,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibilily iz 10 express an opinden on- these financial statements bazsed on our audit. We conducted
pur awdil in accordance with Vielnamess Standards on Auditing, Those standards reguire thal we cormgly with
ethical reguirerrants and plan and perfoom the audit o ablam reasenable assurance about whether the financial
staterments are free from material misstaterment

An audil imealves perfoeming procedures to obtain audit evidence abaut the amounts and disclosures m 1he
finarcial staterments. The procedures selected depend en the auditors’ judgment, mcluding the assessment of
the risks of material mizstatement of the financial staterments, whether due 1o fraud o error. In making those risk
asseszments, the auditors consider internal contral relevant 1o the Comgany’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order o dezign audit procedures that are appropriate inthe cirewmstances, bul nat For
the purpose of expressing an opinion an the effectiveness of the Company's intermal cantrol. An audit slsoincludes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasenableness of accounting estimates made
by the Board of Executive Dfficers, a2 well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial statemenits.

We befieve that the audit evidence we kave abtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit
oirican,
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~INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'" REPORT (continued)

FORME 01-DM
Festied wndar Cinculer Mo, 200/ 2014 TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2074 of the Mewstry of Finence

CHAPTER VI - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET

L5381 37 December 2024

Iryour apinion, the financial staterments present fairly, inall material respects, the financal position of the Cormpany
as at 37 December 2024, and its financial performance and s cash flows Tor the year then ended in accordances
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regirme for enterpeises and legal reguiations relating o fmancial

raparting.

vl

Pham Mam Phong Mai Hong Hoa
Deputy General Director Auditor

Audit Praclising Registration Certificate
Mo, 48:34-2024-001-1

Audit Practising Registration Cerlificate
kMo, BR29-2024-001-7

DELOITTE VIETHAM AUDIT COMPANY LIMITED

24 March 2025
Han, 5 & Wetham

254

Linit: WHD

ASSETS Codes Motes Closing balance Cpaning balance
A, CURREMT ASSETS 100 2637 646 921,136 2,073,005756,173
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 4 444 562 511,913 283,312907,758
1 Cash 111 250,634 952,282 G50.013.485642
2 Cashequivalents 112 193,927 549,631 223299427714
. Short-term financial investments 120 260,000 000,000 15,000,000,000
1 Held-to-maturity irvestments 123 5 260, CON 0y 00, e 15,000,000.000
lll. Short-term receivables 130 740,189 454 587 745294959417
1 Bhon-ferm rade receivables 131 & 650, 56500073, 777 899078076117
2 Shor-emn advances 1o suppliers 132 Z2B42 852033 573,507,733
3 Other short-term receivables 136 T 51438120510 46,284, 788,112
A E;ﬁ-i;sim for short-berm doubtful 137 g (4547291 733) (647 406,545)
IV, Inventories 140 9 1,074,432.497,798 888,214,031.211
1 Irventonas 141 1,053 245457 083 903, 2649,095 367

;’;’;ﬁﬁ;ﬁ’ checalumtion of 14% (19,412,999, 285) (16.065.064,156)
V. Other short-term assets 150 118,462 456,838 141,183 857,787
1 Bhor-term grepayments 151 10 30,613.389,083 25366907 833
2 Value added tax deductibles 152 70,269 714819 104,550,958,337

Taxee and other recelvables fram tha 153 17 17.576.352.036 11265091617

State budget

The accompanytng notes are an integral parf of these financial stafements
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Izzued wder Circuler Mo, 20020148 TT-BTS
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. BALANCE SHEET (continued)

As a3 December 2024

dated X2 Decemier 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

Lirul: WD
ASSETS Closing balance Opening balance
B. MOM-CURREMT ASSETS 200 3,179 228,308,272 3,074,376,262 951
. Long-term receivables 210 10,680,826,157 10,680,826,157
1. Oiher long-term receivables 216 7 10680826 157 T0680,826,157
Il. Fixed assets 220 2.117.164.741.729 2.192.999.599.548
1. Tangible fixed assets 28 11 1.960,839.540, 584 2,037.059,502.485
= {asl 222 3479629793764 3.386407, 750,905
- Aceumuialed depreciation 223 {71,578 FBU,652.576) (1,355,348 248,570}
2 Inlangible assets 227 12 156,325,201,155 161,940,097 063
Cost 223 TOZBES 252625 196, 752 454,384
- Accurnulaled amortisation 220 (41.560057.470) [34,812357.321}
Illl. Inwestment property 230 13 300,198,596,460 324,998 138,157
- Lasl 221 J100E5 452 025 207403179
- Accurnulales deprecialion z32 {0,886, 556, 905) (4,743 954 a2}
I¥. Long-term assels in progress 240 458,722 683,852 270,986,914,274
1. Constructian in progress 242 14 458,722 683,852 270,986,914,274
V. Long-term financial investments 250 15 140,000,000,000 140,000,000,000
T Imnwestrments in subsidizies 251 147,188,907 824
2 Inwestrents inassociates 252 140,788,107, 824
3 ?ﬂj‘}:ﬁ:gﬂ nﬁﬁ:::‘lzﬁg‘ ent of longtem ' 5y (788,107 B24) (1,188,907 824)
V1. Other long-term assets 260 152 461,160,064 134,710,784 815
1. Lang-term prepayments 261 10 150,965,784,225 133,964,719,7:24
2 Deferred lax assets 262 1.495375,839 746,665,097
TOTAL ASSETS (270=100+200) 270 5.816,875,229 408 5,147,382.019,124
The accompanying noles are an integral par! of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

L5813 December 2024

Unit: WHD
RESOURCES Codes Motes Closing balance Dpening balance
C. LIABILITIES 300 3,924 453,768 402 3.421,071,503,391
I. Current liabilities 310 2, 7509T74126,747 2,541,230,047,101
1, Bhart-term trade pavables 32N 16 ITEB63TET 507 473768162067
2. Shart-term advances from oustamers 212 7329382 265 9038833787
3, ;f':;%;’]?m"‘m“”ls payecle 1 W8 g 47 344471111717 $4087,654.985
4. Payables toemplovees 314 256,936,183 698 7O 6BEHET 283
b, Bhort-term acoresd expenses 315 18 21,394,307 963 54472 RGBT
6. Shorl-tenm wnearned revenue 318 14 1,947,125 578 5181397260
FoooOthwer current payabdes 319 a0 16,034,547 521 21,887,197 5592
8. Shart-term loans 20 | 1,606, 543225427 1,819.048,790,038
9. Shart-term peovisions 32 360,325,000 47, 500000
10, Bonus and welfare funds 322 291718,730,31 3127997 242
. Long-term liabilities 330 1,173,479 641 655 879,847, 456,290
1. Lang-term uneamed revenug 336 14 20,257 826,759 &7 737 867 067
2, Lang-term loans 338 27 1,093, 121,754,896 B12103,595223
0. EQUITY 400 1,892 421,461,006 1,726,310,515,733
I. DOwners' equity 410 24 1,892 421,461,006 1,726310,515,733
1. Owners confribuled capital 411 1,226,012 060,000 1,135.230,020,000
- Ordinary shaves cafrying voting iights 417a 1226012060000 T,735,230,020, 6000
2. Share prermiem 47 A0 9EE, 785123 40988 785123
3. Oiheraowness capital 474 564795597 55412597
4, Investment and developrment fund 418 290,776,332 .2i4 270,776,332 274
b Other reserves 420 112,265,079 447 102265073441
. Felamed eamings 421 223323784627 176,954 875 354
;HFEE;?E::JE?;HWS accumulated o the 4274 5 660,541 263 41,766,400
- Retained earnings of Hhe corrent year 42716 216,743 243 364 176053772954
TOTAL RESOURCES (44:0=300+400) a40 5,816,875,229.408 5,147,382,019,124
L E I-’
/
Tran Thi Hiep Tran Thi ﬁtu Ha Luong Thi Thuy Ha
Preparer Chief Accountant Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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CHAPTER VI - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 21 December 2024

Unit: VND Ehmikz:whi
ITEMS Codes 5 | Pn
ITEMS Codes  MNotes Current year Prior year 5 il i v el
y, Groesrevenue fom goodesoldand 27 7,655,752,759,635  7,098,010,025347 - CASHTLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
services rendered 1. Profit before tax o1 390,479,324, 487 273,996,534,753
Met revenue from goods sold and
2. mandion ransdsrsd (10wD3) 10 7655752759635  7.098,010,025347 2. Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets and . 2
3 Coot ol sales and services rendersd 11 Z8 G473.870,24% 271 ,173,800,854 450 |||ir;51ﬂ|enl: praperties o2 235067 BAGG06 227.523638,560
Gross profit from goods sold and Prewisions 03 B,279.845317 {10,806,481 868)
8 arvtond radidered (A0ST0-11) 20 1,181,882,510,364 984,209,170,897 : : —— .
oreign  exchange  BssfHgan arisisy  from ; ;
5 Finarcial income 21 30 125.057,123,025 53,626/064,012 translating foreign curancy lterms b4 27,693.535,814 {7.495417.4135)
B Firarcial EII.'EI'ISE‘E- ) =1 3?]] 1| E.EI E?E?E 315.&-‘31":‘&-2.':"’15 LUE-EI'{HEII"I'] iI"I'.|1'T| Inves] na acliviles 0ha 3.55&.[” 5.] 03 [3[” .QED.Q?E':I
Interest & LTS ] 184 426,081,216 192 3589 757,754
ify which: interest expense 23 154,426,081,275 102,359,757, 796 ArPeee: SN -
Operating prafit before movements in working
7 Selling expenses 25 32 110513197605 T07,716,749,234 B capital 08 e SGUZ7E,050, 345
B General and administration expenses 28 32 424, 454,644,889 358,408,344,368 e Sereare e T = 2O2AAARANFD. | (Th285A03706]
: Increase, decraase in inventones 10 (164,543 0654494) 05,654,409 9832
g, Operating profit 30 400,866,133,017 292,017,179,261 _
(30=20+(21-22)-(25+26)) Ircrease, decrease in payables (excluding accrued 11 397 399054 715 15677 G093 2G5
10 Otherincome 1 33 1 530,765,456 3012.569,413 lnan interest and corparate income Lk payabie) ' '
Increase, decraase n prepaid expsenses 12 [22248.745,751) 17101, 712057)
11, Oiher expenges 32 2 171,977, 574.026 21,033,2713,921
(Lo ) e = IFteresl paid 14 (1B1,617.246,025) 1191,952.255.524)
sses) from r activities
2. 40=31-32) 40 (10,386,808,530) (18,020,644,508) Corparate incame tax paid 15 (67666925002) (46,746,036,113)
13, ?:Em profit before tax 50 390.479,324,487 273,996,534,753 Other cash autflows 17 (20,867.655,433) (11,116,102,076)
, . . . Net cash generated by operating activities 20 746,243,110,425 748,345,795,089
e e 51 34 76,403,827,071 52,380 886,090
expense Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES
15 Deferred corporate @ (Income) Y FRg 10,748 F46665,097) o ien . . ; s :
p . ] [ ] { §1|ijlitl|zl-1[;;?;z$i uetion of fived assets and e (254.148,068,898) (702.130,888,382)
Met profit after corporate income tax = r
16. (60=50-51-52) - i i B £ ARSI, 130 F'r!'_'!'_'l-_‘l'-_'l'_'-".-i from sale, disposal of fixed assets and 5 4097 156 768 1 984 499 999
1 crin - a8 — — aher long-lern assels e R
7. Sic 2arnings per share . - P . .
. Cashoautlow .-:tnl lerding. buying dedt instrermeants o (245,000,000,000) (18,000,000,000)
af olher enlities
#4. Equity investments in othar entities 25 (417.757,824]
5 Cash reeovered frorm deestments in other entities 26 400800000
—_ 6. Interest earned, dividends and profits received 27 415,849,315
o Net cash used in investing activities 30 (494.231,263,295)  (715,573,146,207)
]
Tran Thi Hiep Tran Thi Thu Ha Luong Thi Thuy Ha
Preparer Chief Accountant Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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"CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: WD
ITEMS Codes Current year Frior year
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
1.  Proceeds fram borrowings 33 6,083 460,046,375 SA00 472,538,731
2 Repayment of barrowings 34 (6,930,964,601477) (5,816,221.746,527)
3 Dividends and prafits paid 36 {143,490,1656,600) (B7 A56,304,0000
Net cash used in financing activities 40 (90,994,670,701) {102 265,511,796)
Met increase/(decrease) in cash
(50=20+30+40) 50 161,017,176,429 (69,492 B62,914)
5:1: andcagh scphalenin gt the bagineng of. .5 283.312,907,758 352, 893,095,158
year
Effecta of changes in foreign exchange rates &1 Z2A2 AT TG (B7.524 486)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year (70=50+60+61) 70 444 562 511,913 283,312,907,758
pb0205 LT
£ : £
S CORGTY Vo
( ) PHAN DAL TU i A
K - ; : | f S -
15‘___ L] .ﬂ'-'—-
/
Tran Thi Hiep Tram Thi Thu Ha Luong Thi Thuy Ha
Preparer Chief Accountant Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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Festied wndar Cinculer Mo, 200/ 2014 TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2074 of the Mewstry of Finence

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Structure of ownership

THG Inwestrment and Trading Jaint Stock Camipany (the "Company’} was arlgimally a Stale-ownad enterprise
pslabhished under Decision No. 448/00-UB of the People's Commitiee of Bac Thai Province [currently knawn
a5 Thai Mguyen Province) dated 12 Novernber 7079 The Campany was eguitized and fransformed into a
joinl stack company under Decisian Ma. 3744,/00-UB dated 16 Decermber 2002 of the Peaple’s Cormemittes of
Thai Nguyen Province. Since 01 January 2003, the Company has officiaily been transfocmed inlo a joint stock
conpany under Business License Mo, 1703000035 isswed by the Autharly far Planning and Irvestment of
Thai Nauyen Pravince an 02 Januaty 2003, According Lo the amended Enterprise Ragistration Certificates Mo
AE003057Z3 issued by the Authorily for Blamning and Investrment of Thal Nguyven Provinees on 30 July 2024,
[he authorized charler capital of the Cormpany is VND 1,226,012 060,000. The Compary's shares are listed on
Haroi Stock Exchangs (HNX) with the stock code of THIG.

The Company's 1atal numbes of employees as al 27 December 2024 was 19,052 (as at 31 Decerrber 2023
18174,

Operating industry and principal activities
The Company's principal activities include:

Manufacture of corrugated paper and paperboard, and of containers of paper and paperbozd imanufac-
ture af containess of paper),

Manulacture af plastic preducts {production of plastic for plastic bags, plastic mincoals and garment
myaterials and accessories);

Whalesale of textiles, made-up clothing, footwear,

Retail salke of clething, footwear, leather articles and imitation keather in specialized slores,
Prenting (directly anta textiles, plaste, cardboard, PE bags)

Finishirg of extiles {silk screen-printing, ncluding thermal printing on wearing apparel)

Trading af awn ar rented property ar land e rights,

Manufacture of wearing apparel {excepl being made of animals skin and fur) — Principal actity,
Manulacture of knitted and crocheted appanel;

Vocational education (ndusirial sewing traiming),

Manufastiure of made-up articles (except apparef);

= Washing, pressing and cleaning of textiles and fur products. Cetails: Industrial washing and pressing of
garment products; and

Manulacture, wholesale and retall of medical equipment
The Campany’s operating indusisy i= te manufacture and trade in garmenls.

Mormal production and business cycle

The Company's normal production-and business cyvele is carried oul for a time peried of 12 months or less.
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Characteristics of the business activities in the financial year which have impact on the financial statements

Aceording to Resolution Mo, 121/MG-HDOT dated 09 May 2024, the Board of Directors of THNG Land Joint Stock
Company appraved the increase of charter capital o WND 286,200,000,000 by issuing 1,600000 piivate shares
(WMD 10,000/share par value}. Accordingly, the Company’s capital contribution ratio at THG Land Joint Stock
Company has decreased from 51.7% (o 48.81% and THG Land Joint Stock Company is no longer a subsidiary
aryd becames an associate of the Company from 16 May 2024,

According to Resolutlion Mo, 354/MO-HDOT dated 19 June 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company approved
the saleftransfer of shares to reduce the ownership ratio al Bac Thai Investment and Construction Jaint Stock
Company. Accordingly, the Compary's capital contribution ratio at Bac Tha Investment and Construction Jaint
Stock Company has decreased from 70.E% to 48% and Bao Thai Investrment and Construction Joint Stock
Company is no lenges a subsidiary and becormes an assooiate of the Comipany from 25 June 2024

The Company's structure

The Compary’s strueture includes 07 headguarter and 20 dependent branches. The Company's headquarter ig
located at Mo, 43477 Bac Kan Sireet, Hoang Vars Thoa Ward, Thai Mguyen City

A5 at 31 December 2024, the Campany has 03 associates. Gereral information about the Comipany's associates
i5 as follows!

Place of Propoartion Proportion of
incorporation  of ownership woting power Frincipal activnty
and operation  interest (%) held (%)
Associates
THG Land Jent Stack ? Pt
Company Thal Mguyen 48.2817 48.81 Real eslales
Bac Thai Investmient
arid Construction Joint Thai Mguyen A48.00 A8.00 Elactric construction
Stoek Company
TG Vel Rion: Gelf Thal Mguyen 49.00 4900 Galf course busmess

Conmipany Limited

The actual contributed capital and capital comemitments [o the Campany's assecialas as al 31 December 2024
are prasenled in Mote 15,

Disclosure of information comparability in the financial statements

Comparative Ngures are the higures of the Company’s audited separate fmancial staterments for the year erded
31 Decernber 2023, excep! far Basic earnings per share in the meome stalement and the oorresponding ricte.
The comparative ligures for Basic eamings per share in the incame slaterment and the comespanding note ae
thase of the audited consolidated financial staterments for the yvear ended 37 December 2023,

Ag presented in Mote 36, the Baszic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 are restated as a
result of the impact of share dividend and the distribution te the Board of Directers’ remunesatian far the year
2023
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND FINANCIAL YEAR

Accounting convention

The accompanying financial statements, expressed In Vielrarm Dong (WD are prapared under the historical
cast corvention and inaccordance with Vietnamese Accounting Slandards, aceounting regirme far enterprises
and lagal regulations relating 1o financkal reparting

The accompanying financial staterments are nol infended 1o present the inancial position, results of operations
and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices genesally accepled in countries and
jurisdictions cther than Yietnam,

Fimancial year

Thie Compary's financial year begins on 071 January and ends on 37 December.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accourting policies, which have been adopted by the Company in the preparation of these
financial slatements, are as follows:

Estimates

The preparation of Tnancial staterments in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accouwnting
regime for enterprses and legal regulations relating 1 fingncial reporting requires the Board of Executive Officers
19 make estimates ard assumptlicns that affect the reported amounts of assets, labilites and disclosures of
cantingent assets and liabifites al the date of the inancial statemenis and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the financial year. Although these accounting estimales are based on the Board af
Executlve Officers’ best knowledge, actual results may differ from those estimates,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand depasits and short-term, highly liguld investments
ol exceeding 3 moenths) that are readily corvertible 1o known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial investments
Held-to-maturity imvestments

Held-1o-matarity investments comprise investments 1hat the Company has the positive intent or abidlity 1o hold
ta maturity, including term deposits held to matuity 1o earn pericdic inlerest

Investments in associates

An assooiale is an ertity over which the Company has sigmificant influence and that 15 nerther a subsidiary ror
an inarest in joirt wenture. Sarificant inflluence is the power to participate in the financial and operating paboy
decisions of the investee but not contral or joint contral over those palicies

inlerests in associales are initizally recognized at cosl. The Company's shase of the net profit of the nvestee
alter acquisibon s recognised i the income staterment. Dther distributions received other than such profit
share are deducted from the cost of the investments as recoverabile amounis

Investments in asseciates are carrled in the balance sheet at cost less pravision Tor impairment of such
investrnents (Fany). Provisions for impairment of imvestments in associates are made when there is relisble
evidence lor declining invalue of these investments st the balance sheet date
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Receivables

Receivables represant the amounts recoverable from custormners o other deblors and are stated at book valus
less provision lor doubtful debis

Provigion for doubtfiul debts is made for recenvabdes that are overdue for six manths or mare, oF when the
deblor is n dissolution, in barikrepley, o i5 expenencing similar difficulties and so may be unable o repay the
debt aceording 1o the Boand of Executive Dfficers’ azzessment.

Inventories

Imventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventory includes

« For manulfacturing activities: Direct matenal costs, direct labor costs and manulzcturing oveshead costs, if

any, incurred o bring the inventory 1o its current location @nd condition;

« For real estale inventory. Land use fees, compensalion and site clearance costs, construclion costs, direct

costs, and related overhead costs incwired dusing the propect construchan process

Cost |y caleulated using the weighted average method. Met realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated casts (o completion and costs 1o be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.
Inventories ane recorded under perpetual method

The evaluation of necessary provision for inventory cbsolescence follows current prevaling. accounting
regulations which allow provisions to be made for obsolete, damaged, or sub-standard irventores and for
those which have costs higher than nel realizable values as al the balance sheet date.

Prepayments

Prepayrments are expenses which have already been paid but relate 1o results of operations of mulliple
accounting pericds, including land rental, land clearance compensation, cost of acquinng the land e nght
ard azsels on land, costs of repaining fixed assets, properly insurance premium, Project cost of Minh Cau road
and other prepayments,

Lard rental represents the amourt of fard rent that has been paid inadvance. Prepaid land rentals are amartized
1o the incorme staternent on a straight-line basis over the rental perigd of 48 years.

Theland clearance compensation expense has bsen offsel against the land rental allocated to the incame
ciaterment using the straight-line method sarmesparding Lo the approved lease term for affsetting,

Prepaid expanses for acquiring the land use right and assets on land are amortised toncome statement oo the
straighi-line basis over the lease term

Froperty Insurance premium répresents praperty insurance expenses incurred annually and amortised 1o the
incame statement on a stralghi-line basis over a perad of nal mare thar 12 manths comesponding 1o the
insurance term.

Repair cost of fixed azsels represents fixed assels ovedhaul expenses incwrred once and of greal value and
amortized (o the income statement on a straighl-line basie over 2 period of rot mone than 3 years,

The proiect of Minh Cau road is determimed 1o be discontinued, therelore the progect cost s amorlized (o the
incame statement on a straight-line basis over 12 months.

Other types of prepayments somprige costs of small wels and supplies issued for consumpoan and othes
prepayments mcwrred in the production and business activities of the Company which are expected to pravide
future economic benehts (o the Compary, These expenditures Rave been capitalized as prepayments, and are
allocated o the incame statement w=ing the straight-line method in accordance with the curent prevaiiing
accounting requlations
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially atl the risks and
rewards af ownership (o the lessee. Allather leases are clagsified as operating leases,

The Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant leass.
Initial direct costs incurred innegoliating and arranging an cperating lease are charged to the income statement
whir Irour red.

The Company as lessee

Leases where substantially all the rewards and rigks of ownership of assels remain with the leasing company
are sccounted for as operaling leases. Rentals payable under operating leazes are charged to the ncome
statersent an a straight-ine basiz aver the termeof the relevant leaze. Benefits recaived and recenable as an
incentive 1o enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line baszis aver the leaze term.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangibde fied assels are siated at cost less accumulated deprecialion,

The costs of purchased tangibie fixed assels comprise thel purchase prices and any directly attributalse
costs of bringing the assels fo their working condition ard location for their intended use The casts af sell-
constructed or manufactured assets are the actual construction or manufactuing cost plus installation and
test nunning cosis,

Tangible fixed assels ate depreciated using the straight-ine method cwver their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and structures 3 - 54
hMachinery and eqguipment 3-125
Office equipment 4-9
Motor vehicles §-10
Others 533

Loss or gain resulting from sales and disposals of fangible fixed assets is the difference between the met
procesds from sales or disposals of assets and their carmving amount and s recegrised in the income
staterrent.

Intangible assets and amortisation
Land use rights

Intangible assets representing fand use rights are stated sl cost less accumulated amortisation. Land use
righis are allocated over the duration of the right 1o use the kand,

Computer software

Intangible assels representing computer software are measured initizlly at purchase price and amortised using
the straight lime method over their estimated useful e

Inveniary, payiol, production management and accounting softwane are amortised using the straight-line
methad over the duration of 5-7 years.
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Investment properties

Irvestmant properties are composed ol land use rights, buildings and structures hedd by the Company 1o eam
rantals are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation. The casts of self-canstructed mvestment properties
are tha finally accaunted constructon or directly attributable costs of the properties

Irvestment properties held 1o earn renlals are depreciated using the straight-line method aver their estmated
useful lives of 47 .- 50 years,

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rertal or adminisirative purposes, of for other purposes,
are carried at cost includes costs that are necessary o form the assels in accordance with the Company's
accaunting paliey, Depreciation of these assets, on the zame basiz as other assels, commences when the
agsels are ready lor their interded uge

Payable provisions

Payable provisions are recagnised when the Campary has a present obligation as a resull of a past event,
and it iz prabable that the Campany will be required 1o setlle that obligation, Pravisians are measured at the
management's best estimate of the expendiiure required 1o settle the obligation as at the balance sheet date

Straight bond issued
Stramght bonds are issued as long-term borawings
Carrying value of straight bonds is recarded om net basis, egual 1o bonds’ nraminal ameunt.

Costs relating to the issue of straight bonds are initially recorded az a decrease inthe princpal of the straight
bonds, Perlodically, such costs are allocated using the straight-line methed by increasing the principal and
recorded in the financial expenses or capitalised in line with recognition of straight bonds® interest expensea.

Unearned revenue

Unaarned revenue is the amounts recenved inadvance refating 1o results of aperations of for mulliple asosunting
periods for sarvices or peoducts that have been yel pravided o delivered, The Cormpany recogrizes unearmed
revenue in proporiion (o s obligations that the Campany will have to parfarrm in the fulure: When the revenue
racognition conditions are satished, unearned revenue will be recognized in the income staterment for the year
corresponding ta the portion that meets the revenue recognition conditions,

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

Reverue from the sale of gacds s recogmised whern all frve (5) Tollowing conditions are satished.

(&) The Company has ransferred to the Buyer the significant risks and rewards of awnership of the goods,

(b} The Campany retains neitter conlinuing managesial invelvemeant (o the degree usually associated with,
pwvniesship nor effective cantrol over the goods soid,

(el The armount of revenue can be measured reliably,
() It is probable that the economic Benefils associated with the transaction will fisw 19 the Campany, and

(el The costs incumad or to be incurrad in respect of the ransaction can be meagured reliably
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Sales of real estate

Reverue from the sale of real estate which the Comipany is the investor is recagnized whern all five (5) fallawing
conditions are satisfied

{a) The real estate has been completed and ransferred 1o the buyer, the Company has transferred 10 the buyer
the sigrificant reks and rewards of ownership of the real estale;

{b] The Compary retains neither continuing managenal involverment 1o the degree usually associated with
oawnership ror effective control aver the real estate sald,

[2) The amaunt of revenue can be measwed reliably,
{d} The economue benelits associated with the ransaction flowed or will low Lo the Company, and
{&) The costs incurned or 10 be incursed in respect of the ransaction can be rmeasured reliably,

For the real estate that the Company s an imeeston customers have the nght o complete the nterior of
the praperty and the Company shall comgplete the interior of the property in accordance with design, and
requirerments of customers. The Coampany recoanises revenue when he madin construction work i compleled,
handed over o customers if all fve (5} similar conditions as abave are satished.

Rendering of services

Revernue of a lransaction irvolving the rendering of services 12 recognised when the oulcome of such
ransactions can be measured reliably. Where a transaction irmabving the rendering of services is attributabie
o =everal perods, revenue 15 recognised 0 each periad by reference 1o the percentage of completion of the
transastion at the balanoe shest date of that period. The outoome of & transaction can be measurad relizbly
whien all faur {4) following conditions are satisfed

{a) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably,
{b) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow 1o the Campany;
[2] The percantage of compietion of the ransactian al the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

{d} The costs mewrred for the ransaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably,

Interest incame is accrued on a tme basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicatde
interest rate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions arising in foreign currencies are translated al exchange rales ruling at the transaction date. The
balances of monetary tems denominated in foreign currencles as at the balance sheel dale are retranslated
al the exchange rates of commercial bank where the Company usually ransacts an the same dale. Exchange
differences arising from the translation of these sccounts are recognised in the Incame stalement

Barrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the vear whan incurred unless they are capitalised
inaccordanse with Vietramese Accounting Standard Mo 16 "Borrowing costs”. Accardingly, borrawing costs
directhy atiributable 16 the acquisition, construction or production of gualifving azsels, which are assels that
necessarily take a substantial period of tme 19 get ready Tor their interded uze o sake are added to the cost
of those assels, untll such time as the assels are substantally ready far their intended wee or sale. Investrment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendilure an gualifying
assels s deducted from the cost of thase assets.

For specific borrowings for the purpose of construction of fixed assels, borowing costs are capitalized
even when the construction period s under 12 manths. Other barrowing costs are recognised in the income
staterwent when incurred.
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Taxation
Incoame fax expense represents the sum of the tax curmently payable and deferred tas:.

The {ax currently pavable ks based on faxable profit far the vear. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax
as reported in the income statement because it excludes iterms of income or expense thal are laxabde or
deductibde in other vears and it further excludes itérms that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is recoanised on significant differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial staternents and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and s
accaunted for using balance sheet lizhility method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally repognised for all
termporary differences and defered (ax assels are recagrised 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which deductible termporary differences can be utilised. A5 a1 27 December 2024, the
Company did nat have any matenal temparany difference belween carrying amounts of assets o liabilities on
the balance sheet and the correspanding Lax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax 15 caloulated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability = setlled o
the assel realised. Defered tax s charged or credited to profit or loss, excaptl when it relates to iterms charged
ar credited divectly to eguily, in which case the delerred tax 15 also dealt with i equity

Deferred tax aszels and liabllities are offsel when there 5 a legally enforceable right Lo set off current lax assels
againsl current 1ax labilities and when they relate (o income Laxes kvied by the same tax authority and the
Comparny intends Lo settle iLs curent tax assets and liabilities on a nel basis.

The determination of the Lax curmently payabde is based on the current interpretation of lax regulabons. However,
these regulations are subject ta penadic vanation aod their ultimate determination depends on the results of
the tax authorities' examinations.

Other taxes are paid in accardanss with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam,
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Closing balance Opening balance

VHD VHD

Cash on hand 800,303,976 619,385,308
Rairk demand depasits (i) 940,834 658,306 50.204,100,324
Cash equnalents (il 193,927 545,631 273.209,422116
' 444,562,511,913 283,312,907,758

(1 Including a bank demiand deposit af YND 2,600,000,000 that is frozen at the Joint Steck Commercial Bank
for Investrment and Developrment of Vietnarm — Thal Mguyen Branch

(i) Cash equnvalents represent Lerm depesils al cormamercial banks with orginal term from 07 o 03 months
al the interest rate ranging from 1.6% te 3.2% per annum (32 &l 371 December 2023 ranging from 21%
o 2.75% per annuim). Armong these, a term deposit of WYHND 140,000,000,000 s subject te restricted use,
irscluding WWDOS0, 000,000,000 mortgaged 1o secwe a short-term loan at the Jaint Stock Comrmercial Bank
for Imvestment and Develeprment of Vietnam — Thai Mguyen Branch, as presented in Mole 27.

3. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Closing balance Opening balance

WHD VMDD
Ciast Carmying aemaunt Ciost

Carryenig arnaurit
260,000,000,000 260,000,0:00.000 15000,000.0C0

Term deposits (i} 15.000,000,000

Heldtommaturity investments represent term deposits at commersial banks with onginal term from 0610 12
micntbs al the mterast rate of 4.5% 1o 5.6% per annurm {(as at 31 December 2023 5.6% per annurm)

As presented n Mole 27, the Compary bas morigaged s term deposit of VWD 20,000.000,000 (o seclre a
shart-term loan al Vietnam - Russia Jaint Venture Bank

6. SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Closing balance Dpening balance

VHD WHD
Desipro Ple. Lid 221, 308,15/,137 W93 5,710,544
Aznara Intermational Lismited 132,090.497,227 122.970,845.540

LT Apparel Group — A Lollytog Company 61.226.170,105

IFG Corporation 4, 505,345,051 E8B,130,154.094

The Haddad &pparel Group, Lid 46 590,010,516 35350247325

The Children's Place, Ltd. 1,873343,214 138,639,440 551

Others 172,B56,556,527 214 728,678 060
620.550.073.777 699.078.076.117

In which:

Short-term trade receivables from a related party i 2,138,735.300

(Details stated inMole 37)

As presented in Motes 21 and 22, the Company has mortgaged certain receivabdes’ arising from bank-
funded capital, including but rot limited 1o receivables/debt claims generated from goods al least of WD
250000,0000000 10 secwre bans al commercial banks.
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Durkng the year, the Campany made provision for devalusation of Wark In progress in the amourts af WND
B.636,430082 {2023 VND 269,181,786) and Ninished goods in the amounts of VHND 67 3700637 (2023 VMND O)
because the nel realizable valuees at the end of the firancial year are lawer than costs

7. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Closing balance Dpening balance

VND VND During the year, the Company reversed provisicn for devaluation of aw materals with an amount of WND
a. Current 4,345 865 554 (2023 WHND 4957 871,787) due 1o disposal of mvertories which had been provided lor at the
beginning of he year.

- AdvaEnces Lo employess 27 0068 490 352 23807 342,744
- Bite glearance compensation (i) 168716083 4272 16816,083 427 A5 al 31 Decernbes 2024, as presenied in Motes 27 and 22, the Cormpany has morlgaged some inventorles with
- Other recalvables 7617546736 5561361 966 value of at least VND 250,000,000,000 to secure sharl-term loans at cormmercial banks
51,438,120,510 46,284 783,112
b. Mon-current
- Bite clearance compensation (i) 10680826157 10680826157 10. PREPAYMENTS
10,680,826,157 10,680,826,157
(i) Reflect the compensation costs for land clearance accarding to the plan approved by the competent state Closing balance Opening balance
authonty. These costs will be offset against the carresparding land rental whesn the land rent wnit price is VND VND
determirmd
a. Current

8. BAD DEBTS

Toals and suppbes issued Tor consumplon 6,330,959.455 9211,740933
Closing balance Dpening balance Project cost af Minh Cau road 9,062.438,942

i ol Gogt, mCOVArENe ASEELS REUrAnce prermiurm 7232 780,025 £.0B0,148,538

amount amount
WHND VMDD Oihers JOEY 200,761 10075018362
A0 Korea Co, Lid 3_'552,?';1,'55'2 - 30,613,389,083 25,366,907,833

Madex SRL A00,BR0132 &0 850,132 267,205,066

: : b. Mon-current

True Minh Garment Joint Stock Company 159,534.2719 1659534219 E
paar Global Vietrair Limited 132 797 264 132297 260 : Cost of land clearance compensation affsel with land rental 59,748,317,139 42,366,128.688
Others 25,888,440 g Toals and supphies issued for consumpticn 34,1649 454,338 33373072803
o el snini s = PRLETHAT LA Coel of acauiting land use rights and assets on land (i) 17,157,305.591 17.580042.767

Provision for short-term doubtful debls  4,641,291,733 641,406,545

Cost of repairs for fxed assets 16987 103,734 18,038 085972

Recoverable amount s stated at book value less privizion Tor doubtiul debis

Land rentals 16.441,135,057 11677563272

9. INVENTORIES Others 6,462 468,366 10,928,326.277

Closing balance Dpening balance 150,965, 784,225 133,964,119,724

Provisi Provisi
it i i1 The cost of acguiring land use right and assets an land pertains to the land plats for which the Company
VND VND has been grarted with [and wee rghts with land rental being paid on an anrual basis.
Goods in transil 109357145924 S56,548,209.21% =
Raw materials 413,957 448839 {_5.‘14?_.11'3.1-5'}] 218,180 462,543 (G787 975.743)
Toals and supplies 4671 664,554 - FA666F01TS -
Wark in progress 27BAB4A6TBOS  (9702716,024)  230,147,166,201 (466,285972)
Iry v ik
- Garments and clhers 262849160539 (9102716024)  274,511858,.875 (466,285972)
- Real estate 15635307 326 - 15635 307 326 .
Finished goods F87.3807609901  (4868,173077) 294926587289  [4.800,802441)
1,093,845 497,083 (19,412,999,285) ©03,269,095,367 (15,055,064, 156)
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=] wom = = oe & o = woow o a
E & | o g | X e - e | = | A -4 E'f,_ 11 o
oo 3 i SR I N oo S 27 S IR e L ~ g 12. INCREASES, DECREASES IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS
E‘ E;!" g r"; F_:‘ i :} E‘! g- E‘ E‘ rc| g Co
T o L I =] e (=] mputer
E' & % 5 E_ g_ 5 i} E E_ E_ ot o Land use rights s alhanre Total
¥ = ¥ | EiE wm o 8B = B Bl 8 B VND VND VND
m T o = | R @
= . - . : - . = Opening balance 162,153,304 882 34,599,149, 502 196,752, 454,384
- [ - .
E E E = - F',l ﬁ II."'F,‘ % i E Additians Q03,478,241 229 320 000 1,132, 798247
= = F =
§ § %‘ & & E B c: o Closing balance 163,056, 783,123 34,828 469,502 197,885,252,625
- L
=l s g | o + g & 52 2 ACCUMULATED AMDRTISATION
= b e a o ol b5 Y . 8 g Z Opening balance 8,931,649 859 25,880,707, 462 34,812,357.321
o 2 ol
e 'E_ o Charge far the year 3942958108 2804736041 6,747 694149
=) o= & | o o | = e w ~ @G m Closing balance 12,874,607 967 28,685,443,503 41,560,051,470
fl: (2= (Fi8 | & EE|E|l R i1
E Ao x] S 2, R . & E5 Opening balance 153,221,655,023 8,718,442,040 161,940,097,063
in — w | o= — M=
E #ﬂ = = | v E S & & ;‘ g E, Closing balance 150,182,175,156 6,143,025,999 156,325,201,155
& - & wi o R T
53 4D il Pl - ‘3 -3 As at 31 Decermber 2024, the cost of the Company's intangibie assets includes WHD 22,738 834,035 {as at 31
2L g December 2023 VMWD 16,7 23,230,231 5) of assets which have been fully amortised but are still in use.
- i s : S oW ! ¥
o 2 3 g B & = g =3 2
E E ol et ¥ s I E: Zowm u The Campany pledged the land use rights, which have the canying value of approxinately VWD 9,797,747 383
o v = & =0 = a5 al 31 December 2024 [as al 31 December 2023 WND 40,227 499,160 Lo sacure the leans from banks as
B P~ =1 fr=]
s g w w -5 e o - prasented in Mote 21 and Note 22
— w = = I; - - 4 3
L - £ e e e il
(T3 § = F uf =F é o ?::
7 -
- u ==
g iR 13. INCREASES, DECREASES IN INVESTMENT PROPERTY
— = b o T = . — % o
ﬂ E g 2 a_ & k|24 E =8N E R 2R : Buildings and
* ER - T <o R S & O - o o 8 @8 T Land use rights Infrastructure Total
L 85 & 8 8 o B 88 R 8 &L 2 i
w Ea gl S S g & ] e . T VND VND VND VND
| e | e o | B = | s 2 8 IH =24
o = K & |Zlg| | % B g8 |49\¥|Fa EC oct
T s = & & | |58 & @ =2z SE Opening balance 220,739,893,814  80,702,325398 28299873907  329,742,093,119
=
- — = : n=
E A0 =% Increase 7,075 808,606 7,975 898,606
Rl = pw | o W o W - 7 || @ - o =5 E; i Transferred during the year {27 632 538,800} (27 632 53823000
Zz B3 = =@ B | ol — N i N @® of 33 -
= FEEi S = & g|2ls S |5 4R e | of 83 Closing balance 278,715792,420 80,702,325 398 667,335,107  310,085,452,925
v ER il & 2| 2R | R 5 2| 8% 23 ACCUMULATED
" [ g 8 5 8 & 2 8 B E § § 223 58 DEPRECIATION
5 5 E o = § E o e |25 ; & o gq': = % 5 Opening balance 2,401,118,626 992,822,985  1,350,013,351 4,743,954,962
e E.. 2 E“ E = S || :‘_'1 '-"._7'_ = E 2 1 Charge for the vear 4,730 B Y5683 1,7071.282,260 F08.946,138 6.547,804.0817
H E b -E = = Transferred during the year (1,599,202 578) 1,599 202 578)
=) . ® i;n 8 8 Closing balance 7131,994,309 2,694,805 245 59,756,911 9,886,556,465
- : o ml
@0 A E 3 3 o MET BOOK VALUE
on i
0 y & S 4 H g £t EE Opening balance 218,338775,188  79,709,502413  26,949,860,556  324,998,138,157
@ & TR
ﬁ & T g E g %‘ g = E g ¥ 3 25 Closing balance 221,583,798,111  78,007,520,153 607,578,196  300,198,896,460
(= | 5 & = m i fm = =
(&} a0 £ E @ 2 ; E 5 = A8 E: g B % o = According to VAS Na. 06 - investment Properties, fair value of investrment property as at 31 Decemnber 2024 |5
- & x sz & o = 2 2 ] =g g g am W ! required 1o be disciosed. However, the Company could not deterrmine the fair value as at 31 Decernber 2024,
"5y - g = % W a E 2 E 5 ﬁ .E = B i i therefare, na information about the falr value s disclosed in the Notes o the firandcal stalements because of
:: E | R E 0 § & 5 &8 & z & 'g the abzernce af the guiding regulations.
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Details of investment property are as follows:

Closing balance Opening balance

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost depreciation Cost depreciation

VHD WHD WND VD

THG Village Tawer G677, 335107 59756971 28299 873907 1,360013.251

Land use righls and
infrasfruciure at Son 209.418117.818 CR36, Mag i 07 442275212 3,3493.847,671
Cam 1 Industrial Clugtes

310,085,452,925 9886556465  329742,093,119 4,743,954 962

14. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Clasing balance Opening balance

VHD VHD
Apguisition 2.307,493,7493
Consiruclion 456,427, 190,059 270986914274
In which: '
- Ban Cam 7 Indusivial Cluster Project {§) 05216512615 195666 382 749
- Viet Due Garment Factary Project 1) 196 985 792 929 -
- THG Vo Nhal Factory Project (i) T4 57025), 514 150100257 574
- Phir Birdhy Progec! 12698879277 12698 89271
- Song Comg Auxiliany Home Praject : 8.376,400.620
- Odhers 26,940 F53, 730 SE295000 720
458,722 683,852 270,986,914,274

1 San Carm 1 Industrial Cluster Praject is mmplermented under Decision Mo, 1936/00-UBND, approving the
irvestmeant policy on 30 Jurse 2018, by the People's Committee ol Thai Nauyven Province. The project covers
# 1o1al area of over 70 hectares with & wotal investment of YRD 504 billion

(1) Wiet Due Garment Factory Progect was granted & construction penmit ander Canstrection Permit Ma. 117
GPXD dated 29 July 2024, by Censtruction Cepariment of Thai Mguyen Frovinee The praject cowvers a lotal
area af aver 40 heclares with a tolzl nvestrment af WD 4986 bdllion

(i) THE Vo Mhai Factory Project is implemented under Decision Ma, 1359/00-UBND, appraving the irmeestment
policy on 21 May 2078, and Adjustment Decision Mo, 3T1B2/00-UBND daled 12 December 2024, by the
People's Commitiee of Thai Mouyen Province. The project covers a total area of over 15 hectares with a total
investrant of YND 117.9 billicn.

As presented in Note 22, the Campany has pledged assets fommed frarm the Projects’ loans 1o securs the long-
lerm leans obtained from commercial barks.

Duting the year, tolal interest expense capitalized inta construction in progress was WHND ml (2023 WVND
2596857, T499).
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15. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Closing balance Opening balance

Frovision : Frowvision

Investments in subsidiaries
THG Land Joint Stock
Carmpany

Bac Thai investment and
Canstruotion Joint Stock - - 1, 1884907 824 L1, 188907 224)
Cormpany (1)

1440, C00,000,000

- - 141,188,907,824  (1,188,907,824)
Investments in associates
THE Land Jomt Stock
Company

Bac Thal Investrment and

Construction Joint Stock TEEIO7E24  ({72B107824)
Campany ()

THE Yer Binh Golf Camipany

Lirnited (i}

T A0, L0, 000, a0

140,788,107,824  (788,107,824) ; .

[ih A5 al 31 December 2024, Bac Thai Investmend and Construction Joint Stock Comipany has halted its
production and business activities and is in dizsolubion process. The Board of Executive Officers assessed
that the loss on the Company's investment in this asseciale corresponding to the proportion of awnership
interest was exactly equal to the value of the investment. Therefore, the Board of Executive Officers decided
to rmake full provision for the impairment of irvestment in this investes,

{il] Details of the Campany's capital cammitrmernls 10 the associate as al 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Capital Remaining
confribution as capital
at 31 December commitmernt
2024 (VHD) [VHD)

Charter capital

Mame of under Enterprise Proportion of ownership

interest under Enterprise
Registration Certificate (%)

associate Registration
Certificate [VND)

THG Yen Binh Golf

Company Limited S 0-000,000,000 25

147 000,000,000

The Company has nat assessed fair value of ils financial irvestiments as at the balance sheel dale since
thaare 15 no comprehensive guidance of relevant prevailing requlations an delermination of Tair value of these
fimancial irvestmeants,

According to the Resoluticn af the Board of Directors Mo T4/ND-HDCT dated 0B January 2024, the Campany
has appraved the disselution of THG Yen Binh Galf Limifed Company. Accarding o Resalution Ma. 783/HNG-
HOOT dated 17 Decernber 2024, m ordes toimplement Resolution Mo, T4/N0-HDOT dated OB January 2024, the
Board of Directars approved Lhe capital contribution to the agsociate within the commitied capital eantribution
frarmewark upan the assocate’s establishrment o meet the leqgal requirerments for dissalution of Yen Binh THNG
Golf Company Limited

Surnmary of the performance of the assockates during the year.

Current year Prior year

Associates

THG Land Joint Stock Company Cperatireg at prafit Dperating at profit

Hae Thai nvestment arsd Construction Joind ;

Stock Compary In the process of dissolulion  Ceased operation

THG Yen Binh Golf Company Limited Ir the process of dissalution Not yel come intoaperation
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16. SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES 18. SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Opening balance

Closing balance

Closing balance  Opening balance

Amount/Amount  Amount/Amount VND VND
able to be paid off able to be paid off Arcruals for interest expenses 9.442.630,633 6.633.795442
VHD VND COMmmission axpenses 931233818 10926 537 650
glel N.i-l.'Tl Construction and Irnvestment Consulting Joint Stock 63252078 551 10,096,504, 791 Transpariatian axpense 1.7130 400,076 4254 878726
el Accruals Tor salary and leave 27.1%3,597.900
Wiel Cuong St Tradlng Joint Stock Carmpany A SZ20937 4856 45386 71471,113 Ot hers 3,881 043436 5457447119
YEE Mietnam Carmpany Lirmibed - Ha Nam Branch 32,726,957 143 22 683.647,497 21,394 307 963 54 472 656,847
Premiber Exirn (HE) Limited 31480643 820
TLF Viethan Production and Trading Joint Stock Company 25,673 543,857 27,867,997, 163
Desipro Pre. Lid. 24,102,949,713 7.731,224,054 19. UNEARNED REVENUE
Mirgba Kushenyg Textibes Co., Lid 228759065243 4780166176 -
Closing balance Opening balance
Trung Dung Preduction and Trading Company Limited 13,640,153,285 it
Others 821026037 694 78412 330,084 & Short-term
776,663,187 507  473,768,152,067 Revenue recalved in advande from Son Cam 1 551 174 785 1247 444,288
in which: Industvial Cluster projest Rt s
Short-term trade payables to a related party Revenue recaived in advance from THG Village 405 050 703 3809053972
(Details stated in Note 37) 11005321500  1,902,086,471 Praject A 33
1,947,125,578 5,181,397,260
b. Long-term
17. TAXES AND AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE TO THE STATE BUDGET e et e R O SR 70,314,002,042 66,648 862,341
_ Paid during Reimbursed L Revenue recaived n advanoe from THG Village 1042 984717 1 (88098774
Opening balance tha year during the yeat Closing balance Praject L 254, J9E,
Al g i i B0,357,886,759 67,737,261,067
In which:
a. Receivables e - oy
earned revenue from related pa
E E } z 59 368,708 467 60 664,025,751
Expart - impart duties 11,2650991,617 11,407 671,595 5094310276 17579352936 (Details stated in Note 37) ARG, 7R AR,
11,265,991.617  11,407,671,595 5.094,310276 17,579,352,936
. Payable during Paid during
Opening balance the year the yoar 0o balanice 20. OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES

VND VHD YHD VND

Closing balance Opening balance

b. Payables VND VND

Value added tax 4356506856 14,467 239,500 14,806,599 556 Trade unian fee 3018,868,363 12245318662
Short-terrm d sits and mortgages recevad 2850166452 4390860155
Corparate incame Lax 21,200, 108,975 76,403 827,071 67666325002  D0,036671,044 e L e g ] A e
Others 7,156,513,006 5151018774
Personal income 1ax 2 572066,514 W116256616 20704562675 3383760455 16,034.547,821 21,887.197,592
Others 274819810 13248240770 12596329802 1026739618 In which:
24,981,654 985 134329573297 124.864,117,165 34,447,111,117 Other current payables from related party 2 695,860,560 2,695,860,560

[Cetais stated in Mote 37)
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21. SHORT-TERM LOANS

Crpening balance

Amount/Amount able to be paid off
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Decreases

in the year

Foreign exchange effect
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Closing balance

Amount/Amount able to be paid off

VND

Short-tarm loans 1.617.667.110038 6467.637.303,808

Current porthon of long-term loans (Details " )

in Note 22} 207,387 680,000 270879632805
1,819,048,790,038 6,696,516,936 703

Details of shorl-term [oans ame as fallows;

Short-term loans

Jeint Stock Commercial Bank far Investment and Development of Yietnarn - Thal Mauyen Branch (i)

YWietrnam Joint Slock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Thal Mguyen Branch {ii)
Military Carmmercial Joint Stock Bank - Thai Mguven Branch fii)

Jeant Stock Cammercial Bank far Foregn Trade of Vietnam - Thai Mouyen: Branch (iv)
Vietram - Rugsia Joint Venture Bank ()

Ehinhan Vietnam Bank Limited - Thal Mguyen Branch ()

Vietrarn Technological and Cemmersial Jaint Stock Bank - Dong Do Branch {vii)
Wietram International Cormmercial Joint Stock Bank i)

Others

Current portion of long-term loans [Details stated in Note 22)

Jeint Stock Cormmercial Bank for Investrment and Developrment of Vietnarn - Thai Mguyen Branch
Wietrarn Joint Stock Carmmercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Thai Mguyen Branch
Jint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Yietnam - Thai Mouyen Branch

Wietrarm Ervrotmenntal Protection Furd

G706, 710641477
23253960000

6,930,964 601 477

VND
1,400,735,872,532
625,585,305,004
235,672,801 557
138,958, 218,345
135,231,151.568
74628440197
73,622 209,055

B ABEE 73,402

52 5471 743,404
37,050,000
206,007,352,895
09461 672,895
55,512,000,000
44,793 680,000
2.2400,000,000

1,606,743,225 427

VHD

22 142,100,183

22,142,100,163

1400, 735872532
206,007 352 895

1,606,743,225,427

Closing balance Opening balance

VMND
1,617,667,110,038
875.64:3,104,376
497.143,649.957
95,627,004,132

149.016,301,533

237 050,000
201,381,680,000
118,000,000,000
49,052, 000,000
33,929 680,000
400,000,000

1,819,048,790,038
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Interest
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Collateral

()

()

(Hiy

(i)

(v}

(i)

280

Jairt Slock Camirmercial
Bark,  for  Investmesnt
and  Development  of
Wietnam - Thai Mguyen
Branch ("BIOV)

Viglnam  Joint Slock
Comitwicial Bank  for
Industry  and  Trade
Thai Mguyen Branch

hdilitary Carmrmercal
Jdairt Slock Bank - Thai
Mguyen Branch ("ME")

Jdairl Slock Carmrmercial
Barik far Foreign Trade
of  Vietmarm - Thal
Mguyen Branch

Vielnam - Russia Joint
Yenture Bank

Shinkan Vislnam Sank
Lirnited - Thai Mguyen
Branch

012024/ 469075HOTD
dated 07 Augusl 2024

01,/2024-HDCVHMY
MHCT220-THE dated 77
Oetaber 2024

TE4 724 24.000, 2089348,
T

200024 HOTOATM with
loan lirmil cantract Mo,
200724/ HOTDY T datad
12 June 2024

012024,/ 23090/HGTD
datad 08 March 2024

Amended and
supplemented extension
contract Mo 04 dated
13 Mareh 2024 (credit
contract SHEVN 20208
HOTD-0076 dated 17
February 2020}

WD 1,200 000,000.000
{including YMD loan
and converted foreion
currency, L/C balance
minus deposit, guarantee
batance)

WMDY SO0, 00000, DO
(irncleding YME and USD
Iars)

WVID 300, 0000000, COG

W 447 690,730,000
(ircluding YND and USD
Ioars)

USD 4,000,000 Jncluding
WHD and USD loans)

LS80 3,000,000 {nctuding
WHD and USE loans)

Sapplernent
winking capital
for the company's
praductiorand
husziness

Supplerment
working capital
for the company’s
praduction and
business

Supplerment working
capital, open LIC,
Igsue guaraniees

o serve texlila

and gariment
imanufactunng
aptnilies

Funding far legal,
reasanable, and
valid shart-lerm

loan needs 19 serve
production and
business activites,
excluding shor-tenm
nesds 1o soerve fixod
asael investmant
activities.

Supplernent working
capatal, opering LT
and guarantee needs

Supplerment working
capital

The lirmdt 5 granted wntil
31 July 2025 The principal
termm and interest rate af the
Imar are deterrmaned for each
dhsbursement

The credit limit 15 valid until
11 October 2025, The loan
term for each debt s stated
ot the Debl Receipt bul not
rmicde lhah & menths/Deht
Resaipt. The ban interast rate
iz determined far each Dehbt
Receipt and is adjusted once
a rranth

The credid  ferm wnbidl 28
Fehruary 2025: Livan
terriy I8 & manths for each
disburgement, loan  inlerast
rate 15 determined acoarding
to each debt fecempt.

The eredit ferm is 12 manths
frarm the effective date af the
contract, but noo later than
10 Jduly 2025 The loan tenm
for each debl iz a maximoem
of & manths Trom the day
fallowing  the  disbursesment
dale, The loan interest rate (s
determined accardinig 10 each
dabl recsipl.

The credit limit is granted for
12 manths from the date of
signing the cantracl. The oan
terim ks determined accarding
o each specific an plan,
not exceeding 5 manths. The
irteresl rale s delermined
aoccording 1o the  specific
credil contract.

The credit ferm is until 17
February 2025 Tha loan term
i5 nol more than 5 monthe for
each loan. The loan interest
is pad monthly accarding
to the specific provisions on
the Debl Acknowledgement
Agreermnent

5% - 5.5% per
AR

4.4% - 5.9% per
Arnum

4.8% per annum

4.6% per annum

2.5% per annum

4 A% N

-The Company’s pledged and martgaged assets (Mote 17},

- The Compary’s deposit contract with an amount af WNO 80
billion at BIDW (Hate 4%

- Recavables (Note &),
- Inventaries (Note 3);

indusirial  sewing machinery  and  affice  equipment,
canstructians  an the Company's land, 04 autormatic
ambraidery machines, constructions and architectural objects
atfached 10 the land in Zane B of Sorng Cong Industnial Park
{Mote 17);

Circulating goads and receivables ansing from the
Comparys economss contracts funded by Vietnam Joiet
Stock Commercial Bank Tor Industry and Trade (Nate & ang 9).

Machinery and egulpment under callateral contracts with MB
fMete 17}

- Machineny and eguiprment of projects, land use nghls and
assels attached w land Ponling lactory, Colton factony)
lecated in Bach Cuang Ward, Song Cong Cily, Thad Nguwen,
[ulure assets ame assels alttached 1o land of the Fackaging
Factary (Motes 17 and 12);

- Recevables (Note &);

- Goads in circulatian during the production and business
process (Mote 9)

Deposit balance and interest of term deposit contract
Mo, 07032024/HOTGARE-THNG with face wvalue of YHND
A0.000,000.000, inferest rate of 4.8% vear (Mole 5)

Machinery ard equipenent (Mote 11},
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CHAPTER W1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORM B 09-DN

£ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Cradi limit Principal and interasl term Interast Collateral

Credil Matice Ma.

01,2024/ TE-DDA The credit term is 12 menths

dated & May 2024, ¥
Vietnam Technologieal  redssuing the credit LR Lﬁ:llr E:Ef _‘rjsfl ﬂ'::ﬂh;g'r::';l s
o and Commercial  Joint limiit of contract Ma B4 sung win luu ’ g 5.57% per e y . ;
{wii) i 2 100,000,000.000 YO, rel exceed 5 months for each Witheul collateral, the Company is only using credit it 7.
Stock Bank - Dong Do TLG20226E3822) i - déng e i anrurm
Branch HOTD dated 74 Octobat collateral ratia 0% lagn, The loan mterast rale is
2122 appendix Ne deterrmined according toeach
TLG2022683822/HDTD/ et recalpt:
PLS93710
The credit term & 12 months
from the date of signing the
contract. Loans are dishursed
st | Intrveiieal with a maximum ferm of & Goods and recelvables farmed from VIB financed capital but
% T : F159025.24 dated 26 Supplement rmanths. Flaating laan intenest not limited to invenlorles/debt claims/receivables/added
plll ggﬂ'ﬁ:glﬂ]l <l S hdarch 2024 VLI LI U0 warking capitaf rates are determined at the PR AN value/rights arising/formed from goods of at least VYWD
time of disbursement/interest 2H00000,000.000 {Netes 6 and 9),
rale adjestment according o
WVIB's interest rate policy from
Urre 1o lme.
22. LONG-TERM LOANS
__ Openingbalance ar ___Closing halance
Amount/ Amount able to be paid off Increases Decreases Amount/Amount able to be paid off
_ VND VND VND
Lonig-terrm kans 716,279684,273 114479625707 2384353 950,000 GO HO5 249 89524
S_llalghl borids (Delails slated in Mate 23) 207 205697,000 401343166867 §,525000,000 BAZ AT BET HAT
1,013,485,275,223 515,822,792,568 230,178,960,000 1,299,129,107,791
In which:
Amount due for settlement within 12 months
(Presenited in Note 21) 201,381,680,000 206,007,352,895
- Loan 201,381,680,000 206007 352 835
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 812,103,595.223 1,093,121,754,896
-Lean _ 514,897,904,223 400.457,897,024
- Siraight bonds 207205697000 632623 857 867

Details of long-term loans ame as fallows:

Closing balance Opening balance

VHD WND

Wietnarm Joint Stock Carmmercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Thai Mguyen Branch {iil 275,824, 574,606 336,090,857 683
Joint Stock Commencial Bank far Invesirment and Developrment of Vietnarm - Thai Mguyen Branch (i) 2020524943032 223 ATEE23
Jaint Stock Carmmercial Bank far Foreign Trade of Vietram - Thai Mguyen Branch (i) 11 -5.'I B8,187,01 5 997658219717
Wietnam Ervironmental Protection Fund (iv) - 13.440,000,000 10,000,000.000
' ' 606,505,249,924 716,279,584,223
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- L2 _NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued

Lenders

Credit mit

Purposa

FORM B 09-DN

Principal and interast térm

Interest

rate during

CHAPTER W1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Coliateral

(il

W

{1

(il

W

(i)

(i}

284

Vielnam Jalnt Stock
Camireresal Bank far
Industry and Trade - Thal
Mguyen Branch

Vietnam Jaoinl S1ock
Carmmercial Bank for
Indusiry and Trade - Thal
Mguyern Branch

Vietnam Jaint Stock
Cormmarcial Bark for
Indusiry and Trade - Thal
Mguyern Branch

Vielnam Jaint Stock
Commercial Bank far
Industry and Trade - Thal
Mouyen Branch

Vietnam Jainl Siock
Cormrarcial Bank for
Indusiry and Trade - Thal
Mguyen Branch

Jdaint 3tack Commersial
Bank far Invastrment and
Developrment of Vietnarm
- Thal Mguyen Branch
("BIDV)

Jairl Stack Comemercial
Barik far Investment and
Developrrent of Vietnarn
- Thai Mguyen Branch
["BIDN)

01/72022-HECVDADTS
NHCT220-THG

07202 2-HDCVDADTS
MHCT220-THG

Oa/ 202 2-HDCVDADT S
MHCT220-THG

1172022-HDCVDADTY
NHCTZ20-TNG

0172023-HOCVEADTS
NHCTE20-THG

02202/ 369075,
SDBS dated 11 July
2022 {amendrment
and supplerment
[0 Credit Contract
02207 9,/ 469073/
HOTD dated 10 Jure
2019y

022020/ 4690751
HOTL

WD 1231 00,000 000

WD T4,500,000,000

WD 30.820,000,000

WD TZ,173,000,000

WD 336,253,000 000

VWO TBE39317,48%1.700
and  SD 1589578
bt ot excesding
T0% af the 1otal actual
mwestmernt of THNG Dong
Hy Garmenl  Faclory
project (inclueding VKD
and converted foreign
cirancy)

WHD 70,213,000,000 but
nol exceeding 70% of
the fofal actual progect
investment  [incleding
WHD  and  oonverted
foreign  currency)  for
investrment i machinery
and equiprment bn 2020

Payment of legal
invastment costs of

the Project: Expansion
af THG Phu Binh
faciory

Payment of legitimate
investment costs

for the company's
madhineny and
equipmment investment
project in 2022

Payrment of legitimate
investment cosls

for the company's
machimery and
equiprment investiment
praject in 2022 (2
tirmse)

Fayment of legitimate
investment cosls

for the campany's
rmachinery and
equipament investrment
project in 2022 (34
tirne)

Fayment of legal
investment sosts

of the Project THG
Son Cam 1 Garment
Faclory Praject al
SonCam 1 industrial
Cluster, Thai Mguyen
City

Invesiment in
canstruction of THG
Dong Hy factory

Irvestmeent in
machinery and
efupment in 2020

The term s 7 vears from the day Tallewing the date the
Bark disburses the first laan 1o the Company. The current
apphicable interest rate is 12%vear for loans in WHD,

The loan terrm is S years fram the day Tollowing the date
the Bank disburses the first loan to the Compary. For
Ioans in WHND, the lending interest rate is the base interest
rate plis (+) a rmargin of 3.5% per yvear

Thetoan term is 5 years fram the day Tollowing the date
the Bank disburses the firs! loan to the Compary. For
Ioans in VND, the lending interest rate is the base interest
rale ples (+) a margin of 3.5% per vear

The koan team (s 5 years fram the day Tollowing the date
the Bank disburses the first loan o the Compary. For
Ians in VRO, the lending interest rate s the base interest
rate plus () a margin of 3.5% per yvear

The loan team s 7 years fram the day Tollowing the date
the Bark disburses the first loan o the Company. The
leciding interest rate i an adjusted interest rale. For leans
i WD, the lending interest rate within the lamm is equal te
the base interest rate plues (+) amagin of 3.5% per vear,

The doan tenm is 84 menthe from the first disbursament
date. Interest s paid perodically on the 25th af each
menth fram the month with the Tirst loan disbursament
date, applying flaating interest rate, adjusted every 6
menths, egual o BIDVWs 12-month residential deposit
inlerest rate with interest paid i arrears plus a minimo
bank fee of 4% in acoordance wilh BiDVs regulations
from tirme 1o tme,

The lzan tarm e 60 monthe from the first disbursement
date. Interest s paid periodically on the 25th of each
itk fram the month with the first laan disbursemeant
date, applving floating interest rate, adjusted every &
maniths, equal 1o BICWSs 12-maonth residential deposit
interest rate with interest paid inarrears plus a minimwem
bank fee of 4% In accordance with BIDV'S regulations
fram e 1o time.

the year

12% per
AN

12% per
anrm

134 8% per
anrum

12.5% per
AN

T0:3% pe
N

U pear
NPT

0% pasr
AN

All azsets formed from the Project's
lpan capltal (Nate 11)

All assets farmed from the Praject's
kzan capital (Nate 17)

All assels formed from the Praject's
lean capital (Mote 17)

All assets formed from the Praject's
loan capltal (Nate 11)

All assels under securnily contracts
established before, al the same
Lirrwe and after 171 August 2023
having provisions or references o
abligations (Mote 17 and 14)

Al assets formed from the

TNG Dang Hy Garment Factary
Constructon Investrrent Project
{Mate 11)

All agsets formed froom the
Company’s 2020 machinery and
equipment investmsnt project {Mole
1)
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- L2 _NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued

Lenders

Credit limit

FORM B 09-DN

Principal and interest term

Iinterest

rafe during

CHAPTER W1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Collateral

(i)

Lii)

(i)

(i)

ki)

ki)

286

Jaint Siock Commersial
Bank far Investrment and
Developrrent of Vietram
- Thai Mguyen Branch
CBICY)

Jairl Stack Cormmercial
Bank far [nvestment and
Developrment of Vietrarm
- Thai Mguyen Branch

("BIDVT)

Jaint Stock Cormmercisad
Bank far Investrmert and
Deverdoprrent of Vielnam
- Thai Mguyen Branch
(BiDV)

Jairil Stack Commergial
Bank far lnvestiment and
Ceveloprment of Vietnarn
- Thal Mguyen Branch
("BICV)

Jairt Stock Cormmerizd
Bank far Fareign Trade of
Vietnam - Thai Mguyen
Branch "WLCE")

Jairt Stock Cormmercial
Bark for Foreigry Trade of
Yietram - Thal Moleyen
Branch ("WCE")

03/2020/46907 5/
HOTD

04,2020/ 450007 5/
RHOTD

02/2022/46907 5/
HOTD

02/2024/469075/
HOTD

29619/
CADT/ T FEFE3T

TBEAAO/HDTONTH

VD 188, 740,000,000 bt
nob exceeding 5% of the
iofal  actual  investrment
of the project [including
YD and converted Toreign
currercy) 1o imvest in the
construclion of THG WVa
Mhal Factary

VMO 37519000000 bt
not exteeding 70% of the
total  actuzl  investrmert
of the project {including
VMO and converled forsign
currerey) 1o rmplement the
Catlon Production Line Mo,
3 Inwastrment Progect

YD 57,500,000,000 but not
exceeding 70% ol the lotal
acltual project  investrment
lircluding WD andd
converted foremn curmency)
Lo mmplermernit the THG Sang
Cong  faclory  expansion
project

VHD 349000000000 bt
not exceeding 70% of the
tetal  actual  nvestmenl
capital of the project
including both WHND  ard
converled forelgn currency)
for implementing the THNG
Viel Due Garrent Factary

VMDD BT EIZ000000 bl
nob excesding 61% of lotal
investment, to invest in the
Song Cong Auxiliary Factary
Congstniction Investrment
Project . (excluding  colton
producticn live mvestment
poels)

WD 55,652,000,000

Investment in
construction of THG
Wi Mhai Garmert
Fattary

Implementing the
Investment Progect
for Cattan Productian
Line Mo 3

Implemanting TNG
Song Cang Factory
Expansion Project

I rrpbermant the
Irvestment and
Canstruction Project
of THIG Wiet Dut
Garrment Fastory

Investment Tor the
Song Cong Auxtliary
Factary Construction
Investmeant Project
lexcluding cotton
produstion line
irvestment costs)

Financing far legal,
reasonabile and valid
eredil needs refated
Lo mwastmenil 0
implermernting the
TG Sang Cong
Aixiliary Plant project

The loan term i 84 months fram the first disbursement
date. Interest is paid periodically on the 25th of each
mrarth fram the month wath the first loan disbursement
date, applying floating interest rate, adjusted every 6
manths, egual to BIDVS 12-month residential deposit
inferest rate with inlerest paid inarrears plus & minimen
bank fee of 4% in accordance with BIDVs regulations
fraar e 1o tirme.

The tzan terrm s 84 moaths from the first disbursament
date. Interest i paid perodically on the 25th af each
maaeth fram the month with the first loan disbursament
date, applying foating interest rate, adjusted every 6
manths, egual to BIDVS 1Zmonth residential deposit
interest rate with intersst paid inarrears plus s minimem
barik fee of 4% in accordance with BIDVs regulations
freares tirres 1o e,

The doan terrm = 84 moenths fram the first disbursement
date. Interest is paid periodically on the 25th of each
monith from the month with the first loan disbursement
date, applying floating inlerest rate, adjusted every 6
months, egual o BIDVSs 12-month residential depasit
interest rate with interést paid inarrears plus & minimem
bank fee of 4% in accordance with 3I0Vs regulations
from Tirme 1o Lirme,

The taari term 15 102 months from the date of the first
dizburserment. Interest shall be pald penodically on the 25
of each month, starting from the maethon which the Bank
disburses the first loan instaliment. & loating interest rate
shall be applied, adjusted every 06 months, equivalkent
o the TZmonth term depasit inlerest rate [posipaid)
lor individeal custemers at BIDY plus & minimum bank
roargin of 4%, in accordance with BIDWs regulations from
Lirme to tirme.

The Ioan termis B4 monthis from the ned day of the
firel loan disbursement date The loan interest rate is
adjusted 1o the interest rate of 12-marith VHND persenal
savings with interest paid later, anmounced by the Joint
Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vielnarm -
Thai Mguyen Branch from time Lo tire, plus (£} 2 margin
of 3.3%/ vear bul not lower than the bank’s lending floor,
adjusted every 3 manths.

The foan term kg 72 menths from the firsl disbursameant
date. Loan term is 72 months from the next day of the
firel disbursement date. Floating loan inlerest rale, equal
i the 1Z-month YMD personal savings inferest rate with
interest paid later announced by Vielnam Joint Slock
Cammercial Bank far Foreign Trade - Thai Nguyen Branch
i each perod plus a margin of 3.3% but nat lower than
the bank's lending foor, adjusted every 3 manths

the year

0% ey
dinrudm

0% paer
dnrurm

O psr
dnnum

B 5% per
dNrre

8 1% peer
anrem

B.1% per
=halntilpgt

Al assets formed after project
investment {formed from loan
capital and eqguity capital), land use
rights of the project f land (s leased
with-ane-time payrment), all righis
related to the project (property rights
arising from lard lease condracts,
insurance berefits, ele) (Notes 11,
12 and 14)

All azzets formed froen the Cattan
Produstion Line investment Project
Ma. 3 (Mote 11

All assels formed Troen the
Compary's THG Sang Cong Factory
Expansion Project {Mote 11)

All azgets forrmed from the
Irvestment and Construction Project
af THG Viel Duc Garment Faslory
{Note 14)

Theentire construction warks on
larvd, machinery and eguipment
fesrmied fram loan capital and equity
capital of the Sang Cong auxibiary
factary construction investment
project and land use rights of area
B, Song Cong | industnal park, Bach
Quang ward, Sang Cong eity, Thai
Mguyen provines with a Lotal area of
53,100 m" (Motes 17 and 12}

- Machinery and equiprment of
projects (Mate 17);

- Recenables (Note &),
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CHAPTER W1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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L _NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued

Lenders

Credit imit

Principal and interest term

Interest

rate during

Coilateral

Juin; Tﬁlnnk Comimercial r ir rrachirery, Thn?vJ lar term is 60 mrmﬂtlg from the next day of H’:E Tirst investment graject (Nate 11),
; Bank far Fareign Trade o edjuiroend, and disburserment date. The ending interest @teas Hoating, B% pear
i Vietnam - Thai Nglyen IDOR TR AT bl Rl B phactrical Systerns egual to the &-rnanth Libor mterest rale plus a mangin of Annum - Recaivables (Nole @),
Branch ("WCE") in 2021 that have 5.5%fvear phus the risk premiurm announsed by the bank.
bean appraved by - Gpads circulated in the proguction
competent autharities and business process (Male 9),
in aceordance with
the premasions af law.
The loan term s 60 mionths: from the next day of the
firel disbursement date. The loan interast rate applied
Financing far i the first wear 15 egqual o the oar lean inlerest rate as 2
) Y reasonable valid, arnounced by WCBin effect an the fust disbursement date Araehinpry anicequiment ‘."_E
Jaint Stock Cormmereial il pradit A arl it fscad withi 1Z minhthe Reenthafiret diahtrearnant forrmed from borrowed capital
«  Bank for Fareign Trade of PR CIRON. ok S Y VN S AL B. 7% pear and equity capital accarding 1o
fhi] : 1B TH/Z2HDTDY TN WRD &7 230,000,000 related to additicnal date. The loan interest rate applied from the second yvear ; ol
Vietnam - Thai Nguyen . _ Ty anmnum the machinery and equiprmernt
Branch ("VCE') irvestirient in !'.'I'l"'ll.'.IEIrLFS 15 egual 1a the TE'IT":ﬂn.m WHD personal savings investment project in 2023 (Note
rrachirery and interest rate with interes! paid imarmears announced by e
equipraent in 2023 the Jainl Stock Commercial Sank Tar Foreign Trade ;
of Vietmam - Thai Mguyen Branch in each peviod plus a
margin of 3.5%vear, adjusted evary 3 months.
The loan lerm is 60 months from the day following the
first dishursernent date. The lending interest rate applied
Fifaneing for in the first year shall be equal o the mimimuom lending
reasonable; valid, interest rate announced by VOB effective on the first Machinery and equipment are
Jaint Stock Commercial and lawful credit disburserment date and shall remain fieed for 36 manths P rrim Iﬂa#r_-.aputal il
il Bank far Fareigr Trade of 200 TOHZA4HDTDY WND 49 658 577 176 neads refated 1a frarm the first disbursernent date. Fram the second year T et anuity capital accarding to the
Vietnam - Thal Nguyen TH T797831.TH R, the investrment in orward, the lending interest rate =hall be egual 1o the annum 2024 rmarhinery and eqmpm.e-nt
Branch ("WCET additional machinery T1Z-manth WMD persanal savings deposit interest rate ¥
and equiprmant in (pastpaid) announced by Jainl Stock Commercial Bank Investment project (Hate 11
2024 for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Thai Mguyer Branch from
time 1o time, plus a margm o 3% per annum, with a@n
adjustment patiod of every 03 months,
Taimiphement the
project «Centrakized
: y wastewater treatment The foan term 15 7 years from the date the barawer The loan iz secured by MB Bank's
[} :Ireﬁltrg:mlin;;?unmm:aj ot EE“IEJEGMT"' WD 74000,000,000 systern of Son Cam 1 recemes the first disbursement, Loan inferest rate is 2.6%/ Eﬁ?—:;ﬁr guarantee under the Guaraniee
Industrizl Fark, phase vear lxed during the loan term ' Certificate
1 - capacity 1000 m3/
day and mghl
288 Anrual report 2024 289

Financing for legal,
reasormable, ard valid
cradit needs refated to
additional investiment

the year

- Assels are machinery and
equipment belonging to the



£ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Long-term loans are repayable as follows:

Oy cerreand ar within one year
In the secand year
in the third 1o fifth year melusive

After five vears

Eess: Armaunt due Tor setllerment withan 12
monifs (shown under shorl-term loans)

Amount due for settlement after 12
months

23. BONDS ISSUED

VND
206,007 352,895
169,880,057,637
218,343 462,652

12,274,336,740
606,505,249,924

206,007 352,895

400,497,897,029

Straight bonds
Closing balkance
Interest Tarm
rate
VD % Year Year
Straughit bonds B92623 857867 95and 10 4
692 623 B57.867

Details of straight Bond cortracts are as foliows:

297,205,691,000

297,205,691,000

Closing balance

FORM B 09-DN

Closing balance Dpening balance

VND
201,381 680,000
153,243.352,895
250,026,358,389

71,628,192,539
716,279,584,223

207,381,680,000

514,897,904 223

Opening balance

Opening balance

i|
:

Bord issued to public code TMNGT 24027 (i)
Bond issued o public code THGT22007 ()

Urallacated issue o

290

400,000,000,000
300, 000,000,000
(7.376,142,133)

692,623,857 867

S0, 000,000,000
(2,794,200,000)

297,205,691,000

FORM B 09-

(i)

{ii]

CHAPTER W1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Sccarding o the Board of Directars’ Resolution Mo 1106.01/MGHDOT dated 11 June 2024, 1he Campany
Issued 4,000,000 publicly offered, non-convertible bonds without warrants, with a par value of YMND 100000
per bond, a terrm of 4 vears from the issuance date of 25 November 2024, The boend interest rate for the first
vear |5 9.5% per annurm. From the second year onwards, the interest rate is determined as the average of
the personal savings deposit interest rates in Vielnamese Dong, postpaid, applicable for 2 12-month term,
a3 published on the official websites of the Jaint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Deseloprment
of Vietnarm (BIDY), the Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for indusiry and Trade VietinBank), the Joint
Biock Commercial Bank for Forelgn Trade of Vietnam {Vietcombank), and the YVietnam Bank for Agriculiure
and Rural Develepment (Agribank) cn the interest rale determination date, phis a masgn of 3.5% per annum
The purpose of the bond issuance is to expand the Company's operating capilal The borgd s secured
partially by 10,000,000 shares of BMr Mguyen Yan Thoi - Chairrman of the Board of Directors in the Compary,

Aooarding o the Board of Directors” Resalution No. TTT121/NGHDGOT dated 17 November 2021, the
Campany pubdichy issued 3,000000 norrcorverlible unsecused bends, without warrants, with par value of
WD 100,000, terrm af 04 years from the date of issueof 16 May 2022, lixed interest rate of 10% vear. Tha
purpose of bond issuance is 10 sstile the salary for employees and material expenses.

Bonds are repayable as follows

Closing balance Opening balance

VHD WND

In the second year 300,000, 300,000
In the third 1o fifth year inclusive A00 000,000,000 A00.004,000,000
700,000,000,000 300,000,000,000
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 700,000,000,000 300,000,000,000
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£ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24. OWNERS' EQUITY

P
Wa
Pad

Movement in owners' eguity
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E
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Dwners'

contributed capital

Retained sarnings

Cher reserves

[=
£
£
&
=

oOWnNers

Share pramium

WHD

VHD

VHD

VND

WVHD

1,627 648,028,172

212,319,038,365  72,801,115397 250,306,089 696

40,988,785,123 55,419,501

1,051,177 580,000

Opening balance

23 362,313,754

222 362,313,754

Prafit for the yaar

2022 profit

29.463,964,044

58,457,293 8549

(20,228 646,930

(117,145 904,833)

distributicn

(84,052 440,000)

B4 052,440,000

Share dividard
Cash dividend af
2022 declared

(42047103 200)

(42,047,103,200)

(45409,200,.800)

[45,400,200,200)

Oradend advanced

Remureration of tha
Board of Direciors

Closing balance

(7.014875263)

(7,.014.875.263)

1,726,310,515,733

270,776,332,224 102265079441 176,994379,354

40,988,785123 55,419,591

1,135,230,020,000

314824208164

314,824,208.7 64

Profit for the vear
2023 profit

10,000,000,000

20,000,000.000

(30,000,000,000)

destribution {i)

(30, 782.040,000)

U0 FE2, 040,000

Shane dividend (i)
Dividernd advancad

fiid)

(98,080,964 800)

(38,080,964 200)

Cash dividerd of

(45409,200,800)

(45,400,200, 200)

2023 declared (iv)
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Remuneration of the

Board of Directors {i)

Closing balance

1,226,012,060,000 40,988,785123 55,419,591
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

{1 Aecording 1o 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolution Mo, 190/2024/N0-DHDCD dated 27
Al 2024, the Company made distribubon fram 2023 profit to irvestment and developrment fund, reseres
for waorking capital and rermuneration for the Board of Directors with the amounts of VRO 200000,000.000,
WHD T0,000,000,000 and VWD 5223097 297 respecinely.

{il] According 10 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolution Mo, 190/2024/N0-DHDCD dated 27
Aol 2024, and the Board of Direclors’ Resolution Mo, 1T99/M0-HDOT dated 24 Apeil 2024, during the year the
Campany issued shares to pay dividends for 2023 1o existing shareholders at a ratio of T00E. The additionsl
Izsued shares amounted to 3078204 shares with a par valwe of VD 10,000 per share, coresponding 1o an
increase n contnbuted capital of WD 90,782 040,000, The newly issued shares from this distribution werne
officialy relisted effectve 79 August 2024, as annourced by the Hanal Stock Exchange an 27 August 2024,

[iil} Aaccording to Resolution Mo, 482/M0-HDOT dated 05 August 2024, and Resolution Na. 668/MO-HDGT
dated 22 Oolober 2024, the Campany's Board of Direclars approved the first and secard interirm dividend
pearprnents for 2024 in cashoat a rate of 4% of the par value per installment, with a total payout amaownt of
WD S8 080,964,800,

[n) Accarding 19 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharehalders” Resolution Mo, T9072024/M0-DHDCD dated 23
Bl 2024, the Comparny distributed dividends (or 2023 in cash al a rate of 8% of charter capital, amaunting ta
WRID 90,818,407,600 and in shares al a rate of B% of charter capital, also armounting 1o vKD 90,818,407 600,
to existing sharehclders. The Campany made the first interim diadend payment of VND 45,408 200,800 in
2023, fallowing the Board of Disectors’ Resolution No. 8BZ/NG-HOOT dated 25 Septermber 2023, and the
second intenm dvidend payment of YHD 45409 200200 under the Board af Directars’ Resolutan Na. 17/
MOFHDOT dated 08 January 2024, These internm dividend payments were Tully setthed within the year,

Charter capital
A5 at 31 December 2024, the charter capltal had been fully contributed by the sharehoiders as fallows.

Closing balance Opaning balance

VND % VND %,
MgLyen Van Thol 227.139.220,000 18.53 210,314,100,000 18.53
MejLyen D Marih 108,275,240,000 803 00,974,650,000 .07
Tran Canh Thong 76,756,340,000 6.26 71,070,690,000 6.26
AFCVF Limited 40,672,580,000 3.32 &1 388,360,000 5.41
Other shareholders 773, 166,680,000 £3.06 701.482,220,000 61.79

1,226,012,060,000 100 1,135,230,020,000 100

Shares

Closing balance Dpening balance

VND VND
Murmber of shares issued 19 the public 122.601,206 113.523.002
Ordinary shares 122,601,206 113,523,002
Murnber of autstanding shares in cirewlation (%) 122,601,206 113,523,002
Oreinary shares 122.601,206 113,523,002

(*} Included 5,862,547 ordinary shares subjest to restricted transfer as al 31 December 2024 (as at 31 Decembar
20235862 547 shares)

An ordinaty share has par value of VMO 70,000
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25. OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Foreign currencies
Closing balance Dpening balance
United States Callar (LSD) 2748821 2096874
Eura {ELR) 36 57
Rouble (RUB) a,905 5,835
Bad debts written off:

Current year Prior year

VYHND VHD
Institute of Erviranmental Technology and Climate Change 2,182,208,600 2,182 208,600
2,182,208,600 2,182,208, 600

Materials held under trust or for processing:

Linit Closing balance Closing balance
Cloth ward 5758131 1,248,321
Sring ward 336 AR5 168179
Thiread reall 28403 11, 7¥¢
Buttan plBceg 205748 40,950

26. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Geographical segments

The Company does not have ary operations outside the eeritory of Vietnam, manufasiuring and business
acthilies of the Company are mainly carmed oul al Nod2477, Bac Kan Streel, Hoang Van Thu 'Ward, Thad
MUyt City, Thai Nauven Pravince, Therelore, no report by gecgraphical segment i presented

Business segments

Durirg The yvear, the principal activities of the Compary are manufaciuring and trading of garment prodiucts (for
axport ard domestic sales). Therefore, norepart by business segment s presented, Revenue and costof sales
have been detailed by révenue and cost of goods sold and services rendered as stated in Note 27 and MNote 28,

27. REVENUE OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

294

Current year Prior year

YVHD VHD

G452, 738,057,742 5018409389313
1.117.413,344 645 1.099,97:29:54,789
79,723,546 850 23,140,559, 508

Sale of goods
Rendering-of processing services
Sale af real estate and other services

Sale of fashion products 6,478,816,398 56,547,121,337
7,655,752,759,635 7,098,010,025, 347

In which:

Revenug from a related party 1,412,294,145 797,853,332

(Detailz stated in Mote 37)

FORM B 09-

28. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Cosl of goods sold
Cosl of processing services

Cost of real estate and ather services

Cesl of fashion products sold

CHAPTER W1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current year

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Prior year

iI
2

581,423 753,041
049,211,045 958
47,730,972.680

5, 503,576,502
5,473,870,249.271

29. PRODUCTION COST BY NATURE

Current year Prior year

Raw materials and consumables
Latur

Depreciation and amartisation of fixed

assels and irmeestiment properties
Ct-sourced services

Prowvision madefreversed)
Clher monatary expenses

30. FINANCIAL INCOME

Bank and ioan interest
Foreigh exchange gain

31. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Irterest expense and bordd issuance
SHPENSE

Foreign exchange loss
idther financial expenses

VHD
4058457508 445
2 204,085605,%51

Z35,061,840,606

311070677402
9081445317
125542379872
7,043,299 457 594

Current year

5,103,671.081.298
048,407,.232.949

12 868,883218
4B,762.756,985
6,113,800,854,450

WVND
3,994,657 948224
2047, 784,391,108

£71.056,638.052

286,372 088,542
941,122.557
94,033,736321
6,338,845,975,204

Frior year

7,150,039:975
117.8%8,083,050
125,057,123,025

Current year

10,704,426,364
82,921,637 648
93,626,064,012

Frior year

i\
2

184.426,081.216

134,478,295 727
52.201,350,935
371,105,657,878

192,359, 757,790

B2.041,452,605
57.291,7 50.645
325,692,962,046
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32.

33.

34.

296
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The current corporale income tax expense for the vear was computed as follows

Current year Prior year

FORM B 09-

SELLING AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
VHD VHD
General and administration expenses
Admiristration staff 217,347 260 600 262,703,963 369
Faw materials and consumabies 10197613515 Q792212357
Depreciallon énd arrartisation 17834847 581 14, 875,345270
Pravisian expenses 3,890 2HAR 188 A35545,066
duf-saurced service expenses 2,624.363,529 2426715824
Other manatary expenses 72450 6B0 A7 68,274 452 542
424,454 644 889 358,408,344 368
Selling expenses
Labow T4 324 926
Raw materials and consumables 2249372 107,541,852
Transporiatian 41,899 910,681 46,533,571 5,340
Exporl expenses 41.373,116515 33272 537,790
Other selling expenses 26,473.351,762 271.409,154,752
110,513,197,605 101,716,749,234

VNI WND
Profit before tax 390,479,324 487 273,996,534,753
Adjustments for taxable profit 37,635,934,421 21,742,831,610
Add back: Non-deductible expernses 376355934427 21,742831.6140
Taxable profit 428,115,258, 908 295,739,366,363
Iy wehich:
Taxatde profit al incentive tax rate of 5% ) 53383245432 37677074 069
Taxabie ol al incentive [ax rale of B.5% (i) BA3FT79.803 5702835400
Taxatie profit al normal [ax rate of 20% 366294 533 B3 252359 455 594
Corporate income tax 76,645,289,279 52,840,486,090
Less Expense for fernate ermployvees 245,700,000 45960000
Corporate income tax expense based on taxable profit 76,399,589,279 52,380,886,090

in the

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES
VND VND
Other income
Ineoime from disposal of fixed assels - 307,980,978
Cilher incomes 1,530, 765496 2, 710.688 435
1,530,765 496 3,012,569,413
Other expenses
Loes fromm disposal of fixed assels 4,700, 384,966
Contracis’ penallies and cormpensations 1,145,307 428 4,804,056, 580
Oiher papanses 5981887632 16,220 157,341
11,917,574,026 21,033,213,921

CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Currant year Prior year
VHD WD

Current corporate income tax expense
Corparale income lax expense based on

taxable profit in the curent year AT A L BB DR
Corparale incorms Lax expense fram slock

ransfer cperating b e

Total current corporate income tax expense T6,403.827,071 52,380,886, 050

fiI THG Dai Tu factory project of the Company s entitled to the tax rate of 10% for the st 15 vears the propest
has revenue (fram 2016 1o 2030) and o nermal lax rate in the following years. The Company enjoys tax
exemiplion for 4 years framthe first vear it has taxable income (frem 2016 10 2019} and 50% Lax reduction in
the following 9 vears (Trem 2020 to 2028} 2024 is the fifth year the Dai Tu gamment branch af the Campany
izentitled b a 50% reductian of corporate income tax based on the incentive tax rate af 10%. Thereforne, the
applicable tax rate i 2024 s 5%

{ii] The Cotton Pad project of the Company is entitled 1o the tax rate of 17% for the Tirst 13 years the praject
has revenue (fram 2017 10 2029 and o normal Lax rale in the following years The Campany enjoys tax
exemplion for 4 yvears from the first year il bas taxsbke income (frem 2017 to 2020) and 50% tax reduction
iri the folewing 9 years (fram 2027 to 2029). 2024 is the fourth vear the cobton manulfacturing branch of
the Company is entitled to a 50% reduction of corporate income tax based on the incentive Lax rate of 17%
Therefare, the applicable tax rate in 2024 i5 8.5%

Taxabie profit from other activities of the Campany is subject 1o naral lax rate of 20%

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Comparny 5 obliged te relurn the beased land plols in Thai Mouyen provinee m the same cordition as
whien they was handed over and must bear all the costs of restorning theze land plots to their original condition
upa Gconfract terminaticn, &ccording be the Company's Board of Execulive Officers, the costs related 10 the
resforation of the [and plots 1o thelr orginal condition- at the time of handover cannot be rediably estimated
because there s not sufficient infermation with appropriate calculation methods. Therelore, the Campany did
nob recognize provision for payables related to the restoration cosl for these leased land plots in the financial
stalerrents
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36. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calcutation of the basic eamings per share az al 31 Decermnber 2024 is based on profit attributable o
ardinary sharehalders and weighted average number of sedinary shares in circulation in the year, as Tellows:

Current year mﬂ;:l;ﬁ;;
Accounting profit after corporate income tax (VHD) 314,824 208,164 217,629,053, 790
l.[!ﬂk-?rﬂll:?}lf;: ;am:-n o rerruneration of the Board of Diestors (5.229,007291)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (VND) 314,824,208,164 212,405,956,499
Average ordingty shares in circulation for the year {share) ' 122.6071,206 122,607,206
Basic earnings per share (WND/share) 2,568 1,732

) Az al 31 Decernber 2024, the Company had not estimated reliably the amount of profit of the vear 2024
thal can be appropriated to remuneration of the Board of Cirectars. I the Company appropriates banus and
welfare funds, and Remuneration of the Beard of Directors for the vear 2024, profits 1o calculate the basic
earnings per share would be reduced accordingly.

(i) Bamcearmings per share for the vear ended 31 December 2023 are restated as a resultof the impact of share
dividend Tor the year 2023 according 1o the guidance af Vielnam Accounting Standard Mo, 30 - Earmings
per share and the distribution 1o the Beard of Directors’ remuneration for the vear 2023 m accordance with
the guidarnce of Circular Ko, 20072074/ TT-BTC isswed by the Ministry of Finance an 22 Decermber 2074, in
which, the amounts distributed 10 the Board of Directars” remuneration for the vear ended 31 Decernber
2023 was as presented in Mote 24, details are as folkows

Adjustment from
Reported amount raportad amount Restated amount
HNet profit after corporate income tax (VHND)  217,629,053,790 = 217,629,053 790

Appropriation 1o remuneration. of the Board
of Directors (WRD)

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(VND)

fverage ordinary shares in circulation far
The period {shase)

Basic earning per share (VND/share) 1917 1,732

(5223,097291)  (5223,007201)
217,629,053,790  (5223,097,291) 212405956499

113,523,602 9,078,204 122 607,206

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

258

List of related party with significant transactions and balances for the year:

THG Land Joint Stock Carmpany Asenciate

Bac Thai Investment and Construction Joml - Assaciate

Stock Cormpany

AT Mguyen Van Thil Chairman

rAr Mguven Duc Manh Chiaf Executive Dfficer

hArs. D Thi Ha & close family member of Mr. Nguyen Van Thoi

hArs. Moguyen Thi Mhuan & close family meermber of M Mguyen Van Tho

FORM B 09-
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

During the year, the Company entered into the following significant transactions with its related parties:

Sales

THG Land Jat Stock Campany
Mrs. Mguyen Thi Mhuan
Purchases

Wrs. Mguyen Thi Mhuan

THE Land Jamt Stack Camgpany
Capital contribution

Bac Thal Inwestrment and Construcian Joimt
Slock Company

Cash dividend declared

M. Mguysn Van Thal
Mr. Mguyen Duc Manh

Other related partles

Cither transaciions

VND
1,412,294,145
1.301,183.025
111,111,120

26,954,376,128

14,904,088,682
12,050,287 446

44,893 338,400

26,683,701,600
17,494, 794,B00
6,810,44:2000

Current year Frior year

VND
797,853,332
797853332

13,248,972,122

13.248972,122
417,757,824
417,757.824
28,512,749,200
16201975200
£,571,380,800
5.439,393. 200

Duaring the year, B Hguyen Van Thoi - Chairman of the Board of Directors cammitied 1o martgage 70,000000

shares at the Company o guarantes the Company's issuance of bands to the public

During the year, 430000 shares of Mrs. Do Thi Ha - a close member of the family of 8. Nguyen Yan Thel -
Chairmanof the Company were used Lo secure shart-term loans at Joint Siock Cormmercizl Bank for Investment
and Development of Vietnam - Thai Mguyen Branch of the Compary,

Significant related party balances as at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Short-term trade receivables
THG Land Jent Stock Campany
Short-term trade payables
THG Land Jent Stock Campany
Mis. Mguyen Thi Mhuan
Uneamed revenue

THG Land Joint Stock Carmpany

Other current payables

Bac Thai investment and Construchion Joint Stock
Carmpany

Closing balamceé
VHD

11,006,321,500
9,921,927 500
1,084,304,000
59,368,708 467
50,368,708,467
2,695,860,560

2,695.860,560

Dpening balance

VND
2,138,735,300
2 138,735.200
1,902,086,471
1,902,086.471

60,664,025, 751
60,664,025.751
2,695,860,560

2,695,860,560
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Remuneration of the Board of Directors, Board of Executive Officers and other management personnel in the 38. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

year as follows:

W, Mguyen Van Thol
W Mguyen Due Manh

b Tran Mink Hieu

hrs. Doan Thi Thu

ks Kguyen Thi Phuang
Mrs. Luong Thi Thuy Ha

wAr, Lui Duc Huy
hir. Pharm Thanh Tuan

M Le Muan Wi

Wz Tran Thi Tha Ha
hAr. Mguyen Manh Linh

M. Mguyen Hoang Giang

Mrs. Ha Thi Tuyet

M Mguyen Van Duc
krs. Do Thi Ha
M. Le Quarng Virh

kr. Tran Canh Thang

200

Chairman

Chial Emscutive Officer cum
rmembaer of Board af Directors

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Depuly Chief Execulive Officer
cum member of  Board  of
Directors

Deputy Chief Executive Officar

Depuly Chairwaman curm Deputy
Chiel Executive Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Cfficer

Deputy Chiel Exscutive Ciloer
{resigred on 12 June 2024)

Deputy Cheef Executive Officer

Chaef Aceourntant

bember af Board of Cirectars
fapooirted on 27 April 2024
Independent member of Board of
Direclors

Indeperdent member of Board of
Directors {appointed on 27 Apsil
20240

Member of Board of Ddrectors
{resigned on 23 April 2023)

Member of Board of Duirectars
{resianed an 23 April 2023
Member of Board of Directlars
{resigreed on 23 April 2023)

Member of Board of Directars
{resigred or 23 April 2023)

Current year Prior year

VHD
3.0351 79,800
3632486200

2127,001.100
2,004,573.700

2.532,230.100
1,849,389 600
1.733,06T,200

762535420
1.264,274,000
1476836200

180,000,000

180,000,000

120,000,000

Me lenger a member
of Board of Directlars

ex lonaer a memkber
ol Board of Directors

Mo longer & member
of Board aof Cirectars

Mo longer a member
of Board af Direclars

20,900,567,320

VHD
2.922920,300
3,422 059 900

2,125 848,500

2,000,257,000

1,943, 4817,000
1,915 737,000
1,02% 804,600
1,527 175800
1,095,689,500
1,298.370,500

TROO00,000

180,000,000

Mol yal a rmember
of Board of Direclors

62927100
0,000,000
H0000,000
60,000,000

20,133,331,600

Preparar Chief Accountant

Supplemental non-cash disclosures

Cash outflows for purchases of fixed assels and construction in progress dusing the year exclude 2n amaunt of
WMD 210,460,967 629 (in 2023 WND 6% 095,297 403}, representing an addition in Meed assets and consiruction
in progress during the year that has nol vet been paid. Consequently, changes in accounts payable bave been
adjusted by the same amount.

Cash autfows for interest paid during the year exclude an amaunt of YHD 2442630633 {in 2023 WHD
f,633,795442), representing the amount of interest payable during the year that has not yet been paid
Consequently, changes inaccounts payables have been adjusied by the same amaunt.

Cash inflows for Inferest earned, dividends and profits recetved during the year exclude an amaunt of YHD
1,682,068 493 (in 2023 WHD 872 547 245), representing the amount of interest from deposite during the vear
that has mol yet been received. Consequently, changes in accounls recevables have been adjusted by the same
Arnourd,

39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Tempaorary dividend advance for the 3rd guarter of 2024 in cash

According 1o Resolution No. B25AMNGO-HEOT dated 30 Decamber 2024, the Board of Directors of the Cormpany
appraved he termporary 3 dividend advance of 2024 incash at a dividend pavment rate al 4% per parvalus with
a tolal payrrent amaunt of VRO 49,040,432,400, The Company camipleted dividend pavment o shareholders
in January 2025,

Cthes than the matiers mentioned above, there are no subsequent events occuwring after the balance sheet
date that reguire adjustrment o or dizclesure in the Company’s fmancial statemenls.

70
i
o

o[ o) PRAN DAL TY

Tran Thi Thu Ha

Luong Thi Thuy Ha
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

24 March 2025

CONFIRMED BY THE COMPANY'S LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

NGUYEN VAN THOI

Anrual report 2124 301






		2025-04-11T16:47:34+0700




